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July 26th, 1934.

10:00 o'clock A.M.

Court convened at 10:00 o'clock A.M, July
26tn, 1934, pursuant to adjcumnment heretofore
taken.

i

Present: Same ag before.,

J AMES Js GORTLAND,
wag recilled 28 a witnese on behalf of the prosecufion,

and veing further examined in chief by Yr. Crowe,

teatified as follows?

Q vhat is your name?

A James J., Cortland.
Q You are the same James J, Gortland who was testiw

fyingyesterday afternoon when court adjourned?

A Yes gir.

MR, CROWE: You may oross examine, ¥r. Darrow.

- -, o e
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CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. DARROW,

Q Mr, Gortland, you are a policeman?

A Yes sir,
" Q@ How long have you been on the police foroe?

A In the active department about seven years,

Q Seven years?

A Yes sir, and previouws to that in the clerical
branch.

Q How i3 that?

'A Previous to that as a stenographer in the same de-
partment, | . '“ |

Q Whereabouts, what office?

A VWell, at the Kensington Station andthe Deputy
Superintendent of Police,

Q During this seven years, what positlons have you
held in the department?

A I have been u stenographer inthe Deputy's office
and -=-

Q Wwell, I mean during the last seven years since
you have been on the force?

A Clerical.
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Q Since you have b;en‘on fhe force?

A Clerical, and I have been on gambling and vice,
Secretary to the Morals Inapector,

Q@ Secretary to what?

A To the Morals Inspector,

MR, CROWE: Secretary to or of?

A To.

MR, CROWE: To the Morals Ins—ector?

A Yes,

MR, DARROW: Q  ‘®ho wns the morals inspzotor?

- A At that time it was Sergeant Hugh McCay%nxﬂv
'Q When did you leave that pluce?

A Vhen?

Q When did you leave that job?

A In the year 1918 when the Morals divisiun was
abolished. The officers were taken out of there ;n
1918,

Q Then what did you do?

A %ell, I was taken out of thérs at the tiwme < the
riot on the South Side amd I wae sent to the Stantén

Avenue Station on the riot, on the clerical end
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of it and handling the telephones at the different
pointe where the rioting was going on, checking in
different reports of disturbances,

Q That riot you refer vo was the one between the
whites and the blacks?
A Yes sir.

Q Then what did you do after that?

A Then 1 came back andlwas in the Deputy Superintend=-
ent 's office.

Q In what position?

A Stenggrapher. After that the homocide squad
was created and I was sent in there to take stenoge
raphic notes of witnesees on homicide cases,
Q When did you deave that position? A 1 left
that about three years ago.

Q About three years ago?

A Yes,

QThen what did you do?

A T went as secretary to Chief of Detectives Hughes,

Q@ I beg your pardon, I dim't hear that.

A Secretary to Chief of Detective Hughes in the
Detective Bureau,

Q And that ig your position now?

1 1llinoks. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 507 1924



Sr -508-~

Q fet me see. How long have you been connected with
the police departmdnt in all ways?
A Oh, about twelve years.
Q About twelve years?
A Yes,
Q What was your business before that? N
A I wag Chief Clerk to the train Master of the Michigan
Central,
Q Have you in your business been called upon, or
acted at different times in getting statements from
people accused of crime? |
A That is correct,
Q For how long?
A During my continuaus service in the police depart=
ment for the entire period.
Q Did you take them on your own account or write
them for somebody ¢1lse?
A In both ways.
Q When you took them on your own account, who wrote

them?

A 1 wrote them myself, wight on the machine, the
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questions and answers,
Q At the time?
A Yes,
Q Hae that besen your uniform habit of writing a
report?
A My custom is to take the testimony right directly
on the machine.
Q@ Is that what you did in this cuse, in the
var ious interviewe you have spoken of with Leopold?
A No sir, I did not,
Q Did you write them?
A No sir,
Q None of them?
A Only notations myself, on different occasiona,
Q Did you make notations?
A At different times I made notations of probably
an outline of my testimony.
Q Did you make notations at the time?
A SBhortly thereafter.
Q Shortly thercafter?
A Yes,

Q What did you do with them? A I have some
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of them in my pocket.
Q Do you have them with you now?
A T believe 8o,
Q Will you let me see them?
A Yez gir.
(witnese producing papers and handing same
to Mr. Darxrow).
Q 'Are the papers you hand me all the notations
you have made of the various conversations in thie
case?
A Probably not all of them.
¢ Where 1ig therest of them?
A I don't know just exactly whatis on th-re, I may
have had other comersations with friends on there,
Q@ Did you make notatione of all your conversations,
sir?
A Wot all of them.
Q What?
A Not all of the., no sir, I have other memoranda
hzre (indicating in book),
Q@ Vvere thesenotations in shorthand here or in
longhand?

A In bvoth.
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Q In both longhand and shorthand?

A Yes,

Q Have you ever written them up?

A No gir,

Q vwhat are those in thebook, 1longhand or shorthand?

A Shorthand, and then I have a trace of the wholé
case here.

Q Were those notations made at the time?

A These vwere made a8 we were preparing the case, and
this here vwas made --

Q %ait a minute now,

A -- shortly thereafter.

Q were those notations made at the time that you
purported to have these interviews that you have
testifkd to?

A Not exactly, not right that day, but shortly
thereafter,

Q How soon thersafter? A Oh, within a
week thereafter.
Q Within a week?

A Yes sir.

Q You carried them in your head for the week, did you?
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A .That is correct,
Q Do those notations in the book, together with
theee, constitute all the notations you have made?
A They do.
Q Those are in shorthand?
A Yes Birz,
Q What syctem do you use?
A Mgnson.
Q What is that? A Munson, plus some
veriations of my own,
Q And ie that book devoted to this alone?
A Thatis all just about this case,
Q Nothing but this case?
A That is all.
¢ w1l you let me see them?
A Yes, ocertainly.
(Witness handing docusent to Mr.,
Darrow).
Q@ Did you ever write them up?
A No sir,
Q Never for any purpose, or given them to anybody?

A Only for myown information.
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Q But you never gave anybody a written report
of them?
A Yo eir,
Q vhen was the first conversation youhad with Leopold?
A The first conversation? |
Q Yge.
A At the tims of his arrest on the way down to the
LaSelle Hotel. '
Q wil you tell me whereabouts it is in this book
or in these paperst
A That is not in there.
Q 1tis in neither one?
A Ko sir.
Q Wwhen was the second conversation? A There
were conversations of course in his home,
Q Is that in here?
A No sir. ‘
Q You have got no written memoranda of it anywhere,
have you?
ATl believe =- I don't think I have, I é£arted to
make at least an outline -- I estarted at one time
to write up the whole -= to write up my whole degling

with the case., I have one page here. (handing document
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to Mr. Darrow)s
Q Then did you do that?
A within a short time after the case started . It
was probably ==
Q Can you tell when? A Oh saya week afti:zr,
after I had time.
Q A weekafter yourllgéf‘fn¥érVEéﬁf€
A Yee pir.
Q Have you got that documsnt there?
A Yers 8ir,
Q Is that all of ;t? A I believe there vas
a seocond page.
Q A second page?
A Yes,
Q Can you find it?
A Here are two other pages (banding documente to Mr.
Darrow),
Q When G3id you write these last two pages?
A They come withthat first page,
Q With the first page?
A Yes,

Q You wrote them at the same time, did you?

A yoe sir,
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Q I bave got them a2ll now, have I¢
Al believe 8o,
Q Where did you write them?
A The shorthand notes I believe I wrote at home,
at my convenlence, and the typewri ting I think I wrote
in the State's Attorney's Office. I did write it in
the State's Attorney's office.
Q Don?'t you know vhere you wrote it7
A I did write it tnere, I wrote it in the State's
Attorney's office.
Q Did you write it from the shorthand?
AT wrote it fmm my memory, tracing throuéh.
QThen your shorthand wusnot complete?
A The shorthand, I never did transoribe certain parts
of it.
Q Have yoji now given us a1l that you did transoribe?
A T have now given you all my notes that I remember,
outeide of the notes of the witnesses and other ad-
dregcer z2nd memorandums of different things,
Q Did you have these here yesterday with you?
A Yee pir.

Q@ And you have looked to 8ee what you have?
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A Yesterday?

Q what 18 that?

A Do you mean yesterday?

Q well, sometime?

A Oh at different timee, sure. I have refreshed my
menmory from them right along.

Q Did you look since you were on the sta.ngl yegtqr;;ay
to gee whether you had any more?

A No sir, I didn't refer to these at all.

Q TWhat is that?

AT didn't look at these at allfyeaterda.y.

Q Nor today? - Hy '\

A No sir. |

Q You had them with you though yesterday?
A Yes sir,

Q When was the last time you looked at them?

A The 1last time I looked at them -- what is today?
Thursday night I went over them.

Q When did you write the paper -- strike that out,
Ie that paper whbolhis attached to the notes in your
handvriting?

A It is.
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Q When did you write 1it?

A Thursday?

Q What thursday? A On Thursday of this
weeke

Q Thatwas the first timeyou wrote it?

A That ic the first time I made that notation, yes
gir. That is all contalined in the shorthand notes,
in probably more elaborate form,

Q@ You mean what is contained in there 1s contained
in the shorthand notes?

A That is for a reminder fér me « .

Q What i that?

A Thatis for a reminder for me, As soon ae I
see these different couple of words it refreshes
my memory.

Q Can you show me where it isin the ehorthand notes?

A It 1e in the other.

Q@ TWhat?

A It is the other; the firet here is about con=-
feseing. I asked him why he had confessed --

Q wait a minute,
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Q 'will you show me where it is in the shorthand
notes?
A I asked him why he had confesged --
Q Now let me just put a pencil figure "1" on that.
A Allright, eir.
Q@ That is the page, is it?
A Thatie the first page I have here. The next 1is
motive about confeesing.
Q yo that all on thie page which I have marked "1"?
A Oh no, there is other subjects there,
Q Well is there anything about that subject on
this page — anywhere else except on thispgge?
A No sir,
Q What other subject is on here?
A Motive,
Q where is that?
A I don't know. It is in this paper, I have
got "motive®,
Q Thatis on page 117
A Right here (witness indicating).
Q Motive?

A Yes,
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Q Motive i on page one? A Thatis on the
same page, yes 8ir,

Q All there is about motive is on page dne?

A Thatis enough to refresh, to recall to my mind --

Q All that you have in writing ies on page one?

A Yes sir,

Q All right, take the next one =« memorandum there?

A  Have you got it?

Q Oh, excuse me. I will try to keep these right
for you. I will try and hold that one in my hand,
you can arrange them i1f you want to. This ie mine
(indicating).

A Next -- do you went me to read this now?

Q Yes,

A "that defense would be, not gullty, guilty,
sanity."

Q where & that?

A %es Hore (wWitness handing paper to Mr. Darrow) .

Q Now, this is under the memorandum of ==

A Page 1.

Q Oh yes, thatis on page 17
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A Yes sir.
Q The memorandum in reference to vhat the defense
would be, ineanity?
A Yes,
Q ¢s8 that right?
A Yes sir,
Q All right. Now, you have got three of thei,
haven't you?
A Yes sir, sanity, just to refresh my memory.
Q Sanity?
‘A Yes.
Q Now whatis the fourth note, shete isthat, whi
does that say?
A "Sanity. Sorry for Franks,"
Q@ *Sorry for orime®. Where is that?
A "Sorry for Franks."
Q That is on the first page?
A I found another page.
Q Now, this is about forrow, or lack of sorrow?
A About lack of sorrow, about the subjeot "I am sorry
for Franks people®,

KRR, CROWE: Speak a little louder, Jim.
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'THE COURT: Speak a little louder please.
A "Sorry for the Franks people."
MR. DARROW: Q What you mean is that that is the
subjeot ?
A The subject, yea;
Q That was covered on that d;y?
A Yes.
Q Now just lay tbem down for a minute, please?
A Yes sir.
Q Who was with you when you had your conversation
at the Franks house -- or at the Leopold house?
A At the Leopold house?
Q Yes,
A Do you meen at the time we went to get the ocase
for the glasses?
Q Yes.
A There was Mike Leopold -~ do you mean -- Mike
Leopold was present.
Q Who was with you from the department?
A William Crot was downstairs.
Q Was anybody upetairs with you where you were when

you talked with ==
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A To which oconversation do you refer, ur. Darrow?
Q I refer to the first one.
A That wasall, just Mike Leopold, we were in the
front room there,
Q And all that you heard there w28 sald in the prg;
sence of Mike Leopold?
AYes sir,
Q Is that the time you gotthe two gune?
& The two guns?
Q Yes,
A Oh, the two gune was ancther oocasion,
Q well, I just ask you for the time. That was another
trip?
AYes éir.
'Q How many times did you have a conversation with
Nathan peopold, Jumior in the house?
A In the house?
Q Yes,
A That wae the only time I was with Nathan Leopold
in the house, was the occasionof the returning there
to give him an opportunity to find hie glasses, and

the time we went in there and got the boots.
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Q Mike Leopold was there and nobody else?
A Mike Leopold and -- well, his aunt and tpe
maid were aroundin there, but I don't remember thelr
presence., You know they were running in and out
looking for the case or for the glasses,
Q Well, Nathen we2 running in and out looking for'yhe
glassea toou, waen't he?
A On yes,
Q Now, when you got the gun -- when you got the guns
Nathan wusn?!t there?

A No sir,

Q There were two bsds in that room, were therenot?

i 1

A Yes eir, t{wo beds == where the guns were, Qo fod

mean?
Q Yes.
A No eir.,
Q Do you know whose room it was¥ ?
A It wue represented to me as Nathan's, or I gathered

that lmpression from the fact that he went in there

looking for his glasses,

Q Did anybody inform you whose guns they were?

A No sir, not at that time.
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Q Didn't they tell you that one wae Nathan's an&
one was Mike's? | |
A No sir, not me,

Q What ?

A I wasn'tthe one they told that to.

Q Nothing vwas gaid about itf

A Not in that room, no eir,

Q@ To you?
A Not to me,
Q All right, They were in different bureaus,
weren't they?
A They were,
Q On different sides of the room?
A Yes sir.
Q Weren't there two single beds in that room?

A There were two single beds in another room directly
back there where, on the first occasion, Mike Leopold
was8 when we entered.

Q Aad this room connected with -- these two rooms
connected, didn't they?

A You had to go out in the hallway.
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Q vwas there any bed at all in thie room where
the guns were?

A Yes sir.

Q A single bed or a double bed, or don't you
remember?

A I don't remember the size of it.

Q All right.

AT wasn't paying any attention to that detail.

Q Now when was the first conversation you had with
him, and where, after that time?

A After going for the glasges?

Q Yes, .

A The next ;onversation -= Oon our trips we had conver-
gations, but I don't remember what they were. The next
one that I remember was when we went into his room, in
the room where he turned over the boots,

Q ‘tho was with you then?

A Assistant State's Attorney Joe Savage and William
Lang., |

Q And who?
A Sergeant William Lange.
Q Nathan waen't there?

A Oh yes,
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'Q f thought you said you only sa¥ him thers once.
A I correctedthat,
Q Oh you didr?
A Yes,
Q You saw him twice? A Isaid T was to
his house twice with bhim, yes.
Q Well, I understood you otlerwise there, but
I was probably wrong?
A I corrected 1it.
Q I understood you to say he was only there once?
A I corrected it.
Q He was there both tgmé‘g?
A Yes Birx.
Q@ All right. Was Mike there that second time?
A VWell, I wouldntt be positive whether he was or not.
Q where was the first place you saw him to have
any oonversaticn with him after the time that you
s&aW him atthe house?
A % was during our trip, going around to the differ-
ent places, there was a continual conversation on the
whole trip.

Q Where weres you riding?
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A I was riding with Leopold.
Q On what seat?
A I vwas riding on one of the spare seate, I was
riding behindthe driver, and at other times I
' changed over, we got in and out.
Q who elee was there?
A MAseistant State's Attorney Savage and a stenogéa—
pher was thers. | o
Q who wasthe stenograpﬁer? A He was a
stranger to me,
Q From tie State's Attorney's officej
AT presumed he was in their employ.
QAnd where was he riding?
A He wae riding in the extra seat next tco me on
occasionsg ==
Q You and he were riding on the extra seat in the
back?
A Yee sir,
Q 1Isthat right?
A Yes sir,

Q You and the stenographer were riding?

A ves sir.

Q Now where wee Leopold?
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A In the back seat,
Q Vas anybddy else in the back seat with binm?

A There wae some other officer there, but I don't

recall who it was, ,

Q There was somebody there?

A Yee sgir.

Q where did you see nim after thé?éﬂﬁhénf§°Pfhad Q%ﬁ-
versatione with him? h

A Well during that == do you mean ==

Q what is that?

A Does that eliminate that entire trip fa that
day?

Q Yee, that trip?

A After that?

Q After that trip?

A After that trip?

Q Yes.

A That trip was on Saturday, then we went to the
Windermere Hotel where we had dinner and he went to
bed. The nextoccasion, the next time that I saw

him vag on Sunday afternoon, June lat.

Q %hereabouts? A A%t the State's
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'Attorney's office.
Q Did you have a conversation with him there?
A Yes sir,
Q who wes with you?
A Nobody but he and I.
Q what room were you in?
A Room five. |
Q And how long did you talk with him? A Just
a short while.
Q Did you make any memoranda of 1t?
A Not at thabt time.
Q Did you at any time.
A Later on.
Q where, where is 1it?
A (witness handing paper to Mr. Darrow).
Q That conversation is on page 1, the page marked
F1® isn't 1t?
A Yes gir.
Q 1Is any of it on any other page?
A Also on this pege.
Q Thatis page two, or one that has not been marhed?l

A You hsve got page two, that has not been marked.
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Q On page one and twot

A Yes sir,

Q Ie that all?

A Yes sir.

Q@ Wwhere was it that you hadthe conversation which you
relatedhesre about the subjeot that a jury would hang
him, but he might get before a friendly judge and might
not be hangeds

A In thast room,

Q At that time?

A Yec s ir,

Q You and he alone?

A That is correct.

Q Where is your memorandum of that?

A Right here (witress indicating).

Q Read it, and read it literally just as you have got
the worde there?

A "I then asked him what his defenve would be, He
sdd he didn't know until afte: he had conferred with
his father and lawyers, he would be governed by their
judgment., He sald if they wanted him to hang I

wiil plead not guilty and the jury will hang me, or

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 530 1924



e8r . «w53]

my father -- or maybe plead guilty before a friendly
judge and get life imprisonment. You know I have
e number of ideas that I can give to the world that
wouldbe =~ that would giveme an opportunity to work
on someé matters I have in mind to give to the world ,
and then there is the insanifiy plea."”
Q Is that all?
A That ie all,
Q Have you got any reference to it anywhere else?
ANo sir.
Q That you say was made in your house?
A That was made in the house at different times. All
this ggiﬁ was made in the houce at different timee.
Q At your own house?
A Yes sir,
Q Vao anybody preseit when you made 1%7?
A No sir,
Q Have you got a typewriter in your house?
A No sir.
Q You have accees to a typewriter,haven't you?
A At the Deteotive Bureau, yes sir.

Q But you never copled it?
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A No sir. I have been making notatione at different
times,

Q You never gave a copyof that to anybody?

A No sir,
Q vhere did you keep there reports?

A I bave been keeping these in my pocket, i never
gave a copy of them to anybody, but I told Bomebodf
in an interview.

Q I am not speaking about a copy, I will ssk you
about that later.

A hAll right,

Q@ Have you carried them in your pocket ever since?

A Yes sir.
Q You have never had them anywhere else?

A No sir,

Q To whom did you firest speak about that conversation?

A The first party that I referred to I think were
fellow officers, and then the next party, -

Q V%ell vwait, let us take one at a tiume,

A A1l ripght,

Q Who was the officer}

A I think == yell, I am sure 1t was Sergeant Frank
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Johnson,

Q there? A That wae in the Statels
A ttorney's office,

Q And when?

A That same night.

Q What night?

A It wae -- well, I will plce the date between £x»
Gk six and seven o’clock of June 1lst,

Q well, that was before you m;de these memoranda?

A Before I made the memoranda?

Q Yes, before you made these shorthangnotes?

A Oh yes, certainly.

Q@ Wno was the noxt person you spoke to?

A Genevieve Forbes of the Tribune,

Q And when was that? L X believe 1t was
the =ame night.

© And that, of courve, was before you madelthese
memoranda?

A Yee sir,

Q who was the next persom you spoke to about it?

A Oh, I spoke to a number of prople thathave
asked me, I have had conversations that I do not

recabl, with oitizens on the street and peopld of that
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character,
Q Abou this special conversation?
A Yes sir,
Q Do you remember anybody else that you spéke to about
it?
A Well, a number of people., Relatives I spoke to.
\ Q TO you remember their names?

A well I was down in Falrbury, Illinois, and there
were some people from Bloomington that I told it
to while I was down there,

Q¥ell, vho?

A The Salmons of ﬁlb’ominéﬁ}r‘x.(.

Q@ ‘tho?

A The Salmons,

"Q What is the first name;

A Thomas Salmon,

Q Thomas Salmon?

A Yes sir.

Q when were you there? h 1 wae there
on two occasione. Let me see. May I refer to the
calendar?

Q Yes.,

A July 13th and 13th.
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Q And that is the time yoﬁ told them?
A Thoge are two of the people I renember I told it
to..
Q@ What is thefirst name, did you givelit?
A Thomas .,
o
Thomas Salmon and the othoyone?
A And his wife,
Q Are they any relationof yours?
A Ro sir.
Q When did you talk with anybody in ocnnection with
the State's Attorney's office about thise?
A I talked with Joe Savage. - o
Q When?
A Oh, shortly after that,
Q who elese &1d you talk with about it?
A Nearly everybody that asked me about the case 1
would tell it to them, and there were so meny --
C who else connected with the State's Attorney's
offi:e did you evermake this statment to?
AT made it to Judge Crowe,
Q When was that?
A The firet time I ever told Crowe was on Thursday

night.
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Q Last Thursday night?

A Yes sir,
. Q was that the first time that you ever mentioned
it to Judge Crowe?
A Yes sir. I had already menticned it to Joe Bavage.

Q I am not asking you about that, I am asking you
about Judge Crowe.

A All right.

Q That was Thursday right of this week?

A That is correct,

Q Where were you at that time?

A In his offioce,

Q was anybody else present?

A I think Sbarbaro and Dr. Krohn, Dr. Singer,
Mr, Ettelson and Mr. Marshall.

Q You did not write it out then, or it was not,
written out?

A To seirx.

Q@ And you read it to him at that time a® contained
in this memoranda, did you?

A In substance.

Q In substance? AT gidntt show him
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the memoranda then.

Q Now how many of these iy typewritten stenographic
pages aré there here?

A There are a numker ofjbhem that I made at dif-
ferent times, I made additions as they occurred
¥0 me and came up.

Q The Thureday you umention of speaking to Judge
Crowe wa8 day before yesterday?

A Correct,

Q ye that ngat?ﬂ

AYes sir,

Q These memoranda here you made at different times?

A Yes sir.

Q That includee all the memoranda you have handed

me, doesn't it?

A Yes gir,
MR, DARROW: I will mark the rest of them by numbere
as one, two, three, four, five, six,
Q@ Did you make them all at your house?
A 1 gid,
Q 76 ticre any memoranda in your book that you have

shown me contalning what ycu say 18 a history of this
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in reference to that conversation?
A Not a bit.

Q And there is no memorandum in any of youwr written
reports, is there?

A Imad e a report to the General Superintendent of
Police on this case, I don't know whether that is
incorporated in that report or not.

Q@ %ill you get it and see?

A Captain Shoemacher haa a copy of it.

(¥r. Savage here handed the witnéss a
report handed him by Captain Shoemacher)

THE wITNESS: No sir, it is not.

MR. DARROW: Q W®Will you let me see that document
a minute?

A Yes sir,

(whereupon the witness here Handed the
document to Mr. Darrow).

Q This report was made to the Chief of Police on June
16th, w28 it not?

A Yes sir,

MR, DARROW Pardon u® a minute while we read this.
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THE COURT: Mr. Darréw, we will not take a recess
but we will run until twelve o'clock, I told Mr,Crowe
that, You may step down,

MR, DARROW: Just wait here,

MR, CROWE: Get down and sit hereand don't talk to
anybody until you go back on the stand,

THE COURT: Let the record show Officer Gortland is
temporarily withdrawn,

MR, CROWE: Weingstein.,

ml.,ACOB WEINSTETIN,
Called as a witness on behalf of the People; having
been first duly sworn, was examined and testified as
followa:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr.Crove,

Q What is your namse, pleuse?

A Jacob Weinstein,

é Where.do you live, Mr, Weinstein?

MR, B, BACHRACH: Talk a little louder, please,

THE WITNESS: Jacob Weinstein,
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2 MR, CROWE: TWhere do you live?

A '5306 Engleside Avenue,

Q What 1s your ococupation?

A Optician, general manager and general dirsctor of
Almer Coe & Company.

Q Now, I will show you, Mr, Veinstein, a pmesoription
and ask you 1f you have ever seen that before?

A Yes, sir. |

MR, CROWE: That is People's Exhibit D of July 34th,
1934, for identification, being the presoription written
and testified to by Dr. Emil Deutsch for Nathan Leopold,
Jr,

Q When and where did you firast see that?

A On or about November lst, 1933,

Q And over at Almer Coe & Company?

A Almer Coe Company's Wabash Avenus store,

Q UHNow, did you do anything in reference to that
particular presoription? Did you make any change in it,
is there anything on it in your handwriting?

A Immediately after this prescription wag left with us
Wwe received a telephone call from the physiclan that

presoribed the glasses, D', Emll Deutsoh, suggesting that
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3 we change the axes of the left eye from 105 to axes
80,
Q And did you do so?
A Yes, sir,
Q And the pencil notation there is in your handwriting?
A It isln my own handwriting,
Q You soratched out 105 and wrote 90, Read the
balanoe there,
A"Axes ordered ohanged by Dr. Deutsoh over phone,®
Q Now, did you fill that prescriptioa?
A lUay I say scmething?
Q Yes,
A I might say it is nothing unusual for an ocullst to
ask a change to be-made in a presoription over the phone,
Q Did Almexr Coes & Company fill this presoription for
Nathan Leopold, JT,7

A Yes, sir,

Q I will shoﬁ you a palr of glasses and ask you if you
have seen them before?

A Yes,sir,

'Q When did you firet see them?

A 6n Wednesday -- may I see & Galendar of the month of
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4 May., It was the day previous to the announcement that the
glasses were ldentified.

Q Well, had you seen them over at your place of business?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ I mean prior to that?

A No, sir,

Q Did you see them when they were made?

A Yo, sir,

Q Can you tell =- have you examined -=-

A I have,

Q -- and have you made a Prescrxription of the glaeseq‘
"itself?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ And from your examination of them do you know where
they were made, by what firm?

A There is no question, without a doubt they were made
by Almer Coe & Company,

Q@ Now, wh-t kind of a frame 1s that?

A It is a regulation type of imitation tortoise shell,

Q And what firm makes that frame?

A This is a frame that is ordered by speoification of

Almer Coe & Company from the BoWrow Optical Manmufacturing
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Company of Brooklyn, New York, "

Q@ Do you knew whether any other concern in Chloagoe
handles that kind of a frame or not?

A There 18 no other firm in Chicago that handles a
frume or the specifications of this type or design,

Q I will show you a record here and ask you to state
wﬁat that is, if you know?

A This is a typical job envelope, such as our firm
uses,

Q And what is shown on i1t? Will you read 1t and state
to the Court what it is?

A This envelope shows that when the presoription was
left with ue by Nathan Leopold, his name 1s written first,
his address, the time the speotacles are promised and
supposed to be finished, & notation 1is made of lensea
such as presoribed by the ooulist in question,-also
the type or style of frame selected or fitted, also =

Q What type was seleoted here?

A A zylo-spectaocle frame, vhich means an imltation shell
frame, Ths envelope also shows the pupiliarydistance or
dimensions between the patient's pupils,

Al

Q VWhat else does it show? Well, what does it show in
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6 referesnce to that?

'« A This envelope showg == in other words, the glassos
aﬁ;ns that it corresponds exaotly to the job envelope,
Q And to the prescription?

A And to the presoription, inocidentally the distanoe

v between the eyes,

Q@ That is,the right eye ie?

A The right eye is plus fifty axes ninety, and the left
eye rlus fifty axes ninety.

Q Vhat else does it show?

A It shows the signuture of the salesman ®hd fitted
~qu delivered the glasses to the patient,

Q And price eleven fifty?

A Also the price of eleven fifty, and charged to Mr,
N. F. Leopold, Sr,

Q Now, are there any marks on the lenses there that
indicate to you that it is an Almer Coe job?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ Vhere are the marks?

A On the outside, right hand side, there is a small
diamond pit, or soratch; also on the outside of the left
lense, This is a peculiar mark and put in a peoculiar

position, characteristic of our firm to denote where
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7 the axis of a lens should bes There are several
reasons for putting this axis mark or dot on each
lens, the principal one is for the guidance of the patian£
and the optician. It frequently happens that a lens
works loose in a sheel or celluloid frame due to
Climatioc conditions, The lens is therefore apt to
Tevolve or turn, therefore the axis mark is intended to
gtay all this at a horizontal position,

Q And from that you can tell thess are Almer Coe
glasses?

A Yes, sir.

Q I will show you a case here hepetofore been referred
to with a ocut in it, Almer Coe & Company, Chicago, Evanston,
That is one of your ocases, is it?

A Yes, sir,

MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, I desire =~ I don?t
know whether the glasses are in or not. Are they?

MR, SMITH: No, they are not,

MR, CROWE: Well, I desire to offer the glasses —

MR, SAVAGE: They are Exhibit 16.

MR, CROWE: If they are not, I will offer them again as
People’s Exhibit 16, I will offer the prescription as

People'a Exhibit «- what is the number?
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MR. SMITH: 48,

Mﬁt‘SAVAGE: It is in,

MR, CROWE: No, it i1s for identification,
(Dooument marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: I would like to read it,

¥Mr, Deutsch and L B Bernheimer,"

What is that number?

"Eye, Ear, Nose and Throat, 30 North Michigan
Boulevard, The telephones are Dearborn 9475 and Central
1414; hours 9:30 to 3.,"

The date is off and I am unable to give it
accurately,

"Mr, Nathan Leopold, 4754 Greenwood; right
eys is plus 50 axes 90, left eye plus 50,axes 105,*

In ink with a line through it in pencil, "axes ordered
changed by Dootor Deutsch over phone, E, Deutsoh”, and
then 358375 in red ink, What is that, your number?
A Yeg, sir, consecutive number of prescription,
Q That is your number?
A Yes,
MR, CROWE: Mark that People's Exhibit what number?
MR, SMITH: 49,

(Dexument marked as requested by counsel,)
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MR, CROWE: I offer in evidence the work sheet just
testlified to by the witness, of Almer Coe & Company, and
ask that it be marked People's Exhibit 50,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

UR, CROVE: I might read that, I will consider it read
and let the reporters copy it in if there is no objection,

MR, B, BACHRACH: There is none,

THE COURT: No objeotion.

MR, CROWE: No. Consider it read and then you can copy
it, The case for the’'spectacles, leather case, Almer
Coe & Coupany, with Chicago and Evanston on it, mark
that People's Exhibit 51,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

THE COURT: Haven't you an instrument you put on the
glasses after they come back?

A Yes, sir,

THE C)URT: To see they conform to the presgription?

THE WITNESS : Yes, sir,

THE COURT: What is the name of that Instrument?

THE WITNESS: Spherometsr.

THE COURT: pid you use the spherometer on these glasses?

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, There is also another way of

testing, Before the spherometer wae invented there was
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another way w=-

THE COURT: Well, either way; did you make a test to
find out whether those glasses conformed to the presoription?

THE WITNESS: Yes,eir,

THE COURT: And they do?

THE WITNESS: They do,

THE COURT: That is all,

MR, CROWE: That is all,

¥R, DARROW: We would 1like to have the other witneas

back now,

THE COURT: Yes,

3
“

(Witness excused.)
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JANES Je GORTLAXND,
resumed the stand for further oross oxamination, by NI,

Darrow; and testified az follows:

MR, DARROW: I resume the orose examination, if your
Honor please,

THE COURT: Yes.

MR, DARROW: Q This document which I hold in my hand
contains twenty pages, and as you recall it, there is one
page lacking, which is sort of a summary?

A Yes, sir,

Q@ Do you know where that page is?

A It must be in the superintendent's office or probebly
thore is & copy in our Chief of Detectives' office,

Q That page only containsg & =~

A Summary of the officers working on the case and asking
for oredible mention,

Q Vell, I don't need that, In this report You wrote,
yourself, giving the history of this case on the day of
June 16th, 1934, to the Chief of the Department?

A I did not write it all on that day, but there was
a contipuation as I had an opportunity, I would quit when

I finished a page and take it up later, the next time
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T had an opportunity, and it was concluded in that

MANNer.

Q Well, did you begin it on the 16th?
A Yes, sir.

Q@ It began on the 16th, and have you an idea of about

how long you were doing it7

A It was #elayed oconsiderable at the time getting the

names of the officers, The Chief wanted to be sure and
get the names from the State's Attorney of his men and

there was some delay in getting that,

@ And would you say it wms finished a week or ten days

ago?

A 0Oh, ves, sure.

Q@ Do you know == I know you canit tel exaotly and I

am not trying to pin you down, but give us your best

idea?

A Oh, yee, twWo weeks ago.
Q Two weeks ago?
A At least.

Q Or three? I don't desire to get you to say something--

‘I know it is purely an estimated time.

A Well, two or three wesks 2go.
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13 Q That is the best of your remeﬁbrénoe?
| A Yes.,
Q And that was your rerort to the Head of the Department
of this case?
A Yes,sir.
Q And it contains no mention of the conversation you

spoke of, that we have been inquiring about?

A No,sir,

Q And there is nothing in writing anywhere that contains
any mention of it except the typewritten notes that you
refer to?

A No,sir,

Q@ TNow, where are those notes? Did I take them or
you have them, haven't you?

A Here,

Q The pencil memorandum pinned on?

--A- Oh,
(Witnees hands document to oounsel,)

Q This memorandum in your handwriting, I believe you say
you mads Thuraday?

A Yes,sir,

Q Day before yesterday?

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 551 1924



14

Hei nOnli ne --

55”

A Yes, sir,

MR, DARROW: Woll, I would like to haveqthese marked
for identification, Mark them Exhibit 1, cross examination
of this date, It consists of six pages of shorthand and
longhand notes, together with three pages of typewritten
notes, the typewrlitten notes being nuubered by the tyoce-
writing ﬁachina, .1, 8 and 3, and some memoranda written in
the handwriting of the witness, Now, is there any
objection to the Court taking these?

THE COURT: You mean put them all in this envelops,

Did you == The olerk will take care of them if you
wish.

MR, DARROW: Very well, Mark this Exhibit 1 of this
dale, cross examination,

(Marked as requested by counsel.)

4R, DARROW: Now, the typewritten report of 30 pages, I
presume you will keep so we will have 1t,

MR, CROWE: Yes,or you ocan introduce it in evidenoe if
you want to,

MR, DARROW: No, I don't care about that, It contains a
long account of many matters that have been proven here

and if we dsoide we want it, we can have 1t?
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MR, CROWE: If there is no objection I will have Mr.
Savage keep this in the ocase,

MR, DARROW: What is that?

MR, CROWE: We will keep this in the case, if there is
no objection,

MR, DARROW: Yes, that is what I mean.

Q@ Don't you know that this gtory of yours in reference
to a friendly judge is a pure febrication made for the
purpose of intimidating this Court?

A It 18 not.

MR, DARROW: That is all, sir.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,

Q When is the first time I agked you what you knew about
this ocase?

A Thursday night when you said you expeoted to put me on
in the morning.

Q Prior tc that time I had not asked you anything about
the oase?

A FNo, sir, my dealings had been with Mr, Savage,

Q find when I asked you what you knew about the case,
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there was present in the room how many people, and name
them?

A Doctor Krohn, Doctor Singer, Mr, Marshall, Ettelsmon,
Sergeant 0'Malley, and I believe 8barbare, but I am not
sure as to the two latter, and Savage.

Q Now, this report , Officer, referred to, that you
made to the Chief of Police dated June 18th, consisting
of twenty pagee, I will ask you to s tate whether or not
you detalled in that any conversation whatever that you
had with either one of the defendants at any time?

A T did not.

Q Well, no conversation of any sort detalled that you
had with any of the defendants?

L No,sir.

MR, CROWE: That is all,

RE CROSS EXAMINATION
By

Nr .Darrow,
Q You gaid no conversation in this report that you
heard with either of these defendants?
A YQB. I had,

Q Wes there any that you heard at that time?

1 1I1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 554 1924



558

7 A I don't understand your question,

Q Fas there any conversation detailed in your report
that was made in your presence and did you detail it in
here?

A I don't understand the conversation,

Q Do you dstail any oonvers.tion that you heard with
Leopold?

A If you oconsider the statement as made different times
to different people covering the whole thing as con=
versation, ; heard & number of them,

Q No, you don't get my question.

A Giving the history of the case, but any aped;g#q
conversation, I would answer no.

Q You say there is no specific conversation detailed
in this report that you heard with the defendants?

4 As conversation, no. That was just a resume of all
the incidents, ==

Q 7You called for this report in your examination here,

| didn?'t you.

A Yeg,sir,

Q And you sald that unless it was aontained in this report
there was no typewritten memoranda?

A I sald it may be ocontalned in that report.
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And you called for it, and examined 1t?
Yes, sir, that is correct,

And 1t was not there?

No, sir,

On page 4 do you not detail a oconversation with Leopold

at the LaSalle Hotel? You will find the placs on the page

preceding it, on the top of the page.

A

Q

MR,

MR,

That is not a conversation he had with ms --
That is not the question I asked you,
Yes,sir,

You do dstall a conversation that you heard?
Yessair,

DARROW: That 1s all,

CROWE: That is all,

(Witness exoused)

THE COURT: Have you got the photographer here?

MR,

MR,

HeinOnline -- 1 Illinoi

SAVRGE: Mr, Barnes.

CROWE: Call Mr, Barnes.
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19 THE COURT: What do you want to do with this Defendant's
Exhibit 12
MR, CROWE: 8eal it if you want,
THE COURT: What do you want done with this, Mr, Darrow?
MR, CROVE: Seal it,
MR, DARROW: Yess I take it the Court might take it,
THE COURT: I will impound 1t,
MR, DARROW: Yes, that will be all right.
THF. COURT: Impound it, Mr, Clerk, and see that it is

kept in a safe place, and give 1t to me Monday.

WILLIAXM F, BARNES,
called as a viltness on behalf of the People, after having
been first duly eworn, was eXxamined and testified as
follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
Mr.ngage.

Q ‘State your name please?

A VWilliam F, Barnes,

Q@ Your address, Mr, Barnes?

A 24 South Cent.al Avenue.

Q Chiocago?
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A Chiocago, Yes.

Q@ And your business?

A Chief oclerk in the Assistant General Auditor's office,
Pullman Company. |

THE COURT: Speak loud so all the men can hear you., Chief
Clerk? J

THE WITNESS: Chief Clerk in the Assistant General
Auditor's offioce of the Pullman Company.

MR, SAVAGE: It will be all right to lead omn, Mr Darrow?

MR, DARROW: Oh, yes, certainly,

MR, SAVAGE: I will ask you, Mr, Barnes, if you made an
investigation after talking to Sergeant Johnson of the
State's Attorney's office pertaining to & train in which
oar Number 507, Quaarion, was on, on May 33nd, 1934,
and which left the Illinois Central depot about three
Ao My, = three P,M,, standard time?

‘A I made an investigation you mean as to --

Q As to that particular train?

A Yes, I know she left there and we had that ocar on the
train,

THE COURT: Please speak louder so we can all get 1it.

AJust face out that way toward the post, and we will all
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aaked to ohaok up any particular seat in that car,
refarring to scat number 4 in car Number 807,

A TYes, I was requested to check up on that particulsr
figure.

Q To find out whether or not the original Pullman
car ticket that w:us 8014 on that date was returned to
the Pullman Company?

A Yes, sir.

Q Will you just tell his Honor what the examination
is, where a ticket is purchased at a depot and how 1t
is roturned, just explain to.hia Honor, 1f you wili,'
Mr, Barneg, please?

A The ticket, of course, is purchased from the ticket
agent, and passenger ob'aing the same and presents 1t
at the train, so as to get permission to get on the
train, and later on in some cases 1t is taken up on the
train, in others at the depot, that is outside of the

railing of the depot, but on this particular oocasion it
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_Company after they aers cancellesd by the conduotor?

A After the conductor picks them up ha turns them E: ?.
W -
1nj:gaf we call a diagram to one of oufﬁggshié;éf

Who in turn sends the tickets and diagram and also £h§ '
cagh collected into the general offioe.

Q I %111 ask yoﬁ to look at the diag am or chart as
you call 1t, pertaining to car 507, Quaarion, of May
"3nd, 19234, and state to his Honor whether or not from
the records you have the origin.l of sea t number 4 in
car 507 was ever returned to the Pullman Company offices?
Just explain t; his Honor how you checked that, Mr,
Barnes?

A Tall, this ticket here is a ticket reading rrom
Chicugo to Michigan City, Indiana., The number is 3081,
That ticket number appears on the ticket agent's office
diagram, seat 4, and there is no ticket on this diagram,
that 18 no ticket shown as having been sent with this
diagram of Chicage to Michigan City. Thatparticular
ticket 3081 I kn~w fro- my own investlgation has not

yet reached our files in the ordinary course of
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Q. Barnes, how 1diig does 1t tai@%for this ticket
to reach your files 1nfthe ordinary course of busi-
ness?

A Well, in this particular case the train left Chicagnz.' if

on May 32nd and on May 28th it would have been in our
filea,

Q And the other tickets on this train referred to in th&t
particular ocar, 507, were returned *o your office? e

A TYes, sir, there is some of them right here,

Q@ And the particular ssat, No. 4 in car 508, was not
Teturned to date, is that right, Mr. Barnes?

A Yes,sir.

Q And this ticket No, 3081, marked People's Exhibit
Bo. 18 for identification 18 a duplicate retained by the
gb agent when he sells the original, is that right?

A Yes, in order that he may make his acocounting.

MR, SAVAGE: If the Court please, at thls time I desire
to offer in evidence the duplicate ticket in car 507,
seat number 4, as People's Exhibit Number 33,

THE COURT: Any objection?

¥R. DARROW: No,

THE COURT: It may go in.
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MR, SAVAGE: And the chart, your Homor, of the entire
train of that day. . |

THE COURT: It may go in,

MR, SAVAGE: And also the tickets.

THE COURT: You may put them all in one envelope and
they may go in altogether,

MR, SAVAGE: All right,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, SAVAGE: Cross examine.

¥R, B. BACHRACH: ¥5 orosas examination,

THE COUI'T: That is all,

(Witness exocused)

MR. CROWE: Now, have you got the photographer here,

MR, SAVAGE: Yes,

MR, CROWE: What is his name?

MR. E. BACHRACH: I thought Hr, Crowe, you asked -
MR. CROWE: I juet want to put him on for a minute. I
%ould like to have the record show the names of the two
men., It won't take any longer to get thelr names in than

it ﬁill to argue about it.
THE CCURT: All Tight, Get them in. Photographer Yates, -

MR. CROWE: Are they both together?
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firat duly sworn, was examined and testifiad as followa :

DIRECT EXAHIHATION o
By .o - . .:' Wiy
“Mro Crowa, . - o R
'Q What 18 your name?
A Edgar R. Yates,
THE COURT: Oh, no, talk up louder, please.

THE WITNESS: Edgar R, Yates,

THE COURT: Edgar R. Yates.

THE WITNESS: Yes,

THE COURT: Plaos of business?

THE WITNESS: 635 South Clark Street, Bureau of
Identification.

MR, CROWE: You are & photographer, are you?

A Yes,sir,

Q@ 4And do you know a man named Ralph Moore?

A Yeas, sir,

Q 4nd he is also a photograspher employsd by the Police:
Department?

A Yes, sir,
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Q And together he and you took & number of plotures
in re;erence to the Franka case and all of those —— I
have those piotures in front of you?

A Yes, sair,

Q I will call your attention -- First I will name
them and then I will ask you at the conclusion as to
"hether these are the piotures or not.

A Those pilotures are Mr, Moore's, the first onses.

THE COURT: Tal¥ up so we can hear you.

THE WITNESS: M.. Woore took the piotures that he has oﬁ_ : F
top. |

THE CCURT: Do ycu know whether or not they are plotures L
that were taken by the Bureau of Identiffcation, the Poiicéi?};
Department? |

THE WITNESS: I know they were, yes,.

MR, CROWE: GSome taken by you and some by Mr, Mooras?

A Yes,

MR, CROWE: Number 1, if your Hoamer pleass, I dssire
to introduce, being a view of the culvert where the bo&y':
“88 found and smrk 1t People's Exhibit 54,

(Marked as requested by counssel.)
MR, CROWE: Number 3, is a view looking north 35 feet

g8t of the culvert.



37

MR, SMITH: Are you marking tham now? Mark Nuﬁbéf
) g it
1,54. L: EIE
MR, SAVAGE: Mark it 1 as of this date, because they
are already marked 1 and so on,
MR, SMITH: No, the 1last ons is 55.

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 3 ieg the view looking weat of ths

- culvert, Mark that in the same manner, Psoplel's Exhibit

56,

(Marked as requested by oounsel,)

MR, CROWE: Nuwber 4 is the view looking east showing thea_f":

~oulvert on the west aide of the Panhandle Rallroad track,

57.
(Marked as requestsd by ocounsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 5, is ths view showing , looking

‘southwest from 538 feet north of the wooden bridge,

58.

(Marked as requested by counsel.)

MR, CROWE: Number 6 is the view looking south from the

Toad 538 feet of the wooden bridge, 59.

(Marked as requested by counssel.)
MR, CROWE: Number 7 is the visw loo ing south on

dirt road 400 fe t north of railroad crossing, 60,




CROWE. That 15 the spct, ir your Honor will
i E" N

recolleot, that Mrs. Smith testified to,
THE COURT: Yea.
" MR. CROWE: Eight. Number 8 is a vi # looking morthwest
300 feet south of 108th Stra,,,.showing entrance
between Avenue E and F, 81,
(Marked as requested by counsel.)
MR, CROWE: Number € is a view looking northeast on the
old Michigan City roz=d, 83,
(Marked as requested by counsel.)
MR. CROWE: Number 10 is a view jooking east on the
south slde of the old Michigan City road, 83,
(Marked as requested by counsel,)
MR, CROWE: Number 11 is a view looking eést on the
old kichigan City road, 550 feet west of Forsithe Ave-
~ nue, 84,
{(Marked as requested by oounsel.)
MR, CROWE: Number 13 is & view showing the south corner
of 15th Avenue and Calumet Avemie, Hammond, Indiana,

66.

(Harked as requested by ocounsel.)
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MR, CROWE: Ro., 13 1s a view showing Bournes! pharmaoy.
and northeust corner of Sibley Street and Calumet Avenua.'.
68,

(Marked as requested by oo msel.)

MR, CROWE: Number 14 is the view looking east from
between main line Illimois Central Rallroad traoks
sho¥ing Sherman Manufacturing Company, 74th Strset and
Kimbark Avenus, 67,

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Fumber 15 is a view looking northeast from

the I C Railroad tracks ahowing 74th Street, 868,
(Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 16 is a view looking east showing
Walgreen's Drug Company's store, southeast corner of 67th
and Stony Is and Avenue, 69,

(Marked asa requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 17 is a view looking southeast in
Walgreen & Company’'s drug store, southeast corner of
67th and Stony Island Avenus, Nuwmbsr 70,

(Mar ked as requested by counsel,) :

MR, CROWE: Number 18 is a view looking southeast showing

W, R. Ycung's Drug Store, southeast corner of 68th and
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Stony Island Avenue, 71,

(Marked we requested by ocounsel.)

MR. CROWE: Number 19 is a view looking northwest

in W. R, Young's Drug store, southeast corner of 68th

Street and Stony Island Avemue, 73.
(Marked as requested by counsel.)
KR, CROWE: Numbsr 30 is a visw showing the northeast
foot of 73rd and Lake Michigan, 73.
(Marked as regquested by counsel,)
MR, CRORE: 7Thua* jc where the robe was burned., You can
see the charred stump of a ‘ree there.

Humber 81 1s a viex looking southe .st showing

the playgrounds at the southeast corner of 49th and

Drexel Boulevard, 74.
(Marked as requested by counsel,)

¥R, CROAE: Number 23 1s a view looking southwest from

in front of 4833 Ellis Avenue, 75.

(Marked as requested by counsel.)
MR, CROWE: Nuwuer 23 is a view looking northeast from
in front of 1031 Fast 48th Stres-t, 76.
(Marked as requested by counssl, )

MR. CROPE: Rumber 24 is a view looking east in Walgreen's
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‘31

- Drug Store —= Drug Company's store, 1200 East 47th

Stree!, 77.

(Marked as requested by counsel.)
MR, CROWE: 35 is a view looking northeast showing
Walgreen's Drug Com:any's store at the iortheast corner
of 47th and Woodlawn Avenue, 78,
(Marked as requeasted by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 36 1s view looking southwest showing

~Ven da Bogerr & Ross' Drug Store on <outhwest forner of

6%rd and Blackstone Avenue, 79.
(llarked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Nurber 37 48 the view looking scutheast

.showing east sidae of bridge over lagoon, Jackson Park,

80,

(larked as requested by oounssl,)

¥R, CROWE: Number 38 is a view looking southwest

-8howlng east side of bridge over Lagoon at Jackson Park,

:81.

(Marked as requestsd by ocounsel.)

¥is found and the evidence later will show the letters
from the typewriter were found, 83.

(Marked as requested by ocounsel.)
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MR. CROWE: Number 39 ie viuzw looking north 1n__:*—w"]iﬁw
Btranberg's Store, 10 54 East 47th Street, 83, ‘ﬁ'“?iﬂ57?
{Marked as requested by counsel.)

MR, CROWE: Number 30 is vi~w looking north showing

SRR R LR s e B s s e
o4
o

front of Stranberg's store, 84,

(Merked as requested by ocounsel,)

'? R, CROYE: Number 31 1s visw looYing east ghowlng

é front of Harvard Schocl , 4731 El ’s Avanue, B5.

% (furked ae reguested Ly couns:l.)

E MR. CROWE: Nuiwber 32 is viaw looking northwest showiné_i f%

Tzar of the Harvord “ohool and rnlayground, 86.
(Marked us regquested by counsel,)
MR, CRCWE: Pumber 33 13 vi=w lo~king northvwest in
Adler's Drug Store, 445. Cctiage Grove Avenue, 87,
(Marked as requested by counssl,)
MT, CROWE: Number 34 is view looking west showing
Adlser's Nrug Stors on noerthwest corner of 45th and Cottage' d.
Grove Avenue, 88.
(Raked as requested by oounsel.)
¥R, CROAE: Number 35 is view looking west sho¥ing
front of Harry L. Porter's hardware store, at 4336 Cottage i{€?
Gfove Avenua, EBE.

(Marked as requested by couns~l,)
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HR. CROWE: Number 38 1s the view of the interior of
the hardware store, 90,
(Marked ss requested by counsel.)
MR, CRO¥E: Number 37 18 looke Brothers! Dug Store,
at 4358 Coltage Grove Avenue, Sl.
(Harxed as requested by counsel.)
MR, CROWE: Number 38 is view of Kramser's Restaurant,
93,
(Marked ae requested by cc nsel,)
MR.CROTE: Number 32 is the intsrior of Kramer's
Restaurant, 93,
(Marked as requested by ocouns=l,)
MR, CROFE: Number 40 is the office of the Rent-A-Car
Company, 94,
(Marked as requested by counsel,)
MR, CROWE: Nunber 41 1s the garage of the Rent-A-Car
Company, 85,
(Marted as requested by counsel.)
¥R, CRO¥E: Number 43 is the interior of Barish's
Btore at 1353 Wabash Avenue, 98,
(Marked as requested by counsel,)
1fR. CROWE: Number 43 le pioture &f the exterior of

the store, 97,

57



(Marked as requested by counsel.) N |
MR. CROWE: Number 46 is a view of the premis-s at %B%O?é
Greenwood Avenue where the ohisal was found, 98.

(Marked as requested by ocounsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 47 is the pioture of the Rent-A-Car, -

92,
{Marked as requested by counsel,)

MR, CROWE: Number 48 is the pioture of the red Willya-
Knight. No, that is another piocturs of the Rent-A-Car,
and 48 also, 100.

(Marked as requestsd by counsel,)
MR, CROWE: Now, there are two hese that won't be of

any use, 44 and 15 and I won't offer those.

Q Mr. Witness, you have watched the photos that I have

called off and those are taken either by yourself or
Mr., doore?

A Yes, sir.,

+

0 And the record will also further s'ow that they have

besn examined b+ counsel for the defense and there is no
objeotion to thelr going in sevidence?
MR, B, BACHRACH: That is correct.

THE CQURT:; What are the numbers?
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35 MR, SMITH: Up to 100.
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THE COURT: 54 to 1007
MR, SMITH: Yes, inclusive,

MR, CROWE: Now, if your Honor please, 1t is 123 o'clook,

&
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and the next witness I have to put on will take some time

: probably.

: THE COURT: We will suspend nc# until Monday at ten

? o'clock. All the witnesses that are in this case Treturn
: Mondsy at ten o'clock sharp,

i (Whercupon an adjournment was taken until
¥ondwy, Juiy 28th, A, D, 1924, at the hour

of ten c'cloek A, M,)

i

G W
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THE COURT:

7o will suspend now until tomorrow norniﬁg -afjf

at ten o'vlock,

%‘ i
‘
E3
k:
i
o
2
i
b
Tt
B
-3
i
»
i
2
3
a
i3
i
i
e
-
Y
2
frd
=z
=

{(¥hereupon an adjournment wus taken until ten

ololock A, i,, Wednesday, July 8 Gth, 4, D. 1934;)
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1lr
Monday, July 28th, 1934,

1000 o%clook AN,

Court convened,pursuant to adjournment hereto-
fore taken, Monday, July 38th, 1934 at 10:00

otclock A M,

Present: Same as before.

. MR, CROWE: Now if your Honor please, I deeire to
recall Sergsant Gortland and ask him one or two Ques-
tione. I have been over his cross examination and
there were a number of documents referred to, and it
is 1mPousible from reading the record to distinguish
what psrticular document was referred to from time to
time. In other words "this" and "that", "these",
"those" and "it", appear in the record, and I want
to straighten the record on that, your honor.

MR, BACHRACH: ©No objooction.

THE CODRT: Very well.

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 574 1924
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JAMES J, GORTLAFND,
was recalled as a witness on behalf of the prosecution

and being further sxamined in chief by ¥r. Crows test-

ified as follows:

Q Your name is what? A James J. Gorte

land.
Q Now, you are the same James J, Gortland who testified

in this case Satutday of last week?

A Yes sir.,
Q And I belisve thers were five different units to

the memoranda that you handed to counsel?

A Thers were,

Q Have you got your book with you? A Yes (hand-

1

ing book to counsel),

Q I will show you a loose leaf book with a leather

cover, and ask you if thzt 18 one of the exhibits (hand-

ing document to witness)?

A It is,
Q when did you start to make the memoranda in this

Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 575 1924
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loose leaf leather book?

A About a week after June 1lst.

MR, CROWE: I will continue and ask a leading question,
1f there 18 no objection?

MR, BACHRACH: No objection.

MR. CRWOE: Q@ This has been a continuous history,
a8 you have gone along?

A It has,

MR, CROWE: Mark that exhibit one.

Q Now, the next one that you made was what?

A The typewritien pages.

Q And when did you make those?

A About the same time.

QI will show you three typewtitten pages, on the first
ona of which 1s "May 239th" at the top and on the second
is "No.3" and on the third is "No.3", and you made
those when? .

A About a week after June 1st .

MR, CROWE: I will ask that this be marked Exhibit 3,

MR, DARROW: Excuse, mé. Bob, I was delayeda minute.

Are these some newy ones?

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 576 1924
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MR, CROWE: Ho, no. The point I am getting at is,
the book is 1, this is 3, and the other is 3,

MR, DARROW: All right,

MR, CROWE: I will ask that this be marked Exhibit 2.

Q NBow, the next thing that you recorded was what,
or that you composed?

A The report to ths General Superintendent which was
dated June 1l6th,

Q Have you got a ocopy here?

A No, I have not,.

Q And when 4id you start t0 make this report to the
General Superintendent?

A On June 16th.

MR, CROWE: Well, I will ask that that be marked
Exhibit 3.

Q Then I will show you -= one, two, three, four,
five, 8ix «- I will show you some sheets of paper,
in shorthand and in longhand, that have already been
marked 1, 3, 3, 4, 5, and 6 by ¥r. Darrow, and ask
you when you made that? |

MR, DARROW: Why he has already testiflied on that,
MR. CROWE: TYou have it in the record, Mr. Darrow,
Hei nOnl i rgow ZthIYnoqgfn(ng'm' ;al bc%ﬁf? a'o%k %ﬁ%.r?rq'aluﬁznscri pt Leopold and Loeb 577 1924
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MR, DARBOW: Go ahead,

A I made these on July 34th.

MR, DARROW: What was the anawer?

A I made thess on July 34th.

MR, CROWE: I will ask that they be marked - what
is the last number?

MR, SAVAGE: Three.

MR. CROWE: Three 1s the last. I will have the six
sheets mirked as one e¢xhibit, number 4.

Q Now, Iwill show you a plece of sorap paper that
has some pencil memoranda on it., When was that made?
A At the same time,

Q At the same time a8 what?

A July 24th, Thureday.

Q July 34th?

A Yes,

MR, CROWE: I will ask to0 have thatmarked Exhibit 5.

THE COURT: Let it be marked.

¥R« CROWE: That is all.
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CROSS EXAMINATION
BE MR, DARROW.

MR. CROWE: TWe had better give those back to the
clerk when we are through with them?

MR. DARROW: Yes, but I want to use them for a little
bit of cross examination,

MR, CROWE: Allright.

MR, DARROW: Q Mr, witness, you now say -~ what ex-
hibit did you make these?

MR. CROWE: Exhibit 4. The six pieces of paper are
marked one exhibit number, No.4.

MR. DARROW: @ You now say that exhibit 3, which
consists of six pleces of shorthand, together with
some longhand in it, and which have been further iden-
tified by the marke I put on them, one, two, three,
four, five and six, were wriiten on July 36th?

A July 34.

Q July 234th?

A Thursday.

MR, CROWE: Thursdayof last week.

MR, DARROW: Q Whatday of the week was that?

A Thursday.

- 2 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 579 1924
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Q Where did you wite then?
A At my home.
Q What ti me of day?

A It was in the evening, at night arownd, I would

say, ten ofclook.

"~ Q Around ten ofclock at night?

A Yes sir,

Q@ Around Thursday?
AYes sir,

Q All at the same time?
A Yes 8ir,

Q Didn?!t you testify the other day, on my cross ex~

amination, that you didn?t know when they were written?

A That I didntt know when those were written?
Q Yes.
AT did not.

Q And didn!t you 2180 testify that they were written

at different times?

Hei nOnli ne --

A I was confused from the amount of --—
QI will give you a chance to explain.
A Allright,

Q But isn't that what you said?

A ®hat was the questionl

2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 580 1924
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Q That they wore written at different times,
reffering to these slx shee{e -~ I wiligive you a chance
to explain it7

A I dcn'4t know whether you had those sheets In mind
or not.

Q You don®t know whather you testified that these
Bix sheets were written at different times?

A whether those were the sheets or not. I testified
to the fact thet different sheets were written at
different times, yee sir,

Q Well, didn't you testify that these shx sheets

which are now marked Exhibit 3 ware written at differs

ent times?

MR, CROWE: Exhibit 4.

MR, DARROW: [Exhibit 4, excuse me. Marked Exhiblt 4,
8ix sheetn?

AJ think I did.A

Q And were you mistaken?

'A I was mistaken,

QAnd you now say, and are positive of it, that they’

’were written on Thursdayg e 34th?

A July 34th, yes sir,

2 1llinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 581 1924
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Q That is all,

MR. DARROW: I wouwld like, with your consent and that
of the Court, to have these put in a separate envelop
and have them impounded.

¥R. CROWE: 411 right,
| HR..DARROw: There is just one other question.

Q Did you say that Thomas Salmon and his wife were
relatives of youra?

A No sir, they are not.

Q How long have they been your friends?
THE COURT Who is that?

MR, DARROW: Thomas Salmon and his wife?

A About three years,

Q And did they formerly live in Chicago?

A No sir, |

Q Did you formerlylive in Bloomington?

A I did not,

Q What is his businese? " A Superintendent
of the Post Office.

Q What 1is it1? A IHe is superintendent

. of the Post Office.
Q And what were the names you mentioned in Falrbury

Illinoie?
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A T ezn hot 80 well acquainted with the nameglere,
I think Grant McDowell was one of them.
Q DO you think, or know?
A Grant McDowell,

Q Well, dia you say you think he was? I might not
have understood you, and that is why I am asking you
again, Do you say you think he was, or was?

AT believe he was one, Yes sir. That is the onlyl
nume I recall there. I don®t recall the others.
Q How long have you known Grant McDowellt

A %ell, I think I met him three years ago on one occa-
gion, and then just pet him again on -- what was the
Sundey before thie trialstarted? July 20th I think
it was,

Q What is his 'business?

A Banker. .

Q He is a banker at fairﬁurYf
A ves Bir.

¥R, DARROW: That is all.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, CROWE.
Q Exhibit 4 thet Mr. Darrow has in his hand, vhat is
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that?

THE COURT: Thoee six sheete that were marked the
other day by Mr, Darrow from one to six.
MR, CROWE: It is shorthand and some longhand?

A An outline of my testimony as Iprepared it on

Thuraday, July 24th.

MR, CROWE: A1l right, that is sall.

RECROSS EDAMINATION

BY MR. DARROV,
Q@ You do not km now know of any other doowment

you have that contains any reference to this conver-

eation?
A No sir.
MR, DARROW: That is all,

(Witnese excused).
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LAWRENTCE A, CUREDQO,
& witness called on behalf of the prosecution, having
been first duly svWorn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATICN
BY MR, CROWE

MR, CROWE: Do you want these, Mr., Darrow?

MR. DARROW: No, I don't believe I care for those,
becauce I can read them. They have begen put in evidence
haventt they?

MR,CROWE: No,

MR, DARROW: Well, they are marked for identifiocation.
I suppose we might as well let them go in evidence.

MR, CROWE: I will tell you, when you come back I
eill introduce these.

MR, DARROW: Allright,
MR, CROWE: Q What isyour name?
A Lawrence A, Cuneo, |

Q You =zm® an employee of the State’s Axtorney*s'6ff1ce.

A Yes sir,
Q Where do you live, Mr., Cuneo? A 23824 Sherd

dan Road.,
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before Decoration Day?

A X was,

Q That ie the time that Leopold and Loeb and myself

nwere over there?

A1t is,
Q Did you see the defendant, Leopold, make any writings?

A Yes sir.
Q And what if anything 4id you do with 1t?
A When he finished I folded them up in that positicn

and put them on the night stand.

MR, DARROW: Excuse me Bob, Did you say, make any

writing?
MR. CROWE: Yes,
Q Is that in your handwriting(indicating)?

A No sir.
Q Well I will show you these sheets, 1, 3 --

MR, DARROW: I have asked several times to have

'Dr. Erohn and Dr. Singer find other seats. It has

been promised, and I want it done.

MR. CROWE: Let them 8it where Mr. Marshall and Mr.

Ettelson are sitting.
MR, DARROW: %ell, I don't mind thete being there of

gourse.
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MR, CROWE: I know,but if you merely want the seats,
I will give you those two seets, and let the Doctors
sit where --
MR, DARROw: 1 don't care, Doctor, we want these
seats, thet is all I am after,
MR CROWE: Well, teke your seats, Doctor, and put
them overthere alongeide of Dr. Hall, |
THE COURT: Put them anywhere over there, just the
other side.
MR, DARROW: I am sorry to have to bother about it.
THE COURT: That is all right. ‘the la¥yers are
'entitled to the room here,
MR, DARROW: I am sorry to bother you.
MR, CROWE: Are you all set now?
THE COURT Go ahead,
" MR, CROWE: Q I will ehow you nine sheets of paper
of the Hotel LaS':lle, with writings on in ink, and
I will a8k you are those the writings made by the
Defendant, Leopold, in the Las{ule Hotel on the day
prior to Decoration Day of this year?
A Yes sir, these are the ones,

Q And the word "Leopold" in pencil i8 not in his
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handwriting?

A No sir,

Q I will ehow you eight smaller sheets of the LaSalle
Hotel, with some writings on, and I will ask you who
made thoee writings?

A Myr. Leopold,

Q ind another large sheet with some writings on aﬁdt
ask you who made that?

A Mr, Leopold. |

Q And they were mede in the LaSglle Holel on Thursday
before Decoration nay? |

A They were,

MR. CROWE: Do you want to look st them?

MR, BACHRACH: I know what they are,

MR, CROWE: There are ten large sheete and eightl
smaller sheets, I will introduce those in evidence
28 one exhibit and ask that they be marked ae "People's
Exhibit A of this date", Al, A2, =nd A3, down to A 18,
¢ach sheet being marked.

MR. BACHRACH: The purpose of offering them ie to
gef a besle for comparison of handwkiting?

MR, CROWE: Yes, compariseon.
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THE COURT: All marked as one exhiﬁit?

MR, CROWE: Yes,

Q Now I will show you another plece of pger and
;;k you whether you ever sa¥ that before (handing paper
to witness)?

A No, I didnot,

Q Now I will showyou -« are there only two? I will
show you three envelopes and two sheets of papers,
State's Attorney'!s envelopes and Statel!s Attorney's
stationery, and ask you if you ever saw those before?

A Yes sir, I did,

Q And they were made when? A On the Sunday
following that Thursday. |
Q And made in the State's Attorney'e office?

A ves sir,

Q By the Defendant Leopold?

A Yes sir.

MR, CROWE: I will ask that these five exhibits be
introduced in evidence and marked People®s Exhibit B
of this date, B-1, 2, 3, 4, and 5. Now, will you
glve me that first exhibit, 18 or 19 pages? Who hae

got the exhibit with the 18 or 19 pages?
MR, SAVAGE: Here 15 18.
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MR, CROWE: Q On Sunday, ot the time the defendant,
Leopold, was making the eight epecimens of handwriting
that have just been introduced in evidence, was there
anything eaid by him about his previcus specimens made
Thursday in the LaSalle Hotel?

A Yes, there wes,

Q What did he say?

A He sald that on hig first few speclimens at the
Laéalle he had made & 8lip in a couple of the letters,
One of them was making a characteristic "y" and would
have torn them up if he thought he gould have gotten
away with it.

Q Now, was anything said to him at that time by
any person about the slip?
A You saidthat it would not have done him any good
as the letters had already been circled, that is
*the "y" and the "m" were the two letters that had
'been piocked out and cirocles drawn around them,
Q I will show you a paper on which sppears to have
been written £frst *Mort", then "Morton D, Ballard,
Peoria,'Illinois, 303 Elm Street™, and ask you whether

you ever eaw that paper pefore?
A Yes, I did.
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Q Who wrote that and when? A Mr. Loeb on
that Sunday in our office.

MR, CROWE: I introduce that in eviidence, if yow
Honor please,

THE COURT: It way go in.

MR, CROWE: Mark theb. What 1s our last exhibit number?

¥R, SMITH: B~5.

MR. CROWE: No,

MR, SMITH: 100.

MR. CROWE: Mark that please, exhibit 101,

MR, SAVACE: This is People's Exhibit O-A, Make
that "B" (addreesing State's Attorney's Stenographer).
Thie will be "C®, There is"4", there is "B" and this
is "Cw, Mark¢ 1t on them.

MR, CROWE: Q Were you present at the time those
notes were made, or weren't you?

A Well I don'tremember vhether I was or not.l
#»a8 there, but I wouldn't testify ae to those notes,

MR, CROWME: That ie 2ll. Any oroes examination?

MR, BACHRACH: No cross examination.

(witnees exocused)
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MR, CROWE: Have Mr, Tyrrell come in. Just a minuté.
Is Shoemacher here? I have one or two others
that Mr. Cuneo didn!t remember end that I want to ask
about. There are just a couple they do not remember:

about, and I want to ask Shoemacher.

WILLIAM SHOEMACHER,
a vitnese called on behalf of the prosecution, having

been firet duly sworn,testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. CROWE,
@ What ie your name please?
A Williem Shoemacher,
Q ¥ou ar a captain of Police, and have worked onthis

case?

A yvyes sir,

Q Were you present in the State!s Attorney's office on
Saturday, May 31st, following Decozation Day; vhen
the two defendants, Loeb and Leopold, were present? |

A Yes sir,

Q And the stenographers werereading somsthing
to them?
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A Yes sir,

é Did you see the defendant Lecpold make any notes?

A Yes sir.

Q I will show you a paper and ask you whether those
are the notes he made at that time?

A Yes slr.,

MR. CROWE: I will ask that that be introduced 1n
evidence and marked People's Exhibit 103,

MR, DARROW: 7Ie that what you bave been questiongiyg
the other witness about?

MR, CROWE: Yes.

MR, BACHRACH: No,

MR, DARROW: Oh, that is another one?

MR, CROVE: Those are the two things that Cuneo
didn 't remember about .

MR. BACHRACH: Well, you are not sajying anything about
the back of this? There is something on the back.

MR, CROFVE: I didn?t see that. But that 18 merely --
I can state what thatis.

MR, BACHRACH: Wwell, you are not drawing his atten=
tion to that at all?

MR, CROWE: No, I can clear that up. That is a memo-

randa made by Larry Cuneo a® to wshat the paper was, If
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I had shown him that he could have testified to it,
but he had forgotten about 1t. I didnr't see that,
I will tear that off,
MR, BACHRAch; All right.
MR, CROWE: Q ©¥%ere you in there Sunday afternoon?
A Yes slr.
Q And didyou éée Loeb make some‘notpe Sundéy afternoqn?
A Yes sir.
Q I will show you those and ask you whether those
aTe the notes that Loeb made at that time?
A Yes sir.
MR, CROWE: 1 will ask that that be introduced in
evidence and marked --
MR. BACHRACH: Now which are you offering?

MR, CROWE: The one on the front. I will tear thie

MR, BACHRACH: All right.

‘MR. CROWE: ft was made by the reporter for the purpose
of identifying what the thing was., I ask that this
be marked Pecple?s Exhibit 103.

THE COURT: It may be marked.

MR, CROWE: Q On the morning of the 318t when the
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stenographer was reading some statements, did you see
Loeb make some notes a2t that time?

A Yes sir,

Q I will show you these notes and ask you whether
those are the ones he made? Isthere anything on the
paper that identifies 1t7

A Yes,

MR. BACHRACH: I dfidn't hear what he said?
MR, CROVE: *Tea ",
THE COURT: He sajidhe did.
MR, CROWE: Now, that has got the same thing on the
Back of that? |
MR, BACHRACH: Why don't you ma.jc'k the part that you
are introducing in evidencs?
MR, CROWE: I will, I will mark the first page of
that. 'the others I have not been able to tear off,
THE COURT: It only goes to me anyhow. So you
want this stitcken out? |
MR, CROWE: Yes,

THE COURT: Very well.

MR, CROWE: I will now present in evidence a sheet

of paper with some pencil notes on one side, and on the
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other, in lead pencil, written "Richsdd Loeb corrections®
etc,, that were made by Mr. Cunco for the purpose of
identification, for the purpose of identifying the notes.

the side with the notes on and the numbere I will offer

in evidence,
MR, BACHRACH: HNo objection,
THE COURT: It may go in.

MR, CROWE: As People's Exhibit 104.

MR, CROWE: rhat 1is all.
MR, BACHRACH: HNo cro@s examination.
MR, CROWE: I would like to have the privilege of

recalling the witness later, on otherumstters,

MR, BACHRACH: All right.

THE COURT: All right.

MR, CROWE: Now, Mr, Tyrrell, That is all, Chief,

( No orose examination and witnese excused)
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JOHN F, TYRRELL,
a witness called on behdlf of the prosecution, having
been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIREGT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.

Q What is your name, please?

A John F, Tyrrell.

Q Where do you live, Mr. Tyrrell? 4 1 1£ve
in Milwaikee.

Q And what is your occupation?

A I am in charge of the policy division of the
Northwestern Mitual Life Insurance Company and have
made a study of documente for upwords of thirty years.

Q Now, Will you go &head and tdl the extent of your
gtudies and the number ofdocuments that you have
examined and the number of cases that you have testi-
'fied in?

A 1 have testified in courte approximately for thirty
years 1n various cases, in this city, in this state,
in numbers of cases in Wisoconein and several States
of the Union and in Canada and in New York City, the

Kolineaux case, the Patrick case, and the Dr. Kennedy

case, those were homicide cases, the Cabot case
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the McCarthy case.

MR, DARRO¥W: We will admit his qualificaticne, if it
vill do you any good,

THE COURT: About how many cases in all?

A Over two hundred, sir.

MR, CROWE: Q And about koW many documents have you
compared in the last thirty years?

A I couldn'’t ey , Mr. Crowe. There have been a great
many.

THE COURT: Oh, approximately?

A I couldn't sven saythat, your Honor. There have
been thousands of then,

MR, CROWE: Give me the two ransom letters,

Q I will show you an envelop, o plain envelop and
on it is written in typewriting, "Mr, Jacob Franks,
Should anyone else #ind this note, please lave it
alone. The letter is very important." And I will ask
you whether you have ever seen that before?

A T have, in your office.

Q Can you tell EBEEs what king of a typewriter that

wad written?

A Yes sir.

Q What typewriter vwas used in writing that?
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A Underwood,

MR, CROW%E: The document having been previously

marked "People’s Exhibit B" of the 24th £& of July,

1924.

Q I %ill call your attention to "People's Exhibit AW

of July 34th for identification, which consists of

tvo typewritten pages -- which consists of one type-

wri tten page, "People®s Exbibit A% of July <24th,

and reads as follows:

Hei nOnli ne --

2 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook Count

"Dsar Sir:

Proceed immedately to the back plat-
form of the train, watoh the east side of
the track, have your packagée ready, look for
the firstlarge red brick factory situated
immediately esdjoining the tracke on the edst,
on the top of this factory is a large blaock
water tower with the word "Champion® written
on it, walt until you have compktely passed
the south end of the factory, count five
very rapidly, and then immediately throw the

package ae far east a8 you can. Remenber

that this is your only chance to recover your

80N .
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Q@ Did you se¢ that document before?

AT did, in your office.

Q Can you tell what kindof typewriter was used in typing

that?

A Yes sir, an Underwood portaﬁle.

MR, CROWE: I offer that in evidence now, Have 1

offeredthe eavelop? No., People'’s Exhibit -~ what is

the next number?

MR. SMITH: 105, -

MR, CROWE: The envelope People's Exhibit 105,

andthe letter as People’s Exhibit 106. Do you want to

see these? ‘

MR. BACHRACH: No.
MR, CROWE: Or youlave seen them.

Q@ Y will call your attention to another typewritt;n

statement consisting of two pages, which reads as

folleows:

Hei nOnli ne --

"Dear Sir:
ke you no doubt know by thie time,
your son has been kidnapped.

Allow us to assure you tha he is

at present well and safe. You need fear no
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"physical harm fcr him, provided you live
up carefully to the following instruocticns
and such others as you will recelve by future
communications, Should you, however, disobey
any of our instructione, even slkghtly, his
death will be the penalty."
"l. For obvicus reasons, make abgolutqiy
no attempt to communicate with elther the
police authorities or any private agency. Should
you have already communicated wWith the police,
allow them to continue their investigations,
but do not mention this letter,
| 3. Secure before noon today $10,000.
this money must be composed entirely of
0ld bills of the following denominations:
$3,000 in twenty dollar bills, $8,000 in fifty
dollar bille, The money must be old.
Any attempt to include new or marked
bills will render the entire venture futile,
| 3 The money should be placed in = large
cigar box, or if this 1s imposeible, in a heavy
cardboard box, securely closed and wrapped

dn white paper. The wrapping paper should be
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"sealed at all openingewith sealing wax,

4, Have the money with you prepared
a8 directed above and remain at home after one
o'clock P.M, . See that the telephone is not

in use, You will receive a further communioa-~

~ tion inetructing you as to your future course.

1

A3 a final word of warning, this is
an extremely commercial propositicn and we gré.
prepared to put our threat into execution
should we have reasorable grounde to believe
that you have commited an infraction of the
above instructions,

However, should you carefully follow
out our instructions to the letter we can
agsure you that your son will be safely
returned to you within six hours of our
receipt of the money.

Yours truly,

George Johnson,"

~Q Did you eversse these two papers before?
A Yes sir, in your office.

Q Can you tell what kind of a typeWriter machine they
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were written on?

A A portable Underwood, eir.

MR, CROWE: I will offer those in evidence as People‘’s
Exhibit 107 A and B.

THE COURT: They may go in.

MR, CROWE: Q Give me the writings of Leopold at
the LaSalle, and also at the officet |

Q I will show you =~ just take these —-- nine small
sheets of paper, on the staticnery on the LaSalle Hotel
(handing papers to witness), That hes soms writings
on it in ink --

A Printed. | '

Q =~ printed, and ten large sheets of paper.from
the LaSalle Hotel that has some printing in ink on
themand tha have been marked"People's Exhibit A"
from 1 to 20 , and state whether or not you ever saw
those before?

A I have, sir, mt your office.

Q I willnow show you an eﬁvelop, with six twﬁ-cant
staups cancelled, "Mr. Jacob Franke, 5052 Kllie Avenue,
City. Special, to be claimed at Chicago, Illinois,

Post Office stamp, Chicago, May 31, 1 A.M. 1934, Illinois*®
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in which wes contalined the ransom letter, which has
been marked People's Exhibit 107 A and B, and ask you
whether or not you ever sawthat before?

AT have, slr, at your office,

Q Now I will show you three envelopes, Statels
Mtorney’s Bovelopes, with soze printing in ink on thenm
and two sheets --

MR, SMIH: Is that envelop marked?

MR, CROWE: I will offer that in ev8dence, if the
Court please, and ask that it be marked Peoplels
kxhibit 108, this envelope here, On the back, I would
mark that., !

(vhich sdd envelope vias marked "Peopletls
Exhibit 108").

Q Now, directing your attention to three envelopes
and the two pieces of paper, State's Attorney,s
xkxERixxzxXxn stationery, with some printing in ink on
them, did you ever sec those before?

A 1 have, at your office.

Q They are "People's Exhibit B, 1, 3, 3, 4, and 5".
Make that 1, 3, 3, 4 and 5 of this date. I willask

that theybe introduced in evidence nov and be marked
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Pgople's Exhibit -~ what is the number?
MR, SMITH: The last one is 108,

MR, CROWE: And ask that they be marked Psoplels

Exhibit 109, A, B, C, D, E of thie date.
{ So marked)

fxﬁs CROWE: Now where is the "Morton D, Ballard"?

Q I will show you ~- have you examined, Professor --

A Not Professor.

Q ~-- or Mr. Tyrrell, havd you examined "People's
Exhibit 108" and ocompared -- that being the onvelope -~
ﬁnd compared that with People?s Exhibit -« what is the
Hotel La Salle marked?

UR. SAVAGE: People*s Exhibit A, 1 to 30.

MR, CROWE: -~ %"People’s Exhibvit A,"1 t0 20
being the samples of handwriting or printing made by
ths defendant, y%opold, in the LaBalle Hotel?

A I have,

Q Have you examined and compared Psople's Exhibit -

MR,BAVAGE: I auggest you let the reporter have
time to mark thenm.

MR, CROWE: The stenographer wante time to mark

these exhiblts,
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THE COURR: Vory well.

MR, CROWE:' Q Now, Mr. Tyrrell, have you examined
and compared the printing on the envelop "Psople’s
Exhibit 108wwiththe printing on the three envelopes
State's Attorney's envelopes, and the two shsets of
State?s Attorre y*s Stationery, which have been marked
“People?s Exhibit 109, 84B, C, D, E" -~ make onoe of
those "E" instead of #D" —- you have got two XER fD'a"
z8- -- and also those on the letterhead of the LaSlle
Hotel which have been marked People's Exhibit 4, 1 to
20, inclusive?

i

A I have, )

Q Have you anopinion, from such an examinatfc;
a8 to whose handwriting People's Exhibit 108 is?

AT havs,

Q And what 1s your opiniong
A The writere ere identiocal,

Q In other worde, the same man who made the writings,
in the La S&lle Hotel, on their stationery and alse
in the State's Attorney's office, on the State's Attorney's
stationery, as here shown, 18 the same person who

printed "Mr. Jacob Franks, 5053 Ellis Avenue, City,

Specidd®, on the envelop that contained the ransom letter?
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A vyss slr,

MR, CROWE: Now, have yougot Leopold's cazd?

Q I will show you a card, a reglstration card of the
Morrison Hotel, which has been introduced heretofore
ag —=- thsere doesn't seem to be any identification mark
on this, I will now introduce it in evidence and ask
tﬁat it be marked People®s Exhibit 110, it belng the
card used by the Morrison Hotsl for the purpose of
rekistration —-

MR, DARROW: Let me see, what 18 that?

MR, CROWE: =~ and the name "Morton D. Ballard,
Peoria, Illinois, 302 Elm Street, " appearing thereon.
MR, DARROW: You are sure you are right, are you,

professor?

MR, CROWE: Q Have you compared People's Exhibit
110 with the 8lip I now offer in evidence, that has
been referrsd to and teatified to concerning by
sither Cuneo or Shoemach}r, with the name "Morton D.
Ballard, Pecria, Illinois, 303 Elm Stre=t%, on 1t,
a8 having been made by Loeb in the Statels Attorﬁey'a

office?

MR, CROWE: Mark that please, Exhibit X3 111,
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Q Have you compared People's Exhibit 110 with

People's Exhibit 1117
A1 havs,

Q@ And have you an opinion as tq who wrote the two
exhibits?

A I have,

Q What is your opinioﬁ? - A cThat'is i35 the
handwriting of Loeb.

MR, CROWE: ¥Yow what else have you gote

THE COURT: It may go in.

MR, CROWE: Well now there are some thinge hers, your
Honor, that we want to get as exhiblts, and while we
are getting them I would suggest that you tell to the
Court what tests you made in order to come to this cone
¢lusion, and if you have any --

MR, DARROW: Ve haven't any doudbt but what his judg-
aent 18 all right on it, unless you want to do that.

Ve know he is a good expert.

MR, CROWE: Well, show the court the -=- all right, go
ahead and shoW the court just whé you didr?

THE WITNESS: With respect to the identity of the type-

writer, your Honor, I have hers an exhibit made from
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photographs of the standard writing, a sheet of type-
writing found in the school effects of Leopold as
standard specimens, also from the ransom letter and
from the trdin lstter; I have cut out simllar words
and letters fzam each of these and have arranged them
in juxtaposition, the better to show the similarity,
They consist of the wordy"to", the word "of", the

word "thia", and other wérds here shown, the object
being to bring togethsr similar peculiarities existing
in the types of all three exhiblts.

4

Your Honor will observe that the letter "t"
prints very heavily at the top and very light at th;
bottom, that the letter “o® is a very heavily printed
letter, heavier at the top, with the cerif, the lower
right oerif, in the character "x", ia very faint,
the rest of the character is strong; that the letters
*m" are out of alignment, they print uphill, These
Yaken in combination, your Honor, are very stroang
avidence of the identity of the machine, Ve determine
the make of machine from the character of the types,

the identity of the particular machine through the

peculiarities of those types, as found in both examples,
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MR, SAVAGE: 110.

THE WITNESS: 110, and the standard is 11l.

MR, SAVAGE: walt until we get it straightened out.
That is 110, Morrison Hotel.

THE WITWESS: es eir,

MR, SAVAGE: This specimen is 111,

THE WIT™ ESS: The Morrison Hotel reglstration card,
knovn as Exhibit 110, is in the handwriting of Loeb,
a8 demonstrated by comparison with his request writing
of the subjeot matter on that card known as Exhibdit 111.
The cut«ocut handed the Court is in thenature of a
comp;rison ofthe peculiarities of the two writings,
They are identical., There is no attempt at any
disgulsedn the hotel ocard, disguise as to the hand-
writing,

MR. CROWE' TVWell now, will you getthe library card
with the signature "R.A.Loeb"on it?

THE WITNESS: Thatds a photographic copy, that is
ny original.

MR, DARROW: Your Honor, we ars perfectly satisfled
with conclusions hers. If he will just state the

fact, why we are perfectly satisfled.
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THE COURT: All right,

MR. DARROW: I know this expert. He knaws his
business,

THE COURT: The defense is satisfied that proper odmu
parison was made,

MR. CROWE: Well we wont go any further. Ve are
not getiing the exhibits your Honor. We have a mass of
papers here and we don'!t want the stenographer to get
confused to marking them and we don't want to put thenm
back in the wrong envelopes,

THE COURT: You may put all those photographe and mark
them one exhibit, all the photographic copies meade
by ¥r. Tyrrell.

MR, CROWE: well, w& will you do that, lr. JRASAREX

THE COURT: Put them in one e nvelop and mark them
People's Exhibit, whatever it may be, and it w11 be
perfectly satisfactory. There is no contest and no
cross examination. I will get them all. You sse
there is no jury here. Put them all in one envelop.

THE WITNESS: Yes, and I will retain my original cut?

THE COURT: Sure. Keep the original and put in

ours, those that you have made for the Court and Statels
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MR. CROWE: If thereis no objection we will intro-
duce them as one exhlblt,

THE COURT: Do you want to 8ee them?

MR, DARROW: Not right now, ”f.might in a few minutes,
S0 keep the doocumsents Which you are trying to prove
separate from the one 8 you have identlfied;, 1f you
don?*t mind, so I can get them.

WR, CROWE: I introduce 16 photographs of various
writings and aek that they be marked as one exhibit,
113, Now, it is conceded that they are accourate
photographs, Mr. Darrow?

MR. DARRO%W: Yes. Néw those are the ones you
wish to identify? I just distingulish between that
and the samples you have.

MR, CROWE: I am just going %0 call his attention
to the exhivite and ask him if he made the comparie
S0N8,

MR, DARROW: Yes,

MR, CROVE: Have you got these marked now? Mark
them all, and then we have got it in shape,

Give me the checke of Loeb, the cancelled

checks from the Hyde Park Bank.

Q 1s there anytihing you want to say, professor -~ or
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Mr. Tyrrell, about Peoplels Exhibit Xe®X 105%
A Yes sir. This 1s written on an Underwood machine,
tat not on a portable Underwood.

Q And the other?

A The contents was on a portable.

THE COURT: The envelop?

A Yes slr, the envelop.

MR, CROWE: Both of them on an Underwood, but one of
them was not a portable,

Q I will direct your attention to a library card, which
has herstofore been exhibited, but has not been intro-
duced, that was foumd in one of the books in the satchel
brought in by Loeb, into the Morrison Hotel, and I now
ask that it be marked People*a Exhibit -~

THE COURT: 113,

MR, CROVWE: People's Exhibit 113, and I will direct
your attention to the signature "R.A.Loeb® there, and
I'will call your attention to a number of catcelled
oﬁeoka signed "Richard A, Loeb™ on the Hyde Park Bank,
and show you his signature card at the Hyde Park State

Bank "Richard A. Loeb". Upon a comparison of those,

Mr. Tyrrell, have you an opinion as to Who wrote
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"R, A, Loeb" on Peoplet's Exhibit 1137

AI have,

Q Whowrote that?

AThe same hand wrote it that wrote the Benk signature
card and the checks "Richard A, Loeb".

MR, CROWE: Now I will introduce the signature card
from the bank a@ People?s Exhibit --

THE COURT: 114,

MR, CROWE: As People's Exhibit 114, and the 13 can~
celled checke of the Hyde Park State mank signed by
"Richard A, Loeb" as Peopls’s Exhibtt -~ one exnibit 115,
Will you pin them together? And you better let hinm
mark the back, 115, and put them back.

THE.COURT: Are you going to keep Mr. Tyrrell on
the stand muoch longer?

MR. CROWE: TYee, qulte a while, your Honor, There
are 80 many sxhlbits here that it will take us soms
tine,

THE COURT: We will take the usual ten minutes recess
now,

Whereupon a short recess was here taken
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Harvey (Whareupon pursuant to & shcert recess heretofore
rels
Snyder taken, the following proceedings were had:)
11:15 -
AV
7-28-24
JOHEN A, TYRRELL,
redlmed the stand for further direct examination by Hr,

Crowe,
' ' .

Q .I'will gaii'your'attentioﬁ‘how,qﬂf.»Tf&ié;l,'to
People's LExhibit Number 7, which contains a }eathe£
cerd case in which is an identification card of the
Rent-A-Car peorle. I will direct your attention ﬁo the
signature llorton D. Ballayd, onm that card. Leok at it.
Put that back, Joe. Now, I will direct your attention
to People'!s Exhibit B of the 7th of -~ of tne 24vu of
July, 1924, and People's Exhibit C, which also contains
a leather’card case and identification -~ a duplicate
identification card from the Rent-A-Car people, and ,
call your attentioﬁ tc the stgnature of "M&fton D,
Ballard" thereon?

A Yes,sir. ' b

"R. CROWE: Now, glve me all of those,

Q@ I will also direct your attention fto the application

ond reference sheet of the Rent-A-Car people signed by
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"Morton I, Balla-?" and which has been marked Peoplels
Fxnix»it B for icentificaticn, and call your attention

t¢ the writing on the application, "Morton D, Ballard,
83; salesman, single, 303 Elum Street, Peoria, Illinois,
803 J, 15 W, Chick Mfg, Co, 7 Mos. 2303 Illincis Avenue,
12, Hyde Park State Rank, Louis Mason, 1358 Wabash
Avenue, Calumet 4658, Carrcll F, Williams, 228 Elm
Street, Peoria, 536 J, Thos, Cutter, 827 Washington
Avenuvel abbreviated "753 J, Cart Jo'nson, 1358 Lawrence,
Peoria, Bls Jr,"

THE WITHESS: Junior.

MR, OROWE: Junior, Jr,, "Morton D, Ballard¥, an} on
the reverse side of the lease agresment e signzture
"Morton D. Ballard."

I will introduce this in evidence now'which'was
People's Exhibit B for identification and ask that it be
'ma;ked People's Exhibit, what number?

MR. SMITH: 115.

MR, CROWER: 115,

(¥arked as requested by counsal,)

MR, CROWE: I will also call your attenticn to an.

identificetion card heretofore marked People's Fxhibit A
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for identification of the Rent-/-Car people thet

as the signature of "icrton I, Ballard", the name
"orton D. Ballard, 203 Elr Street, Peoria, 808 J,
302 Illinois Street, 15 v, salesman, 233; 5-8 1/3,
140, gruy, black", and ask that that now b; ma%ked
People's I'xhibit 116.

(Marked as requested by counsel.,)

MR, CROWE: I will also direct your attention to
People's Exhibit 18, a yellow sheet of paper which
is the statement made in the 'riting of the defendant
Lo b to Gaptain Wolfe on the Sunday fcllowing the
murder.’ |

"R, SMIfﬁ: Ts that Lo b or Leopd“d%‘

R, CROWE: Leopold. Strike out Loeb and make it the
defendant Leopold. | | . ‘

P, SAVAGE: That was Péople's Fxhivit 1S.

'R, CRQWE: I,ﬁill direct your Attention ﬁow:to g ==
look at_itiagain. -- %o a letter purportiné to have
been written by‘Nuthan F. Leopold, Jr., and also --
Well, ‘which has not oeen introiuced.in evidence, and
which I now desire to have introduced and ﬁarked People's

1

Exhibit 117.

(Marked as reguested by counsel.)
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B8

YR, CROWE: And also another letter on three sheets
of stationery, each one of which has printed 4754 Green-
wood pvenue, Chicago, Illinols, aldressed to "Dear Dick"
und signed on the last page as "Babe'! and ask ycu to
look at that, that being in ink. (Witness hands document

to Court).,

]
L A A

§
P e

R, GHQWB::NQWx-T~quGQE your;qtﬁén*ion to thre --
Qell I béf%ér‘ge£‘that/ma£kéa.'l
AR, B, BACHRACH: You are offering thot in evidence?
JR, CROWE: Yes. It can be considered as read in, I
fon't read 1t.
, MR, B, BACHRACH: Do vou think that is ﬁeggssary for
your case’?
MR, CROWE: I wculd prefer tc have it in,yes, but I

won't read it, If you will agree to consider it as having

bz2en resd in --

L
case —
. ¥ ‘

MR, CROWE: Yes. I ask to have it marked as one exhibit.

Pin it together and mark it People's Exhibit 118.

(Mlarked as requested by couns=l.)

MR, CROWE: I will now show you thre- pleces of paper

. - i . | 5
written inpencil, which beings "Lear Dick", and 1s not
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signed ——- Yes, and is signed "Eabe", and I will ask
thot this be marked People's Exhibilt 112, as one
. gxhibit.
((larked as requested by counsel,)
’, :‘MR. CROWE: Exhibit 118 and 119, being papers taken
from the rcom of Nathan Leopold and Richard Loeb, The
exhiblt 118 being taken from Loeb's room and 119 being
taken from the room of Leopold, agitestifigd‘td by one
of the police officers. 1
© MR, SAVAGE: Here,
MR, CROWE: Juet hold that a while, finish up the
: ‘l handwriting.
Q Now, from exwmination and compariscon of the exhibits
T have just showa you and the handwritings heretofore
Tegtified to by you as being the handwritings of Nath-n
Leopold, JTr,, have you an opinion as to who wrote these
exhibits that I have just enumerated and passad to
you?
A I have.
@ And whose handwriting are they?
A leopold's.

@ Nathan Leopold, Jr.7

A Tes,sir.
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YR, CROWF: WNow, vwhere is that equity stuff? I will
now irrct vour attention to some cartoen coples which
‘heve heretofore been marked People's Exhibit 4 of

. July R24th, 19234, und People's Exhlibit 5 of that date,
they being carbon copies of some equity woerk that was
done by Leopold in February, prepering for an examina-

tion, and ask you to look at that typewriting.

P
. o
F |

A‘ I heve not seen these before.
n MR, CROWE: Haven't you?

.«

A "o,

1

NET CROWE: Well, I will withdraw that. Strike thst

ouf. He states he hus not seen these herctofore.

ﬁﬁ. DARROW: VWhat are those?

MR. CROWE: They are equity papers which have been
testified to by the other boys =s having been written
on a portable typewritsr,

@ 'Now, Mr, Tyrrell --

MR, DARROW: You can just as well put those in —-

MR. CROVE: They are in.
* YR, DARRQOW: Subject to proct.

‘R, CROWE: Yo, they are in, but he has never scen then

before, The boys testified they were (done on a portable

typewriter,
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MR, TARROW: Oh, all right.

R, CROVE: You were in the ftate's Attcrney's cffice
Pecoration Tay?

A Yes,

¢ Decoration Day, towurds the evenlng?

A Yesg,sir,

& That is :ri r to the .llegel confessicns in this
case?

A Yesg,sir,

5 Anl the defenlant Teoloclu woas there?

& Yeg,sir,

Did vou ask him tc ke ony writings for yecul

A0

A T did not.
Q@ Or dld I «gk hi.?
- A Yes,sir,
Q Go ahead and tell what was done, I will show ycu
- that_paper to begin with, Is thit one of the writings?
A Yes, sir,

Q HYow, %tell what was done after I had hinm ma'e some

sample writings?
A The specimen of writings that were submitted to me

for wy {irst ccmparison was pen printed address on the
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envelope and showed a progressive ease of execution,
that is, the writer became very adept In expressing

his hand and was not the rather slow writing of the
earlier gpecimens., I suggest 4 to the Nistrict Attorney
thet a more sultable specimen could be cbtalned if =
request was made and acceded to, to print a letter

containing other subject matter. I then prepared such
g . ' \ S .

letter and the DistrictsAt%orne&‘—;

Q Will you read it?

A Yes, sir,

9’ Well, read it. .
A’ "Chicheo, Ill., May 25th, 1934, Mr, Jackson‘F.
Bahks, Dear Frieﬁd: Pleasc ﬁave Nellle Davenport call
up room 505 Burley House any time hefore two twenty
o'clock today. Father has (specific reasons) for
thinking that she may have seen Arthur in the city
yesterday.‘ Slgned, Pallory. Please rush, underscorsd."

Q 'This was made by Leopold at that time?

A Yes,sir.’

MR. CROWE: I offer that in evidence and ask it be
marked People's Exhibit 119.

IR, SHEEDFR: (Reporter) 120,

MR, CROVE: 120,
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(Farked as requested by counsel)

‘R, CROW™: Q Now, referring back to the People's
Fxhitit, Teirg the specimensmade by Leopold in the La
Sall Ho*el, on the La Salle stationery, did you examine
those?

A Yes, sir,

I~

~'Q Have you an opinion as‘to whethef there was an
attémpt to disguise the handwriting there?

A As compared with the earlier srecimens, yes,sir,
That 1s, the earlier specimens showed the attempt
Tather than the last one,

Q The ones on the La Salle Hetel stationery‘being the
first ones and those in my office were the last ones?

A Yes, sir, these in your office showed more of an
attempt to disguise then those nade after,

G I don't get it quite dlear. Give me the lLa Salle
ones, Strike out all that.

R, DARROV: Ask it leading if you want %o and,then you
cen get right to it.

MR, CROVE: Calling your attention to People's Exhibitl
B 1 to 5 they being the specimens made by Leopold Sunday

in the Stata's Attorney's office, following the confession,
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and now being marked People's Exhibits 102, A, B, C, D
anl E., is there any attempt at disguise in those?

A There appear not to be, They appear to be fRuent
anl free.

Q@ Now, I will direct your attention to a number madé
in the La Sealle Hotel on Thursday of that week, prior‘
to the Sunday, and marked People's Exhiblt A, 1 to 30.
Is there an\aftemﬁt there to disgugse the handwrifiﬁg?

A Very little. There aay oe an attemptffut very
little success., Noticeably in the "y" of city, made
in three strokes.

@ I will show.you a typewritten{gheet which appears
to be some work on equity and &ék you whether you have
geen that belore?

A I have.

)R, CROTE: r, Darrow, this 1s —- T have o fumfer of
equlty propositions that we have not sesn. This is the
specimen that he d4did se-,

MR, DARROW: 411 right.

YR, CROWE: This is one sheet. I will now ask that that
be marked People's Exhibit number what?

AR, SHEFDER: (Reporter) 121,

MR, CRDWE: 1231.
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6R5
(Murked as requested by couns-1)

.R. TARRCW: I suppose yo picked cut the varioug
lettsral

A Exhibits were --

JR, TARROW: T don't zeun to belittle your work but
anybody could tell, typewritten,

)TﬁE WITNESS: Yes,sir.

MR. DARROW: We coudd all do 147

THE WITHESS: I think, Mr, Darrow, you could do it.

MR, CROWE: That being 181; that being one of the papers
taken froa the package of pupers hsretofore introluced
in evidence, as pespers taken frow the room of Leppold.
Cen you tell on what kind of a typewriter that was
written?\\

A Yeg,sir.

Q@ On what kind?

A Portland Underwood. This was the exhibit taken as
a stanlard for ommparison with the ransom and claim
lettzre.

Q@ Well, is therc anything I have overlooked that you
have in mind?

A I\TO 3
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6%

MR, DARROW: I don't care to crcss exauwine hin and I
have no doubt that'thesg papers are just &s you say,
bﬁt I would like sbout five minutes after we adjourn
to juét verify then,

JR, CROWE:AOh, certainly.

(IR, MARROVW: T don't want to take ther uway, they wnight
et lost or something,
“:HR. CROWE: Or asppear in the newspaper.

¥R, DARROW: Yes, Ve won't take but a few ninutes, just
as & maftsr of precautien.

'R, CROWE: lir. Wood, I will ;uat «sk nim one
questioﬁ. I won't have him unlesg the Court desires,

to go into detail,

Mr, Vood, take the stand please,

(Witness excusel.)
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627

J. F. WOoOPD,

called as a witness c¢n behalf of the People, having

been first duly swcrn, was examined and testified as

follows:
PIRFCT EXA TTATION
BY
Mr, Crcwve,
Q@ Your name is what?

A

v

A

J. F. Wood,

And ycu live vhere, r. Wood?
I live here in Chic. _:.

What is your occupation?

I &m an examiner of gueStloned documgnts, that is,
' ! o e Ly |
; :

1 examine matt-rs that are submitted %o me, that is,

where & questlon has arisen concerning the docusent,

Q
A
q

A

And for how many years have you been doing that?
I have followed 1t as a profession since 1910,
Go ahead and tell your qualifications.

Well, before 1910 I had anpeared from time to

time and had made sorne study of the guestion, but since

that time I heve devoted pructically my entire ftime to

1t, I "ave collected and read all of the books published

in Inglish on the subject, directly upon the subject of
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14 quesStioned Jdocuments, and many books upon subsidlary
' questlions, microscopy and photography and -atters of
thut kind,
R, TARROW: Ve don't qu-stion his corpetency,
B, CDOWE: Now, do you know, Mr, Tyrrell?
A Yes, T dc.
¢ And you and he have examired a nuwber of the documents
in this case which were purported\to be wrif{igs of the
defendants, kcth "eopold «nd Loeb?
A Yesg.

”~

& And you knew whot his ccnclusions werzs ag to the

writings?
A Yes. ‘
& The zuthor of theuw?
A Yes,
J~ Lid you and he co.e to “he same conclusions?
A Yes, I did.

@ And now have yon got rhotcagraphs of the work you
11 17

A Yes, I made photographs.

Q@ Will you give a copy to the Court.and a conv to
counsel on the other side?

A The case wag divided with me intc three parts.
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Hei nOnli ne --

G2y
There was the handwriting papt, the pen ~rinting port
and the fypevriting part. I have made and have here
copios ¢f the hand riting of &1l of the exhiblts
relating to the handwriting ratters which were submitted
to we. There are four --

‘R, CRQWE: There is no cross examingtion here, and you
Call mersly hand this one copy to the Court and counszl on
the other side. There is no objection to that. Now, give
a copy oi your stuff tec the Court.

(Handing documente %o Gourt.)

THE VITNESS: That is the handvriting part.

MR, CROWE: @ On all of 1t7

. Yes.

G Now, the photographs you havé turned cver there now,
are the handwritings?

A  Those are the handwritings.

Q These photographs are on the -~

A On the typewritiag.

Q@ On the typewriting?

L Yeg, gir.

Q TVWill you hand those to the Court?

MR, DARROW: Is this for us?

MR, CROWE: Either you cr the Court can have 1it. I am
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not going to introduce them in evidence.

~R. DARROW: There are four copies?

THE WITNESS: Four copliee there,

R, CROVE: I won'é sncumber the r-cord by introiucing
them, I would like to have your Honor see them.

 THE WITHESS: Of the pen printing there is only one
copy, of the pen printing beside the copy submitted to
you with the report. There has not been timeJto mdke
coples of them, but that copy is for the Court, Then, I
made =-

R, CROVE: Then you made photographs and comparison
of 'the cut outs and those are h-me?

A Yes, egir, that is of the pen printing, There are
four copiee of the handwriting and four coples of the
typerriting com: arisons. |

Q@ Are thess all the photographs you have?

A Those are the photogra hs that have been made,yes,
sir,

Q@ And these are all that you have got?

A Yes.

¥R, CROVE: Mr. Wood has pgiven me all the photographs

he has made in his work here and if there is no objection

- 2 1llinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 630 1924



17

Hei nOnli ne --

Wiy £
031
by counsel I will just let your Honor and counsel
look at them but won't introduce thee in evidence.
/ny @ces examination?

..R. DARROW: No cross examinaticn.

JR, CROWE: That is all, lir. Wocw., Thank you,

Now get the _.n fro.” the Yellow Taxl in

here, the driver.

(Witness excused.)
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18" CHARLES ROBINSON,
. called a8 & witness on behalf of the People, having been
firet duly sworn, v 8 examines oni testified us followg:
DIRECT RXAWINATION
By
Mr. Crowe.
Q@ Vhet ig your name?
A Cherles Robinson.
THE COURT: Talk 16ud enough so they cun hear clear
b.cl: there.
THE WITNESS: Robins-n.
'R, CROWE: Speak up.
THE WITNESS: Robinscn.
THE CCUFRT: Try it again.
MR, CROVE: Whatis your first name?
4 Charles,
Q Charles Robinson., Where do you live, Charles?
‘ﬁ;j A 3538 South California,
" Q@ Chicago, Illinois?
A Chicago, Illinoils.
¢ You are a driver fcr the Yellow Cab Company?
. A Yes,sir.
0 And yeu werc on May 23nd, 19847

A I WeSs
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Q I will show you & slip here which reads "Criver's
order, Yellow Cab Ccmrany." To ycu know vwhat that
is?

AT dov,

Q "Name 5053 Fllis Avenue, Frunks, apartment H'. H
weansg house?

A Yes, sir.

]

THE CTURT: Sveak u, young -<n, 80 We can lhear whét you
~ay.

'R, CROWE: '"Tixe .anted, A", What does th:t :ieun,
with a circle around it7?

A AT once. , ;

. Q "Time despatched, 3:37, dri;er Pcbgnson, cgb number
1924,

THE VITNESS: 423,

MR, CROWE: 1943, Is that an order:you got on the 22nd
day of May, 19247

4 Yes, sir.

Q At 3:27 in the afternoon?

4 T don't rememberlthé exact time but it was between
three and four o'clock,

Q The time is here., Your recollection is thut it was

between three and four o'clock?
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20 A Yes, sir,

& Vhere did ycu drive to?

A T drcve to the heuse fre the stand.

& Vhat hcuse?

A B0523 Fll-s,

Q And what hapnened?

54 I rang the bell as usual «nd a lady came to the
¢oor and said she did notléhink any one cordered a cab,
but she would see. A couple of gentlemen came cut «nd
asked me what I was there for, and I gave them the
order. They thought I did not have any reason for being
there, so I ggypltnem”the order and they told me %o
wait.h |

G Vell, you stayed there a while and then whit
hanpened?

A They pald me and T left.

Q@ You did not get a load?

A T did not get a load.

‘IR, CROWE: I offer in evidence thadriver's order of
the Yellow Cab Company Just referred to and ask that it
be marked People's Fxhibit 130 —--

MR, 8MITH: 133,

MR, CROWE: 122,
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21, (Marked as requested by couns=1,)
'R, CROVE: You may cross examine.
"R, B, BACHRACI: No cross examination,

"R, CROWE: That is z2ll,.

(Witness excused,)
MR, CROWE: Now, get the fellews irom the Underwood

Typewriter Conpany.
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23 GEORGE W, MCCLELLATR,
celled as a witness in behalf of the People, having been
first duly sworn, was examined and testified os follows °
DIRECT EXANMINATI
By
Hr, Savage.
& State your name, please?

4 George W, MceClellan.

Your address, ¥r, McOlel an?

L

L Vhere I live, or the office?

@ “here you live?

A1205 Sherwin Avenue.

Q@ And your bLusiness?

A ‘Manager of the Underwcod Typewriter Co-pany, Chicego.

@ Calling your attention, Mr, kicClellan, to the first
part of June, 1934, was there a reguest made by the
State's Attorney to yocur cffice pertaining to an Undérwood
Portabla typewriter?

A Yes, sir.

Q Requerting information on same?

A Yes,sir.

Q And pursuant to that regquest did you make an

investigation, your offlce make an investigation?

A Yes, ay aeslistants did.

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 636 1924



33

6737

qQ Ycur assistunts?

A Yes.

THE C7U™T: Your assistant dld’

THE WITHESS: Yes,sir,

R, SAVAGE: His assistants, he said. His assistants,

Q Will you tell the Court, Mr, McClellan, just what
you did, your assistgnts did under your directiop after
fhis request was made?

L Well, I was absent at the time the request made in
but my aseistants and one of the portable salesmen cawe
over to the State's Lttorney's office Saturday aflter-
nodn.

¢ Is that assistant xhere now?

A Yes, sir.

Q The man that came over here thet afternoon?

A Yeg,sir,

MR, CROWE: Well, was a report mede to him?

MR, SAVAGE: He sald he was absent.

MR, CROWE: Later?

¥R, SAVAGE: Later was there a report made to you, Nr,
llcClellan? .

A Yes,sir.
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638

MR, SAVAGE: Merk that for identification., lark it
the next nuw.ber, 133.

(Marked as requested by counsel,)

Q@ I will ask you tc look at People's IExhibit fer
ldentification No, 133, Mr; McClellan, and state whether
or not those r _orts were gsub, itted to you upon your
return?

‘A' Yes,sir.:'

Q@ Now, will you explain to the Court, kr, McClellan,
juet what systep is used by the Underwood people when a
type riter that has been sold by thew is lost or
reported stolen?

A It is reported to our Co.ptroller in New York
whohas a record of all the different numbers of machines
and he puts that number on the stclen list and 2 copy is
sent to every branch in the United States.

Q Now, your assistant, Mr, lcClellan, came to the
State's Attorney's office and examined the typewriter
in question., That is right, that you are asked to make
8 report cbout?

A Yes,eir,

Q@ And from that typewriter he obtained itwo numbers?

A Ves,sir,
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25 Q@ And after making his investigation he found that
number 83151 was on your 1ist of raportel stclen mschines,
is that right?

A Yes,sir.

Q@ And that was described as an Undcrwood poftable
machine?

A Yes,sir.

¢ Now, yvour records zlsc shc&ed that this machine was
5c1d to a2 man by the name of Bitker, is that correct?

A Yes, New York r-cords. Our office records here aid
not show that.

ew York Téodrdat

A Yes,sir.

MR, SAVAGE: If the Couxrt please, I desire to read
the communications &t this time,

MR, LARROW: What is that?

MR, CROWE: I would not read them. Just get the other
man in and let him testify as to the nusber of thile
machine, and then introduce that report.

MR, SAVAGE: Very well, Cross exawine,

MR, DARROW: Just a minute.
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28 CROSE FXAUIUATION
By
¥r, Darrow.
@ Vhere wus this reported stolen frow?
L From Crand Rapids, I think, or "lilwvaukee, Nelther
one are under our jurisdiction here.
Q@ Does your memorandvm show where?
4 I think the telegram from New York shows whers,
Q@ Show it, will you pleasef
A Do you want the entire message?
R @ Yo, Where was it reported stolen from?
A TReported stolen January 2nd, "ror. Milvaukee, T, H,
Bitker, 2006 Weshington Avenue,Ann Arbor, MNichigan.
‘Q Now, tell the Court where 1t was reported to have
been stolen frowm?
£ Ann Arbor, Michigan.
9 Ann Arbor, lichigan, was it?
L Yes.

IR, DARROW: That is all.

(Witness excused.)
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27 FRED G SGHULKE,

celied as a witnescen vehalf of the People, having been

first duly sworn, wes examined «ni testified as follows;
DIRECT EXAMIUATION
By
Mr, Crowe,

@ Vhat is your nawe?

A Frgd G, Schulke.,

Q@ Vhere do you 1i§e, Hr, Schulke?

THE COURT: Spell i%.

THF WITNESS: 8~-c-h-u-l-k-e, Fred G,

MR. CROVE: Where do you 1live?

Aﬂ844§ Vinnemac Avenue.

@ And what is your business?

4 Assistant manager of the Chicago branch of the Under-
wood Typewnriter Company.

Q Were you in the State's Attorney's office s-ue time
in the early part of June of this year?

A &es,sir.

¢ Did you see the machine, the Portable Underwood
typewriter that is before you now, at thut time, in the

State 'es Attorney's office; referring to the portable

typewriter found by the witness Blair in the lagoon in
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642

Jacksen Park and intrcduced in evidence several days
LEO Did you tuke the number of the machine at that
tine?

A Yes,sir.

Q What kind ¢f wachine is this? -

A TUhderwood portable.

Q@ An Underwood portable?

1R, SAVACE: People's Exwibit 1 of 7/34/34.

MR, CPOWE: It being Peorple's Exhiblt 1 of July 34th,
1954,

Q What wos the number of that machine?

A 8251, |

Q And vou made an investigation then, did you, to find
out whether or not you had any report on it to yo'r
office, or New York office?

A Yes, sir, I wired our Comptroller and wired one of
our branches.

Q And what did you find as to whether you have a
report on it or not?

A Our Comptroller sent us a telegram tellling us

that the machine was sold by cur HMilwaukee office and

gince been reported stolen.
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29 Q Do you rewember on what date it was reported
stclen?

L Tt was reported to the branches on the 18%h of
Jenuary, 1834,

« 1t was reported to your ° ranch -ffices January 16th,
1¢24, as having been stolen?

A Yes,sir.

VR, CROWE: That is all. Any crosd?

MR, DARROW: That is all,

THE CQURT: That is ali.

(Witness excused)

MR. CROWE: Now, I can call a witness who made an
1nvestig§tion, or who made the statement that the
owner of this wachine, Bltker, is now in Lurope, and
that is the reason We zrenot producing hin,

MR, TARROV: That is all right,

MR, CROWE: You will admit that this %itness will so
testify that he ise?

1R, DARROV: Yes.

THE COUPT: What is the name of theman?

HR, CRQWE: Bitker,

THE COU™T: Spell it. Spell Bitker's name.

PR

f Q e T T,. Bald=t=lrap-
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30 P, CRCVE: PMncther witness whose name I believe is on
the inlictment who won't be present, his name is -
Whut is that 'ittle boy, Hartmen?

"N, BAVAGE: Trving Hartman.

2R. CROWE: Irving Ha-tman, Ye is cut of the juris-
dictlon of the State, being up in Northern Maine some
vlace. o ’ ,‘ .

MR, DARROW: I don't-énvy ﬁim being in Northern Meine,

MR. CROWE: And Chief Hughes who is another witness
is in a hospital., He has recently been operated on.

"R, DARRQV: Very well,

MR, CROWE: There are no other witnesses ppstairs, are
there?

IIR. EBARBARO: No.

iR, CROWE: Wow, if your Honor please, the next witness
will be Captalin Schumacher, and T expect he will testify
“pout an hour, Do you want to start now?

MR, DARROW: I went to look at that extibit a few wminutes.
We are willing to adjourn.

THE COURT: Counsel wants to loc over some of the
exhiblites 8o there will be no further testimony until two

o'clock., The Court will suspend now until two o'clock,
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Hei nOnli ne --

A1l the witnesses return promptly at two.

(Whersupon an adjournment was taken until two

o'clock P. ., llonday, July 28th, &, T. 1924.)
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ir
Monday, July 38th, 1934,

3300 otclock P.M.

Court convened at two ¢'clock P.M, July 28th,
1924, pursuant t0 adjournment heretofore

taken.
Present Sane as before.
WALLACE SULLIVAXN,

a witness called on behalf of the prosecution, was first

dﬁly sworn and testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION BY

MR, SAVAGE,

Q@ Will you state your name, please ?

A Wallace Sullivan,

Q@ Keep your voice up, Mr, Sullivan , What is your
address ?

A 4613 Woodlawn Avenue,

Q@ What is your business ? A Newspaper Reporter
for the Herald Examiner,

Q@ Employed by whom ? A By the Herald Examiner,
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How long have you been employed by the Herald Examiner

a8 a newspaper reporter ?

A  About a year and a half,

Q@ And prior to that what was your occupation ?

A Newspaper Reporter,

Q@ For whom ?

A TFor the Associated Press,

Q How long were you employed by‘tﬁé“ﬁégoﬁiatgd Press 1

A About eight months,

Q@  And prior to that what was your business ?

A Viorking for the Daily News,

Q@ As a newspaper reporter ? A In the Advqrtising
Department,

€@ In the Advertising Department ?

A Yes,

Q Vere you formerly a member of the law school, or did

you attend the law school at the University of Chicago ?

A Yo sir, at Northwestern University and at Kent Ccllege
of law,

Q@ Do you know Nathan Leopold, the defendat in this case?

A T know hinm now, I didn't know him pricer to the case,

@ Do you know Richard Loeb ?

A I know him from interviews at the County jail and
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Q@ Now when was the firstt ime, Mr, Sullivan that you
had anything to do in the way of working on this particular
case not from its inception, but pertaining to Leopold and
Loeb ?

A You mean the first time I saw either of the two ?

Q@ The first time you did anything at all, what d'd
you do, what wass the first X¥mx thing youwere assigned to

.after this case opened up 7

A The first assignment I had on it was to go to
Robert Frank'!s home, the day it became known that.hiS'son
had been killed, | | |

Q@ Well on May 30th did you go out to Leopoldt!s house 1

A Yes sir at two otclock in the morning on the 30th of
May I received a "flash" from my office at the Hyde Park
Station, |

MR, BACHRACH: I object to the "flash",

A WVell, a telephone cdll,

MR, CROWE: Strike the "flash" out,

MR, SAVAGE: Q A telephone call ?

A Yee, that Nathan Leopold who lived at, I believe,———

MR, BACHRACH: Don't tell what they told you,

THE WITNFSS: Oh, I see,

MR, SAVAGE: @ Well after receiving that call you went
out to Nathan Leopold's house is that right ?
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4 Yes sir,

Q@ Juet tell His Honor what you did after you arrived
there and whom you saw ?

A I didn't see anyone there at t he house, no one answerd
the bell when I rang and the garage was dark, and there was
nothing for me to do but observe and get enough for the
morning edition, so I found at a side entrance to the house
a maroon colored Willys Knight car which I presumed was the
car that they used, but which I later founa was not, and
with the aid of a lantern which I procured froms watchman,
which I believe was Bernard Hunt, who found the chisel in
the case, I examined the car, The fromvseat I turned
over and found numerous hairpine and a few numerous odds
and ends, like keys and tooth picks, and material of that
rature, and élso cbserved a jack which was very much covered
with mud and clay and other mechanical devices such as monky
wrenches and hammers and things of that nature, also entwind
with twigsand covered wiimz with mud and in the rear of the
car I looked most minutely for blood stains but I was unable
to find any, and in the left hand pocket of the door of the
car I found three time tables, two Illinois Central time
tables and a Michigan Central Time table and a flash light,

the battery of which was out, and also what appeared to be
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a cuggel, with paper and twine industriously tied around it
making an unnatural =--- I didn't know what it was, but it
looked like an onimus sort of weapon, and I reported to
my office that I had found what apparently had been used
to strike the blow which knocked the young lad out.

Q@ I will ask you to look at People'!s exhibit number 35,
a Chicago Daily News paper of Wednesday April 23rd, 1924,
and s tate whether or not the paper you are speaking of
'resenbled Peoplefs exhibit number 5 ?

A It did, I am quite sure it is the one,

Q@ Now what did you do with that paper after you found
it in the pocket of the car ?

A I turned it over to Sergeant Crot of the Detective
Bureau,

Q Waé there anyone else with Sergeant Crot at that time?

A Yes, I believe all the men that are in his command,
under his command, also a daily news reporter,

\Q I will ask you to look at People'!s exhibit number 37,

38 and 36, and a flash light, the exhibit number of which
does not appear at this time, and state whether or not
those are the time tables that you haze referred to and the
flash light which wes found in one of the pockets of the caxr?

A ves sir, I have no question but what they are,

@ Nowwhat was done with the flash light end time tables
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after you called the officer's attention to them, in the
pocket of the car, what did they do with them, if anything?

A  They took the paper wadding and left the flash
light and time tables in the pocket of the car, and about
e week later, after the two men were in custody in the
County jail, I believe, why I believe the States Attorney,
mentioned the time tables and flash light and wanted to
know where they were, |

MR, BACHRACH: I object to what the States Attorney
told him,

MR, SAVAGE: @ Just tell what you did, if énything,
Mr, Sullivant

A TWell I took the States attorney, the Chief of
Polics, Michael Hughes and the Acting Chief, Shoemacher,
to the Municipal Pier where there is a garage for the
keeping of cars in which there have been crimes comitted,
or which have been receovered by the police and we found
the flash light and time tables in the respective pockets
in which I had found them e fore,

Q@ This car, this red Willys-Knight car, touring car
that you have been speaking of was removed from the Leo-

pold House to the Municiral Piler 1

A Yes sir,
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Q@ And later you went to the Municiapl Pier, accompanied
by the Chief of Police and Assistant States Attorneys and
others and there the time tables and flas light were
taken out of the pocket of the car ?

A yes sir,

Q@ Did you see that car at the Municipal Pier ?

A Yes sir,

Q@ And was that the same car you saw out in the
passageway of Leopoldts house ?

A It was,

Q Did you also see that car in the jail yard here ?

A No sir,

@ Now when was the firest time you had any conversation
pert aining to this case with either Leopold or Leeb 1%

A On the re-enactment tour, which I was assigned %o
by my paper.,

Q@  What was the date of that do you rgmembef’?

A The fxst of June,

€ Sunday ?

A Yes sir,

Q VWell just go on and tell what the conversation was
between yourself and Leopold and Loeb or between anyone

else in your presence with Leopold and Loeb ?
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A Well, we were together about fow hows in the car,
I believe, if not more, and durirg that time, why
Mr, Leopold ——-

Q@ Well, start from the beginning Mr. Sullivan and
tell the first conversation you had or anyone else had
with Leopold or Loeb in your presence ?

4 Well, the first words I ever heard fromxRzmpx
Leopold were directed to Chief of Police Michael Hughes,
as I didn't expect him to talk to me insofar as I am
a Reporter,

THE COURT: Well, never mind that, Just tell us
what was said ?

4 And he sald --- he noticed the chief leaning over
in a sort of peculiar posture, and he wanted to know if
his wife had been kicking him around, and it happened
the chief had his hip dressed at St, Luke's Hospital ===

THE COURT: Never mind that, Just tell us what was
said ?

A I will have to tell what I wrote down in order ---

THE COURT: If you cannot tell what was saild, say so.

MR, SAVEAGE: @ Just state the conversation ?

THE COURT: TWe are asking now for the conversation

that occurred between you and Nathan Leopold, Jr, or
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Richard Loeb, or any conversation with them in your
presence ?

A VWell, the chief merely grunted, and Nathan said,
@Y¥ou know, I believe it ie the ninteenth chapter, fourth
verse of Caesar, do you know that Caesar married an Irish
Woman™ and the chief said, "Is that so®™" Nathan said:
"Yes, he married a woman named Bridget," and that merely
caused a laugh, Then Nathan looked over my shoulder and
said: "You don't take shorthand do you" rsther dtmparimysx
Xx disparagingly. The first words which he spoke to
Me ==

MR, BACHRACH: I ask to stiike that out,

MR, CROWE: Strike out the "disparagingly"., X

MR, SAVAGE: Q Just state the ‘conversation?

THE COURT: Strike it out,

A  And I said "No I don't take shorthand, and I don't
know of any other reporter in ths clty that does, other
than a court reporter® and Nathan said "Well, it would be
aood idea to have a memory such as I have, I have a
mix neumonitor system which I use", and he said, "For
instance, you can give me twenty five consecutive concretf
problems, and I will give them back to you, both back-

wards and forwards, or any of the words that you mention®,
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Well, when he mentioned "concrete® it was manifest that
was not the neumonitor sysitem, because the neumonitor
gystem w——-—

4R, BACHRACH: We object,

THE COURT: We don'!t care to hear about the neumonitor
system,

MR, BACHRACH: I ask that the attention of this witness
be directed to something that indicates the guilt of
thes defendants rather than neumonitor systeas,

THE COURT: Let him tell the whole conversation, if he
will only do that,

MR, SAVAGE: Q Tell the whole comversation .?

A T will tell just what he said %

THE COURT: That is what we want,

MR, SAVAGE: And what you said to him,

A Well, what I said to him, he has to reply?

THE COURT: You can say what he said to you and what
vou said to him ?

A  The direct quotes which I can give of him are

these: "Aren't golf players nuts"? "Aren't they
bugs®? And "Arent't the lilacs beautiful?® "I was

supposed to take an examination in law for entrance to
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the Harvard University yesterday, an examinstion in
Agency", 1 believe he said, "I had previously taken
examinations in Equity, Jurisprudence, Chancery, Common
law Pleading, Torits and Bailments, but the examination
in Agency was the one I particularly wanted to take}]

80 I gave him an examination in Agency, Can I say what
that was and give his answers ?

THE COURT: You can say anything he said to you or
that you said to him ?

A And T asked him to define Agency and how an Agency
was terminated, what the duties and liabilite s of the
principal and third party were, and third party tothe
principal and the Agent to the third parties and viee
versa, and also questions in real property; I belisve
we conversed about tuse upon use! was and !shifting use!
and the rule in Shelley's case, and various hypothetical
questions and the answers which he gave indicsted that he
had an excellent knowledge of law, ami although the answep —-
well, I can't say that —--

MR, SAVAGE: @  What did he say ?

THE COURT: What did he say and what did you say ?

A He said -=-- I cannot give verbatim just the answers

that he made,
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MR, CROVE: Give the substance as near as you remember
ite

THE COURT: As nearly as you can,

A But the next way, I asked him just how far advanced
he was in mathematice and he onfessed that he was rather
impoverisghed in that regard, that he knew nothing about.
philastis and neurastics or trigonometry or any of the
other forms of higher mathematics, but that he was very
desirous sometimes of taking up the philosphy of
philastics, and the next I asked him was if it were true
that he knew so many XXg® languages as he was flaunted
before the public with knowing, if he really knew
fifteen languages, and he replied that he didn't know
them as fluently, and he couldn't write them all, but
that he had studied all these languages, and he indicated
that he had --- he also said, "I can recite 11 Penseroso
by Heatt from Miltor and it sort of amased m® him when I
told him I could do the Rubyad, and then regarding crims,
the testimony which I would like to give regarding the
crime that does not seem to have much of a bearing,

MR, SAVAGE: Just a minute =--

MR. DARROW: The testimony which he would like to

give ?
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MR, SAVAGE: Q Tell what you said to Leopold or
Loeb pertaining to the crime and what either Leopold
or Loeb said to you, or anyons else in your presence,®
any question you asked him or any answer he gave you,
or any question that he asked you, that is what the
Court wants to hear ?

A Well the first question I asked him was concerning
the crime, "What is thesignificance" ——

@ Who are you referring to now ?

A To Leopold,

Q@ To Leopold?
A I am with Leopold all the time in company with
Detective Michael Hughes, with the New York correspondent
and Cunningham his chauffeur, At this point we stopped
at S8t, Luke'!s Hospital and I asked him what was the
significanee in this crime here of the paper cudgel or
improvished thing which I found in the rear of the car
and he laughed and said, "Oh, we used that as a decoy
to rehearse the crime, throwing it from the rear end'
of the car, but one day we found out that Loeb was not
permitted to get on the back car by the conductor" and

I cannot remember just now what it was that he sald regax -
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stopped so t hat Chief ¥XxxmR Michael Hughes might have
his hip dressed, I walked over to the car in which Leopold
was sitting and I asked Loeb what was the significance
of the cudgel without mentioning what Leopoled had told
me, and he amwered that it was -~— he substantiated the
gtory of Leopold, Then I noticed that as the reporters
were talking to Loeb they seemed greatly ingratiated by
him, that is, he ingratiated himself -—-

MR, BACHRACH: I object,

THE COURT:  Strike it out,

MR, CROWE: Strike it out, and just confine yoursslf
to the conversation.

MR, SAVAGF: @ And nothing by the conversation,
what you asked them, Mr, Sullivan and what they told you,

A Then I went back to Leopold and it was getting
kind of late and I had to get my story in quick, so I
gaid, "Did you kill Robert Franks or did Loeb kill him"
and Nathan said, "Losb killed him," So I went bhack
to Leob's car and I said, "Nathan said you killed
Bobby Franks, is it true," and Loeb said, "No," So I
returned to Leopold's car and I said to Leopold, "It
looks pretty bad for you, Leopold. Leeb has the
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confidence of all the reporters and everyone and he

seems to have convinced everyone that you are the real
perpetrator of the crime, the one who really struck the
boy, " and Leopold shot back, and I sald "Can you prove®———

MR, BACHRACH: Just a moment,

MR, CROVE: Strike out "shot back",

MR, SAVAGE: Q What did he say ?

A He said, "I can prove that it was I who was driving
that car, insomuch that Loeb admits that the boy was
sitting in the front seat and was struck from behind,

I can prove that it was I who was driving the car, and
the possessor of the Willys-Knight car for one thing,'I
hired the car for another, and the third point is that I
took the car to my garage to get fuel for it, gasoline
and oil, isen't it likely then that I would be driving
the @r"? I went back %o ﬁﬁ:;n?m and I saids "It
looks pretty bad for you, Loeb," I said: "Leopold

has a pretty fine =-- he has a good reason to prove that
you are the one who did it" and then I related to him
what Leopold had said, Loeb said, "Well, you go back

and tell him that he admits that he doesn't know me =-—

I mean Bobby Franks, that I introduced him to him, and

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 660 1924



Hei nOnli ne --

it is more likely that he would be sit%ing next to me
in that car than it would be for him to sit next to
Leopold," and then Leopold jumped up and said =—=—
when I went back with that story Leopold said,"WHy I
can show you just exactly how he did it." I said:
"fould you mind showing me just how you enticed Bobby
into the car®——— |

MR, SAVAGE: Q@ You say "you", Who are you speaking
of now Mr. Sullivan?

A T am speaking to Leopold, He said "I was seated
in the front of the car and Loeb was in the rear", he
}eaned over and then he demonsﬁrqtgd, he leaned over and

grasped the end =——

Q@ Tvho lsaned over ?

A Leopold leaned over in the Chief's car ana demons tara—-
ted in the chief!s car, and demors trated how they had
leaned across the car and committed the crime,

Q@ How Loeb had leaned across ?

A Yes, and in a pantomime he showed how they had
entinced the boy into the car, and said as a means of

getting him to get into the car they said something

about a tennis racket, which sort of struck a complex

with the young chap.
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¢ How did he tell, now, that Loeb got him into the
car ?

A He said Loeb said, "Bobby, I wamt to introduce
you to Mr, Leopold," and he saidalso =-- I guess he
sald then, I am not positive but I think he said the
boy eeemed reluctant to come, by such a subterfuge
as they had used, so he quickly supplemented, "I have
a tennis racket here Bobby", I can't remember just what
it was about that tenns racket, but the very name "tennis
racket® brought the boy to the car, and he said they got
him in the car and then they drove away, and Leopold
said he struck him on the head, Before this, however,
Leopold said --- I should go back, I told Leopold after
he had heard what Loeb said about his striking the boy~-—
his, Leopold's* about his, Loeb's,striking the boy, he
says, "You go and tell Leopold that I am surprised that
he would falter before the States Attorney, I am surprised
that he confessed, Tell him I am more surprised that
he fainted®™ and he used words like "Tell him I am chagrined
that he should have, but I regret that I took him as my
accomplice, and there is one thing that at which I am
most surprised and that is that he fears death", Than

he said, "Also I want you to tell Loeb that he knows that
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the striking of a huwman being by me is so repugnant
and againet my nature +that he knews it is he who
did that," he says, "He knows that I just couldn?t
do such an act."

Now prior to that Leopold made & statement
which he later corrected in the County Jail, which
ought really to be told on the stand herg.,~ He said
that in -- |

MR, BACHRACH: I move to strike that out.

MR, CROWE: Yes, strike it out.

THE COURYT: Yes,

MR. SAVAGE: Q Just state the conversation?

A He sald that in the form of experimentation,
Well, just as I can rememberit, he said in the form
of experiment, causing pain to the subjeot is highly
commendable, irrespective of the pain or injury
caused the subjeoct, if in the experimenting the
expbrimenter advances his own knowledge, and then he
elucidated by saying that 1f a young boy of six years
pulls the wings from a f1ly and thereby learns that
after the wings are pulled away that the fly cannot

fly, why he ie doing an exemplary and commendable thing,
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Later as I reported that, I asked him then to tell
me just what he meant by that, and I reported it
word for word what he said.

Q Just & minute, Mr. Sulliven, juet tell us what
the conversation was there on that #rip, not what
you reported?

A And then later —- .

MR, BACHRACH: 1s this what he seid in the County
Jail?

MR, SAVAGE: o,

THE WITNESS. Leopold says that he met reporters --

MR, SAVAGE: Q Just & minute, Mr. Sullivan. This
last oconversation that you are telling us about,
wag that in the jail, or on the trip?

A That was a oorrection in the jall, The first
one was during the reenactment and the other was
the correction in the jail, It doesnot msan any-
thing to state it as it was said in thecar, be-
cause what he really meant and told me later in
the jail =~

Q Well, what did he say when ke was inthe car?

A That is what he said, as I have stated.

Q What did he say in the jail?
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A In the jail he said that what he meant -~

MR, BACHRACH: I object to repeating it, if he has
told 1it.

MR, SAVAGE: Q what 4id he say in the jail?

MR. BACHRACH: 1 object,

MR, CROWE: Wait a minute, The conversation that
you have just related, was that hed in the car or
in the jall?

A The former part of it was related in the car,
about the expsriment,

THE COURT: Now beginning —-

A The correction of it was in the jall, the
correction of the setatement was in the jail,

THE COURT: Now, where do you begin the corrsction?

A Regarddng the pulling of the wings from a fly,

THE COURT.Now g0 on,if there was anything further
in the jall, tell us? ‘

A In the jail he said that he memnt that Reporters
Exxgxaz gave no one a ohance, that is, a person
had no come-back to a reportsr. They mersly experi-

mented with them, they impaled them, there was no

, retort for the person to make once the reporter had
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said anything against them, he thought it umethical,
and that is all,

MR. SAVAGE: Q Did you have any conversation with
Loeb on that trip other thean what you have tddl us
not that you can remember?

A Yo sir.

Q Did you have any conversation in the jail with
Loeb? |

A I had converasations in the jaill with Leopold and
Loeb for weeks at a time every day.

Q WVas thers anything else now about that sonversa-
tion with either Leopold or Loeb in the jail that
you haven!t told us about, in substance?

A Is there anything about what?

Qys there anything slse that you talked about in
the jail thet you haven?t $0ld us about at +fois
time with either Leopold or Loeb?

A No sir,

MR, SAVAGE: You may oross examine,

MR, BACHRACH: That 18 all.

(Witness exoused and no crose examination)
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JOHN 00 LEVINSON,

a witness called on bshalf of the prosecution, having

been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, SBARBARQ.

THE COURT: How 0l4 are you, son?
A Nine and a half.
THE COURT: Nine and a half.
Q@ Do you go to school?
A Yes,
THE COURT: What school do you go to?
A Harvard,
THE COURT: Q What grade are you in?
A Going into the fifth,

THE COURT: You know what it ig to tell the truth,

do you?

A Sure,

THE COURT: Do you know what 1t 1s to swear fadsely.

L Whatt

THE COURT: Do you know wWhat it is to swear falssly?

A Yes,

THE CURT: what do they do With people who swear

falsely or don?!t tell the trTuth? What do they do with
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them? Whers do boys go that don®{ tell the truth?
A Put them in jail.
THE COURT: Well all right.
MR. SBARBARO: Q Wwill you stats your name?
A John O, Levinson.,
Q what is the middle name?
A Olivar.
Q Where do you live, John? A 4049 Lake
Park Avenue,
Q How 0ld are you?
A Nine and a half,
Q What schodl do you attend dovn t herd?
A Harvard.
Q How long have you attended that school?
A Four years,
Q And where is that school loocated?
A 4731 Ellis.
Q Now, do you know the defsndant Richard Loeb?
A Yes,
Q Will you point him out in the coﬁrtroom, do you
see him here in the courtroom, will you point him
out ?

A Yes, there (indicatin

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. érininal Court. Cook County. q%

)

ial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 668 1924



(23 ~669-

Q@ Now directing your attention, John, to the 3lat
day of May, 1934, in the afternoon, will you tell the
court if you saw the defendant, and if you 4id, whers?

A1 saw him at the school yard.

Q Where is the school yard located? A In
back of the school,

. Q About what time of the afterncon was that?

‘A Two thirty.

Q Did you have a conversation With Richard Loeb?

A He just sald "Hit it up."

Q Vhat were you dolng at that time?

A Playing baseball.

Q Did you have any further talk with him?

A No,

MR, CROWE: What school?

MR, SBARBARO: You may cross examine,

MR, CROWE: Wwhat school?

MR, SBARRARBO: He said the Harvard School,

MR,CROWE: wWhere is it?

MR, EQO:Q Vhere is the Harvard School?

A 4731 Ellis,
MR, SBARBARO: He hae answered that question.

Q V¥ho was with you on that afternoon, John?
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THE COURT: At what time do you mean?

MR, SBARBARO: Q Who was with you at the time you
were playing there at the time you spoke with the
defendant Richard Loeb?

A Just some boys that attend the school?

Q Any professors thers?

A Yes,

Q Wwho?

A QRaxg James Seass,

MR, CROWE: Talk louder,

MR. SBARBARO: He says James Seass. You may cross

¢ Xxamline.

CROSS EXAMIN ATION
BY MR, BACHRACH.
Q Say, John?
A Yes,
QWhen was school over this year? A VWhat?
Q When did school finish?
A Do you mean let out?
Q Yes?
A For the end of the year?

Q Yes,
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A Friday, June 13th,
Q Friday, June the 1l3th?
A Yes,
Q And have you a place where you go in the summer?
A Yes,
Q Where is 1t?
A Kennibunk. Beach, Maine
Q In the State of Maine?
A Yes,
Q How long does 1t take you to go there?
A Oh, about a day and a half,
Q About a day and a half?
A Yes,
Q And when did you go there this ysar? A The
30th of June,
Q On the 30th of June, and you remained there from
the 30th of June until whent?
A Let me see. I can't remember what yesterday wes.
THE COURT: The date?
A yes sir.,

MR, BACHRACH: Q Yesterday wasthe 37th of July.
A Until the 37th.
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Q Until the 37th?
A ves,
Q Did you come back to Chicsgo yesterday, the 37th
of July?
A No, I came back today.
QToday?
A Just this morning.,
Q And when did you leave Kennibunk, Maine, to come
here?
A At 9:50 in the morning,
Q At 9:3) in the morning?
AYes,
Q And whendo you expect to g back?
A Tomorrow,
Q Tomorrow? A Tomorzow a'gms thirty.
Q You bhave no other business except this $rial, mave
you?
A No,
MR, BACHRACH: That is all,

(Witness exoused)

-l s e we o, o, e
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WILLIAM SHOEMACHER,
recalled as a witnaess on behalf of the prosecution,
having hergtofore een duly sworn, was further examined
in chief by MR, g%%%% and testified as follows?:

Q Were you swWorn this morning, C®ptain?

A Yes,

Q Will you stade your nsme, please?

A William Shoemacher,

Q You are the same William Shoemacher that testified
here this morning?

A Yes sir,

Q Now, Captain, you are one of the officers that
participated in the original lnvestigation of this
case?

A Yes sir.

Q When did you first begin the investigation}

A I started on the 33nd of May.

Q Do youknow the defendants Nathan Leopold, Junior
and Richard Loeb?

A ves gir,

Q When did you first see them with refarence t0 this

trial?

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 673 1924
!



13r

Hei nOnli ne --

- 674~

A On May 30th,

Q Where?

A Well I ssen Leopold dn the First Precinct Police
Station, in a cell.

Q And what if anything 4id you do with reference to
Nathan Leopold at that time?

A I brought him to the State's Attorney's offics,
Q What time of day was that, Captain?
A Aboy three olclock in the afternoon of May 30th.
Q And who was present in the State’s Attorneyls office
when you brought Nathan Leopold there?

AWell Statets Attorney!a Crowe and Savage, and I
belicve yourself and Sbarbaro was there, and there
was a number of other people there,

Q Wwas Richard Losbd there?

AI don?: kndw, I dlintt sse him,

Q Now will you tell hise Honor, Judge Caverly, what
transpired in the State?s Attorney?s office, after you
brought Nathan Leopold thers?

A I brought him in and turned him over to the
State's Attorney who took him into a room there vhich

I 414 not &nter, and I had a talk with the State?s attor-
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ney., Do yu Want me to relate what that talk was?

Q Not unless sither one of the defendatiss wers
presant, Captain?

A No.

Q What did you do afterthat?

A I then went out on the south side with Mulroy
and Goldstein,

Q That is the reporter for the Daily News?

A Yes,

Q And what did you do out there?

A I questioned some boys that wers going to the Chicago
University with Leopold,

Q With refsrence to what?

A To a typswriter that was used at his home, making
up what they call "dope sheests”. |

Q And after you questioned these boys, Captain,
where did you go?

A I went back to tl» State!s Attorneyfs office.

Q What transpired then?

AOh, just a minute. Before i went back to thsState's

Attorneyss office I went to Leopold®s house.

Q And what transpired at the 1sopold home?
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A VWell I went in and t0ld them who I was and said
I wanted to get the typewrlter,

Q Who did you speak to thers?

A I spoke to Mr, Steele,

Q In what capaclity was he employed there?

A %ell I believe he is gust a friend of the family.

Q ALl right. Nocw go ahead and tell what happened?

A And one of his brothers was there --

Q One of whose brother?s?

A Leopold!s.,

Q That is, Nathan Leopold's brother?

A Yes, some Women who I believe was an aunt of his,
and there was a mald there, Eliz%beth Sattler, I think
her name was, somsthing like tha, they said that
they were there, somebody came there during the night
and took a way a Hammond typewriter, and I told them
that was not what I wanted, I said "I want a portable.
typewriter that was used hers", so they started to
question one another about it and looked for it,’
and his aunt was Qquestioning the mald there about
the typewriter, and she sald, "yes, that typewriter
wa8 here", and I says, "when did you ses it last",

and she says, "I seen it two weeks ago", and I says,
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"Well, what became of it, " and she says, "I don't
know, 1t ought t0 be around here," So they started
looking around the house for the typewriter andwe
were not able to find it, so then I came back t0 the
Statz'3 Attorney?!s office,

Q Vhat transpired after that?

A X brought in I believe five boys +that had been
present in the house and seen Leopold use the port-
able typewriter for the writing of these dope sheets.

Q DO you remember the names of any of these boys?

A Well, Arnold Marmont was one, Oberndorf and
Shamberg, and there were two others, their names
don?t come to me right now.

Q All right,

A %hen I brought them to the State!s Attorneyls
office we got Leopold in a room there, in the
front room, with three typewriters, and we brought
these five boys In, and they made thelir stateents
in the presence of Leopold.

Q What did Leopold e®, if anything, at that time?

A Well he seemed to —«- he saidthat there must

be some mistake, and he questioned each one of the
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boys, But they remained firm, and saild that they
remembersd distinctly that he had this portable
typewriter there, although they didn't say just what
make it was.,

Q About what time on -~ this Was on Thursday, was
it7?

A We also identified the writing, the dope sheetw
that were writtan on this typewriter.

Q This was on Thuzrsday? A This was on
Friday.,

Q On Friday, that 16{ Decoration Day?

A The 30th, yes.,

Q All right, go on from there, Captain andtell what
happened?

A We questioned Leopold further on the typewriter
and he sald @Well, I think thet typewriter is at the
Jsousef, He says, "Come to think about it, I did have
a portable typewrlter,®™ and he says, "I believe it
is at the house," He sayg, "that is one that I
got from a fellow by the name of Mandel."

Q Leon Mandel?

Meon Mandel. So later that evening, that night

it was, I went to the house with 1eopold and Savage.
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Q That is, 1eppold’s home?

A Yas .,

Q All right, now what transpired there?

A He proceeded t0 look for the typewriter,
Q Now just tell the court in your own way what he
did thers?

A He went ® the second floor and looked under bureaus
and in' drawers and in closets, looked in a number of
places, and I was satidfied mysell ~-

Q Just a minute, igggg tell what he did, dontt
state your conclusions.

A He looked into places, drswers that were about
four inches deep I should judge.

Q Well after he made the search therefor the
typewriter, what else transpired if anything? Did
you find the typewriter?

A He wanted to qQuestion the differentpeople in
the house,

Q Yss,

A He wanted to go to the maid's room and question
two that was in bed there, and when he entered

their room I entered with him, and I questioned
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this maid Elisabeth, I saye, "did you t2ll me that
that typewriter was here two weeks ago, this port-
able typewriter" and she says, %yes", 80 he tried
to -~ he sald, "I think you must be mistaken, Eliz-
abeth", so I says, "you are sure about that,
are you Elizabeth, that it was here two Weeks ago",
and she says "yes." OSo we started back, we left
there and started back to the State's Attorneyis
office, On the way back Leopold was seated in k=k
the rear seat with Mr. Savage and they had a conver-
sation there.

Q Did you hear that conyersation?

A T heard part of it.

Q Will you tell the court what part you heard?

A Leopoldsald, when we got back to the State's
AMtorney!s office he says, "I will tell you something" -

Q Fow, Captain, just when was this as to day and
date, if you remember?

A This was on the morning of, I should judge it
was twelve olclock, after twelve, it would be May 3lat.

Q After you got basck to th: Statess Attorney!s
office will you tell Judge Caverly what happened?

A Leopold and Mr. Savage entered a room down there
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callad Mr. Gorman's room at the present time, it

ie a room in the corner of the building, and they
were In there a lons for quite a while talking, and
later Mr. Crowe went inthere.

Q Now just let me divert your attention one minute,
Captain? Do youknow the age of the defendant,
Bichard Loeb?

A Richard Loeb is eighteen years of age, he told
me at the time he was arrested.

Q Do you know the age of the defendant Nathan Leopold
Junior?

A He said he was nineteen yeafs of age at the time
he was arrested,

Q Now go ahead, Captain and te1l the Judge what
happened after they had entered Mr. Gormants room?

A Well I don't know what took place in there,

I was outeide in tle adjoining room, but they re-
zained in there for quite a while, About I should

Judge one thirty in the morning, sometime =around

that, I was told that--—

MR, BACHRACH: I object.

MR, SMITH: Q Don?t tell what you were told, just

tell what happened,what you heard?
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A He was still in the room and the State's Attorgey
was in there,

Q All right.

A And Richard Loeb w@s in another room therewith
Mr. Sbarbarde.

Q 311 right, now go ahsad from there,

A And later Richard Loeb was brought into the State's
Attorney’s private office with Mr. Sbarbaro, he was
in theres a short time, when I wnt in there with Mr,
Sbarbaro and Richard Loeb, and I heard him =-

Q When you say him who do youmean?

A Richard Loeb?

Q The defendant in this case?

A Yes,

Q All right, tell xkmxfmsg what you heard him say or
anyone say in his presence at that time?f.

MR. SMITH: I was going to suggest, if the Court
please, the confessions themselves Will be read, and
I was wondering whether or not we ought to burden

the record with the confessions as far as the Captain

'8 concerned?

THE COURT: Will there be any objectionto the

reading of the confessions? _
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MR, DARROW: No, your Honor.
THE COURT: There is no use repecating it.
MR, SMITH: There is no use having him state it
when the confessions are going to be introduced.
THE COURT: No.
MR. SMITH: Q Now jus tell what w26 gping on in the
State!s Attorney?sa private officet? |
A Well, Richard Loeb made a etatement there covering
all the details of the crime from the time they first
talked of it,
Q When gxxxg you say "they" who have you reference to?
'A yathan Leopold and Richard Loeb,
Q All right.
A They saidthe first time that was mentioned was
last November, 1933,
Q Now after nichard Loeb had detailed the statement
you speak of, what happened then?
,A It was taken down by a stenographer,
. Q Yes,
A And Nathan Leopold was brought into the rpo@.

Q Now who was present at that time? Wwags the defendant

Richard Loeb present?
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Q Now go ahead, Captail.

A I vwas present. Chief of Deteotive Michael Hughss,
who 13 at present in the hospital, he is lald up,
snd Assistant Statez Attorney Sbarbaro and Assistant
State's Attorney Savage, and State!s Attorney,
Mr. Crowe.

Q Now will you tell his Honor, Judge Caverly, what
transpired there?

A And there were two stenographers there,

Q R1l right. Now tell what happened there in substance?

A The State‘g Attorney said "You have a statement

there made by Nathan Leopold", and I believe MNr.

Savage sald, "yes", and he says, "Now, you have

a statoment there made by Richard Loeb", and Mr, Sbarbaro
sald nyes", "Now,"he says, "we will bave the statement
0f" w= Leopold's I mhX% believe wae the first one

read. Itvas read by the stenogrgher that took 1t, and

it wae taken down by the stenographer that took

Richard Loeb's statement., There was several - the
discrepanoy, I wont say that, because there were sevw~

e ral things that were mentioned in the stat-msnt made

by Leopold that Loeb said was Wrong, and he made some
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notes .

Q Who made some notes?

A He wanted to dQuestion him right there and the
State's Attorney said, ™ow just make anote of that
and we will talk about that after this statement is
ready."

Q Yow ae I understand it then, Captain, as Leopoldls
statement was being read Loeb was making certain--
was making notes as to certain discrepancies that he
gald were in that statement?

A Yes,

Q zs that right?

A Yes,

Q Now those noteswere introduced in evidence here
this morning?

A Yes,

Q Those notes are in Loeb's own handwriting, are

they?
A Yes,

Q All right. Now go ahead from there on.

A TWhe they finished with reading Leopold’s state-
ment, Loeb questioned him a8 to -- the one that I
remembered the most, there were several thingshe
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cn in particular that I remember about —

Mk, CROWE:

THE WITNESS:

MR, CROWE:
THE COURT:
MR, CROWE:
THE COURT:
MR, CROWE:

THE COURT:

That will all be read.
What ?

That will all bse read,

Are there two statemmnte?
Yes, l

One by ea.ch?.‘

Yeos.,

Both signed?

MR .CROWE: No.

THE COURT:
MR, CROWE:
THE COURT:
MR. DARROW:

THE COURT:

MR. SMITH:

Neither signed?

No, stenographic notes,

They are not going to deny it?
Nol.

Why get any details from him if you have

+ 1% in stenographic notes written up?

i

I sajd that all ws want to know 1is in

substance what transpired there.

THE COURT:

What difference does it make, You have

got it in writing? Certainly he cannot give it as

clearly as it wae taken down atthat time, after two

or three months, can he?

2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 686 1924



357 | w58 7

MR, SMITH: Q VWhat did Nathan Leopold do, if eny-
thing there at that time?

A Well when Loeb!s statcment was read Leopold also
made notes of errors thathe clalmed was in the
stagnent in reference to the part he took in this'
crime.

Q All right., Now after Nathan Leopold's statement
wag read, then what happened? After both statements
were read and sach man had taken notes,then what
happened, if you remember?

A The state's Abtturney allowed tpem to exemine ea?h
other or to make any remarkethey wished to msake in
regard to it.

Q Then what happened, what happenedafter that?

A And about eightbtclock that morning I believe we
left to go to the scene of the crime,

Q When you say "we" who do you mean?

A T mean the two defendante, Assistant State's
Attorney's and Police officers.

Q And where did yu go, just givé the Court a
detailed summary of what Fou did fromthat time on

ag briefly as poseible?
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A The firet stop that I mafe with them was at
1426 Michigan Avenue, the Rent-a~Car people, where
we all got out, went in and lecoked for fthe car that they
used ard 1t wasn'®t there, it vwas out at that tiane.
The two defendante talked with them, that they had —-
or one in fact, Leopold was the one that talkedwith
gome of the men that he had met when he rented the
car. From there we went over to 1352 Wabash Avenue,
& clgar store and lunch room.

Q T8 that Barish's ciger store?

A Yes, where Lo¢eb s&id he remained while Leopold
vwes at the Rent-a~Car people and he was there to
take the telephone call, to give reference for hin,
80 we went in there, andthe woman in the place idenw
tified Loeb as the man who had been in there. At
that time Loeb was taken with a sinking spell or
fainted in the place and he was picked up and taken
out and put in wy car I think, yes, we put him in
my car and sent him to a Hotel with some of the
officers,

Q Do you remember what hotel that wes, Captain?

Al think it wes the Windermere Hotel,

Q@ That is at 57th and Hyde Park Boulevard?
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A Yes,
Q All right, go shead fromthere.
A From there we went to 43 -~ or 4336 Cottage Grove
Avenue, 1t was a hardware store there, where we
were told they bought the chisel,
Q Now atthat time Loeb was not present?
A Loeb ves not witn us at that time?
Q@ VWae Leopold precent?
A Yes, Leopold was present.
Q A1l right, what transpired there?
A Well we went in there and the men eaid he remembered
selling the ochisel, cold chisel.
YR, DARROW: Haven®t you got all that?
MR. SMITH: Q Well go right ahead Quiokly.
A Of course Egbouldn't identify anybody.
MR. DARROW: %ell, never ming,
A Vell from there we went to a drug siore at
43rd and Cottage Grove on the Northweet corner where
Leopold eaid he went in to0 buy the acid.
MR.SMITH: Q TWhere did you go from there?

A And didn’t get 1t there, so next he went to 45th
and Cottage Grove, a drug store there, be went in
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and boughtthe acid in that place, on the30th of May.
From there we drove over -- they showed us the play
yard at 40th and Drexel, on the southeast corner of
4¢th and Drexel,

Q The play yard of the Harvard School?

A Yo, it is the play yard whers the children of the
neighborhood come and plgy, it 18 a blg lot where
they play.

Q All right.

A TFrom there we drove over to Leopoldl's h;use
at 48th and dreenwood, and Leopold went in with us,
and we ldoked around the garage and went into the
houee where lLe handed over the pair of boots, rubber
bcote and the cap.

Q Now that pair of rubber boots that has been
identiflied in this case as"People's Exhibits P and Q"
those are the boots, and it can be assumed that they
are marked leater?

MR, DARROW:  Yeb.

'MR. SMITH: Allright.
THE WITNESS: Gortland had them and then I got them,

MR. DARRO®:  All r ight,

MR, SMITH: It ie admitted that those are the boots,
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THE WITNESS: So from there wé went to the Hyde
Park station to get the chisel, because that wae where
the chisel was delivered by this man Hunt, be turned
it over to the Officers,

Q And where did you go from there?

A Bnd frox there we went to a bridge in Jackson

Park, it " a gold statukf of Liberty near it there,

Q And fromthere where did you go?

A Leopold told us this is the bridge‘where he
threw the keys in, and he got out of the car and
took us over to what I call the southeast side of the
bridge, and made a moticn with‘his hand and said,
"there is where Loeb threw the keys in.

Q A1l right, then what?

A From there we drove south and east to a bridge
that they called the Pyramid bridge I believe, then
‘south and east of there.

"~ Q A pyramid bridge?

A Yes, and he sald, "there is where Loeb thraw the
typewriter, over the southeast side of this bridge,
it 18 right 2t the cuter harbor."

Q Then what happened?

A T had policeofficers stationed there and they
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remalined at that spot until the typewrlter was re-
covered,

Q And then where did you go?

A From thege we drove out, according to directicns
Leopold gave us, out the South Short Drive, through
SSuth Chi cago.

Q Did you make any stop aleng the lake shore front
at any plece?

A Yes, at 73rd and the lake he showed us, he says
"pull in here and I will show you where the robe is",

Q That is the robe that was cherred and introduced
in evidenceixex here?

A He said, "this is the robe that was used to
cover the boy with," and we pulled down tothe foot
of the street , right at the lake, and we got out
of the car and he walked down under a lot of timber
that was there, it might be called a pler, amd
dovn under there, along with a lot of rags and
rubbish and old stumps of trees what was left of a
fire, ashes, was a part of thie robe, he says,"that
is what 18 left of it there".

Q You picked up the robe at that time, did you?
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A I picked the robe up and brought it in.

Q@ All rignht, then where did you go?

A It is a kind of a green-ggggﬁh thing , about a
half an inch long, the plush,

Q That hes been 1dentified here, Now from there where
did you go?

A From there we contioued on --

THE COURT: There is no need of identifying that robe
any more.

MR, SMITH: No, we are not.

THE COURT: There is no dispute and it has been
identified half a dozen times,

MR, SMITH: No, we are not.

Q Go right ahead and tell us, Captain?

A Then we went south on, we went acroes § street
bridge in South Chicago, out Ewing Avenueé to 1Q6th
and out 106th to Indianapolis Avenue and on Indianapo-
1is Avenue to St. Ceorge Road, up the St. Gsorge Road,

continued into Calumet, into Hammond, through that

'to 15th Avenue where he said to"turn to your left",

we tumed to the left on 15tk Avenue, which would
be going Fast, drove about two mlles, and he says,

oW turn to your left again on this next street",
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So we turned to the left and went down past a Ruseian
Cemetery there about a quarter of a mile and he says,
"now turn to your right", and we turned to the right,
and you are en a road then known as the Michligen
City road, we drove along about five to eight hundred
feet I should judge, and he says, "stop here",
We stopped and got out and he looked around and he
says, "this looks like the place.™ He says, "well,"
~~"]let me see." He was facing west as he was stand-
ing in the road and he says "The shoes must be on the
righthand side over here some place", and he pointed
over this way,

Q He had refereﬁce to Robert Fraks! shows?

A To Robert Franks' shoes,

Q Yes, .

A So we imﬁediately gtarted to look over In that
direction.,

MR, DARROW: Haven't you got that in?

MR, SMITH: Well go ehead, briefly, Captain, Afer
you got to that neighborhood what did you do?

A Well then he said the other articles, that 1s

the belt buckle and class pin was on the south side

of the road, that would be to his left looking west.
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Q All right.
A So we searched the locality there for about an
hour or more, and Jleft two squads of umen there,
ten men, tc stay there and remain there until it got
dark to see if they couldn't find that stuff,
Q And you came bédt to the City did you?
A I came back to the clty, yes.
Q And where did you go to?
A We went to the Windermere Hotel where we went up
and found Loeb lying in a bed up there,
Q What transpired at the Windermere Hotel, briefly?
A Why I wae in the room with Loeb while he cslled
his mother up.
Q You don't have to go intoc thet, He called his
. mother, did he?
A He called his mother.
Q And then what transpired after tﬁat?
A We had another suite of room on the other eide,
that is where we left Lecpold there, I left him

there and took the robe and boots back to the city

with ne.

Q All right,

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 695 1924



347 -E06~-

A To the Deteoctive Bureau:

Q What happened the next day?

A& These men were taken from there, to 48th and
Wabash Police station. Of course I didnft take them
thers,but I know they were taken there,

Q Just tell me what you know about it 7

A The next day was June lst, Sunday. I met Chlef
Hughes at the Wabash Avenue Police Station, that is
at 48th and Wabash Avenue, at ten A.M,, and I also
had a squad there under Sergeant Barensky.

Q All right, what did you do from there on?

A Leopodd and Loeb was locked up in there, I
took x-ﬁﬁﬁgﬁ out and took him in my car, and Leopold
was taken in Chief Hughes'! car, end we were to go |
over the scene of the ‘crime and the places, to find
Just where the clothes was burled, because Leopcld
said that Loeb had buried them.

Q Now, did you go over that spot again without
Leopold and Loeb?

A Yes,

] ' "\ ¢
QThat vas over about the same area that you went over
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the day before with Leopold approxim=tely?
A Yes sir.

Q I8 that right, about the same?

A Yes sir. Loeb, the first stop we made after
they had their breakfast was at this bridge in Jackson
Park, he got out and showed me, he saye, "the keys
on that typewriter,"or the type on the typewriter,
he says "they were taken off with a palr of pliars,
and he says, "when I got cut I bad them in my hand
and I just scattered them like you would throw seed",
and he says, "I don%t believe you will be able to
find them in there."

Q Who sa2id that?

A Loeb,

Q All right.

. A S0 I egays "allright™, and we got back into the

car and we droveover to the other bridge, and I says,
"now, will you show me the spot where you dropped

the typewriter in, this portable typewritex", so

he got out of the car and went over, and he says, " it
is right about here", and he reached over and showed

me right about where it was, and I had the men that
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were statlioned there pay particular sttention to
that spot so that they could tell the divers just
where to look for it.

We then went on to 73rd andthe Lake
where Leopold got cut and showed us where the robe
had been found the day befors.

VWe then drove on out to where —-

Q Out the Michigan City road? A Out the
Michigan City road.

Q Yes,

A Loeb got out of the car and he says "where did
you find the shoes?" The officer that foundthe
EKESXEK shoes pointed out the spot over there in the
bush. He says, "well, then the bslt must be xXkE right
over here."® We had borrowed a rake, and he séys,
"let me take that rake and I will see if I can't
find it%, 80 he took the rake and he raked over
the ground and he says, "everybody keep back now,
don®t be walking on there because it makes it harder
to find the place", so he worked around thers for
about twenty minutes I should judge, and he finally

raked over some dirt and he reached down and picked
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up the belt and he says, "Here is the belt." I was
gtanding on one side of him and Chisf Hughes on the
other slde of him at that time, and he handed the
belt over to Chief Huches. " Now", he says, "the
buckle must e right over here some place," indi-
cating a spot about five to 8ix or seven feet east
of where the belt was found, and he says "the
classpin, I don't know where that is, it may be
near there", but he says, "I couldn't tell you."

Q That i¢ the belt M@ clasepin and buckle and
shoee that were introduced in evidence Egge?
A Yes,

Q Belonging to Robsrt Franks in his lifetime?

4 Yes,

Q Now after you ieft there where did you g3
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2 A Ve drove back down the Michigen City road
mwey .

Tels uhtil we came to Calumet Avenue and 15th Street
Snyder

%8l5 P where there is & red hot stend, I says, is that
7/38/34

the red hot steand where you got the sandwich, and

he says, "Yes." I saye, "Well, who got the sandwioh

and he says "Loeb got 1t." I said, "Did you stay in

the oar?" and he says "Yes," I says, "Was the dead

boy in the car too at that time?" And he says, "Yos."

They got the red hot sandwich and brought 1% over

to the car, ate it. I says, "Were you driving end

s says "Yes, I wae driving." "So", he says, °I

drove all the time up until we came to the drug storefl

end I says,"Now, show me where the drug store is.®

I sald, "Leopold didn'% show it to me, 'you show it

)to ms", go we drove on south down this Calumet Avenue

until we came to a place called Sibley Street, where

he says, "There is where I believe the drug store is."”
It wes & drug store on the northeast

corner, He said, "I pulied arownd this way with

the car" =- that would be facing east. He says,

"Bringing my left hand side to the drug store."

"T gtayed here", he says, ‘ﬂa.nd Leopold got out and

went into the drugstore and telephone, called up*, I
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He came back over t¢ the car then and he gays,
*Now, you yush over and leave me drive, sc ", he gays,
"thet wes the time Leopold took the wheel, and
from Celumet Avenue end Sibley Street in Farmond
Leopold drove the car,"

Q@ Now, have you told us &all =-

A VWell, =- let me see. Loed took me dovn by the
gohool, or thls playgrounds at 48th and Drexel and
told me where they etcod with the oar watohing the
children playing in the yard. They stood with the
car feoing south on Drexel on the west side of the
boulevard. He said, from there +they went over to
the house and got the glasses because they could not
see the boys plain enough.

Q Now, have you t0ld us in substance, Captain, all
about the tripe you have made? At any tinme -

THE COURT: Walt a minute,

THE WITMESS: I am trying to think,

THE COURT: Well, we will take our usual ten minute
TEecess now,-

¥R, SMITH: All right.

(Whereupon & short recess was taken,)
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(Whersupon pursuant to & short recess heretofore

teken the following proceedings were had)

WILLIAM SCHUMACEER,
Tesumsd the steand for further direct examination by
¥r. Smith,

MR, SMITH: M2y we proceed, your Honor?

THE OOURT: Yes.

MR, SMITH: Q Captain, aefter you returned to Chicago
from your trip oout to the Michigan City Road with
Leopold and Loeb as you have testified, and came
back to the State's Attorney's office, then where did
you go?

A Ve went out into the jail yard with the two de-
fendants, myself end the State's Attcrney andsome
dootore, police offlicers, and there was an autogobile
there, & Willys~Enight automobile that wes identified
by Leopold ag the car that he used on May 2lst., He
sald there was & merk on it by whichk he could
positively identify 1t. Ve examined the carand foung
thet the bottom of it wes covered with blood. I
docked on the bottom and we removed the rug, I
agsisted in removing 14, and also the floor boards,
and brought them into the Stats's Attorney's offlce.
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Q Whet happened after that?

A In the presence of these doctors end the cther
people there «-

Q Anything else happen in the yard at that time?

A There were some photographers there for newspapers
and they wanted to teke a picture of the defendants in
the car. Loeb «~ or Leopold ran and got the front
seat, and he says, I am going to get in here, as he
says, before loeb gets in.

Q Now, where in the car did he get first?

A He got into the front seat bebind the wheel, so
Loeb says, "I refuse to get in to the car."®

Q And anything else said?

A 1 can not remember juet now,

Q@ Did Loeb give any reasons for .not wishing to get

+ into the car?

A Well, he sald that was hls position in the car,
wes the front eeat.

Q Now, Captein, I show you an automatic pistel, 33
callbre, and an auvtomstic plestcl 38 oallibre, end ask
Iyou whether or not you ever saw those two guns
before? They may be loaded, so be careful. Here
are the boxes.
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5 Q All right, look at the other one. Here mre
the boxes, with the name Schumacher on them,

A VWell, here is my initiale, on both of them.

Q@ Now, did you ever have any conversation with
either one of the defendants with reference to these
automatio pletols?

A Yes, I telked to both of them,

Q And did you have any spsclific conversation with
Leopold with reference to thes® automatie plstols?

A Yes,sir,

Q When.

4 On June 2nd, in the morning.

Q What day was that, June 2nd, if }‘rou remember ?

A londay morning.

Q Monday morning, That was the day after you had
taken your trip to the Michigen Clty road, and the day
after the automobile was identified in the yard?

A Yes.

Q And vhat did he say to you in reference to these
Pletols?

A I asked him where I could find tﬁese guns they
ueed or had with them on the night of May 2let, and he
said I would find them &% his home.
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Q Did he tell you where?

A He told me wherse, ves. He told me there was one
belonged to him and one belonged to his brother. He
gaid you will find mine in one dresser and my brotherfs
in the other dresser., The dressers ere 1ln the same roon

Q@ All right. Fow, did you go out thers?

A 1 went there with Sergeant Gortland and & man named
Ballinger, I think, and he took me up to the room and
was there when we found the guns,

the
Q Now, were these/two guns you found up thers,

Captain?

A Yes, sir,

Q And the holsters?

A Yes, sir. They were loaded.

MR, SMITH: I offer these in evidenoe at this time,
if the Court please, as State's Exhibits 133 and 134.
Any objection?

MR, B, BACHRACH: Ho objection.

¥R, SAVAGE: They are in.

MR, SMITH: No,

Q Are these the cartridges?

A Yes.

¥R, SMITH: We might also put these ln evidence, as
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(Marked as requested by couns-l.)
¥R, SMITH: Oross examine,
THE COURT: Any oross examination?
MR, B, BACERACH: No cross examinstion,
MR, DARRQW: No oross. Pardon me.

MR, CROVE: Now, call Mr, Allen,

(Witness excused.)
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EM ALERERH,
e witness called on behelf of the People, having been
firet duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:
DIREQCT EXAMINATION
By
Mr, Crowe,

Q@ What is your name?

A E M Allen,

Q And where do you live?

A 4Bb5 Grand Boulevard.

Q@ Whet is your occupation?

A Court reporter,

Q@ Been & court reporter for how 1oz}g? .

A Eighteen years.

Q And you can teke down acocuratoly =

MR, DARROW: We will admit that.

MR, CROWE: -- statements, read them and trensoribe thmm,

A Yes, sir,

Q You are employed by the State's Attorney's office?

A Yes, sir,

Q Did you tske a statement of the defendant, Richard
Loeb, in the State's iAttorney's office on the morning
of May 30th, Deocoration Day morning?

A Yes, slr.
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A Yes, I have them mspe,

Q Are those the original notes?

A Yes, sir.

Q Who was present at the time, in the room, when you
took that statement?

A There was yourself, Judge Crowe, Mr. Savege,

Mr. Milton Smith, Michael Hughes,Chief of Detectives,
Mr, Samuel F., Ettelson.

Q And who else? Was the defendant Rlchard Loeb there?

A Yes, the defendant Nathan Leopold.

Q I am asking you about Richerd Loeb, The statement
made by Richard Loeh?

A Yes, sir, Richard Loeb was there also.

Q ¥ow, have you got the statement made by Losb on
that night, or Leopold before you?

A I have the statement of Leopold.

Q Well, I went the Loeb statement made the same
night,

A Yes, I have that here,

Q Now, who was present at that time?

A The State's Attorney, Robert E. Crowe, Mr, Joseph
E., 8avage, Michasl Hughes and some others whbm I have

not noted.
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Yes,
And was the defendant Richard Loeb present?

The defendant Richard Loedb was there, yes,sir,

O O

Now, wlll you read the Questlons &nd answers, all
of them, thet ware made st that time?
A Heo was asked by the State's Attorney, Mr, Crove,

"Q Now, Loeb, you toldme that Wednesday, you
drove down town Vednesday, the 35th, you drove
down town with this young fellow Leopold, in his
car, Thaet 1s & sport model, it 1s & red car with
a tan top, Willye-Enight?

"A  Yes.

"Q You left the school around eleven o'clock or
some time after eleven, betwsen eleven and noon,
that you had rented ==

MR, CROWE: That you had lunch,

% == that you had lunch at the grill room in
Marshsll Field's. |
®A Yes, sir,
"Q Yes or no?
"A Yes, sir.

*Q Then you went out to Lincoln Park?

*A Yes, eir,
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10 *Q And all the driving you did that day wes
in this oaxr?
A Yes,sir.
“Q You did not have & car yowrself, did you?
*A No.
*"Q You did not drive any that day?
"A TNo, sir,
"Q Have you got & oar in vour family {that ls e
weather beaten green?
*A Well, my mother has & Cadillec, yves,sir.
*Q A Cadillec, and that i1s & sort of & green?
*A Yes,
"Q Isn't it & fact thet shortly after one o'oclock
P X you drove up in thet Oadillac, you drove 1t and
Leopold driving the red car drove the car to his
garage snd you had —-
MR, CROWE: You saw the man,
" == you gaw the man that just went out, yes or
no?
A TYes.
*Q Who was he?
"A Pardon me, yss was tq your Question about

had the man gone out.
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1l “"A He is Leopold'se —
MR, CROWE: Chauffeur,

*A Hs is Leopold's chauffeur.,

"Q Now, isn't it & fact, Wednesday, May A ct,
come time between one and a Quarter after one you
drove vp to the garage, %o Leopold's garage, you
driving your mother's car, that green Cadillac, he
driving the Loeb car, and that he said to the
chauffeur --

MR, €ROWE: The red caxr.

") == he driving the red oar, and that he said
to the chauffeur the brakes squeak so muoh here
I want you to fix them. He says I can put some
0oll on thom and you can ==

¥R, CROWE: Use the emergency.

" = = you can use the emergency and if you
are ocareful you will not run into anybody, He
said I'll not run -~ He sald I would rather =-
I would rather run into somebody than have that
bad sQueak, and he turnsd the car over to the
chauffeur and got into your car and drove away?

*A No,

*Q That is not a faot?
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33 ";2 If this chauffeur eays so he is & 113’1‘"3

"4 Yes.

MR, CROWE: Although,

*Q Although he bhas & particular resson for
remembering?

"A It is not & fasot.

"Q The chauffeur took the car and —-

MR, CROWE: Oiled.

*Q =~ if the chauffeur took the car and olled it
up, olled the brakes and fixed it up that would
make the impression -— make an impression on his
mind would i% not?

"A Yes,

"Q If he says that is & fact he is & liar or
mistaken?

"A I didn't get that.

"Q He i1s & lisxr or mistaken?

"A Yes,

*Q Then if he has an s&dditionel reason for
remembering the particular day what would you say
to that?

*A I would eay he weas still a liar or mdisteken.

*"Q Didn't you boye come back then somewhere around
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13 car out,
| *A Then ig ==
KR, CROWE: When 1s all this?
"A -~ when is all this?
*Q Wednesday, May 21let, the day this boy dise-
ppsered, that is not true?

¥4 No,

"Q The chauffeur is mistaken?

"A Yes,

*Q Did you and Leopold = do you and Leopold
belong to the same fraternity?

*A No,

®Q You are not fraternity brothers?

"A M.

*Q Did I agk you last night about the letter he
wrote you in which he sald =-

| MR, CROWE: Now walt a minute, &ust read that part to the
three reporters,

*Q Did I esk you last night about the letter he
wrote you in whioh he said 1t would not do for
cock suckers to fall out?

"A Yes, sir,

¥R, B, BACHRACH: That is all there is of that, ilsn't it?
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14 MR, ALLEN: (Reporter) Yo, some more.

*Q What significance do you attach to that?

"A The fact that he wanted to say, that a rumor
had gotten saround that he was a 0ook sucker,

*Q What difference would that make if there had
been a rumor he had been a coock suvucker and he had
fallen out == and your talking to hik, what
difference would that make?

"A We did everything in our power to avoid any
possible scandal in regard to thet thing for two
years, since i1t happened; that was three years agpo,
when this rumor started, and for two years we
were very careful never to be alone together
in publio, seen together any place or to be alone
together any place, where we could be seen, We
were careful so when we wanted to go to a theatre
on & particular evening we would be careful to have
somebody else come salong, purely end =lmply on the
advice of my brother who had told me to be ocareful
end to - not to see too much of Leopold, and if

I did to be sure there was somebody else around.

\
\

*"Q Wasen't that an intolezable condition to
exlst, two fellows that were very friendly and
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wanted 4o be together and could not be together
without the world suspecting they were coock suckers,
And you hed to have a chaperon all the time?

A Ro, 1t was not necessary.

Q Wouwldn't it be muoh better 1f you broke off,
seying now lioten, there is a lot of suspioion as
to our relations here, you better go your way and
I will go mine and stop] &1l this talk and let us
forget 1t.

"A We never did that, but for Quite a while there
we saw very little of each other., It is just due
to the fact that this here =-- that we were gcing
to the University of Chicago and that we were togehter

e great deal and that there was much more conversa=-

tion.,

¥R, CROWE: Any oross examination?
MR. B. BACHRACHE: No.

¥R, CROWE: How, will you get a statement made, -—- the?
statement made by Leopcld, Nethan Leopold, Jr,.,, the
defendant in thls case,

A Yes, sir, Yes,sir, Leopold mads & ste nt =

MR, CROWE: Walt & moment, until I find it here, All right,
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16 one thirty five A M, is that right?

4 TYeg, gir,

Q And who was present at the time?

A There was present Robert E, Crowe, State's Attorney,
Joseph E, Savage, Assisient Steate's Attorney, Mr., Milton
Smith, Assistant State's Attorney, lir. Michael Hughes,
Chief of Detectives of the Detective Bureeu.

Q@ Yourself and Nathan Leopeld, Jr,1?

A Yes, sir, and Sanuel Ettelson,

Q And Lsopold, Jr. and yourself?

4 Yes, sir.

Q lYow, will you read what was seid,

A Judge Orowe asked the duestions.

*Q ¥hat is your name?

®"f HNathan F, Leopold, Jr.

“Q Vhere & you live?

A 4754 Greenwood Avenue,

*Q How old a man are you?
' %A Nineteen,

"Q You were nineteen when?

*A 19th of February.

.8Q You were born where?

"A Obicago.
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17 "Q, Who 1s your father?
ip Hathan F. Leopold.
%Q What is his business?
"A He is president of the Morrie Paper House,
*Q How meny brothers in your family?
"4 I have two brothers and & cousin who makes his
home with us.
"Q Your two brothers live with you?
"A Yes, gir.
"Q Have you any other brothers or sisters?
*A No,eir,
"Q Your mother is dead?
A  Yeg,sir.
"Q What are your brothers! names?
"A Foremen M, and Samuel I
®Q And they are both older then you?
"A Yes, sir,
*Q And both in business?
*A Yes, eir,
“Q What schools have you gone to?
vA The Spade School.
*Q What age did you start to school?
Hei nonline -~ 2 111 noi s. "dbi i Ab chhe agecod, sixs went ta.hhe Spade Scbeol.
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At the age of eight I transferred to the Dougles
School. |

*Q That is & public school?

%A Public school., I will have to figure this out.
At eleven I attended the Harvard Sehool.

*Q The Earvard Schocl is located where?

A 373 Ellis, it was at that tims I firet started.
When I first started it was located at the corner of
37¢h and Drexel.

PQ For how long a time did you go to the Harverd
Sohool?

"A Until I was fifteen wars old,

* UR, OROWE: That is five years., |

"A That is five years.

5Q Are you acqQuainted with any of the precsent
ingtruotors?

"A Yes,sir.

%Q Name some of them you are acfuainted with?

"A Mz, Mott Kirk Mitohell, Mr,Charles Pence,
George Baubel. |

®Q Do you know Wilson?

"A NHo, aeir,

"Q Or ¥Williems?
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19 "A HNo, sir.
"Q They cams o=
MR, OROWE: After you left.
1Q ~— after you left?
"A Yes, sir,
"Q What Mitohell - Mitchell ocoupies what position
there? ‘
"4 Asslstent Principal and Professor of English.
"Q He was & teacher of yours at one time?
"A Yes, oir,
"Q What did he teach, English?
"h  Yes, gir. |
"Q What else?
"A That 1g all.
*Q Vhen was the last time you gew him?
*A The last time I sew Mr. Miitchell was last
Thursday. |
®Q And where?
'"4A On Ellils Avenue just south of 47th Street.
®Q And did you have & talk with him?
"A Yes,sgir.

*Q What was the conversation?
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30 "A  Mr, Mitchell gald after the gresting
formallties, Mr, Mitchell said that he heard about
the Franks =- Mr, itohell said 'Have you heard
about the Franks boy?* I saild, 'No.' BHe said,
'Do you know him', and I sald '¥No,? He sald
'Robert Franke® and I sgaid *No'. I atked if he
.were & student of Harverd and he said 'Yes,'

He gald 'He had been kidnapped the day before and
the runmor now was that he was murdered --
¥R, CROWE: Thet his murdered body.
A -- that his murdered body lmd been found ==
That he himself would not believe it until the --
MR, CROWE: He actuslly saw the body. |
14 -«= until he actually saw the body.
*Q What time of day was that?
"A It was about five fifteen or five thirty.
*Q Have you heard anything about the Franks
matter up to that time? |
"A Mo, eir,
*"Q Up to the time you had heard nothing about
the Frenks matter?
"A No, sir,

"Q And you did not know Robert Franka?
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2 *"Q Did you know his brother?
"A Bo sir.
"Q Do you know his father?
"A To,sir,
"Q Did you know any of the family?
"A Yes,sir,
"Q Did you know where they lived?
"A Did I know where they lived?
Q.  Yes.
*A I don't believe so.
*Q Do you know now where they live?
*4 Yes, sir,
»Q How far is it from where you live?
"A It is four blocks.
*Q How far did you live from the school?
"A A block and a helf.
"Q A block and & half away from the school?
"A Yes,sir,
*Q Do you know & number of pupils that go to the
school?
"A Yes,sir.
*"Q How did he look when he left, hew did he

impress you?
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33 "A My judgment 1s formed from opinlons by what
I have heard since, but my lmpression is that he
looked rathsr worried, that his color was not as
good as usual and his face 1ooke-d longer thean usual.

") And you attributed == had you attributed that
fact to --
MR, CROWE: And you attributed that to what, if anything?
"Q =~ and you attributed thet to what, 1f anything?
"A At the time?
"Q At the time?
®A The faot that one of the pupils of his sohool
had been murdered,
®} After you left the Harvard School where did
you go?
"A After I left the Harvard Schooll attended the
University of Chlocago.
"Q And you entersed there in what year?
*A ZEntered there October lst, 1920,
"Q In the freshman class?
"A Yes,slr,
"Q TYou took the =
MR, CROWE: Liberel arts.

"Q = .you t0ok the liberal arts course?
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"A Yes, gir.

*Q Did you gradwate?

A Yes, slr, but I had attended s wniversity
before that. I was at the Univereity of Chiocago
untillodl to '33; no, I beg your pardon, 1920 to
'21, I attended the University of Michigan 1981 %o
133, and attended the University of Chlcago again
in the year 1933 and '33, and graduated Maroh 30th,
1933, I oontinued there as & post graduste until
June and started this last October, 134, as &
freshmen,

MR, CROWE: °®23.
"A Yes, 1933 =~
MR, CROWE: Last October, 1923,
%A -~ legt October, 1933, as a fres of the
University of Chlcago law school.

"Q When you graduated at the Chicago University
you received the degree of —-

"A Ph, D. Bachelor of Philosophy.

"Q And the post graduate you took waes ==

MR, CROWE: Along what lines?

" =~- was along what lines?
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"Q What does that mean to the average citizen
who 1s not & college man?

"A Study of comparative languages.

") You spent a considerable portion of your
atudent days in studylng the various lenguages?

"A Yes, sir,

"Q How many languages have you studied?

"A Fifteen.

'@ Can you name them?

"A Yes, sir, English, German, French, Italian,7
Spanish, Modern Greek, Russian, Eewalllan, Iatin,
Anolent Greek, Sansoript, popular Latin, and Hellenis
Greek,

"Q VWhat is popular Latin?

¥A Popular Latin otherwise known as vulga.;' Latin
is a Latin that was a speech of the common Popes
of the 4th and 5%h Centuries, A. D, in the study of
advanced langusages.

"Q And revivel of Gaelio here., You do not speak
Gaells?

"A HNo, I did not have tim, I discussed the matter
with our Irish maid, Oscar Umbrian.

"Q Whet kind of & languzage is that?
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35 "A Zarly dialect, Itallan,

"Q Are the Italian dialeots of language.

"A Are the dialects -=- early dlaleot, dlaleots
of languages that have become obsolete in the sarly
days.,

"Q In the Hiddls Ages?

"A In the Middle Ages, yes.

"Q Did you have any advios in discussing those
languages?

"A My father thought I was young enough to siudy
Just exaotly what I pleased, and that was my choice,
"Q How many off these languages can you speak ==

MR, CROWE: Oan you speek more or less fluently?

"A About five,

"Q And what are thoss?

" A English, German, Fremoch, Italian, Spanigh and
Modern Greek. Well, not so much. I can ordsr & beef-
steak in any Greek restaurant.

*Q In most of the others you ocan recad and write?

%A No, I would not say that I can read and write &
all of them, especlially Russian and Sansoript without
vory much diffioulty.

®*Q Have you any line of study that you have
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"A Yes, sir, Ornithology.

*Q That is the sclence of birds?

"A Soienoce of birds.

®"Q When did you flrst take that up?

A 1905 when I was five years old.

"Q You have  more or less of a study of it
ever since then?

"A Yes, sir,

*»Q Have you done anything beyond studying 1%?
Heve you put 1t into prtical use?

®A Youmean have I published some of it? “

"Q No have you put it to any practical us=, Have
you taught?

A Yes, I have taught and written.

*Q When did you begln to iteach?

*A Begtn to teach in the spring of 1921.

®Q And you have various olasseg? g

"A Yes, eir.

*Q What is the course of instruction,what do
you do?

"A With my ohildren 1t is pure desoriptive field

- for ornithology, which means taking the kids out,
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37 teaching methods of observation, and teaching
them what to look for in birds =-
MR, CROWE: Familiarizing them with the speoiss.
"A -- familiarizing them wilth the species,
MR, CROFE: And blrds whioh are common,
"A -= birds wh:i.oh are common here, which 1s
about ninety per cent, but now and then give them
& little talk, which vou might call technioal
sclieonoe, as much as might be called olassification
of birds, celled <+taxonomy.
"Q TYou have three diffsrent classes now?
"A Yes,sir,
"Q Classes of children?
"A Yes, sir, two olasses of children, and one =-
MR, CROWE: Of ladies.
"Q =- and one of ladiee,
"A One of ladies,
"Q The ladies are all married ladiss?
®*A Without exoeption.
") Ig there any significance in that, I mean the
faot that they are all married?

nA Merealy that the ladies are of a certaln age.

Onegodte olasses by getting different groups of
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38 MR, CROWE: Unmarried ladies,

"A = groups of friends, end of cowse the un=-
married ladies wouldnot go around with the married
ladies., I think my youngest student is considerably
over thirty five,

"Q There is nothing signifiocant in the faot that
they are all married women?

"A No,sir.

"Q There is nothing in the course of instruction?

"A TNo, somé of them bring their daughters along
‘a.nd ny helper 1s an unmarried girl,

1) Do you know where the body of the Fra.ﬁk"s'bb'y
was_found?

*A Yes,sir,

"Q Where?

w4 It was found as I understand it under the
railroad embenlment of the Pennsylvania traoks and
stuock into a drain pipe at the =--

MR, COROVE: Looation,

"A =~ gt the location of about 118th Street, if
it were extended. I would not know the name of
the strest that goos north and south,

*Q Are you familiar with that partioular spot?
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"A Yes, oir.

®) How long have you been familiar with 1t?

"A Since 1916,

") Tell how you happened t0 go out there in the
firet place?

A 1918 was the first year I was taking up the
study of distinotive ornithologyf

' ¥R, CROVWE: Desoriptive,

A -~ desoriptive ornlthology, I started my
olapses, as I sald, at five but I never wes much
interested in field study until that time. At
that time there was one student of the Harvard
School by the name of Iuke MoKenzle, who was a
friend of my older brother, and who was duite an
expert, a man who went to the Hyds Park High
School, ¥r. Sydney Stein, Jr. who was very kind
in instructing me, allowing me to go with him very
often, and we used to go to the park =- we used %o
go to the park very much and occaaionélly take an
old -

‘MR, OROWE: A1l dey tzip.
"\ -= pooidsionally take an &l)l day trip to one

of several plages, of whioh the Calumet swemp district
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30 in general was one.
’ "3 And you were Quite familiar?

"A The ares around there.

"Q The way around the place -=— the arsa aroun 4
the place where this body was found?

*A Yes, gir,

®"Q The body wes found there Thursday of last
veek?

*A Yes,sir,

"Q VWhen was the last time prior to yesterday that
you had visited that particular spot?

"A Sundey, May 18th.

®Q When had you Wl sited that partioular spot prior
to Sunday, May 18%h?

*A Saturday, May 17th.

"3 Prigr to '!:ha.tJ,ﬁ dbout half a dozen occasions
during the year, whioh I oould not definltely place
furtker than to say one would have been earlier in
May and one in April, possibly in March.

1Q Do you remember what kind of a =
¥R, OROWE: Do you remomber your visit there SBaturday.
"Q Do you rsmember your visit there Saturday?

y irgqu{ggil?
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*Q Prior to the finding of the body?

*"A I do.

"Q Tell us about that vielt?

a4 I am not positive whether we went out just
before lunch or Jjust after, btut 1t was elther at
eleven or eleven thirty., and about one o'clock in
ths afternocon Mr, George Lewls end I wentinmy car.
Do you want the roufe?

"Q Yes, go on.

"A May I take my house for a starting point?

"Q Yes,

"A From our house out on Greenwood to Hyde Park,
Hyde Park east to where it turns at the Chioago
Baach Hotel and out through Jackson Park along the
South Shore Drive to 83rd Btrest; 83rd Street eszst,
but I don't know the name of the Street, but thisas
main highway south agein over to 93nd Street
bridge at Ewing Avenus, then to 106th, 106th north
to Avenus G, Avenus G gouth to 108+%th, 108th east
to Avenue G,

MR, CROWE: F.
YA —- Avenus F,* I ghould say. %At Avenue F,

%o 108th, went south over two automobile tracks,
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33 _ was the Pennasylvania, XX
¥R, BRO?IE: And through the Forest Preserves,
YA <« And through the Forest Preserves out to
e point perheps fifty feet south and west of a2
shack belonging o & Mr, May, who has bsen held
in conneotion with this case, e had stopped in
the Forest Preserve and made numerous observations
along near =--—
MR, CROWE: Homs of the Forest Preserve Werden.
A -- punmerous observations along near the home
of the Forest Presserve Warden whioh is north of
Agers Station., We then went out in the ocar to this
voint whioh I am speaking about. We first went
east over a liitls road that leads to Wolf Lake on
the swamp t0 observe the various blrds there and
on the way back a point say two hundred yards easy
of the Chlocago =-
MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, it is pretty hoi. We
are all very hot and tired,
MR, = OW: Give him a chance to read it, maybe he can
read 1t fastoer tomorrow,
MR, CROWE: He has a lot of reading and I suggest i:!”ho
gets an opportunity to run through he ocan save time in the
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1B
morning.

THE COURT: All right, Xindly look 1%t over before you
come in the morning. We will suspend now until ten ofcloock
tomorrow morning.

MR, CROWE: I would like to tell Mr, Darrow and Mr,
Bachrach and your Honor that we willl finieh tomorrow
morning.

MR, DARROW: If you do we will ask to go on the following
norning.

MR, CROVWE: Of course, when I say in the morning I assume
the stenographers will b8 able to read.

THE COURT: He says he would not care to go on until the
next day.

MR, DARROW: No.

(¥hereupon an adjournment was taken until

Tuesday, Fuly 39th, A. D. 1934, at the
howr of ten ololock A, M,)

-y e - T wy W
+
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Tuesday, July 39th, 1934,

10200 o'clock A.M.

Court convened Tuesday, July 28th, 1924
at 10:00 o'clock A.M. pursgant to

adjournment heretofore %taken.

Present: Same as before.

E, M, ALLEHN,
regumed the stand as & Witness in behalf of the prose-
cution and being further examined in chief by Mr.

Crowe, testified as follows:?

@ Now in your reading there go along slowand
when I indicate that you should etop you can read it
to the reporters here and the Court and the Attorneys
for the defense?

A Yes sir,

Q But not in a loud tons of voice?

A Yes eirz.

Q Do you know what page we vere on when we ctopped?

A1 left off yesterday where -~
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Q Just a minute.

AThe last words, I can give you the last worde?

Q Weld just a minute #ntil I locate it on mine,

THE COURT: That is mot a moving camera you have got
there, is 1t?

NEWSPAPER MAN: No, Judge.

MR, CROWE: Q ‘We wers out at the éui;ﬁ##, were we
not? | .

A Some place along in the swamp where theywere looﬁ-
ing for birds, The last words that I read was, "We
first went east over a 1little road that leads bstween
Wolf Lake and the Swamp".

Q weren't you just through reading, "From our house
out on Greenwood to Hyde Park"? Can you find that
question or answer, "from Hyde Park East to whero 1t
turned at the Chioago Beach Hotel out to Jaockeon Park
along the Bouth Shoré Drive, 83rd Street??

A I got beyond there, Judge. I got quite a2 bit
beyond there. I think 1f I were to read you a question
you would get it?

Q All right, you go ahead and I will get it, Go

/

ashead and read?

The nearest Question to that 1s, I.find there
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he says, "Yes, go on, " then "May I take my house for

a starting point"? "Q Yes." That is near where

you indicated.

Q Al1l right, you go ahead and read from there on, will
you?
A "A Vell we went out on Greenwood to Hyds

Park, from Hyde Park East to where it turne
at the Chicago Beach Hotel, out through Jackson
Park along the South Shore Drive to 83rd Street,
83rd Street eset to, I don't know the name of
the street, but it is a main highway, scuth again
over the 90th estreet bridge at Ewing Avenue €0
106th, 106th north to Avenue G, Avenue G south
to 108th, 108th esst to Avenus F, Avenue F to
l1e8th, went south into aubamobiles and across the
track, whioh I have sinoce found out was the
Pennsylvania, out to a point perhaps fifty feet
gouth and west to a shack belonging to Mr. May,
who has been held in connection with this case,
we went south in the Forest Preserve and made num-
erous observations zlong there near the home of

the Forest Preserve Warden, which is north of Eggers
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"station, we then went out in the cer to this
point of which I am speaking, we first went
east over a little road that leads between
Wolf Lake and a swamp t0 observe Yarious
birds there, and on the way" =-
MR, CROWE: Just a moment. If yourHonor pléaeo. right
at this point I have a map that I might introduce, it
1s a chart. Have you any objection?
MR, BACHRACH: None.
MR, CROWE: well, then, by agreement,

THE COURT: Very well,

MR, SAVAGE: Shall I mark this? What 18 the last number

Mr. Smith?
MR, SMITH: This Will be 137,
MR, CROWE: Let the record show that by the cmeent
of the counsel and the defendants the chart 1s intro-
duced.
(vhereupon the chart was here marksd People's
Exhibit 37).
THE COURT: All right.
MR, CROWE: All right, @ ahead,
A "On the way back, a point say two thousand yards

east of the shaok of Mr. May, I anoticed three
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5b1rda which are very unusual in thie area,
{Phalarope'. Inasmuch as the bird was very
unusual I wished to take a @pecimen for my

coll ction, and left Mr. Lewis to watch the birds
and myself ran to the shack., I asked Mr. May,

whose name I didn't at that time know, but I

sinoce found out, through the papers, stating

that I had seen these birde, whether he had a
gun that he could loan me and a2 pair of boots,
inasmuch 28 I didn't take my boots; sand I had

a ten-gaugeshotgun «- now, wae it a twelve gauge
shotgun? I had coneiderable diffioculty in
locating any shells, Finally I found sone,
andthe time I was ready to starv out Lewlse

came running up and said that the birds had
flown west over the rallroad traok into Hyde

LakB- L

MR, CROWE:? Just & minute,

" w= go we Tan over the rajilroad track?® -

MR, -CROWE: Just a minute. It has been suggested by
councsel for the defense, that thi® being in transoript
form, we might make a little progrees by reading it from

the typewriting.
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THE COURT: Yes, I think so . You only want it for
the record anyhow?

MR, CROWE: That is all.

THE COURT: And I can read this,

MR, CROWE: 4And I wlll go shead and read it into the
record now, 1f it is exkik agroeable to both cqunqgl
and the defendants for me to read this?

MR, DRRROW: Yes.

MR, CROWE: Q You tranweribed these notes?

A Yes sizx,

Q And this is the transeript that I Eg}éj

A Yes sir.

Q And it 48 correct? A Yes gir.

MR, CROWE: Well then if your Honorplease 1 will go
ahead and read this,

THE COURT: All right.

MR, BACHRACH: You don't mind my standing up and
following you?

MR, CROWE: No, come right slongeide of me.
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Whereupon Mr. Crowe here reéd in the words

and figures as follows:

"He gave me the boots and a ten gauge shotgun --
now, wad it a twelve gauge shotgun? I had
considerable difficulty in loocating any shells,
Finally I found some, and the tims I was getting
ready to start out Mr. Lewie came running up
and said that the bird had flown wes over

the railroad track into Hyde Lake, g0 we

both ran over the railroad track into Hyde Lake,
crossed on a little log whioh crosses a little
channel there, and after ciroling around for
some time in the swamp got up to the birda_
agein snd I fired three shots at them, missing
them like a tenderfoot, The fourth shell
jammed on me =nd the bird flew away. I looked
around for them for some time and then returned
to the car, returned Mr. May's gun and his
boots, then proceeded south over a little
prairie as far as the next farm houss, I don't
know the owner, out there next Hegewich. Ve

got etuck two or three timee in the mud, so that

Mr. Lewis had to get out and pueh, and finally
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¥got through. We looked around for birds
there for a few minutes, then turned around and
camd back that same direction home,

Q Row, was your attentiom at any time
eved particularly directed to the drain where this

body was found, prior to the time the body was

found there?

A Fo slr.

Q I mean did you ever partiocularly notice
the drain?

A Partioudarly notice? I knew that the
little slow drain through there, I didn't know
how it drained through, ghough, I never partiocu-
larly noticed, _

@ But you are familiar with the drain
at that particular spot where the body was found?

A Yes eir, I didn't know that there was
a pipe there, I knew that thle little channel
flowed from one side of the traok to the other.

I knew of course Jjust where it went under, but
I never bothered to investigate to see how it

got under there.
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"Q VWhat experience did you have at that
particular epot Sunday?

A  Sunday?

"Q That is, when I say that partiocular
spot I mean the drain wheére the body was found?

A At the very end of ow birding day,
which had lasted from fivein the morning until
abo@t seven thirty at night, in other words I
ehould say about seven thirty, we had again
parked our cer at the same place near the
shaok, Again Mr. Lewis and I, we had had a
third member in the party, Mr. Sidney Stein,
Junior,

Q vwhat Stein is that, Sidney Stein, Jr.?

A His father was a lawyer, Sidney Stein,
AL

Q BStein & Blatt?

A I couldn't say.

MR, SMITH: This was originally Stein &
Blatt. Sidney Stein was a waster in Chancery.

MR, CROWE: I want you to tell ho¥ this

partioular spot was noticed by you that Sunday?
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"A I% was not partiocularly noticed by
me that Sunday. My attention wa® not direcoted
particularly to it., I suppose if youwould
agk mé, do I know there ie a drain there, I may
have known there ie, but I didn't partioularly
notice it in any way. I muet have been Within
afew feet of it, because as I say, at seven thirty
after parking our ocar some place and going east
almost to the Indiana Lines, we got up?%he rajil-
road track and tried to see soms ducks which we
thought might be in Hyde Lake, and the sun
wae 80 low in the west that it made it almost

impossible to see at that angle.,"

CROWE:  Will you go ahead from there?

MR, BACHRACH: I would rather not. Well, I o't cars,

‘there are you now?

Hei nOnli ne --

Rhereupon Mxr. Bachreoh here read in the words

and figures a8 foliowe:

"1 should say that I passed right over it,

probably about on & level with it. I was ae
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;probably viithin ten or twenty feet of it any-
how, and Snnday was the sams, because a path
leads right alaoz2t from the drain,"
"QHave you ever heard any etoris about =-"
MR, BACHRACH: I wont read that.

MR, CROWE: Just read that to the stenographers.

Yhereupon Mr. Bachrach here read into
the record, in a low tone of wolice to the

stenographers, the worde and figures as follows:

"Q Have you ever heard any stories
4§bout Mitchell being queer?

A Yot definitely, no.

Q Well, rumors?

A 1 have heard some wild rumors, lyes.

Q By queer you mean what? r

A 1 mean sexual pervert,

Q Andfor how long have those rumors been
floating around, to your knowledge?

A Ever since I oan remember, almost,

Q@ You have no knowledge ag to whether or

not the rumors are truet?
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A No sir."

Whereupon Mr, Bachraoh here continued to read
into the record in the vwords and figures

as follows:

"Q To your knowledge of where this
body wae found, do you beslieve a person who had
no knowledge of that territory at all would be
able to find it at night?

A T should think it extremely unlikely.

Q In other words, @ man who would take
the body to conceal it there, in your judgment,
would be a person who knew something about the
location of it prior to that time?

A Probably.

Do you wear glasses?

No eir,

Have you ever worn glasses?
Yee sir,

¥When did you first wear glasses?

> O b O > O

In October or November, 19233,
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"palr of glasses,

A I had been suffering from a little
nervous headache whi¥h I thought might & attribue
teble to khmxxxx eye strain from the smount of
reéading I had been doing in pursuance of my studies.
I went down to sge Dr, Emil Deutsoh and he
prescribed glasses for me.

Q That is --

A 3 North Michigan.

Q VWhere did youthava the prescription filled?

A Almer Coe & Company.

Q@ How many pairs of glasses have you bouéht?

A Onae,

Q That peir was bought from --

A Almer Coe & Company, on the preecription
of Dr, Deutsoh,

Q Decoribe as beet you can the pair of
glasses that you bought?

A They were big tortoise shell evectacles
rather weak, that 1s as much a8 I can describe
them, I8 there anything you could suggest?

Q "No, just your descrpption, Andyou wore
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"A Yes sir,
N Q You didn't wear them for gight ?

A No sir,

Q then did you stop wearingthem?

A 1 think it was aboutin February, it might
have been March.,

Q And from that time on you have no recolw
‘lection of having worn these glaasee?‘

A No sir.

Q when did you first talk to me?

A  About three five this afternoon, yee-
Yerday afternoon.

Q@ That is Thursday afternoon?

A That is right, Thursday afternoon.

Q You had seen me in the Hotel room?

A Yes,

Q You have’bben with me since that time?

A No sir,

Q You passed out of the room and back again?

A1 gado one trip to my home,

Q At the time I first talked with you I

asked you some questions sbout the glasses and you

told me you had but one pair, and had worn them
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"for two or three months?

A Yes sir,

Q And you didn’t know whether you had them
home or not?

A 1 said very probably I did,

Q The chances were ninety out of a hundred
that you had them home?

A vYee sir,

Q@ TYou wouldn®t be a bit surprised if the
glasses found neur the body wére your glasses?

A I don't remember that statement.

Q After talking to me I suggested you go
and make a searoh for your glasses?

A Yes eir.

Q You made that searoh?

A Yes sir,

G You have been unable to find them?

A Yes sir,

Q You have seen the glasses thst have been
found near the bedy?

A Yes sir,

Q Twhere are those glasses? I showed them

2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 753 1924



161 « 754w

"$0 you before you went home and wkn you'caqe
| back?
A Yes sir,
Q I will ask you to look at these glasses.
What 1s your judgment as to whether thoae are
| your glasses or not?
A T ghould think they were.

(The glasses were marked for identifi-
cation with a notch on the nose
plece between the two lenses),

Q@ You say these are your glasees?
A Yes sir.
Q ¢¢ that the case the glagses came in?
A Yee s8ir,
Q Vhen you wore these glasses xau we%gymoro
or lecs nervousl
A Ro sir,
Q Have you ahablt of biting the ends in them?
A I may hhve, but not consciously,
(The glasses were marked for identifice=

tion by a oross, across the outside

of the case),
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®Q The case I ghow you" -=
THE COURT: Everybody will have to get outelde. Everybody
who 18 not seated will have to leave the court room.
Tell the door keeper to come in here, will youplease?
¥ill you go and bring him in, Mr. Sheriff, the door-
keeper?

Now, Mr. Doorkeeper, you will have to see that
everybody who 1is not seated leaves the courtroom, and
don't let anyone in when there isn't a seat for them,
You don't want me to take eny harsh advantage of you?
Now don'¥let anybody in, and if anybody brings in
people with them they must be here on time, and once
the room is filled, don't permit anybody else to come
in except those with press cards, and if those come
in late you can keep them out if you wieh to. They
have a right to be on time the same as anybody eolse,

Now once the room is filled I don't want any
more peopls to come in, Now, please don't let them in,

THE DOORKEEPER: Iwont.

MR, BACHRACH: Shall I proceed your Honor?

THE COURT: ®o ahead.

MR, BACHRACH: *The cage I show you i8 the case the
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"‘A‘ Yea .
Q@ Have you any ldea how those glaesee happened
to be found at the scend of the crime?
A They probably dropped out of wy pocket
in which I must have been carrying them, either
Saturday or sunday, May 17th or May 18th,
Q You changs your chothes many times?
A Yes sir,
Q How many eults of clothes have you got?
A Eight,
Q How many do you wear, how meany dif ferent
suite do you wear when you are at home?
A Five,
QYou are in the hablt of freduently sending
thece clothes to the tailor?
A Not my bird clothes, no.
Q@ Do you sent those?
A Yes,
Q About how often?
A It depends on how badly they need it.
Idm't stop to figure, to think of what suit I

wore the last time, and I take the first suit that
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"is handy, and I mey send the suit to the cleaner
after each time that I have worn it, or I might
be at home for months without it being sent to
the cleaner,

Q Have you a better suit for birding, or just
an old suit?

A Just an old sult, four or five of them,

Q@ If you put your glasses in your pocket
you would put them in what pocket?

A My left breast pocket,

Q Left beeast pocket?

A Left breast coat pocket, or poéaibly i@fﬁ
vest pocket,

Q which generally would you do?

A Generally I would put them in my coat, "

THE WITNﬁSS: Vest pocket?

MR, BACHRACH: Yes,

THE WITNESS: That is not right.

MR, BRACHRACH: I have read it correotly here?

MR. CROWE: Yes, breast pocket, or possibly vest pocket,

MR, BRACHRACH: It should be breast?
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,ﬁR. CROWE: You have both here.
MR. BACHRACH: (Reading)

" Q Did you stumble or fall at this

partioular spot at any time?

A I don't remember,

Q You don't remember that?

A No sir.

Q Wwill you put those in your left breast
coat pocket and run and bend and see whether
they will drop out?

(Whereupon Mr. Leopokd did ae requested)
" Q Now you have fallen to the floor twice.

A Yes, '

é The glasses are still in your pocket?

A Yessir,

Q Youdon't recolleot of having fell at
any time Saturday or Sunday?

A No eir,

@ And you have a fairly good memory?
A I wouldn't ewear to that. You mean ordi-
narily?

Q Ordinarily, yes.?
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"Q You went through, Xkmiz this afternoon,
geveral experiments of that sort, falling, to
see 1f the glasses would drop out, and they
did not?

A Yes,
Q And you dropped to the floor both timse?
A Yes sir,

Q And the glasses didn't drop out at that

time?
A No sir. May I add tha Saturday, ¥ou
mist remember that I had a pair of large rubber
a boots that didn't fit me, and therefore the
srobablylity of ny stumbling was greater than
if I had been just normal,

Q You had a gun in your hand?

A Yes sir.

QYou don't remember falling?

A No sir,

Q %When after the body was founddid you visit
the drain where the body was found?

A Never,

Q when after the ©body was found did you vieit

mmediate vic 1 ?.tyT
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"A Never,

Q How near have you been Yo the immediste
vicinity after the body was found?

A 113th Street and Ewing Avenue.

¢ Andwhen?

A Sunday morning, May =- last Sunday.

MR, SAVACE: The 25th?

A May 2bth, just so.

Q Wwhat was the occasion of your going out
there that time?

A1l wag examined by Capta}n of Pq}}ge Wolf
st thit station?

Q What 4did Wolf ask you?

A Probably asked me whether I had visited
that particular area and under what circumstances;
what other ornitologists or hunter or people
generally 1 mean that had vislted thst area,
particularly what students of warvard School
wero lnterested in birde that might have visited
that area, and what teachers in PFarvard School

: had ever been at that area with me, whether

anyof the people that I knew wore glasces;
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"Whether the Franks boy was, to my knowledgs,
interested in ornithology or fishing,

Q Wwhat did you tell him?

A I told him that I had frequently visited
the area since 1916, that I had beenthere ae
recently as Saturday and Sunday, May 17th and
18th; th=zt a great many people whom I knew
had visited the area in quest of birds, gave
him some names that I remember of the students
at Harvard School that I knew wereinterested
in birds, and that no teacher had, to my
knowledge ever been to the area, whioch, by the
way, I have since told you ig incorrect. 1I
do remember being out there once wlith a teacher
at the Harvard Sohool,

Q What teacher was that?

A Mr. George F. Vogel, May lst, 1930, and
that to my knowledge th: Franke boy was not
interested in ornithology, and I zEs probably
would have known had he been 80 interested,
inasmuch a8 I knew most of the boys at the

school that were interested, having them for
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"Q The first time you heard of the Franke
case wase when you talked to Mitochell?

A yes sir.

Q That was Thursday around between five and
8ix? |

A Yes sir,

Q Had you read anything up to that time?

A No sir.

Q From that time on did you read anything about
it in the newapapers?

A ves sir,

Q when didyou first read anything?

A About ten to fifteen minutes after ii%ﬁiﬁﬁx
Mr. Mitchell, there were some newshoys 2elling
extra papers on the corner of 48th and Ellis.
I purchased one, took it home and went into
the house. My aunt -~ do you want her name?

Q Mrs. Schwab?

A Mre. Schwab, I asked her whether she knsw
these people, inasmuch a8 they were neighbors
and I thought she would read of the case then.,

Digd you read an hinngrida
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A Yes sir.

Q In what paper?

Al think I had the Tribune and Examiner
in the morning, and I got an American and
a poet in the evening.

Q And Saturday?

A Saturday the same,

Q Sunday you were called in on the matter?

A Sunday I hadn't a chance to read the papers,
inasmuch as they at least came to get me while
I was still in bed, and I recall I hurried to
eat breakfast.

Q And $rom that time you have read?

A Everything I could find,

Q Wwith considerable more interest than you
did before?

A Yes sir,.

Q Did somebody ask you whether you wore glasaes?

A ves sBir.

Q what did you tell him?

A I toldhim that I had worn them about two

or three months ago.
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"on in the newspapers about the paif of
glasses that was found at the scens of the
crime?

A Yes sir,

Q And you have semn plotures of them?

A Yes sir,

Q Did you ever associate yow glasses With
the glaeees that were found there, until
this afternoon?

A wyever for a moment,

Q Did you evermake a search to see where your
glasses were, until this afternoon?

A No eir,

Q Where was your case?

A My cage wag8 in my bureau drawer.

Q And whzt else did youkeep in your bureau
drawer, inthat partiocdar drewer?

A Handkerohiefs,

Q Collars?

A No sir, watoh, gun.

Q Do you carry a revolver?

A No sir, I don't carry a revolver. Qccaeionally,
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5Q What kind of a revolver?
A Remington 33 sutomatic repeater,
Q And how long have you ocarried that?
A I have carried that since August 1931,
Q Is there any particular reason for your
carrying iv?
A Because I wanted to be very grown-up,
Q And occa®ionally you ocarrisd it?
A Occasionally, yes air.
QYou szay you never carried your glasees in
youwr case?
AT don®t believe I seld never, I said very
seldom.
Q 8o the case being thers, you mwould assume
ordinarily it wz=e sempty?
A Yer sgir,
Q ¥%hat is the last time you remember noe%gg
you glasses?
A The last time I wore them about three or
four months ago.
Q And at night had you any habit of laying
you glasses any place?

A During the time I wae wearing them I
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*used to lay them on my bureau and after I
stopped wearing themregularly I used to leave
them in my eudt pooket quite often.

Q Wwhy in your sult if you were not wearing
them?

A Too lazy to take them out,

Q When you changed your cRothes did yoﬁ change
then?

A No sir.

n Just left them there?

A Just leftthem there.

QThe only bime you wore glasgses was Qhen you
read?

A Yes sir.

Q Andwhen you were out birding you were not
reading?
| ANo sir.

Q S0 if you left them in your suit the chances
are they would be in your sult that you were
not birding in?

A Hot necescarily, because onnumerous occasions
until I intended going out looking for birds
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*morning, such a®, for example, was the case
yesterday, Thursday, the suit I have on now
is a birding suit, and still I wear it to
school.

5

Q You discarded the glasses some time back
8everal months?

A Yes sir.

Q 4&nd you couldn't go to the bother of
changing them from one sult to the other because
you didn't nsed them?

A No sir.

Q 8o in your judguent the last time that you
had them in when you were using them, you left
them there?

A Yeseir.

Q If the suit happened to be sent out in the
meantime to be pressed and cleaned the glasses
would have bsen taken out by somebody?

A Perhaps not.

Q %ere there any of your puite that you haven't

hadpressed during the past two months?

AT don't know, but I think so.
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"Q What suits?

A Some of my very worst birding sults.

There i8 one in particular, & brown sult which
I never use except for the very worst work,

If I remember correctly the trousers were very
baggy, aad I don't believe the Eii% has been
pressed in six or eight months.

Q Vvell after seeing the picture of the
glasces you have given some thought to this
ca®m, haven't you? eince Sunday?

A Yes,

Q You figured that if they found the owner
of those glasses it might throw some light
on this matter?

A yes sir,

Q And you never associated your glasses with
the glasses that were found?

A No sir,

Q when you found out today that they were your
glasses did it oreate any reaction on you?

A I was very much surprised and shocked, as

ologely @8 I can analyge it.
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"Q Didn't you tell me this afternoon
before you went home that you wouldn't
be a bit surprised if they were your glasces?

A I don't believe so. I think I told you
that they might be my glesses, that I wouldn?®t
sWear they were not my glasces.

Q Youwouldn't be surprised, you said, that
yowur glasses were home?

AIf I did, it is thst expression I .should
be surptised, suggesting probably they might
be my glasses.

Q When you discovered that your glasses
worenot at home, and that thesewere your
glasses, you say that youwere somewhat
surprieed and eshocked?

A Yes sir."

M: . BACHRACH: Do you want to read a little now?
MR, CROWE: Oh no.
MR, BACHRACH: I am a little hoarse.

MR, CROWE: Go ahead and finish it and I will take the

next atop.

MR, BACHRACH: Very well.

"¢ What was theoccasion of yomrsurpriee
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"and shooké

A The fact that the glasses which were found
near the body of this boy, which everybody would
suppose Would link up the slayer of the boy of
the crime, should turn out to be mine.

Q Well, didyou ever glve any expressionof
your surprise and shock when you discoveredthsat
they were your glasses, and if so, to whom?

AI think I did.

Q To whom?

ATo my brother, my zakm»x aunt and the maid,

Q What did you say to your brother?

A probably it is the god=damnest thing you
ever saw' or 'can you beat that' or something
of that sort.

Q Your brother is outaide?

A Yes sir,

Q what did you say to your aunt?

A Something along the same lines.

Q And the maid?

A Tpr were all present,

Q ¥ho else was present?

2 111inois. dhinmiEWaoof dhecofficers serainckhe -hous®obuk



33r =771~

"not in the room.

Q What did they sdy?

A They were also very much surprised. My
biaxx brother said, after we had hunted for a
few minutes he sald ' I will bst a lot of
dough thoese are your glasseés and that you
dropped them out thsre'!. My aunt haturally
sBesmed a little bit ooncerned. I don't
know that the maid gave any expression.

Q what did your aunt say?

A She said 'isn't it too bad, that is a terri-
ble thing', or something of that sort, I can't
exactly remember,

Q Did you reglister any surprise with the
deteotives?

A You mean today?

Q Yes.

A No, not that I know of.

Q Or register any surprise when you came back
and talked to me?

A No sir.

Q@ You read the letter which wa2 sent to the
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"Franks family signed, purporting to be
s8igned by some person, B. G, Johnson,

A Yes sir.

Q What is your opinion ae to the kind of ,
man that wrote that, that is a8 to hie intele
lectual attainmenta and his education?

A He must have had some, or oonsidsrabls
education, I should not think it would be
necessary that he be a college graduate,

I should think a high school graduate or a man
with some college training would be capable
of writing such a letter,

Q There isn't any doubt in your mind that
you could write as good a letter?

A You mean gramsmitically oorrect a letter?

Q Grammatioslly correct?

A No @oubt,

Q And the grammer is good?

A Yee s8ir,

Q Punctuation was ocorrect?

A1 didn't notioce,

Q Do you notice the suphony of the letter?
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"A Not until it was callsd to my attention
by Mr. Ettelson. I didn't look at it oriti-
cally in that way.

Q The rhetoric?

AI didn't notice anything particular
about 1it.

Q@ Wwhat is the difference between grammar and
rhetoric?

A Grammar is the correct use of words in
word form, rhetoric is the art of correct
compogition, In other words, it consists of
ueing phrases well, sentences well, para-
graphs well.,

Q The rhetorio was good there?

A So far a® I remember 1t was good,

Q Do you think a man like Mitchell oapable
of writing ua letter as grammatically correct
a8 that?

A yes sir,

Q There are some teachers out there that you
might have some doubt about?

A None that I know,
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" Q You don't know Williama?
A No.
QYou have heard ae talk today. Do you think
I could write a letter ae grammatlcal ly correct
as that?
A Certainly.
Q Offhand, or after?
A I should think you would have no diffi-
culty with writing it offhand.
Q Without any corrections?
~ A without any corrections.
Q D0 you own a typewriter?
AYes alr,
Q what 18 the kind of typewriter you own?
A Hammond Multlplex,
Q How long a time have you owned it?
Al don't xnow, a few years,
@ Have you owned any othsr?
A Yes, |
Q what other kind?
A I owned a Corona previously, &nd I can't
remember whether I had an Oliver a very long
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"thinﬁ 80, This last year, this last summer
I rented a Corona from the Corona people here
on Randolph Street for the purpose of taking
it away on a trip with me,
Q Do you gﬁ%ﬁégea machine?
A 1 do,
QYou would have no difficulty wrifiﬁé a letter
of this sort on a typewriter?
A No sir.
Q@ Do you drive an automobile?
A Yee sir.
Q Drive it vell?
AT hope =o.
Q For how long have you driven a machine?
Al have driven an automobile for three years,
Q what kind of a machine do you own?
A A Willys-Enbght, four passenger.
Q Sport model?
A Countr§ Club model.
 Does yow father own any oars besides that?
A ves s8ir,

Q What kind?
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@A My father owns a packard, Twin-Six
Limousine, 1916, a seven=passenger towring
car, Lincoln, 1930 or 1831l. My brother owns
a four-passenger Lincoln Phaston, 1931, My
brother Samuel owns a Willys-St.Clair, 1933,
it 1s either a Coupe or Sedan, Mr. Ballenberg
my adopted brother owns a Lafayette also,
coupe or seédan, I will be darned if I know
the differenca.

Q Do youdrink?

A Yes sir,

Q And your favorite beveragé is gint'

A well it is hard to say.

Q Well you do drink gin?

A Yes s8ir,

Q Sometimes other intoxicants?

A ves sir.,

Q How many boys have you got that you claes
as pals?
A May I ask vwhat you mean youwould call a
pal?

Q What do wu think I mean by a pal? A
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"A I ngght say anywheres from & half{ dozen
to twenty-five.
Q@ Are there any rea) oclose pals that you
have got? |
A Yes,
Q Loeb?
A Yes,
Q Diock Loeb?
A Yes sir,
Q Rubel?
AYes, Rubel.
Q You threet
A Some more are just as good friends of mine
as those.
Q Take those two, do you have any habit of
eating together?
A Yes sir,
Q At lemsat three times a woek?
A Yes sir.
Q One day you eat at your house?
A Yes eir.

Q One day at Loeb's house?
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"Q And Rubel lives at a hotel, and the thirdl
day you eat a2t a Hotel?
A ves sir,
Q' That 1s a sort of weekly hablt?
A Yes sir.
Q Are there any other boys that. you have such
an arrangeméht with?
A No sir,
Q Lewis is 2 very good friend of yous?
A Yes sir,
. Q Sidney Stein?
A Yes sir.
Q And you don't make it a habit of dining on
cartain daye with them, as you do with other
boye ?

A No gir.
Whereupon Mr. Bachrach here read into

the record, privatelyto the stenographers,

inthe words and figures as follows, to-wit:
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Whereupon Mr. Bachrach here continued reading

into the record in open court,as follows, to=wit:

"Q From the time that you have been with
me until the present mement I have treated you
in vwhat manner?

A Very courteously.
Q Has any person treated you otherwise?
A No sir,
Q@ Were you given every consideration that
any person would sxpect?
A Absolutely.
Q And about as much ¢ade’ and comfort 'as &ny
of ue have had?
A Yes sir,
Q You were fed?
A Yes sir.
Q And had a good meal?
A Yes sir, |
Q No restrictions placed upon you ordering
or anything of that kind?
A Yo sir.
Q In other words you were treated as well as

you would treat a guest or I would tred a
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"guest at my house?
A Yes sir.
Q No harsh words sald to you, you haven't
been abused in any manner whatever?
A No gir.,
Q You have no complaint to make?
A Qbsolutely none,
QYou have been allowed to telephone and no re-
quest that you have made has been denied you?
A No sir,.
MR, SMITH: How long have you ‘known thg”Ffaﬁks
family?
A I haven't known them.
MR, CROWE: Do you remember Wednesday, the day
the boy dlepppeared?
A Yes sir.
Q Give usan account of yourmovemente that
day?
A I arose about seven fifteen A.VM., then had

breakfast, wentout to school, had the eight o'clock

cless in the criminal law, at nine o'clock I had
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"I'rench clase with a friend of mine, had

a ten o'clock class in Agency, eleven o'clock,
Q Just where do you study Agency?
A Vamble's Cases on Agency.
Q@ Do you not follow the Text book system?

A No sir, At eleven o'clook or shortly
theresafter I went downtown and had lunch at
Marshall Fleldls Grill,

Q@ Who were you with?

A Dick Loeb.

Q Richard Loeb?

A Yee elir.

Q Have you seen him togay?
A ver sir,
@ Yhere?

Al saw him a2t ten and eleven at the University
of Chicagoe, had lunch with hin at the Windermere
Hotel,

Q Wa® that his home?

AUntil two thirty. I saw him for a moment at

one tnirty this aoraing,

Q Overhare?
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" Q You have been with him freQuently between
last Wednesday and today?
A Yes eir.
QYéauwent t0 Marshall Field'es and you had ydu
lunch and you went out to Lincoln Park?
A Yes sir,
@ And studied birds?
A ,e8 8ir,
Q Did you have anything to drink?
A Yes sir,.
Q what did you have? '
A Had a 1ittle over a pint of gin aﬂd éﬁgﬁt
half a pint of Schtch,
Q Hou had the gin and he had the Scotoh?
A yes sir,
Q When you left’there whit was the condition
of Loeb and yourself when youleftthe park?
A T should say we might have been a little
bit happy, neither of us Was drunk,
Q He wasn't sober enough to go home to dinner?
A No, that was on acoount of his breathe,

Q And you had supper where?
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*A At the Cocoanut Grove.‘

Q After that what did youdo?

A After that we went for a drive in my
machine.

Q Vhere did you drive?

A Dreve up and down 63rd Street several times,

Q What was the purpose &fyour driving?

A Driving to find a couple of girls with
nothing to do.

e Q@ And you found them?

A Yes air.

Q@ Then what happened?

A Then we drove down Garfield Boulevard almost
to Western Avenue, and back to Jaocks on Park,
parked the car just north ani east of the
wooded island.

Q Did you et out of the car?

A1 had made a telephone call.

Q@ You had made a telephone call?

A Yes, home.

QTelephoning your folka?

A ges sir,

Q Then what heappened?
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"A Then we sat around in the car, hga a few
drinks, and occuldn't come to an agreement with
the girls, so we asked them to leave arnd went
to go home.

¢ In other words the girls -«

A Would not come across,

Q And they wal ked home ?

A That 18 right, yes,

Q@ How old vere the girle?

Al gueee betiween 19 and 323,

Q Did you take Dick home, or Blok take you?

A Ve went first to my housse and there I‘
called for my Aunt and Uncle and laft Dick
at my hone.,

Q What time did you get home?

A T guess it was about a Quarter of eleven,
ten minutes of eleven possibly, sat around and
' tslked with Richard and my father. Ny father
Q vent to bed and Richard and I played cérds

until one or one fifteen.
Q Then you took him homes

A Then I took him home in my car, put my
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ficar in the garage and then vent to ke d.

Q Your father went to bed at xaxm® what time?

A One thirty or twelve,

MR, SMITH: What is the telephone number of
the Franks home?

A Drexel 8938,

Q When you met these girls what time was it?

A A quarter of nine or nine o'clock.,

Q How long did you runaround with them
before you went to wooded island?

A Half an hour.

Q It wasabout vhat time?

A Nine thirty or a quarter of ten when w"é" '
got to the wooded lslang,

Q And prior to going to thewoded island
you made a telephone call, what time was that
about ? '

A A quarter of ten.

Q From where did you make the telephone
call?

A The cornerof 63rd street and Stony Island
Avenue,

Q what is there?
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"A A drug storse,

Q Wbich corner?

A Southwest,

Q And whom did you call?

A My home and my aunt answered.
Q what did you say to0 her?

A I toldher that I would be delayed, wouldn't
bs uble to get there right awgy, I would be
home in about three-quarters of an hour.

Q Wh# did she Bay?

A She g%}% ‘very welll,

Q What aunt is that? |

A MNrs. Schvwab.

Q Was your brother 2t home?
A Yo sir,
Q has yowr Dad at home?

A Yeeesir,

Q You didn'% speak to any other one of your

family? |

A No eir. '
Q@ 7Your acquaintanceship with the Franke has

been to what extent}
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®A Rone.

Q" Did you know Mr. Franke?

A No sir,

Q Did you know Mre, Franks?

A Fo sir.

Q Did you know eithqron\’e of the boys pe;sqpa}y?

A No sir,

¢ Have you ever visited their home?

A No sir,

Q Have you ever called their home on the tele-
phone?

ATl don't telieve so, ‘I may Eigethree years
ago called Mrs, Franks to sc2e Whether she wanted
her son to join our bird classes, I am not sure,

Q What is your recollection as to that?

A I remember calling a Franks who had a son}
but I am sure I don't remember if it was these.
iZ it wae they said they didn't care to have
their son take lessons,

Q After you made your telephons call you went

around with thegirls?
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"Q Did you ever visit the Franks home at ally

A No sir, not untkl thie afternoon, |

@ Did you vieit it this afterhoon?

A yes sir,

Q What was the occagion?

A To call for Mr. Et telson.

Q You went there to call for Mr. Ettelson?

A Yes sir,

Q You were calling for Mr, Ettelson on the
telephone at the Franks home, 40 you remember
that ?

A Who was?

Q. The Question came up to call up Mr. Ettel~-
son on the telephone?

A yes,

Q And svmebody asked what number Franks
home was, what telephone number, and you immedi-
ately called the number?

A No sir, because I wasn'4 in the room at
the time. My brother had called several times
while I was looking for my glassee in the other

room,and I had received the busy signal, and
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" mbefore signalling the chief operator to try and
work in on the connection we tried to make,
I was there at that time with my brother,
Q This was downtown?
A ves sir,

Q You were going to call Mr. Ettelson on the
phone, the queztion was what the number was, what
number the Franke telephone number was and you
gave the number?

A yes Blir,
Q You gave it right out of yourhead without
referring to anything?

A yes sir,

Q You were not intoxicated?

A No eir.

Q A week ago Wednesday night?

A No sir.

Q The night that the Franks Boy disappeared?

A No sir.
Q Was your friend Richard Loeb intoxicated?
A You might call it that, yes sir.

Q was he intoxicated at nine o'olock?
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"A Yes sir,
Q W%as he at half past nine, ten, half past
ten?
4 Yes,
Q Vhy wasn't he at half past ten?
A Give him time for eobering up, wes the reason
for staying out.
Q The teason for staying out was so his breathe
wouldn't smell?
A He didn't want to go home at tenthirty even
on account of his breathe but I waited to take him
%0 my home to sobery up so as to be presentable,
Q You drank a half pint of gin and a half pint
of scoton?
Ayes agir.
Q what time did you get up Thursday morning?
A Reven fifteen,.
Q Seven fifteen?
A Yes s®ir,
Q And where did you go?
A To sochool,

Q How long did you stay in 8chool thal day?
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‘Q In the morning?
A Yes sir,
Q And then where did you go?
A I think I went down to Dick Loeb's, but came
around to my house.
Q Don't you know?
A1 do not.
QThis was the same morning you met Mr. Mitohell?
ATl met him that afternoon,
Q Did you have lunch at your home?
A No sir.
Q ¥heredid youhave lunch? L/
A Down at the Cooper~Carlton, |
Q@ Who was with you?
A Richard Loeb and Richard Rubel,
Q What?
—— A Richard Loeb and Richard Rubel, _
Q Does Rubel board there?
A No,
Q why didn't you have your lunoh at home that day?
A Because we had this arrangement 3£a$ing one
day each weskat the various places, and Rubel not

living at home, but at some hotel, we lknew we
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a table d'hote dinner.
Q After you had your lunch where did you go?
A VWent home,
Q wWhat time was that?
A Half past one or t wo,.
Q Did you have any more classes after that?
A No sir,
Q Did you have any olasses in school VWedneeday?
A Yes,
Q What time is your first oclases?
A Eight o'clock,
Q Wwhat time did you get through there?
A Eleven o'clock,
Q And your studies are so eituated over there that
you can go homs with other boya?
- A ves eir,
Q After you got out of your olass you mex go
home?
A Some times,
Q Did you have any homework to do in any of your
classges?

A Supposed to, but didn't do much.
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"Q Thufsday afté;nooh what time did yod leave
yow home?
A 1 should judge about four or four fifteen,
Q Where did you go to?
A Over to Dick's, Dick Loeb's.
Q Where does he live?
-4 5017 Ellis,
Q ¥kax Was that tHe occasion that you met Proe
fessor Mitchell?
A It was later in the afternoon,
Q About what +ime? N
A Avout foury fifteen,
Q And where was he when you met him?
AHe was on the east side of Ellis Avenue which is
North 47th Street,
~ QQ what was he doing? o
A He had apparently just come from the school.
Q Whibhkay was he going?
A He was going north.
Q Wae he north of 47th?

A He was south of 47th,
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THE COURT: We will have the usual recess

for ten minutes.

Whereupon a short recess was here taken g

by the court and councel.
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1 ' (Wnersupon pursuant to a short recess heretofore
Harvey

rels taken the following prooeedings were had.)
Shyder

11:15 A MR, SBARBARO:

7-39=31

"0 Going towards 47th?

"4 Yes,

"Q Was he walking?

"A Yes, sir,

"Q Walking away from the sochool was he?

"A Yes, sir.

'? He did not have this automobile?

"A No, sir,

"o What did he say at the time?

"A I spoke out, salqb’ﬂow do you do, Mr,
Mitchell, I have not seen you for along time?
How are you',

") Up to that time, that was about 5:15 you
had not known that the Franks boy was gone?

A No, sir,

"0 Did you read the morning paper Thursday?

"A Probably glanced through 1it.

'R ?9 you know whether you did or not?

"A What was the last question?
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3 *Q Do you know wh -ther you saw the paper that

1

morning or not?
"A I think I did.
*Q You didn't sse anything in the paper relative
to the Franks' boys digappearance?
*A I did not look through very olosely tut I
did not notice anything.
"o If it was on the front page you would have
noticed 1t?
"p Probably, depending how large & print it got.
"0 Nobody in your household mentioned about the
Franks! boye having disappeared Thirday morning?
"A No, sir,
"Q Did you have br-akfest at home?
"A TYes,
"o Did your folks know the Franks?
¥A They know where they are,
*"Q And your friend Loeb did not mention that
faot to you all day?
*A No, sir,
"Q Mr, Rubel didn't mention that faoct t o you
vhen you were at the Cooper Carlton?
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QQ You are sure about that,

®A Positive,

"0 You passed by the Harva.d School several
timee that day?

"A I wanixpreiiyx2ivass éhky remember once,

"Q VWhen you passed by the Harvard School
Thursday afternoon et that time you did not know
the boy had disappecared?

*A No, sir,

Q9 What did you see at the Harvard School,
anything to attraot your attention?

*A Nothing.

"Q HNo police officerss

"A Ho,sir.

®"Q FNothing unusual about the Harvard School
around five o'clook?

*A No, sir,

"MR, CROWE: Are you a member of any established
Church?

*A No,sir, .

»

*Q What if any religious belief do you entertain?
s HNone.
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. %Q What is your idea of the existsnoe of a God,
*A I do not bslieve there 1s a Cod.
"Q If you die what begomas of you?
A Your ashes return to ashes and dust to dust,
"Q 1Is there any difference between my death and
the death of a dog?
%2 Ho, nair,
"é In other wordes, when I die I am dead all over,
A Naturally dead.
*Q There is no hereafier or any hope of retumn
oT any reward or punishment,
"A That is my belief,
"Q Por how long a time have you entertalned that
belief?
"A Some geven or 8ight years.
"o You began to arrive at that oconolusion hetween
vhat ages?
*2 I should say around eleven.
"o And you have given some thought and study %o
that matter?
"A Yes,
"3 And you are what is aar)y termed az an
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A Yog, sir.

"Q It is your belief, is it not, and you
expressed to me some time ago that a God was
created by the head of a tribe that was not
poverful enough to punish all the orime and
misdoings of his people, and he wanted them to
believe that if anybody dissbeyeddhin afier they
died somebody with a longer bsard or bigger sword
or bigger ¢lub would getthem afterwards,

*A That is & very plausible theory so far as I
know,

"Q You expressed it somewhat beticr than I do,
but subatantially in thatway?

"A That is what my opinion but of course that
is only a theory.

*Q@ The only way you oan demonetrate that Christ
8xists is to dle?

YA Yes, sir.

¥R, SMITH: Diédyou make any telsphone’calls
Thuredsy?
"A I d?n't renember any. I may have though, yes

I probably did.
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‘#q VWhat?
"4 I did, yes.
"Q What time?

"A After I got home.
"Q What time was that?
"A 8ix of six fifteen, posdibly before that.
'osaib¥y a quarter to six,
"Q Did you ocall from homs?
"A Yes, sir,
"Q Where 41d you ocall?
¥A Called some friends of mine,
"Q Who were they?
"4 A young lady friend,
*Q What 1s her name?
"A Is it necessary to have that?
" Q Yes,
¥R, ETTELSON: What about that?
A I have nothing to say.
*A May I ask you as a friend, do I have to
answer the lady's name?
"MR, ETTELSON: I would say answer the question

the State's Attorney asks Yyou,
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Miss Susen Luris.
Where doee she live?
833 Margate T errmaes,
On the north side?
Yes, six,
What 1s her fadker’s nane?
Jagob Luris,
in
Is he the lumber dDusinesa?

Ho, sir.

You s&y you had boen in some dzug stors

Thurasday afternoon?

A
"q
"A
"Q
7

Imnediately after sseing Mr, Hitohell,
¥hat time was that?

I should say about five fifteen,

Where ig¢ Bignold's drug store loocatsd?

It 4s not Bignold's drug store, it is Lowis

BErothere.

"Q
"A
"Q
7!

Vhere ig thatloocated now?
Bouthwest corner of 47th and Ellis.

What time did yougo in there?

Shoxtly after meeting Mr, Mitchell about five

fifteen, I should judge,

®Q Where were you ooming from when you met Xr,

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 812 1924



813

"A‘ From the Nash Company,

*Q Nash Automobile Company?

*A Yes, sir,

"Q Where was that located?

¥4 23000 South Michigan,

*Q Were you in your car?

*A Yeos, sir,

#Q Were you on Fllis Avenue?

®A What do you mean?

"Q Vhen you met Mr, Hitchell?

"o Yes,

¥Q Where do you live?

"A 4754 Greenvood.

*0 1Is Greenwood east or west of Ellis?

"A Fast,

*Q Am I mistaken 1f I understood you to say you
vere on your way over tc your friend's house when
you met Mr, Mitchell?

*A We had intended to get a soda when I saw Mr,
Mi tchell,

"o Who?

- %A Richard Loeb and myself,
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- "Q Was Riohard Loeb with you when you went to
the Nash people?

"A Yes,

"Q About what time had you gone to the Nash
people?

"p Quarter of five,

"n You had gone at a quarter of five?

*A You moean I arrived ther?

"2 What time did you leave home to go there?

®"A As I say, I loft my howmo about four or & quar-
ter after snd went over to Dickls,

"d With your car?

8y With my car, Then I tcok him down on his
errand to the Nash company.

"~ It was his errand?

kA 1t was his errand,

"0 Where does Diok Loob live?

"A 6017 Ellis,

"0 You passed the Harvard School then?

"A Yes, air,

my driveway on Greenwood to 48th,
"Q How did you got there?

went over 48th to Ellis, and seéup on Ellis to
*A I went %o '
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Dick's house, After oalling for him, went up
to the bouAevard, down the Drexc{ Boulevard
System,

"Q Do you know whether or not Loeb knew the
Franks?

"A I am not sures I think he d&id,know +this boy
because MT, Franks thls afternoon sald he had gone
over to Loebt's tennls court to look for the boy
after he noticed his disappsarance,

%A Loeb'a have a tennis oourt don't they,

”a Loeb's have a tennis court,

"~ And Robert played tennls?

"p I think =0,

"0 His father said so didn't he?

"A Yes, sir,

"Q They live ln the same bloock?

"A Yes,sir.

"Q You went to 20th and Michigan Avenus to ‘the
Nash people?

"A TYes, sir,

"Q What time did you arrive there?

A About a quarter of five,
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Quarter of yive?

Yes,.

And who did you see theret?

I did not go in,

Where did you park your oar?

On Ulchigan Avenue right outslde of the plaoce.

How long was Loeb in there before he came

Four or five minutes,

Does he own a Nagh car?

?es. eir,

What did ghe go thers for 4if you know?
Yos, sir.

What for?

Hies car was wrecked seven or eight weeks ago

and they had promised 1t at that time or he wanted

€0 go down to find out when it would be out,

"Q
J )
" Q
"A

"Q

That is the reason you went down there?
Yes,

Then you oame back down Miohigan to 47th?
No,

How did you como down?
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13 'A‘ Michigan to 33rd, 33rd éwer to Calumet,
Calumet to 3Bth, 35th to Grand, Grend to
39th or Oskwood Boulevard, Oakwo d to Drexel,
Drexel to 45th, 45th to Ellis, and Ellis to
47th.
"3  Drexel to where?
"4 45¢th,
* & And down Ellis to 47th?
"A Yes,elir,
4Q) Where did you stop your oar?
"A On the east side of the street, El1is Avenue,
just south of 47th Street,
Br On the east side of the street?
"A Yes,sir,
"Q Eellis Avenue 1s just south of 47th7
"A TYes,sir,
"Q It was there that Professor Mitchell weas
coming along?
"A Yes,sir.
"0 You then pointed on $he left side of the
street?

"y Yaa,sir.
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14 from the drug store where you wanted to go in?

*A Yes, sir,

"Q Lowis drug store was on the southweat corner
of 43%#4 and Ellis?

YA Yes,sir,

*Q Was 58 Lowis' drug store that you went in to?

"A Yes, mir.

®Q Who was in thers when you wen$ in?

"A Girle, a lot of psople, and a fow more students
of Harvard School,

"0 Had you been in the drug store before?

"A Yes, sir,

"Q How many times?

A Numberous times,

"Q Do you know the Lowist?

"A Yas,

"Q Do you know them?

%A I know them well, I have been in a number
of times to say how do you do to them,

"d But you knew the people to say how do you do
t0 the Lowis!?

A Yes, sir,

"q In fast they Ware in the drug store?
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15 "A I did not see Mr. Lowis; it%.Was the soda
alerk whom we call Al,
"Q How long befoxre that time did you see Mr,
Lawis there, the last time?
"A Several weeks or mbnths paat,
"Q ﬁhat was 1t7
"A I don't know the last time I got a soda
there posesibly.
*Q How long age wag that?
"A T ocan't remember.
Q) Your memory is preity good on everything
else, don't you remember that?
"A VWell, I oan guess four weeks, four or five
weeks,
"o What is your best guess?
"A Four or five weeks,
#Q Will you say it was four or five months?
4 No, I don't think so.
QY As a matter of fact Lowis! owned that drué
s tore for a long long time haven't they?
*A I don't know,

"Q What?
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18 "A I thought they did. Bignolds used to own
its, I think they sold it to Lowis',

"Q You telephoned from that drug store yesterday,
didn't you?

“A No,sir,

*Q You are smure of 1it?

"A Positive,

“Q Who are gsome of the Hervard students that
were in there when you were therae?

YA I don't know,

"9 Did you recognize any of them?

YA No, sir,

"Q Why did you stop on the left side of the
streat?

"A DBeocauae there vas a fire hydrant on the right
side of the street and two cars beyond the hydrant
parked so that I oould not have gotten in on the
right side of the atreet without going south of
the alley which is south of the drug store.

"Q What was that?

"A There was & fire hydrant on the right side

of the street and two cars parked by the hydrant
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17 80 I oould not have gotten in on the right side
of the street without going south of the alley
whigh is south of the drug store,

"Q Is there an alley south of the drug store?

"A Yes,

*Q The drug store is sbout & hundred and twenty
five feet east, isn't it, on Ellis Avenue?

"A I guess 80.

"Q 8o that space of 185 feet wad taken up by

two auvtomobiles that was parked there?

"A The spage up to the fire hydrant I should
Judge twenty five fest from the corner wasuld
impede the sidewalk Lf you parked there, There
wag a respeotive fifteon feset I imagine allowed
for the fire hydrant,., The cars were not parked
there olose together,

"0 That fire hydrant is on Ellis Avenue?

"y Yes, sir,

"The Courts As you drive how long does it take
to drive from your house or Bignolds house to this
drain?

®y About thirty five minutes.
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18 "Q Were you driving along on Vednesday in
your our along Ellls Avenue between 47th and
49th in the afternoon?
"A No,
*¥r. Crowe: Have you any niokname?
"A Yes,slr,
"Q What is your nickname?
"A I have two Babe and Flea,
"Q How did you get the Babe?
"As That is from the family.,
Q@ Who did you get the Flea from?
"A A whole bunch of fellows at my sohool gave
a loock of nicknames, We tried to get peculiar ones
and possibly on gocount of my small sigze, I waso
exklédr than than I am now, and possibly because
I was very interested in inseots.
*Q Does Dick Loeb operate & typewriter?
*A I think so,
"MZ, Smith: You went up and down 83rd Street
on Wednesday night?
"A Yes,

*Q Were you on €3rd Street on Thursday?
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1e "A Wag I on 63rd Street on Thﬁrsday?

I was not,

*§@ Were you there on Friday?

"A I don't bellieve g0,

*Mr, Crowe: Have you over used any narcotice?

"As No, sir,

"Q Of any kind in any shape?

"A No, sir, I don't believe I ever have had any
administered to me.

B You have ether at your house. What is that
for?

"aA I did use ether and chloroform for killing
birds, large birdse.

"4 And arsenioc ?

“"A Arsenioc for killing birde,

"Q And whatever drug you have got out there
are used for that purpose?

"A Yes, six.

#Q What is the ocolor of your car?

A Red,

*"Q And it has got a top?

#A Yes, round top,
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*Q It ies a summer ocar?

"A TYes,

"9 You have side ourtains up in this weather?

"y In the back, not in the front,

»q Who is Sappho?

"A A great Greek writer of old, Homo=sexualist,

"Q By homo=-sexualist, you mean a pervert?

*A Yes,sir,

"Q What have you read about Adr?

"y Merely that she was & famous poetess, homo-
sexualist,

®Q That is some book on séx perversion? Who
was the author of that?

"A Havelook Ellis,

"Q And Oscar Wilde was a pervert?

"A Yes, wmir,

"Q And he wrote some number of worke?

"A Yes, air.

“Q You read them?

*A Read some of them.

"Q gnd they are supposed to deal with perverts?

*A No, sir,
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21 "Q What is Dorjan Oray?®
"A Dorian Gray is a novel by Osoar Wilde deal-
ing with the painfing of & picture by an artist
of o man for whom he had a very deep refard. In

the 1ight of what later ocame out about Oscar

Wilde i% has often been sald that hadwdperual
- istie

t endencies
« The zubject of the story thie young

van 1s turned to & oynio by a frisend of hig - well,
Henry somebody = and he nakes a wish that he shall
never grow ofid in appearance, tat that the pioture
Which is a very wonderf{il likenesg of him shall
show the signe of age, but whose faoe shall retain
itc youths, Hia wish in some peculiar way oomes
true and the first time he sine in regard fo a woman
it appears on the face of the pioture and he

grows 3o lrritated at the ploture he kdkes it up-
gtairs in the attic. Later he grows £o bitter
againet the painter of the pioture as each ain he
oommite shows on the ploture, which represents

conscience, and of course iia% he kills the painter

later, Well, there are a great many sdventures,
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31-1/3 and the brother of this girl, who he mistreated
o trys 0 kill him, but he gets away with it, because
he appears to be so much younger than he is. He,
the brother camnot believe this is the man, and
finally he is deprived of a $inger and he takos
the dagger mmd he stabs the old painting.
Next morning the servant finds the body is
apparently Dorian Gray, but a very muchk older face
than when last seen, with a knife in the shért

front , and a very good pioture of the old nman,
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Did you ever read Dr, Jekyll and ¥r, Hyde?
No.
Did you sver rcad any of Stevenson's worke?
Yas.

What did you read of Stevenson's works,

Treasure Island?

" A
"Q
"4
"Q
"A

Treagure Islend, yes I read Treasure Island,
And Kidnapped?

Yes,

What is that Kidnapped or Kidnappsr?

Yes, Kidnepped, I believe I did read that

in school,

"Q
g
"Q

"A

That is Robert Stovensoﬁ?
Yes.
That is this book?

Yes,

*Q Did you ever read the Ransom of the Red

Chief by O Henry?

J)
"Q
"A

Yes.

Who is David H. Stevgnl?

I have no idea.

#Q Did you sver see that letter before?

Hei nOnli ne --

2 1llinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 827 1924



- 826
33 "A No, sir,
®Q Did you read the Ransom of the Red Chief?
"A Yes, sir,
*Q You have been very friendly with Rubel?
"A Yes,sir,
"Q What is his first name?
" A Riochard,
"Q And you have been very friendly with Dick
Loeb?
"A Yes, sir,
"Q Have you ever had any trouble with Dick Loeb
'or Rubel recently?
"4 No,
'*Q Ever had any misunderstanding?
"A A little onoe, yes,
1Q When?
*A Weoll, I remember about last September ox
Ootober we had a 1little misunderstanding,
*Q What was that about?
"y VWell, it was & date for last New Year's
Eve,

*Q Thia was in Ootober you eay?
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A Yeas, we had the date last spring, probably

in April or May.
"Q For the following January?
"A The following January, lst,
"Q VWhat was the misunderstanding in October?

A Ve had a date to go out together and
my sidé of the siory ie hbks, somsthing better

ocam® along and he went with the otherparties and
left me in the lurch. not

"Q Ootober; that was the first of January?

“A That is true, but most people I guess make
dates for a year in advance for New Year's Eva,

*Q Who told you in Ootober that he was going

to change the plans?

"A He did.
"q Dick?
"A Yeg,

Isn't it Diok Rubel you are talking about 1

"§ VWoll, I don't know? A Yes, Diock Rubsel.
*Q What misunderstanding, what words did you

have?
"A Do you,ﬁant the entire ciroumestance?

"Q Yes,
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*A Of oourse, I should give you nmy side of
the story naturallys Of couras Diock Loeb and
Diok Rubel and I have been protiy clcse friends
for some time; we have palled around, the three
of us quite o bit, Last summer Dick Rubel was
not in town, Wo made this date., We had not
decided definitely just what we would do, whether
we would go to the Drake or something like that,
or whether we would go to a oaberet, but anyhow,
we knew we were going to be together , and this
summer Dick Rubel went to Dick loeb's home and Dick
Loeb at that time was friendly with a young lady
who was quite young, and her best friend was alego
about her ag9, and Dick Losb's girl's mother did
not want to let her go out on New Year's Eve
partioularly alone with one couple. She would much
prefer to have two, and they thought they would go
out together with the two girls., They thought they
could put it over on me and let it go at that.
I did not like § ¢t very much because I did not think
it was a wé®y nice thing to do, and I had some worde
with both Dick Rubel and Dick Loeb about 4%, dut
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Did you write a letter to elther one of

them about it?

nA

“Q

Yes, I wrote Dick Loeb a letter,

And the trouble originally was with Loeb

and not Leopold?

A The trouble originally was with Rubel but I knew
it wus Loeb that was prompting hih to change his mind,

"Q

Did you ever commit any acts of perversion

on elther one of thesse boys?

nA
"
"A
nq

"A

"Q
"
"Q
"A
"Q
“A
Loeb,

"Q

No, sir,

Or they on you?

No, sir.

You are positive of that?

I an pogitive of that.

There wusn't any rumor around that you had?
Yea, sir.

Is that your handwriting?

Yegs pir.

When did you write that?

I think that 1s the letter which got to Dick
I don't know just what dats,

When?

"A Wait a minute, I can remember the date.It
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370 wag in the month of Ootober.
MR, SBARBARO: This reads as follows.
MR, BACHRACH: Do you want to read that all in there?
That letter is in evidence.

MR, SBARBARO: I will read it. (Reading the letter)

"Dear Dick: In view of our former relations
I take it for granted that it is nmnecesmsary to
meke any exouse for writing you at this time, and
#t11)1 I am going to state my reasond for so doing,
As this may turn out to be a long letter and I do
not want to ocause you the inconvenience of reading
it to find out what it contains if you are not
1Ptereatod in the subjeoct dealt with,"
"Q Do you remember that?
"A Yea,
iFirst I am enclosing the dooument which I
mentioned to you today."®
¥Q What was that deé t?
;k I will bs darned if I remember, probably Dick
might, |
"And which I will explain later. Seoond,

I am going to tell you of a new fact which has
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comBAup sinoce our discuseion, and whioh I am going
to put in writing what my attitude toward our present
relation is with a view of avoliding further possible
misunderstandings, and in the hope the =~

*A May I road it to you? Probably I can decipher
it. I probably ocan help you out.

*Q "And in the hops, which I must confesas is

" rather vain., Possibly we mey have mhunderstood
eaoch other and can yet olear this matter up,

Now, as to the first, I wanted you this
aftennoon and still I want you to feel that we are
oh an equal footing legally.

"Q What do you mean by legal?

"A Well, that was just sbout a month after I had
entered the high school and I was pretty full up to
the nook with torts and therefore I —-

"AndIpurposely committed the game tort with
which you were gullty."

*Q What was that toxrt?

®A Well, I think in this discussion that ws had
had T was sitting in Dick's automobile out of sohool

and against my will he took me down to hig house in
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False lmprisonment,
"Q Did you commkt the same one?

"A I did purposely..

"Q That was all just a case of one fellow
driving along with the other fellow without his
consent?

®A I refused to let him out, yes.

"Q *The only difference being that in your oase

. faots
the sXfmxis would be harder fto prove than mine should
I deny them."

"Q How would it be easier to prove you drove him
out than he drove you out?

®"A The other way around. I did not drive him out
but locked him in my room,

"Q 'The enclosed document whioh Would usually
gecure you against ohanging my mind and aetiing
forth faots if the matter should come up as it would
prove to any court that they weretrue‘wers you
figuring ycu were going to have a lawsult about
this? s /

"A Ab;olutoly not, We were véry’fbrlnl. We had
had a misunderstanding and we were very formal about

it.

7
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"Upon your suggestion, I immediately phoned Digk
Rubel and speaking from a paper prepared hefore
hand to be sure of the exaot wording sald 'Dick
when we were together yeesterday did I tell you that
Diock Loeb had told him the things whioh I then
told you that in my opinion that I belleved them %o
be sol.

What were those?

"A The questions and the facts of how muoch
Dick Loeb refused to get Rubel to change his
date and they dried to deceive me about having
done it afterwards.

*Q I agked Dick twioe if he understood and on
the same story both times which I took down as
he spoke felt that he did understand and he replied
no«'

"A He did not tell me that, Dick told you the
things.

" ;ﬂe did not tell me that. Digk told me these
things. But said that they were in your opinion
true, He further denied telling you subsaquent
that I sald that they were gleaned from the

oonversation with you., I then told him that he was
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quite right and you never had told ms, I further
told him that thig was merely your suggestion of
how to settle any question of faot that he was in
any wise implloated thereby, that neither of us
would be angry with him at his zeply. I imply your
assent to thia, This, of course proves that you were
mistaken this afternoon on the question of my
having actually and techniocally broken econfidence,
And voioce my apology which I made contingent on
proving this matter.! What confidence had you
broken?

A Dick Loeb had told me something about
Dick Rubel some varying oonsequential thing, I ane
forgotten now, Itmight have heen almost anything,
Something deprecatory of Dick Rubel,

"Q "NHow, the third and most important queetion
when you cam® to my house this afternoon I expected
to break friendship with you, or attempt to kill
you unless you told me why you acted as you did
yesferday! What about that threat to kill him?

A That is commoncélloquialism, having &
sorap, trying to ki}& him,

"Q You are studfging law, you are pretty falily
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educated fellow and pretty bright minded boy, as
things go, aren't you?

"A Yes, I think so.
"Q 'I expeoted sither to break friendship with

you or to kill you unldss yom told me why you

aoted as you did yesterday, You did however tell

+me and henoe the question shifted to the faot

that I would act as bafore 1f you insisted in
thiaking me treacherous which would waiv:fDiok
Rubelts opinion went , as it did, with mine, or
any intention. Now, I apprehend tho here I am not
quite sure that you sald you did not think me
treacherous if anything was ever had, but that you
considered me in the wrong when you expeoted

euch & astatement from me, This statement I
unoonditionally refused to furnish until such

time as I am convinced of its truth. However,

the question of our relation I think must be in
your hands unless the both exceptions are mis~-
taken, inasmuch as you have satisfied me first on

the ons hand and then on the other requirement upon

whioh I agreed to refrain from sttempting to kill
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you.! Again there is a threat to kill.

"Hence I have no reason not to continue
to be on friendly terms with you and would not
under ordinary conditions continue as before
The only questlon then is with you. You demand
me to perform an aot namely to state that I acted
wrongly., This I refuse, Now, it is up to you to
inflict the penalty for this refusal, at your
dlisoretion to break felehdship, to infliot physiocal
punishment or anything else you like or on the
other hand to disregard the refusal and continuse
as before. The deolslon therefore must rest with
you. This &8s all of my opinion on the right or
wrong of the matter, Now comes the practical
question, I think that I would ordinarily be expected
to and in faot do expect to ocontinue in the attitude
towards you as before until I find out either by
direot words or by oconduot on your part which
way your decision has been formed, This I would
do, Now, the word of advioce. I do not wish to
infiuonoo your position elther way but I do want
to warn you that in case you you admit it advisable
to discontinue friendship that in both of ounr

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 838 1924



Hei nOnli ne --

834

1ntereefé‘extreme care must be used, Motifam
of falliqg out of cock suckers would be sure to be
popular;l

A Refers to that wvery perversion zoughly,

" Fan_m;g out of thieves, when thieves fall
out honest men get their dues?

"A Of ocours® it is still from that adags.

"Q *here had you heard the expression of falling
out of cock suckers?

i I haver have,

*Q 1Is there any significance in that?

A It was exeotly that refers to the rumor
vhich was spread by the two of us as I told you
in tﬁe summer of 1931 which was very prevalent
end as a remnlt of which Dick and I were very
careful when we were alone together for over a
year in that we were very seldom alons together
and when we were we took & ohaperon along.

*Q Falling out of cook suckers Would be sure
4o be popular whioh is patently undesirable and
which forms an irksome2-- you resmd it.,

"A Bndesirable and which forms aa irksome buj
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ungvoldable apparent bond tetween us. Therefore
it is in my humble opinion expedient, though our
breach need be no less real in form, yet to
observe the contentionalities such as salutation
on the street and a general appearange of st least
not unfriendly relations on all ocoasions when we
may be thrown together in publio, Now, Dick, I
am going to make a request to which I have no
right perhaps and yet which I dare to make rather
for auld lang syne, will you if not too inoconvenient
let me know your answer to the last count before

I leave tomorrow? This to whioh I have no right
would greatly help my peace of mind in the next

few days when it ie mos%t negessary to me, If you
will merely oall up my home before 13 ¥oon and
leave a message saying Dick says yes, if you wish
our relations to continue as before and Dick says
no if you do not. It isu:;oolsary to add thatyour
deoision will o{loourso have no effsot upon my
keoping to myself our confidenoé of the past

,and that I regret the whole affilr mora than I can

‘say, Hoping not to have caused you too auch
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muoh trouble in reading this, I am for the
present, as ever, Babe,

*Q You have got two statemsnts in thare that
F*e are falling to get, oven though you and he do
part anyway for appearance sake that he pretend to
be a friend of yours?

"A Otherwise there would have been a great dcal
of talk.

"Q Cook suckers falling out.

"A Yes.

"Q Don't you think that two youmg mem of your
Btanding and his standing had reference to a
mieunderstanding and & parting of the ways between
you, falling out of cook suckers, is gomewhat
strange?

"A That was in quotation marks, either actuslly
or-to be read as such, That is what I meant to say
would bs the opinion or the ta k, qgall talk of a
great many of our friends, It appears we eaoh
thought we ‘had & great nuzber of frisnde, and
one peraon whom We know wholfqikxeaaonn which wé

had $ried ﬁo figure out wers gﬁpﬂ‘gdly'nlltoious,
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towards both of us had spread such & rumor as

this and as I =ay we have tried to trace the mource
and the most logleal explanation for whioh I

can pogsibly find is that while it 38 Just

an sgreoable thing in sssociating among wy

friendse and it may have boen Zmmmrd uttered in

such o way in the presencs of a number of poopla
and in that way miginterpreted.

"Q If & man 0alls you a cock sucker what would
you do?

"A I would try my best to knoock his blonf off
under ordinary olroumnstances,

"Q The sume as i{ he would call you & son of s
biteh,

"A Yas, if I thcught he moant 1t.

*Q Then I have heard son of a bitch being used
ts a term of ondearment but I never heard a man call
another & ©o0k sucker, You use pretty good language,
you are o man of refinement, oducation, culture,
come of a very nioe family. The boys with whom ym
assoointe are sll we 1l bred boye aren't they?

¥A Rot in their oonversdtion, 1¢ doesn't lopﬁ to

\
|
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be & p&gt gf good Breeding nowadaye.

"Q I§ it o habit among you boys fo call each
‘other dock suckers]

"A Sure,

"Q Tﬁqy don't resent that?

"A Cortainly not. Hasn't an old friend ever ocome

" up to'you and slapped you on the back, and say, "How
are yog, you old son of & bitoh, or you old bastard
or something like that,

"Q I say I have heard of & fellow being called
a gon of a bitch in terms of endearment , the
fellow was only smiling when he called it to me,
ipere had been rumors that you were & cock sucker?

/\fA Yes, eir,

"Q Don't you think that that added faet would
caugse you to resent very sharply any fellow oalling
Jou a cook sucker?

By If I found it out, yes,

' "Q You knew that you had been charged with being

| a'opok sucker several years ago?

?A Yes,

;'Q So 4in the last two or three ysars you would
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reaent very sharply anybody calling you a cock
sucker?

"A  And supposing that rumor had been elroulated
among say two or three hundred of your intimate
friends or your intimate aoquaintanoces, It was a habit
and custom of socloty to use that term in another
application, What would be the effeot of flaring
up and tzying to knoock the diockens out of aman who
callis you that? J

" It is hard for me to put myself in a position
of having a fellow oirculate that rumor about me
for several ysars and then persiat in calling me
a eoock sucker?

A I haeven't seen a man eince but here is the
point to get, and I was talking about that and I
vas trying to do everything in my power to knook
hell out of this man,

"Oaptain Hughes: Q Do you ocarry a gun with you?

"A Ho, sir, I have od occasion,

"Q What for?

#A For protecotion, For instance 1% I take a long

37ip in my automobile in the countey I return late
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at night, I think that is a duty you owe &
girl,

qQ 1Is that what you bought it for?

%A No, my purpose was to have it in my house
for protection to take it on country trips.

*n Do you hnow as & matter of fact that that
letter was writteon very recently? That letterwsas
not written last Ootober?

"A It wao,

"Mr, Crowet Q Why didn't you tear that up?

®"A Beocause we had had soveral quits or words
and I asked to have dooumentary evidence as to what
I had sald, I sent a typowritten copy and I
left it in my desk on the third floor in the front
room 3 that lettor was writton, I was going away
on a $rip that I mads in Qotober, by gosh, early

Eaasaochusstts
in October down to Cambridge to deliver
a lsgture for the anthropological rociety,

*Q Do you know g man named Mr, Chidlaw?

*A No. Who iz he?

¥Q I don't know, I am asking you?

"A Yes, I am pretty sure I don't know his,

'Q What is Rubel's first name?
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Where does he live}

Madison Park Hotsl.

Do you know a fellow named Kumler?

No, sir.

Or a fellow named Henley, C., O, Henley?

That neme 1s very familiar, but I don't place
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41 MR, SBARBARO: That finishes all that atatement?
MR, CROWE: Mr, Allen did you take the confession of
Leopold, or was it Sheeder?
Yes, sir, I took the confession,
All right, now have you got your notes?

Yes, sir,

A
Q
A
Q On that oconfession?
A Yes, sir,
% Whon was that statement taken?
A That statement was taken -= I have it right here. That
was takeén on Saturday, May 31st, at four twenty A M IN
the presence of Mr, Joseph E, Savage, Assistant Statels
Attorney, Chief Hughes, Chief of the Detective Bureau,

Q Now after having taken the statement of Leopold you
and Leopold came into my room where Loeb was?

A Yes, sir.

-

Q@ Now, when §ou got in vwhat timé in the morning wes
that ?

A Idon't find that in the book., I hon't know just
exsotly what time that wass I have not the time noted.
When we went in that room it was around --

Q TWell, half past four in the morning?
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43 to take the statement of Leopold,
Q Now, who was present in my room when you and Leop&ld
came in, beside Loeb?
A There wag =-
Q Read the names of everybody. B}
‘A Robert E, Orowe, State's Attorney, Mr, John Sbarbaro,
Assistant State's Attorney, Richard Loeb, Nathan Leopold,
Jr., Captaln Schumacher of the Police Department,
Assistant State's Attorney Joseph E, Savags, Sergeant
James Gortland, Sergeant Johnson, Sergeant King, Robert
E, MoMillan, Assistant State's Attorney, George Moxley,
William R, Swisler, Chief Hughes, Senator Ettelson,
and Sergeant Lang of the pollce department.
Q Cuneo., Wasn't F, A, Sheeder there?
A Yes, sir, Mr, F, A. Sheeder,
Q F. A, Sheeder is the other shorthand reporter?
A Yes,slr,
Q Ne is the man who had taken LOebSaRAx confession while
you were taking Leopold's?

Q@ And after you had seoured the confesslion of Leopold

you read that oconfesaion to Lepold and Leoeb in the presence
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43 of these pexgong you have named?

A Yeg, sir,

Q And Sheeder, the other court reporter reported what
wag going on at the time?

A Yess, sir,

Q Now, did you transoribe that?

A Yes.sir,

Q I will show you this gtatement and ask you whether
this is a transoript of the noﬁas that you got there?

A Yos, sir, it is=s.

Q And 1s this a gorrect --

A Yesg,

Q == transoript?

A Yeos, air.

Q Would you rather have the original notes or the
transoript read?

MR, DARROW: The transoript ie all right,.

MR, CROWE: There being no objection from the defendants
personally or counsel --

MR, BACHRACH: Can it be considered read?

MR, CROWE: No I would rather have it read,
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THE WITNESS: (Reading) Statement taken in the
office of the State's Attornay of Cook County ~-
IR, CROWE: Now, if you come to o paseage direct my
atsontion to 1it,

MR, ALLEN: Yee, sir.

THE COURT: Tho tranooript of the oonfessions or the
etatsments of the defondants that was just read are
read for the purnpose of the reoord. The Court did not

honr but was informed 14 contalned matter unfit for

publication, Of courne it could serve no good purpoce
to be rerd nloud, buf the Court will zoquire a copy of
1% and will loo' over it when he is sumnming up the
evidonoe in this caso,
HR, CROWE: I will give you those copien some time today,
your Honor.
Go mhead.
MR, ALLEX (Reporter):
Pregentt Btate's Attorney, Robort E, Cxwe,
Asslstant State's Attornoy"

You n't want those road?
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45 MR. CROWE: ¥ell, read the namas, 1t will only ¥nke a mirute,

THE TITVESS: (Read)ng)

Jouseph Pa Savuago,
John Shurbaro,
Robert E. HoMillon,
Lawrenae A, Cunoo,
Sermuel A, Ettolson,
Chief < f Deteotives, Michuwel Hughes,
Captelin Milllam Gohumacher,
Jewas Gortlond,
Sexgount Johnaon,
Sergoant Lang,
#11iiam R, Swieler,
Geovge Hoxley,
Richard Loeb,
Nathan Loopold, Jr.
and

F. A. Shesdor, thorthand Reportor.

" ABR, OAVAGE: 4§ #bat is your nawme?
74 Huthon F. Leopold, Jre

*q  And your wddrona?

‘s 4754 Greomuood Avenue,

*0  And your buaincose?
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-1 A Ssuaent,
e Student at whut aschool?
"y Univernity of Chicago Law Sohool,
MR, CROVE: Just » momont, You are the purson who is reading,
are you?
A Yo, sir.
& I moan in ny offico?
A Yonr, sir.
Q@ And this ig tho stetomon®t that youw had just taken of
Leopold where he nuo interrogated by Bavago?
A Yeu, alr,.
MR. CROWE: All right.
THE TITRESSS:
0 8tudent at what anhool?
®"A University of Chicago Law School.
"0 And you have sitended the University of
Chicago Law Scghool for how long?
"A For nine months.
" Prior to that time what school did you
attond?
"A Univ-rsity of Chicago.

"o And for how long during that perlod?
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47 "4 Tor a year,
°y  And prior to that?

"A Universnity of Michigan Tor » yoar, prior
to thut Univeruity of Chleage for a year; prier
to that Horvard Sohool for five yoars; prior to
thaut Douglng Sohool for four yoars, and prior to
thet the Spode Sohool for two yours,

*Q How old ere you Nathun?

"4 Ninstean,

"0 TWhot ie the dato of your birth?

oA Novorber lotn, 1804,

*Q Have you any brothars, Hathnné

®A I havo two brothers,

" What arc thoir nemes?

" A Foreman and Sumuel Leopold,

Q0 And vou havo one other -~

A I have a ocousin who 1ives with us, Adolph

[}
}

Ballenbexgor. . ;
"G Your father's name?

A HNathan F, Loopold.
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48 Q9 Vhat ie his businosa?

14 Morris Popoer ¥ille,

%% Nowx, Nsthan, I juast want you to go on in your
ovn vwuy and tell us the atory from the beginning,
tell us the whole things

"A When we planned a gonerad thing of this
sort wos o8 long ago as laat November I guass
st least and we startod on the process of how
to geot the money which was smuch the most
difficult problem, We had oh peversl dozen
difforent plans, all of which were not eo
good for one reason or other. Finally we
hit upon the plan of having money thrown from
a8 moving train, after the train had pacsed a
given lendmark. 7Tho landmark we finally ochose
wags the fauotory of the Champlion Manufsoturing
Company at 74th Street and ths I C Rallroad
traoks. The noxt problem wa:r the system of
notifioation to the father. We originally
planned a number of releys in other woxrda the
man was to regeiva a special delivery letter
telling him his son had been kidnapped and

was baing held for ransom, then to seoure
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ton thousand dollares in donominations as follows:
Eight thousand dollara in fifty dollar bills

and two thousand dollara in twenty dodl ar bilils.
He was to gotold unmarked bills whoge numbors
vore not in sequence, and these he was to place
in o olgaur box , seouroly tied, wrapped in white
papar, the ends were to bo seanlod vwith sealing
wax and the reason for thio vwee to glve him

tho itmprosoion that tho tox would bLe deliveren
Personally to a messenger of the resl sxecutives
of the plan. He wag then to recoive a phone

cull at about cne or two ofcleck in the afternoon
instruoting him to proceed to a Help Kecp the
City Clean box whos~ location wae to be definitely
given. Thon he wam to find another note which would
instruot him to proceed to a drug store which
had a public phonoe boocths He was to be calloed

at this phone hooth, the drug store being very
near the I 0 track, and given only juat enough
time %o rush out buy a ticket and board o
through train without allowing him enough time

to instruot detoestives or police as to where he

was going., In the 4rain he was to progsed to the
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roay oar, leook in the box left for telegraph

blonka for another letter, this lettor instriuected
him to go to the reay platform of the cer, face
eant and look for tho first large rod btrake
fuotory adjacent to the trnoks which hud a block
Watier tower bearing o white insoription Chomplon.
e wus to count two or three after that and
then throw the box as iar to tha east as he
could. The next problom wis getting the viotim
to kill, This wins left undeoided until the day
we declded to piok the most 1ikely looking
subject thnt cama our way. The particular ocane
happend to be Roher t Frunka, Richard wos
aoquaintod with Robert and sskod him to come
over for our car for & ncment, This, ossufred
near 49th and Ellie Avonue. Robert cans over
to the oor was introdugoed to me and Richaidd
asked him i1f he did not wunt to help him,

"Q Richard who?

¥ A Richard Loeh, He replisd no, but Richard
s0id, well oome in o minute, I want to ask you
about o cortain tonnis racket, Aftor he had

gotten in and I stapped on the gas, proocesded
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3

gouth on Ellis Avenus to 50th Street
in tho meantime Riohurd aoked Robert if he
minded 1f we took him around the blook, to
which Robert oald, no. As goon ap we turned
the cornor Richard placed his one hand over
Robort's mouth to atifle his outory, with
his right beating him on the hoad asveral times
with a ohisel, espeoially propared for the
purpose, The boy did not sucoumb as readiiy as
we had beléeved so for ¥ear of being obs-rved
Richard amoigzed hik, and pulled him into the
back peat. Hore he forced & oloth into hie
mouth, Appwr ently the boy died inatantly by
suffoontion shortly thereafter, We Proceed
out to Onlumet Boulovard in Indisna, drove along
this road that leads to Gary, being & rather
deoerted place., We aven stopped to buy a couple
of sandwiches and somo driéis for suppor,
'!Q Whera?

"A On Calumot Boulevard at I guess 138nd
Strest, the bogy was coverad by an automobile

robe which we had bsought slong for the purpose.
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e drove up and down this road until dark L

thon procesded over the pmth vhioh leoade ocut ftowards
Hegowimoh, from 108th and Avenue F to the
prearranged apot for the disposal of the body,
We had previously roemoved the shose, trouzoers
und stoackinge of the boy, loaving the shoes and
the belt by the aide of the road conoscled in the
grasa, Hawving arrived o our destination we placed
the hody in the robe oerried 1t to tho culvert
where 1t was found, here we completsd tho disrobving,
then in an altempt to render identification more
difficult we poursd hydroohlofle acid over the
faoe und body. Then we plaaed the body into the
drain pipo, puchsd it ucm far as we could. Fe
gathered up cl) the clothon, plnced them in the
robe and apparently ot this point the gluacsoes
fol) from my pooket, I oarrisd the robe
‘eontaining the olothos buck to the automobile, &
distance of some 300 yurds, and one of the scoks
upperently dropped frox the bundle, ¥o then
_proooc%cd north to 104th and Ewing Avanue from
where ; teleph nod my Zolks telling them T ashouvld

be a trifle late in arriving at home. We .drove
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to 47th and Voodlawn and from thero I telephonad
Franks home. I spoke to Nrs, Franks and toid her
that my nome was George Johnson, that he# boy had
beon kidnapped but was safe, and that further
instructions would follow, In passing 65¢h Street
%o had mailed a spocial delivory letter which

had been completed oxoapt for the address which

I printed on it. After Seking my aunt and unole
home I roturned to my home and after my father had
rotired Richard and I proceedad to his home where
we burnad the remaining olothes, Hid the xobe and
waghod a&txtﬁgrgbvious blood atains from the
automobile. Then I parked the automobile noear

my hone, The nox&.sisy at 3130 Contral time or 3;30
Chicago time we were down of the Tllinois Central
otation at 12th Strest. Here Richard bought a
ticket to Michigan City on th; three o'olock traln,
entered the train, and deposited the letter in the
talograpﬁ blank boxs In the meantime I called the
Franks home and told Mr, Franks to proceed
immediately $o the drug store at 1485 Zast 83rd
8treot and to wailt ot the emsterly of the two publie
reinonline - 2 1ol sp U@ hoy the Lo "o CEXepPHoIE P'oad%? ¢ P $61X“Lhe
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hin 4 Yellow oab would be at hio door to take

him, I repeated the numbor twioe and he nsked

if he ocouldn't have & 11’*le mors time, to whioh
I repliod no, 4t muet be immedintely, About the
time I vos phoning Rlohard had returned from the
tradn end we started ocut south intending ¢o ¢all
the drug ctore from Welpresn!s store, 87th and
Stony Island, We chanced to soe 0 newspaper
lying on the stand with headlinon ®*Unidentified
boy found in evemp," We deliberated o few
romenta as to what to do, Diok thinking that the
goame vas up, I howeaver inaisted thot it could |
do no harn to onll the drug store, This I did,
but was told that no Mr, Franks was in the
building, Ze then went to 68¢h and Stony Island,
snother drug store, and again telephoned , we

mot with the vame roply. Thon gave it up a8 o bad
Job and roturnod the car to & plaos where it had
been rented, Our origingl plan had inoluded a
ralay which was to eond Mr, Franks to a Help Keep
the Clty Clean box ot the corner of Vingennes
and Pershing but we had diffioulty in making the

snvelope stick to the cover of the hox as wo
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intended, and hance decided to eliminte this
rolay. Thuraday immodiotely aftor dinner we drove
tho car to our gpraga, and started to olean up the
#oot of ths blood stains. Our chauffsur, Sven
Englund, noticed us and ocome out %o help. Wherg~
upon Richard fold him 1t a8 morely ocome red wine
wvhich had been npillpd.

") Who did olean 1t up?

A Dick aid rost of it and I helped hinm,

2Q Is there anything e¢lse you oan think of at
thig time? |

A Ho.

"Q Your originel plan when you ware thinking At
out asg iate as lost FNovembor, Nathan, did you have
anyone &% that timo thut was to be the viotim?

"A Xobody in partiocular. We had considered Mr,
Cluronce Coleman, alsmo Mr, Walter Beor, Waiter Baer,

» 0

Jr. 2a the vigtim, and Clsronce Coleman'z son,
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"Q Vhen wuo tho plen finally effcct d whereby
yougongldered the Fraunkse boy?

A Then we suw him on the 9th by pure soctdent,

" At that time vero you waliting for some one
olrg,

"A We had beon oruvlelng around watching esveoral
groups of boys playlng, wolting for somebhody to
gtart home,. |

"2 You bed been doing thet Tfor how long, Nathan?

*A Trom mhoub thres oclook in the evening until
about five.

4] Jnd‘yuﬁ did not bave any boys pricr to that
Line?

i No,

L This day in p%?éioular you atayed out wvith
the idea ln wince of getting the boy that dﬁy, is
that jt?

RA Yea,sir.

) Wnat timo did you meet Richard Loeb phat
day, Wadnoaday, dny S1st, 16347 |

"A At eoleven o'oloak:

"o Where did you moet him?
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"Q
"4
*Q
"A

"q

862

At the university.

What did you do after that?

Drove down in my car to the ren% a car people.
Whoere 1g that?

Thut ie st 1608 or 10 Mlohigan Avenue.

Then what did you do?

4 A Ront o Willys=-Enlght.

"
" A
"Q
A

At thut time?

Yea,

Under “hat nama?

Yorton N. Ballard,

Had you ever rented a car thers before?
Yo, oir -

Under what name?

*A The name,

1Q When dAid you rent a oar thers?

"2 About thraee weoks previcusly.

"a And you used 1t for what purposzas?

"A Merely so we would have no diffioculty in

getéing the cayr the next time,

" Ur, Orows: Ie that the letter you typed?

®A Yoa,
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81, 0 Bavegoe: TALL you look nt $hat, Nathan?
"A I unad - I showod thit lottor to Wm and ho
sald shat 13 the lotier he typod,
"ile, Loopoldt  Yen,
Mz Sawvagn:  Is that tho lotier you oddreosased?
Mg, Leoprldl Yoo,

TIE WITHESS: A My, SBhemler woen rending the trancerlipt,
thia Innt wes an intarzupdion, Savepe intorrupted asking
theso GQuentions. Shnll I rend thnd apnin?

IR, OROWET Yes,

b, Crovetr  In that tho lotter you t;f}:od?
"e,Leonoldr  Yeo.

"Qiw, Savnpet VALl vou look at that, lothent?

"A I showod that lotter to him and ho eald that e
tha lotser he $yvpod,

"ile, heopolds  Yoa,

N, Snavager Ia that the onvoleopo vou addresnod?
e, Leopodd: Yoo,

THE WITNESS: Then Bheoder, the repxr tod oontinuod rooding
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a3 thg confeesion am followa?

FQ They handle Willys-Knighte and Forda?

*A Willys=-Knlghtes and Pordas,

*"Q Willys-Enights and Fords axolunivel&» ie
that right?

Y2 Yoe, 8ir.

*o What did you pay overthere?

®4 Beventeen cents a mile for Willys~Knights
and 15 cents 2 wile for Fords.

%3 You gould keep the car over night?

YA Yes, wo made that arrangement Wednesday.,

"Q After you got the car what tiwe did you
get the oar down there that day?

"A At 11:30,

"Q Do you remembor who you talked tothere,
Nathan?

"A It was one of two men, I donit rcmaﬁba?o‘

*n Can you remombor the numes?

"A TNo.

"n You would know them if you seen them?

%A Yes,

Q If I coms over thore for 2 oer would they
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63 "4 Yesm the first timo they mude me dopaugﬁ
fifdy dollara and the last time thirty five,
I wan ouppomed o have an identification card of

some gort but I never rcooived it, s0 I had te

o0k up oy eld lenge nunber and glvo that as

valorance.

8Q What address did you givo, Hathan?
"A Originally the Morrison Hotel, went down
and rented a room and left a suitocase in 48, and

eont somé mail thore for the purposs of having

mell addressed to that address, When wo wont
down to gst our mail on the sudbsoguent day the
sultocass had boen taken, apparently the faot
the beds had not been used was npticed and soms
suspicion occurred, Tho auztoal; had been
apparontly confisonted and I therafore telephoned
tl# Rent-A«Oar people ve had changed our
addrees to Oakwood and Orand,

*Q You phoned over immediately that that was
your new address?

"y Yer,sir,

"y Did you svar get your sultoase, Xathan,
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&% A No,.
"o Did you reglater st the UHorrison Hotel?
"A 1 did not, Riochard did.
19 Under the numo of.
*A Morton D. Bsllard,
®Q VWhat day sas thnot, do you romember, Nathan?
A That Qaa just prior to us gotting the firsd
car, I weuld zay $vo or threa woeka heforo.
" tHhoce sultenso won 1879
#A Dick's.
50 You nover applied for the auitcasne aftor
that?
24 Wo, I figursd the nuitcﬁau vwan Worth loag
snan vhat ve owad,
"~ What kind of o suitarse was 47
"A It wee a dilépidated sultowsc, I gould not
denaribve Lt vary well.
"d Did vew hove anything in it?
A I think thore wae sore llbrary books 1ﬂ 1t
®G Yon went then to this -- whet is the naneo
of thet hesel?

B2A The Trenier Hotel,

1 had expsoted to stop thore, bub
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ghangead my plans and askoed thom to hold mall
ooning for Morton D. BEillerd. I stoppesd there on
o number off ocoanions after that, I would =ay
ag much as half o donen timen, and never did get
any mail from thoro, This seomed very peculiar
inagmuch ag Richard addrosseced tvo letters to
the Trenler Hotel and they wore nevsy roe
celved,
"Q Did you gat the letters buck?
*A Ho, no roturn sddress on them,
*"Q Went in the dead letter office?
"A I do not see why they should have. We
followad ¢them up twe days afborwards,
"n You say you did stop there saveral times
aftor that?
*A Yes, sir, a nunber of times,
f"0hief Hughest @ You stopped, went over fBr
the nail?
"A Yes,
"Q Ybu’diduhbt registor there?
"A Ko,

"¥r. Savagat At no time you rogistored thoref
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"Q

86
No.

Did you aver rogister in any other hotel,

Hathan, during this period?

A No, I furthe» oponod o bank nocount in tho

Hyde Pazk 8tate Beank ot tha cornnr of B3rd and

Lake

"Q
A
"Q
J)
"
)
"9
A
"Q
LT
"R

Park,

Under the name of Morton D, Ballard?
Yas,air.

How much momey did you deposit thore¥
One hundred dollara,

Haeve you drawn that out asince that time?
Yea,

Was it a chooking account?

Cheoking account,

And you have no balange in the bank Row?
No, sir,

That wac opsned up these during vour

fiegotiations with the doal on Michigan Avenue?

*A

*Q

YGB. sir,

¥hat was that name again?

®A Rent A Car,
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*Q That vwan for the purpoese of =

"A Having o food identifloation,

"3 This day you went down there for the
oar, who drove the car out?

*A T did.

¥ TWhere was your oar at that time?

*4 Dick had my oar Just cast of
Hichigen Boulewvard,

"o When you left thore what did you do?

"L Vie drove up togother, ox rather wo each onee-

wa each drovae one car up to Kramer®s restaurant

at 35%h and Cottage.

"Q

Grove?

T

"Q

J)

' "Q
*A

"Q
7\

"Q

Kramer's restaurant ai 35th and Cottage

Yon, sir,
That was on Wednesday, the 3lst?
Hednasday, the 2lat.

193417

i,
a0
1934, b

May 31st, 19347

Yesn,

Kramer's rastaurant is where?
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88 %A 35%h and Cottage Grove Avenue,
*Q What did you do at that time?
"4 Hed lunch there.
"0 You had lunch at the restaurant?
"A Put up the side ourizlng on the rented car,
"} About whut time was that?
B4 I imagine we got there about 13:18,
"¢ What time didyou leave there?
"A It must havo been one or a little later.
A 11ttlo aftoer.
"Q When 4id you put up the side curtains?
"A Justbefore coming, before coming into there
to 2i%.,
¥Q After you ocame out what time did you come

out of thore?

"2 We left afier one.

*) Then what did you do?

%A We drove to my home and I put my car in the
garage, then we drove ovar to Ingleside Avenue
just pouth of a dlind alley south of 47th Street.

®9 What time did you put your car in the

gorags that day?

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 871 1924



871
78 re

i) BA I should sny at about one iwehty or one

thizrty.
Q0 In the afternccn?
A Yeos.
"2 And whore was the othsr when you put your
oar in tho ganrage?
A The other onr was right in buok of ning
bescousn we wanted to 111 1t w%th Enle
G In the drive.ay?
A Yos,
70 You brought thet in and filled it ﬁith gas,
did you?
¥, Yoa,
"Q And left your car there? A Yos,sir.
"& Then vhait did you do?
*A Then we drove over to Ingleside Avenue,
whigh 4® south of the alley, south of 47¢th Street,
*Q While you wore filling the car up with gas,
did you sees znyons around the garage there?
*A Y don't remember ifSBen came down then or
not, ‘
*Q Did you; see Mr, Svon or Mra. Seven there?

%A Ur. end ¥rs. Englund, I am under the im=
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progsion that Mr, Englund wag there, I aw not
sure,

"Chief Hughes: You talked about the brakes being
bad on ¥hab car?

"A Yeog, on my cur. It wag on that occcasion that
thoy aquoaked, and he put on oll and he w ne
about golng out after they had been dlled,

" After you-filled the oar with gus what did
you do?

"A' 1 drove to this npot on Ingleaide Avanus,

8 About what time?

THE COURT: Tha same queation applies, tho smamo mattor
applies in tﬁia oonfeauiop. The court hes not given 44
attention, in fact can not give it the atten‘lion it
dessrves while reading the reecoxd, and I will want a
oopy of 4t handod to me s0 I oan road it at my leisure,
und 1% may be considerad vhsa ¥ am sumomdng up the evidence,
¥e can not get through beforo one o'clock, so wo will
suapend now, Wa will suspend now until two o‘'cloak,

(¥hersupon an adjournment was tako;; until Tuesdny,

July 39th, A, D, 1934, at the hour of 3 o'alook

PoN.)
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Tuesday, July 49th, 1834,
3200 ofclock P.M,
‘ Court convened at two o¥clock P.M. Tussday,
July 39th, 19234, pursuant to adjournment

heretofore taken.

Present: Same as before,.

E. ¥, ALLEB, resumod the stand ae a witnens&

MR, CROWE: Mr, Bachrach, I think there vwas a 11lttle
confusion here this morning when the statement was
being read, the statemént that he took that the otheg"
man wrote down..

‘MR, BAGHRACH: It w3sn't put in that way.

MR, CROWE: I will put Sheeder on later to show that
he transcribed thle correctly.

MR, BACHRACH: All right.

¥R, CROWE: We might as well cohtinue‘thig.

MR, BACHRACH: All right.

MR. CROWE: I understand he was reading the confes-
sion that wae being read off, he was reading it to
the other man who was taking it down, and that it is
Sheedor's work that he is now reading. I will put

Sheeder on and let him testify that it is a correct
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MR. BACHRACH: All right,

MR, CROVWE: All right. W%ill you prooceed now?

THE WITNESS8: I left off with a Question.

" Q After that what did you do?

A Te drove to thie spot on Ingleside Avenus,
Q About what time?

A It must have been about a Quarter to two.

Q Then what did you do -- you drove whers you
eay?

A To a point just south of the alley, south of
g ' 47th street, ingleaide. |

Q Youdrove to a point whioh is south of the

alley, eouth of 47th Street?
A Yea, I walted in the car,
Q On Ingleside?
A On Ingleside.
Q what i@ there, anything?

A Apartment buildings., I waited in the oar
there while Dlok went through the slley to a place
vhere he could either command a view of Harvard
School, or if he saw any likely looking children
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*time, I should say around throe} geveral of
the groups of boys playing inthe afiernoon with
the so=called tutors had left for & vacant lot
on 49th and Drexel, We followsd them up there,
I having made a stop at home for my field glasses
in the meantime,

Q And what time was that?

A Around three or three fifteen and we parked
on the opposite side of Drexel Boulevard, that
is on the west side of prexel Boulevard and
watched these children at play. We also
sneaked around on foot to the front, behind a
lot, where we could observe without belng seen,
We also had another group of boys gpotted in a
lot just across the street from my home, 48th
and Greenwood, We waited around until sbout
a quarter of five, that 1s four thirty I should
say, when the gangs broke up, but one of the boys
had run down the alley, a3 we thought merely in
play, and would be back., Apparently they had
greatly
ngxyky disappointed ms ., We missed our oppor-
tunity of following any of them home, We

then went down lake Park to 4let Avenue where
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"an acquaintance of Richard Loeb's who had a
son who might be expected home at that time,

Q Do you remember the name?

A Levinson,

Q Do you know the address?

A No, it is Sol Levinson, e lawyer, 4lst and
Lake Park. We repessed the lot on Greenwood,
48th and Greenwood, came over 48th Street
to Ellie == no, we came over 49th etreet to
Ellis, it wae 48th street to Ellie, and here
Dick spled Robvert Franks. He wae at that time
north of 48th Street on Ellis Avenue on the
west side of the street,

Q You are sure it was on the west eide of the
streot?

A Poeitively, walking south on the weet side
of the street,

Q Then you were where at that time ?
A Ve were at 48th and Ellis, |

Q On 48th or Ellis?
A On 48th,

Q Facing what direftion?
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" Q On what side of the streetwould be it, on
the oast eside?

A Ve were driving down there, we lmmedlately
turned around and about the timethat we had
turned around and given Robert a chance to get
a sufficient distance from another pedestrian
on the street he was almost at 4Sth Street, It
w28 here that we picked him up.

Q You turned your car and started eouth on
Ellis Avenue, is that it 7

A Yes, south on Ellie Avenuse,

Q On the west side of the street?

AOn the west side of the s¥yreet,

Q@ Robert Franks was at 4S5th?

A He was almost at 49th.
Q@ On Ellis?

A Yes,

Q wWas he on the northwest corner, approximately?

A Not quite,.

Q You hadn't had a chance to croes?

A No,

Q And you drove up alongside of where he was?

A ves,
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"Q And what happened?

A Then Diok opened the front ﬁoor and yelled
"Hey, Bob.," He came over to the car and Dick
agked him if he couldn't give him a 11ft home,
He declined, but Dick =aid, 'Come in a minute,
I want to talk to you about a tennis racket,!

Q That w28 the time he got into the car,

A Yes, |

CHIEF HUGHES: Q  TWhere were you sitting at
that time?

AT was 8itting at the driver'e wheel, Dok |
was in the rear seat,

Q What time wae it, approximately, Nathan?

A Between five and five fifteen,

Q@ That was when you proceeded on your journey?

A Yes,

Q You went south then to 50th Street? :

A South to 50th.

Q@ And esast on 50th?

A E:mmt on 50th to I believe, Dorchester or
Blackstone,

Q When was the first time that Richard struok

Robert wit@hﬁ.ohise do you know?
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"A Between Ellis and Greenwood on 50th,

Q Had he bscome suspicious of anything when
you returned for him at that time?

A Fo, because Richard asked him if he minded if
we took him around the block, to which he replied
no.

Q That was the original plgn, to take him so
no one would see him?

A Yes sir,

Q@ Angd after you made this trip out in the
‘countryand came back, what time did you get back?

A Get back t. where?

Q To your home?

A Ten thirty,

Q You still had the car thst you had rented
from the Rent~A~-Car company?

A Yes s8ir,

Q %as thst the car that you drove your folks
home with?

A No,
Q@ What did you do with the rented car?

A1 perked it on Greenwood Avenue just north
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Yof our driveway,

Q On Greenwocd Avenue?

A On Greenwood Avenue,

Q And you had your own car in the garage?

A T got my own car in the garage and drove
around to the side it wes,

Q Then what did you do with your other
car when you came back?

A VWhen I took Dick home == iet me see,
God, I think they were in my car, because that
chisel was thrown from my car, wasn®t 1t?
ﬁow could that have bsen accompliched? I am
not quite oclear on that point. But what he
auet have done wee take the bundle == no,
vwe didn't do that either, because I remember
washing 'the other oar, .

Q@ That was the car that you rentecl'?

A Yez, we must have taken the rented car,

MR, SAVAGE: Q You must have taken the rented
car and driven out 50th Street? In other words,
thatwas afteryou came bagk?

MR, LEOPOLD: verm, I was around there until

]
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" Q That wan after you go¥ back? 3&}3
A Yeg,"
THE WITNESS: dr. Leopold cays, "Yes, I was around
there until one o'clock," +then the reading ccntinues:
| "Q That was after you got back?
A A Yes, I wag around there until one o'clock,
Q w;erc did Richard weit for you?
A At wmy home,
¥R, SAVAGE: Q Wwhat did you do with the rented
car then?
A VWashéd it falrly thorough{y there.
Q Ehen, that night?
A One thirty, yes,
Q Whereabout s?
A On 50th Street at the gate to Loéb‘e.
Q  ‘®hat did you wash it with?
A we found a bucket with some water ana a brush
and some soap.
Q vhere?
A In Loeb's baégment.
'Q  Then you came out and washed it?

A Yes slr,
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"You were unable to get all the stains off?

A %ell it weas at night and we didn't want to be
monkeying around too much,

Q ¥here did you take your car to get some of the
blooed stains off?

A No plsce,

Q You drove the car in some place to get some of
the blood staina off?

A No, that wae the next day in our garage .

It was 8still Wednesday night you see.

Q What did gdyou do with the rented car that night?

A 1 drove i1t back to the place previously occu-
pied, vhich 18 just north of our driveway, and
gtood it in front of sn apartment house, ,

Q That was at one thirty?

A One thirty.

Q After you drove your aunt and uncle home 4n
youwr ocar and came back what did you do in the house
thentRichard Loeb was in the house?

A tYient in and had 2 few drinks, sat and talked with
Dad.

Q@ About what time was that?
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®Q Then what did you do?
A Dad retired about sleven tﬁirty or twelve,
and we had a few more drinks and left about one
o fclock.
Q Did you play eny cards while you were there?
A Yes sir, I think we played two games of casino
for fun.
Q Well what did you do after that ?
A We went over to Diok's house with the clothes,
QThe clothes in the rented car?
A Yes pgir,
Q And those were out in the rented car all the
time?
A Yes,
Q In a robe? A In a robe,
Q When you got to Dick's house what did you do?
A Ve went in the basement and burned the clothes,
%o intended burning the robe, it was too large
%o fit in and would have caused an awful stench.
Right after making that phone call to Franks, we
were in the rented car, we drove over to Loeb's
then in the rented car, burned the olothes,

wagshed the blood stains, then took the rended car
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*to my house and left it there, theﬂ I ot
my car out and took the folke home in that. Then
aiter I got back to my house I etill had that ocar,
when I took Dick home it was in that car, and it
was then we threw the chisel out.

Q ®hen you took Dick home you took the rented
Ccar, Or your o©are

A Ny own car,

Q What sotually happened thers shen you came in
the first time?

A We had dispored of the clothes,

Q You had disposed of the clpthes in the ocar?

A Yes sir,

Q And left the robe hidden in the car?

A No, I had left the robs hidden in some brush
there,

Q You mean outsida?

A Out doors, yes.

Q And Diok had the chisel in his poseeseion?

A Yes mir,

Q Md when you changed cars he just took it -

from one car %0 another ocar?
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"A Yes,
Q Did he leave that in the cer or not?
AT don't velieve so, no.
Q Where did he throw the chisgsel out at?
A It waB over there between 48th and -- or between

49th and 50th I think, on Greenvwood.
Q After you ieft Richard there and came back you
put your car in the garage, did you?
A yes 8ir.
Q Then what did you do?
A I turned off the parking light on the parked
car and went to bed.
Q Then what did you do?
A The next morning I got up and went to school
as usuazl at eight o'clock."
THE WITNESSKAE Hr. Crowe asked a Question, "what morning
isa that", and Mr. Leopold says, "Friday or Thursday,®
*MR, CROWE: Then what did you do?"
THE WITNESS: Then the reading continues of lLeopold's
statement?t
"Q Then what did you do?

A The next morning I got up and went to school

as usual, at eight o'oclock, I met Dick at eleven,
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"Q TVhere?
A At the University.
Q You had made arrangsmente the night before to
meet the next day?
A 'Yes eir, we drove down to my house, and it wsas
then that we drove the rented car to the garage to
clean it up more thoroughly.
Q In your garage?
A OQutelds of my garage, but in my driveway,
Q What did you clean it up with?
A with oosp and water and soms gasoline snd o
brush, |
Q@ Did anyone help you clean it up?
A Sven tried to, but we told him it was all right,
that we were all through,

CHIEF HUGHES: Q Vas there eny remark made
then with reference to the blood stains in the car?
A Yes, Dick was efrald that poesibly Svenhad
seen these blood stalns and he said 1t was some

red wine,
Q@ He told the Chauffeur thet?
A gee sir,

rented
MR, SAVAGE: Q Wwho drove the zg& car downtown?
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“ h I drove the rented car downtown,

’Q And Dick drove your car, did he?

A Dick drove my car,

Q Then you went down, and how much did you pay,
do you remember, for the use of the car?

A This was Thursday, was it ?

Q Yes,

A Valt just a moment. We cleaned the car out,
Where did we eat that day? I have forgotten where
we ate, we stopped some place for lunch and we
didn*t have my car until we both drove the rented
car,

2 You didn't have your car at.all?

A No, my car wae in the garage and we drove
do¥n to the 12th Street Illinois Central Station,
and the rest of the account is contained in the
previous part.

Q With the rented car?

A Yes 8ir,

Q when did you return the rented car?

A We returned the rented car about five or
five thirty.

Q How much money?
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" A Twenty-=five dollars and eome cents on it,

Q And he gave you thebalance of your deposit

. back?

A ves sir,
CHIEF HUGHES: You drove the rented ocar, both
of you, to the I.C.Station?
A Yes, and then drove back south, Afterwe had
found that Mr. Franks was not at the drug store
we drove to my houee, got my car, and Dick drove
my car down, while I drove the rented car down.
Dick parked on Wabash Avenue just south of 14th
Street while I returned the car,
MR, SEKAGE: 0O About what time was that?
A Between five fifteen =nd five thirty. Vvhen we
returned we etopped to get a sode at the drug =tore.
Q twhereabouts?
A 47th and Ellis, I met Mr. Mitchell at that
time,
@ You had a conversation with him?
AT bad a conversation with him, I took Dick home
and on the way beck stopped and bought a paper at

48th and Ellis which told about the fact th~k this
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"boy was Franks and went home.
Q Then what happened?
Al got supper., 1 stajed at home studying law,
Q Did you sze Dick the next day?
A The next day wae Frigay, yes.

Q tas that the time you had the convereation of
‘whét vou would say in the event you were called in?
AT am not eure if it was then or not. We dis-

‘cussed that a number of times,
Q@ Prior to t£e happening or after the happening?
A Possibly after that, I couldn't ve sure,
Q You discovered there was a pair of glasses
found out there, Nathan?
A Yes,
Q You learned that through a newepapei?
A Yes,
QThen you and Richard Loeb had some conversation
about the glasses and so forth?
A Yes sir,
Q You contemplated at that time that you would
be called in and asked about it?

A Yes sir,
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@0 In the event they were found. You gever
thought they would find the owner of the glasses
did you?

A No sir, I did not.

Q You were called in by —~

A Captain Wolf,

@ What did captain VWolf aek you?

A Captain Wolf wanted to know whether I had visited
the partiocular aresa frequently, whether there were
manyornithologists whom I knew, or fishermen, par-
Rxx tiocularly among the members of the Harvard
Sohool, or its faculty., Also whather the Franks
by had been 1lnteresteod?

Q@ You gave him the information?

A Yes,

Q Did you mention the fact to him at that time that
'y?u had worn glacses?

A Yeé.

Q He never asked you to produce your glueses?
A No,
Q Wwere you able to remove all those blood stains?

A Almost entirely.
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"Q Enough 80 that it wes not noticeable?

A Yes,

0 %‘What time was it, Nathan, now, you saw the
newspaper® announcing that?

A About six o'cloock,

Q This chisel that was thrown out of the car by
Richard that you told about, Nathan, that had what
kind of tape on 1it?

A Zinc oxide.

Q Where did you get that tape {rom, from home?

A In the bithréom.

Q This was the tape you were telling me about
that your brother had in the bathroom when you
walked in?

A Yes,

Q Did you take the whole roll of it?

A Yes,

Q Wwhere did you leave the reet of it?

A we bad discussed that, Dick snd I, and we
think it must hsve been in the car,

0 Did you put the tape on near the sherp end

or the blunt end?
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®* A The sharp end.
Q Using the head of the chisel, or the blunt
end I gusss you would call it, for the purpose of -~
A Striking.
Q Wwhich end did Richard strike with, do you know?
th he strike with the sharp engor the other end?
A—He etruck with the other end. That is why
I cdhnot explain the blood stains, Well, probably
the blood was rather effusive.
Q You don't know whether it wae the other end
or not, do you?
A Yes I know.
Q You know it wae the blunt end he was struck
with?
A Yee sir,
CHIEF HUGHES: Q VWhere did the chieel come from?
A Fronm ﬁ ha;dware store between 45th and 46th on
Cottage Grove Avenue,
MR, SAVAGE: @ Who bought the chisel?
A Diok.
Q Thet eame 4dgy?

ANo, I think he bought that a few days previously.
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"Q TFor that purpoee?
A Yes,
Q At a hardware store where?
A 45th and 46th on Cottage.
@ Do you remember vhat you paid for it?
AT {hink it was-seventyafive cents,
Q¢ Which one of you bought 1it?
A Dick,
Q You bought that two or three days bsfore?
A I thiak so, yes.
Q@ How did you carry it around with you?
A As I recollect, we pub it in the p°9§§t of
the rented car. I think we bought that on the

very day, on Wednesday the 3lst, I am almost sure

of thzt now.
QThesame day?
A Yes sir,

Q That was the day you went in and got the tape

in the house?

A Yes,

Q@ Now the time ycu first started to wear glasses

was when, yathan?
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" A In potober or November, 1933,
Q@ And who was your doctor that prescribed the
glasses?
A Emil Deutsch,
Q Andhe is located where?
A GekkxNzrkk 30 North Michigan.
Q And the one who filled the prescription?
A Almer,Coe,
Q How long did you wear the giassés, Nathan, afterwar&?
A Until February or March.
Q 18247 |
A 1924.
Q Then you sort of discontinued wearing them, is
that it?
A Yes Bir, They had actually remained in the
pocket of the sult which happened to te this ahit.
Q@ The 8uit that you have got on now is the
suit you wore the night you placed the body there,
ig that it?
A Yes sir,
Q After you started out there Nathan, didyou

remove your glothesz at all while you were placing

HeinOnline -- 2 IIIinc&heCrbr&@y‘pourt. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 916 1924



33r .
"o A My coat, yes,

Q Just how did you placs the body in the drain

pipe, just explain how you placed the body there?
A I think 1t was head first, I had a pair of
rubber wBoots,

Q Where did you get the rubber bootss

A ¥y own. |

Q Did you take ihem from your home?

A Yes sir,

Q That dgy in this rented car, did you?

A Yee, put them on right at the culvert where I
stepped into the water, took the feet of the body
while Dick took the head end and the hands, and when
it struck the water, pushed 1t in, gave it a shove
as far as I gould.

Q was it much of a job, Nathan, to push the
body in?

A At first I thought it was rather doubtful
whether 1t would fit at all, but after it once
8tarted it was not hard at all,

Q Then after you pushed it in as far as you could

push
it in with your hande, Nathan zgnggg%:ggpr
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"feet and peshed it up further?
A Yes,
Q Had rigor mortis sct in at that tims?
A Yes,
Q At the time you had taken sy your coat off kxd
did you lay it on the ground somé place?
A Yes, right by my shoes,
Q That is not the time you lost your glasses?
A Bo, that 1s not the time. Dick had run soross
the railroad track to see 1f anybody could be
seen from the other end, and I went up to the
top of the rallroad track, for some reason or
other, to put on my shoes, and he brought my
coat to me. I think we stxuck a matoh -- no,
we had a flashlight with us, and 1t must have baen
at that time that the glaeses fell out,
Q ¥ha time was 1t, again, that you put the
body in the drain?
A About nine thirty or nine twenty.
Q Dick brought your coat up to you where
you were putting on your shoes?
A ves,

Q NHow this letter, Nathan, that you had already
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"prepared in an envelope without any address on i%,
you had prepared that letter some time prior to
that time?
A Yes,
Q Just when did you prepare that lette¥?
A Four or five days ahead of time,
Q No one, definitely, as to whom you were going
to senfl it to?
A No, just "dear slir".
Q But the address you placed on later on?
A Yes. ¢t wa8 not addressed inside, it was
just dear sir.
Q You didn't send that additional Etter that
waB supposed to be sent about committing suicide?
A No.
MR, CROWE: Well I think" --
THE WITNESS: Mr. Crowe says, "Well, I think that will be
enough. Are there any corrections you wishto make.® 1In
reading the confeesion it wnas not quite through, and we
stopped there where Mr, Crowe says "Well, I think that

will be enough, are there any correotions you miei wish to

m&ke"o
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"LOEB: There are certain corrections that
Leopold has made in mine that are not important,
such as® 14th street, and the boots being uis, in-
stead of his brother's, which don't amount to &
damn, I mean it don?t make any difference, they
are not important, and don't affect the case. How-
ever, I wouldlike to say this?

In the firet place he says that that
chieel was wrapped by me. It was wrappsd by him,
and wrapped by him in Jackson Park, He brought
it in and put it in the o¢ar and he wrapped that
chieel while walting there in Jackson Park in
that 1ittle nine-hole golf house. All right.

In the second place he mentioned that the
idea of the thing, that the main thing was to get
the place and the means of throwing that package,
and he stuck on that thing in the &xzim train,
and it was his idea, But he doean't mention the
method of the killing, that he had that very well
conceived and planned out, as evidenoced by the

ether in the car, which was absolutely the notion

that he followed through. The boy was to be
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"stherized to death, and he was aupposed to do that,
because I don't know a damn thing about it and he
does, He has a number of times chdoroformed
birds and things like that, and he knows ornithol-
ogy. I don't know & damn thing about that.
He said the time vwas November wh?n the
idee wag first conceived. Well now, I don't lmow
exactly, I belleve I said two months in my state-
ment. I know right well it was not November, It
may have been a 1little bit longer than two monthe
it might have been two and a half months, but 1t
certainly was not any longer than thsat,
There are one or two otherminor things that

he mentioned. For énstance, he sald he drove
the red car downtown. UFNo, he says he drove the
rented car downtown. I don't know, I got that
mixed up, Which did you say? When you left your
house on Tuesday afternoon were you driving the
red car}

MR, LEOPOLD: The rented car.

MR, LOEB: Well, you were not, you were driving

the red car. I will show you why you were, be-
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"cause I didn't know exactly where that place

was on Michigan Boulevard. I donft to this day,
If I was to drive down Wabash, I don't know the
streets. You know exactly where it was, You
drove thgred car, you went ahead of me and I
followed you, and where you parked the red car

I stopped up alongside of you in the red car

and picked gou up, you juet got out of your

car into my car. I stopped next to you, I was
following you all the time in the rented car.

You had the red car and drove the red car snd
parked it there, So there are one or two other
things. 1In the first place I never touchedthat
body after the hydrochloric acid was poured on
that body. After the hydrochloric acid was
poured on that body you stepped into that culvert
with your boots on and you took hold of the feet
and gave the body @ push and the body splashed
in there and it splashed on your pants to00, and
you worried about 1it.

¥R. CROWE: Who hit him with a chisel?
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* MR, LOEB: He did.

MR, CROWE: Whq is ‘he®?

MR, LOEB: VWathan Leopold, Junicor. Hewas sit-
ting up in the front seat, I cald he ywas
eitting up in the fxont ceat, 1 mean I was eitting
up in the front zeat. That is obviously a mistake,
.I am getting excited., Tuis Franks boy got up in
the front seat, . Now he was a boy that I knew, If
I was sitting in the back sgezt he would have
gotten into the back seat with me, YHe was
a boy I know, and I would have opened the door
and motioned him in that say, As it was, he got
in the front secat with me because I knew the boy
and I opened the frontdoor, He didn't see Babe
until he wae inside the car, _ He stood at the
game place,l introduced him to thks Franks boy
and then took him into the car. I took him into
the car and when he got in the car I said, 'you
know Babe? This is Bobbie Franks',

And then one thing I wish to point out,

I have been made a fish right along here., Now

this story that you speak of in your testimony,
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"all thess womsn, and being drunk in the Cocoa=
nut Grove and everything, we planned that defin-
itely., It was definitely dscided that the story
was not to go after Wednesday noon, which would
be a wosk after the orime. We were to proteot
our story. We werato just say that we didn't
know whit we were doing, and there wasno evidence.
¥s folt that you were safe with your glasses
after a week had passed, that your glasses being
out there would not necessitate an alx~tight
alibi, because we didn't figure anything else,
and we figured that you would be asafe enough
after a week not to know exactly where you
were on that particular Wednesday afternoon.

MR, CROWE: t%ho felt that?

MR, LEOPOLD: I told the same story exactly

here to Mr. Savage.

MR.CROWE: All right.

MR, LOEB: t®hen you came down thursday and you
yold another etory which you had agreed not to
tdl, I came down to Mr. Crowe and he questioned

me, and questioned me about my actions and every-

2 niinokhing eled, asd dudenied ever bedng. drunk, A 4e=
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"nied being with you, Leopold and I denled being
up 4t the Cocoanut Grove, and t%o%%tt%%ngtal}?ngde
me absolutely certain that you had told the stories
you shouldn't have told.
Then he started to talkabout the Park, about
‘:;eing out at Lincoln Park. He mentionedparks,
He brought it around, but I knew what he was drive
ing at. That was Lincoln Park, and when he did
that I stepped in to try to help you out,
I think it 12 a damned sight more than

you would have done for me, I tried to help
you out because I thought that you at least, if
the worst comes to the worst, would admit what
you had done and not try to drag me into the
thing inthat manner. Well now, that is all I
have got to say.

MR, SAVAGE: Have you got anything to say
to that? h

MR, LEOPOLD: yes, I have,

MR,8AVAGE: yathean wants to say a word.

MR, LEOPOLD: His correction abou; what oar
I was driving down I think is ocorrect. Those

are all absurd dirty lies. -He is trying to get
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"out of this mess, I can explain to you myself
exactly how I opened the door to let the Franks
boy in, and he got up from the back seat, leaned
over forward and epoke to the boy from the back,
I was driving the car, I am absolutely positive,
The reuson for changing that etory was, as you
remember, when you first Questioned me as %o my
actions I was very indefinite, and I was ﬁ?&eé
to remember, Quite strongly, what I had been
doing, and I am sorry that ycu were made a fish
of and stepped into everything and broke down
and all that, I am sorry, but 1t isn't my fault,
All the rest of the corrections he made, with
the exception of that oneof the car, are lies,
MR, CROWE: Now listen, boys?
MR, LEOPOLD: Yes.
MR, CROWE: You have both been treated decently
by me?
MR, LEOPOLD: Absolutely.
MR, CROWE: No brutality or no roughness?
MR, LEOPOLD: Fo sir,

MR, CROWE: Every consideration shown to both

O u
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*MR, LEOPOLD: TYes sir,

MR, CROWE: Not one of you have a complaint
to make, have you?

MR, LEOPOLD: VNo sir,

MR, CROWE: Have you, Loeb?
MR, LOEB: FNo,."

THE WITNESS: That ie all of that.

MR, CROWE: Now, if your honor please, we have the

gtatement t hat waz made by the Dsfendant Richard Losb

Hei nOnli ne --

and vaken down in shorthand notes by F, A, Bheeder,
and that was read by Sheeder to both the defendants
Loeb and Leopold in my office, in the presente of myself,
Joseph P, Savage, John Sbarbare, Robert E, MacMillon,
Lawrence A. Cunso, Samuel A, Ettelson, Chief Hughes,
Captain Shoemacher, Gortland, Johneson and Lang, police
officers, William R, Swissler, George Moxley and Mr.
Allen, who reported everything that Sheeder read or that
any qf the persons precent said.

MR, CROWE: Q@ Now, Mr. Allen, you were in my office

at the tims this statement was made?
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A Yes sir.

Q@ And read by Sheeder, and you reported accurately all
the things that were either read or said by any per=
son present at that time?

"A Yes sir.

Q And you have transcribed your notes and you have
the transcript in froat of you?

X Yes sir.

Q And that is a correot transcript of vhat you
reduced to shorthand that morning?

A Yes sir,

MR, CROWE: Wwill you read that?

THE WITNESS: "MR, SBARBARO: Q State your full name?
A Richard Albert Loeb.
Q@ wWhere do you 1iwe, Mr., Loeb?
A

5017 Ellis Avenue,

£

That 1z your occupation?
A Student,

Q@ TWhere dre you a student?®

MR, CROWE: Just a moment. This witness has been

Hei nont i ne - TORALRE Rretlycfanesandty, fox, & 48ng vhids andelo Wil
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358
ask somsbody else to relieve him for a while?
THE COURT: Yes,
MR, CROWE: W®ill you, Mr. Sbarbaro? There ie no
objetion to that, is there?
MR, BACHRACH: No.,
Whereupon Mr. Sbarbaro here read the
atatement of Richard Loeb referred to,
in the words and figures as follows:
"there are you a student?
‘ A University of Chicago.
TN

Q How o0ld are you?
A TEighteen,
Q You know now that you are in the office

of the State's Attorney of Cook County?
A Yes sir.
Q And you want to make a statement, of your

ovn free will?
A Yes,
Q Calling your attention to the 3lst day

of May, just tell us in your own words if you

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Crimnal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 929 1924



36r

Hei nOnli ne --

"know of anything unusual relative to the disap-

pearance of Robert Franks?

A On the 3lst day of May Leopold and my-

g§8lf =
Q@ what is his full name?

ANathan Leopold, Junior, and myself intended

to kidnep one of the younger boys from the Harvard

School,

¥R, CROWE: Mr, Loeb, when yousay Leopold,
do you refer to thie young man here?

A Yes,

Q Where had you planned this kidnapping?

A You mean what?

Q@ where had you disocussed it first?

A OhIdm't know, I don?t remember, I
don*t remember when it firet came up.

Q well approximately how long before
the 218t of May had you disocussed it?

A Oh a month and a half I should say or
two months, A month and a half or two months,

Q All right, go ahead.
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®A It was booached, the plan was broached by
Nathan Leopold, who suggested that as a means of
having a great deal of exoitement, together with
getting quite 2 sum of money.

Q Andadventure, ag you would say?

A Yes, We planned the thing quite carefully,
every detail was plamned. His ocar —

Q@ Wwhet kind of a car does Nathan Leopoldhave?

A A Willys-Knight sport modsl, red in color,
Hls car i1s very oonspicuous, and for that reason
we deemed it inadvisable to use 1t, and therefore
declded to get a car =~ rent a car from the Rent-
a-Car people. Also in view of the fact that such
a car, if obtained under a false name would rnot
be incriminating, were it to be discovered in
connection with the crime,

Q@ So what did you do in connection with the car?

A Bo in order to assume a false name and a real
identity, we went and Leopold deposited $100 at
the Hyde Park State Bank under the name of Morton
D. Ballard from Peoria. Following out the same

plan, I went down to the Morrison and registered
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"under the name of Morton D. Ballard, carrying
with me a suitoase, an 0ld suitcase contalning
some books.

Q Where did you get the books?

A From the University of Chicago Library.

Q And the purpose of taking thdse books in that
sultcase to the Morrison Hotel was to lead them to
believe that you really intended to live there?

A Yes,

Q Ad had some clothing of some kind?

A Yes., Ve addressed several letters to the Morri-
son Hotel under the name of Morton D. Ballard.

Q@ So that you might receive them?

A 50 that we might receive them; and on the
following day I went in and got those letters.

Q That 48, you would call for those letters on
the following day?

A Yes, the dap after that, and I am practically
certain that is what it was, it was the third
day -- the day after w9 went— pardon me, down to
the Rent-2-Car people,

Q For the purpose of fixing the time, that was
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" A About eleven o'clock in the morning.
Q I mean, about the twentieth day of April?

A Yee, I 2m not sure of the time, I mean

* the date., I wouldn’t swear to that., The twentieth

of April, how long is that?

Q Juat about a month before.

A /Xﬁgﬁt a month., Leopold went in alone with
four hundred dollers in hie pocket, which I had
dravn from my account in the Hyde Park State Bank,
and with the letters eent to Morton D, Ballard
al the Morrison! we

MR, CROWE: If there 18 any diecrepancy in this
statement you correcylt a® you go along, will you
pleace?

(Continuing reading) -~ "as with also
his oheock book «~ not cheock book, his bank book
from the Hyde Park State Bank. He told the Rent~a-
Car people that he wa8 a salesman #xd@ new on the
route, that was the first time he had covered
thie district, he was a salesman from Peorls, and
thiét the only person he knew in Chicago nas a Mr.

Louie Mason, He told then thls, because the Rent-aw
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"Car people demand three in town reference, in
order %o taks out a car, However, he wanted to
persuade them %0 give him ths car, anyhow, in
view of the fact that he wae new, and that

Mr, Louls Meeson would vouch for him, and algco ba=
caufe he would be willing to deposit $400 there &if
necessary in order to get the car.

I vwas pooted in a little restaurant or cigar
etore on Wabash Avsnue., To you want the exact
name ?

Q Yees, if you recall the addrese?

A Thies cigar ectore is a 1ittle bit ﬁ;rth of
16th strest on the west side of kkax Wabesh Avenue,
I went in this ocigsr ctore and eat nz2ar the public
phone booth whosfe number Leopold had, and he told
them this wae the number of Mr, Louls Mason., The
Rent=z~Car psople c21lled up, and I immedistely
answared the phone and told thea that I was Mr,
Maeon,

Q You are in tnie cigar store now, or in the

vicinity of 16th Street, near the Rent-az=Car

people?
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®A Yes,

Q@ And you placed yourself at the booth?

A  Yes, The phone rang, and I immediately ansvered
t he phone and the Rentwa-Car people asked me if
I was Xr. Louis Mason. I said, "Yee". They
asked me if I knew Mr, Morton D. Ballard of Peopla;
I said, 'Yes“; They asked me if he was dependable,
I saly, "Absclutely dependable." That was the
end of the conversatlion,

Q You were then posing as Mr, Ballard?

A No, I was posing 28 Mr, Loule Muson; Leopold
gucceeded in getting the car and teld the Rent-a-
Car people to forward fthe identification card
which they demand a8 necescery tc get a car any
time without the trouble of getting references
over againk and everything, he asked them to
forward this ldentification card to the Morrison
Hotel. We took the car out that morning at eleven
and returned it at four.

Then we went down to the Morrison Hotel and I went
ineide to check outs I went up to the room, and

found the sultcase had disappeared from the room.,
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" Q@ You have reference to the suitcase which
you had taken in thers when you registered?

A Yes, 1 2ealized then that the mald must have
gotten suspicious due to the fact that the bed
had not been elept in either night, and with her
suspiocione aroused that she had opened the sultcase
and found only those booke in the sultcase,
Therefors, I immediately left the mom and left the
hotel,

We then phoned the Rent-a-Car people and

told them to forward the identification card to
the Trenier Hotel.

Q That is located where?

A At the corner of Oakwood Boulevard and Grand.

Q Did any mail come forth from the coaversation?

A No., In order tc¢ assume some sort of an
identity there, Leopold went in and told them that
he was Morton D, Ballard,thagt he had intended stop-
ping at the Trenier but that he was not going to
and that if any letters came for him there, they
should hold them at the Trenier Hotel.

Ve majled two letters at the Trenier Hotel
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"to Morton D, Ballard, at the Trenler Hotel,

in order that the clerk would think that there

wage someone expecting mail thzre so that when the
card came from the Pent-a-Car pecple it wouldbe
gale,

However, nelther tho card from the Rent-

&=Car people nor ocuriously enough, our owvn letters,
which we knew we had mailed to the Trenler Hotel,
arrived there,

Q Now on the twenty-first day of Mazy, 1934,
just tellwhere you met Leopold and what happened?
‘State it in your own words,

A On the 31st of May I met Leopold out of school
at eleven o'clock -= wait a minute, perhaps I
had better etart with the 20th of May,

Q Very well,

A On the 30th of May Leopole and I purchased at
two hardware stores on Cottage Grove ,venwe seonme
TOpe =-

Q In what vicinity was that?

A Cottage Grove Avenue., Both of the hardware

stores I believe (although I am not ocertain) were
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"gomewhere out there shortly north of 43rd

Street, The hardware store where w6 purohased the
rope %as further north than the hardware store
where wo purchased the chisel. I purchese, myself
alone, both the chieel and the rope.

We then proceeded down the street to a
drug store, where Leopold triedto purchase
hydrochloric acid, He was unsucoessful at
that drug store @o wenk a little bit further south,
I don't know the exaot number where he succeeded in
purchasing a bottle of hydrochloric acid.

Q ‘vhere did you p#t the gage?

A The gage were at Leopold's house,

QYou didn't get them on the same day that you
purchased the chisel and the hydrochloric acid
and rope, did you?

A We got them ready at his houee.

Q All right., After purchasing theese different
articles what did you do?

A We progesded to his house where we got every-
thing in readiness; some ether that he had at his

house, the ropes and the rags to be used as gags,
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"the chisel which he bound wilhadhesive tape
on the sharp end and naome hip boots that I believe
belonged to his brother,

Q ‘Where did yoyget those hip boots?

A I believe they belonged tohie brother, They
were at hle house,
1Q This is all, now, with reference to the twen=
tieth day?

A Yes, overything was gotten in readiness.
I believe also that on that day the various notes
and telephone messages,-- pardon me, the various
notee, were written on the typewriter for Mr, Franks ,

Q@ Did you Bsee him write any notes on the type-
writer?

A Yes, I saw him write all of them.

Q What notes &0 you have reference to?

A I have reference to the note demanding the
ten thousand dollars in ransom,

Q What kind of a typewriter was that?

A An Underwood Portable typewriter.,

Q0n a portable Underwood typewriter?
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"Q And what wae the essence of that note?

A The eseence of that note demanded ten thousand
dollars and told Mr. Franks that his son was
safe; specified a certain way in which that money
should be wrapped, in a cigar box, told Mr. Franks
that everything would be all right, the son would
be returned to him within six hours if he obeyed
our instructions, if he dieobeyed any of the
instructions, tilmt his son would be killed,

Q Now, who composed that note?

A The note was composed jointly.

Q Anad it aaa}typed by Leopolad?

A Yes,

Q Do you recall the words used in that note?

To the best of your reoollsotion, what were they?

A "pear Sir: You no doubt know by this time that
your son hag been kidnapged. Please follow our
instruwtions carefidly, and nothing will happen to
him. If you don?!t follow our instructions to the
letter, you will never see your son again.'

Then there was & No, 1, and %Co down to

the bank and get ten thousand?8 =~ no, that weantt
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"iit, walt & minute, The No,1 was: 'Do not commwn-

jcate with the police; 4if you have already done
so, pleaso do not mention this letter.

*No,3, Go down to the bank and get
ten thousand dollars in old bills, Be sure that
the biiis are old,’!

Q Did you specify any denominations?

A Yes, 'Any new or marked bills wil??noticed.
@et two thousand dollars in twenty dellar bille,
and eight thousand dollars in fifty dollar bills.

¥3, Be home by one o'clook. Do not
let the phone be used.'

Q Is that all?

A There was at the end, I don't remember,

Q Do you recall any other note that was written
that day?

A I think the other two notes were written
on that same day. All the notes and ths telephone
messagee had been written in a rough draft gome
days before that, so that all that wae done on
Tuesday, a8 I remember, was to copy these things,
I diotated while Leopole typewrote, Proceeding to

the twenty~first, I met Leopold at school at sleven. ye-=
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* Q That is on the twenty-first day?

A Yes, We went downtown.

Q In whose cer?

A In his Willys-Knight, parking the car on 16th
Street, Just east of Michigan Boulevard, on the south
8ide of the street. Leopole went to the Rentwa=Car
people agalin, carrying hig letters suppoeedly to
Morton D, Ballard, and sulficient monsy,

Q Tbe purpose of the lettere was to ehow he
wag identified?

A Ye=, H; told the rent-a-Cer people that he
had not received the identification cards, but thsat
he would like to twzke out the car, They offered
no objection, so after a short time he xzx received
his ocar, whioh wes a Willus-Knight fivewpaecenger
touring car, blue in color, with no further identifi-
cation marke. In other words, there were no wind
ghields, In other worde, the cer wae equipped
only with the standard equipment, He pzstged by
me down 8ixteenth street, no, pardon me, I saw
him coming in the car, and as pre-arranged, Jjumped

into his car and went to Xresmer's restaurant at
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the corner of 35th and Cottage.

Q@ And what did you do with Leopold's car?

A We parked both ocars at Kramer's, and prooceeded
to put up the side curtains on tie Willys-EKnight,

Q That you had rented from the Rent-a-Car peoplo?

A Yes, We ate lu;ch at Kramer's, and left
Kramer's -

Q About what time was it when you left Kramer's ?

A About one,

Q And you left in whose ocar?

A we left with both cars,

Q And the curtains up on the Willy=-Knight that
you had gotten from the Rent~a=Car people?

A Yes,

Q@ And where did you go from there?

A We parked Leopold's car at hies garege, which is
situated in back of his house, I driving the Rent-a-
Car Willys. He joined me immediately after having
disposed of hls car, and we went out %o Jackeon Park,
where wo parked for I should judge Dbetween three-
quarters of an hour and an hour, because we Wanted

to walt until the Hervard School let out before
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" starting any operations. At about two fifteen

we left Jackson Piark and drove in the Willye to
Ingleside Avenue, where we parked just south of an
alley onthe east side of the street,
Q Did you have at that time in this ca®, in which
you were
riding, and which you parked down by the
alley around Ingleside there, the hydrochloric acid

and the bootsa, rope and chisel?

A Yes gir; we had all that,

1 think, nowthat I come to think about it,
that when he went to the garage to dispose of his
car, I followed him there in the other ¥%illye, and
wo changed the contents of hie car,

MR, LOEB': Just tookthe contents from his owm
Willys Knight to that onel.
(Continuing reading) '@ Meaning the hydrochloric
acid, the boote, tope, gag and chisel?
A Yes, to the Rent-a-Car people's car,
Q Now, you are down there on Ingleside Avenue,
walting for the kids to come out of the Harvard
School?

A Yes, I walked over to the Harvard School to

,  Feconno teo
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Q And that 18 about Wwhat time?

- e

A Just about two-thirty,
Q You are over there for the purpose of reconnoi-
tering?
A Yes sir.
Q Go ahead.
A T talked to a fellow by the name of Seasé.
Q vho is this man Seass? |

A He is the tutor who takes out the children.

Q After classes?

A In the afternoon, to supervise their play. I talked
to him for a few momentis, and then talked to a young
boy by the name of --
.. Q What did you talk to Seass about?

A I don't remember,
P Q 'Then you talked with who else?

A With a 1ittle boy by the name of Levinson, John ‘
Levinson, whom I knew, I Just asked Levingmn about
his taseball game and so forth and 8o on,

I left the Harvard School, then, that ig,
I left -~ pardon me, I left the back, the playground
where I had been talking to Seass and Levinson,
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®"and went out in front of the Harvard School,

where I met my dittle brother who attends that
school. I talked to him for a short time, and

then Leopold came down Ellis avenus on the west

gide of the street, and whistled for me to come over.
Ve walked down the alley leading to Ingleeide, same
alley near wWhich the car wae parked, and told me

that therewere some children playing on Ingleside
Avenue that he thought may be possible prospects.

Q PFor kidnaping?

A For kidnaping, yes. We flecided, however,
not to get them, and walked down Drexel Boulevard
to where we BaW a group of children playing on &
vaosnt lot at the corner, the southeast corner of
Drexel and 49th Street. We watoched these boys
and noticed that Levinson wae amongst them.

Q ¥hat is his first name, John Levingen?

A 1 think so, we wont back to the car, got .
the oar and drove to the west side of Drexel,
opposite to where the ohildren were playing. Ve
looked to eee if we could recognixe them from
that distance, but it was vefy difficult, so we

Walked down to 50th Straetf and around 50th Street
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*through an alley where we could watoh them more
closely. Even from there, however, it was impos-
8ible to watoch them very olosely undéss we showed
ourselves, 20 we decided to go back to his car,
drive over fo his car and get a palr of bird
glasses,

Q@ TYou mean field glasses?

A Well, yes, field glasces, and watch the chil-
dren through the field glasses, This we did., W¥hile
he .was getting the field glasses, I went to a drug
store on the corner of 47th and Ellis where I looked
up the address of Mr. Levinson, 80 that we would
be able to tell where John lived. I inocidentally
bought & couple of packages of Dentyne ohewing gum
at that drug store,

I picked Leopold up immediately after
that with the field glasses, and we went over to
the sam place on Drexel Boulevard., We watfhed
the children somo more through the field glasses,
and noted that Levinson with a group of some of
the other children went down the alleyway out of

eight, We didn't think that he had gone home, so
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"remained watohing, put when, after quite
a whilo, he didn't shov up, we came to the conolu=
slon that he might have gone horme,

I went to look for him in the alley,
but didn®t see him, andea¥ Seass leaving with the
regt of his chlildren. We then went to a corner
3ot at the corner of 48th and Creenwood, the north-
east corner, where John Coleman and VWalter Baer's
sons vwere playing baseball, We watched them for
a little while, then went down to see if Levinson
hed gone home, passed hia house and found that
he i%ﬁ not there or playing on the street, Ve
returned down Lake Park Avenue, passed the lot
where the Coleman boy was playing, ond went into
Leopol’s hohse to watoh the children play from one
of the window# there., We didn't stay there long,
but left, and drove down Drexel to go past thie
1ot where Levingon had been playing, turned and
wont down Hyde Park Boulevard, turned and went
north on Ellie Avenus. At this time I was driwing,

Ve proocseded north on Ellis Avenue until

we caught a glimpso of Robert Franks coming south
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"on the west side of Ellis Avenue, As we
passed him, he was just coming acroes Or past
48th Street. We turned down 48th Strest and
turned the car around, Leopold getting into the
back seat, I drove the car, then, south on Ellis
Avenue, parallel to where young Franks was, stopped
the car, and while remaining in my seat, opened
the front door and called to Franks that I would
give him a ride home. He sald, No, he would just
as soon walk, but I told him that I would like
to takk with him about a tennie racket, so he
got in the car.,

We prooceeded south on Ellies Avenue, turned
gast on 50th Street, and just after we turned off
of Ellise Avenue, Leopold reached hls arm around
young Franks, grabbed his mouth and hit him over the
head with a chisel. I believe he hit him several
times, I do not know the eaxact number. He began
to bleed‘and was not entirely unconsoious, He
wa§ moaning. I proceeded further east on 50th,
and turned, I believe, at Dorchester, At thise
point Leopold =~

Q What time was 1t?
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" A Thie wag around five o'olock, I don't know
the exact time. At this time Leopold grabbed
Franks and carried him over back of the front
seat and threw him on a rug in the car, He

then took one of the rags and gagged him by
sticking it down hie throat, I believe, We pro-
ceeded down Dorchester, and then at Leopold's .
direction drove into the country. I thinkwe
drove either out Jeffery Road or South Shore
Drive, I think it wae Jeffery Road, I am not
acqudnted with the distriot out there, and drove
8lowly at his directions, and that plue the fact
0f my oxoltement accounts for my not being able
to tell any of the places where we drove, Howe
ever, we drove until we were at a deserted road
whioch led off the main road somewhere before the
Indiana line. We turned down this road, but it
was only for == it was only a road for a short
distance, and ended in a blank. This Leopold
knew, but wanted to take it, beocauss it was so
deserted.

¥We turned around, and as we turned around,
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"he seeing that Franke vas unconscious, climbed into
the front seat, Up to that time he had been watoch-
ing him from the back seat, He had covered him
up with the robe that we bad brought along, the
robe also belonging to Leopold, We then drove
further south on the main highway, until we turned
at a road which Imlieve leads to Gary.

We went¢ down this road a vays, andlthen
turned off the road on another deserted road, this
deserted road leading north. We followed that for
only a short distance, then turned down another
deserted road, leading west, We stopped the oar,
got out, removed young Franks' shoes, hid them in
some bushes, and removed hi pants and stockings, plac-
ing them in the car, We did this in order that
we might be saved the trouble of too much undressing
him later on., We also left hie belt buckle and belt
with the shoes, not inithe same place,but very near
therxe. Ve then proceeded to drive around back
and ©orth and back and forth.

Q vwaiting for it to get dark? .

A Waiting for it to get dark. Ve stopped at a
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"little sandwich shop on the road, and Leopold
got out and purchased a couple of red hot sand-
wiches, and two bottles of root bser. We then
kept driving more and more, until it was fairly
dusk.,

Then Leopold nanted to make a phone call,
The phone call had nothing-to do with the Franks
case, He mzde this phoneceall from a drug store
eituated on the northeast corner of one of the
intersecting streets meeting this main highway,
the name of which I do not know, The iamportant
thing is that I parked the car on this side
street facing west, parallel to the tracks, The
driver's seat ie on the left of the car. There-
fore, I was nearest to the drug store. He got out
of the car, went to the drug store and made his phone
calle In returning, he camo xkziskgt straight to
the car, so that he hit the door that I was sltting
at, rather than the door next to the vacant seat,
and he gaid, 'Slip over and let me drive for a while',

which I did. He drove the car,
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*walting for it to get dark. I remember we turned
up one rosd which he aaid led to Indianapolis,

and then back again, and finally he drove the caz

to a place wheie he knew, which was near this

oul vert, We¢ had both inventigated the culvert on

a previoga journey out there esome weske before,

, @ Whon you had planned it, you mzan?

A Yes, Ve dragged the body out d th; car, put
the body in the rozd and oarried it over o the oulw
verp. Leopold carriasd the feet, I oarried the
head. Ve depositad the body neer the culvert,
and undrassed the boly completaly. Our oxriginal
schéme had been to stherize the bedy to death,

Q Where did ycu pour the hydrochloric scid on
him?

A Right there. The scheme for etlerizing him
originated through Leopold, who evidently hae soms
knowledge of such things, and he said that thut
would be the easieet way of putting him to death,
and the least messy. Thio, however, we fouwnd un-
necoesarly, because the boy wée quite dead when

we took him there, We knew he was dead, by the
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"fact that rigor mortis had set in, and also by
his eyes, and then when at that same time we poured
this hydroohloric aold over him, we noticed
nd tremor, not 2 single tremor in his body,
therefore we were sure was dead.
Leopold put on his hip boots, taking
off his coat in order to 4o this, and took the
body and stuck it head first --
_ CAPTAIN SHOEMACHER: Q Was it daerk at thattime?

A Yes, Stuok 1t head first into the oulvart.

I might say that at thie time 1t was fairly
dark, but still not pitch black, so that we were
able to work without a flashlight,

MR, SBARBARO: Q How far did you have to ocarry
the body, from the time you get off the machine
until you gak dropped it intc or near the culvert?

A T should say about @ city block and a half,

I don't know,

Q How did you oarry it, in this blanket?

A In the blanket, yes., That is, we had the blanket
in sort of, a® you might use a stretoher.

Q well, then, you put the body right down into
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the culvert?

A Yes.

Q And you poured your hydrochloric acid on
17

A DBefore we put it down into the gulvert.

Q And then what did you do?

A Then I went to the opposite eide of the culvert,
where the water runs out and where you can get at
the water very easlly, where I washed my hands,
whioh had become bloody through carrying the
body.

Q The head had bled very freely?

AYes, the head had bled qQuite freely, I wouldn't
gay very freely, mut quite freely. There vwas quite
& bit of blood} the blanket or robe was quite
saturated with blood,

We then left, taking the robe we used, as
algo the clothing of young Franke, and we started
homeward, and Leopold stopped to call up his folks,
and to tellthem that he would be slightly detained.

This, I should judge, was about nine o'olock:‘
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Q Did you see him write any notes on the typewriter?

A Yes, I sa¥ him write all of them.

Wheraupon a short recess was here taken

by Court and Counssl.

.
- wn e W e ow
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(Whereupon pursuant to a short recess here-

tofore taken the following proceedings were had)

MR, SBARBARO: Shall I prooeed, your Honor?

THE COURT: All right,

MR, SBARBARO: (Reading)

Hei nOnli ne --

"We then left taking the robe we usedas also
the olothing of young’franks and we started
homeward and Leopold stopped to call up his
folks and to tell them he would be slightly
detained, This, I shauld judge was ebout nine
o'olock, We then stopped at a drug store some-
where in the nelghborhood where I looked up
the address of Jacob Franks and ths telephone
nunmber anéd at the same time Leopold printed the
address updn the envelope, We then prooeeded
toward home -=

"Q You drove out to Gafy, did you, before
you got to the culvert?

"A No, sir, I don't think we ever entered
Gary.

"Q Well, near Gary.

A HNear Gary
" But 1% wasg near Gary, thcugh, when you
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stripped the kid of the shoes? A Yesa,

S8Yr. Loeb: Where you hid the shoes,

"(Continuing reading) "Q And his pants and
stockings? A Yes,

"Q In what vioinity were you when Leopold
nade thils first phone ocall?

"A I think that we were in the town of
Hammond, The road we were on led north and
south, I am practicelly positive.

"Mr, Crowe: All the ocourrences that happened
here, where the bot was hid and so on, happened
in Chicago , Cook County, Illinois?

*Q Mr, Loeb: fhe boy was hiad?

"HR., CROWE: TYes,

"Mr, Loeb: Yes,

"Mr, Leopold: Yes,

“(Continuing reading) "A I am not sure
whether we posted the letter before or after
destroying Franks' olothing. However, what
we did do was to go over to my house, where
we burned the clothing in the furnaoce,

%Q Did you burn the blanket, too, in whioh you

‘the olothing wrapped?
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"A Yo, the blanket Was placed in a littls

hiding place near the greenhousse at my house,
"After having burned the clotking, we

proceeded to get a pall, soap and brush, and to

the best of our ability in the dark to try to

wash out the car of the blood stains., The car at

this time when we were washing out the blood stains,

wag parked on 50th Street, near the greenhouse,

I think that we probably mailed the letter, the

ransom letter to Mr., Franks, before we burned

the olothing -~ no, I don't know, at that,

"Captain Sohoemaker: Q Whers was it malled at?

"A The letter was malled right opposite from
the Hyde ﬁark post office, and I think was
meileds in faot I am quite sure was malled before
the clothing was destroyed.

"Q When would that be, abouib?

"A That would be about ten o'clook, oxr a quarter
to ten, at the Hyde Park station., Immediately after
having destroyed the olothes, washed the car and
hid the blanket, we procseded to a drug store on
the northwest corner of either Greenwood or Wood-

lawn. on 47th Street, where Laopold phoned UTs,
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Franks, telling her that her son had been
kidnapped,

*We then parked the car just north of where
Leopold lives, on Greenwood avenue, on the west
glde of the street, and entered the Leopodd homs.
Leopold took home his sunt and unole, Mr, aand
Mre, Schwab. I sat with Mr, Leopold for = while,
until Leopold came baok, Then we drank a while,
pkayed oards, and then we left, he taking me home
in his own car, when he had taken from the garage
:1n order to take his aunt and unole home,

"9 What time was 1%, about, then?
"A About ten thirty, I should Jydge., On the
" way home, we threw the ohiasel out of the ocar om
Greenwood avenus, some place hetween 48th and 50th.
He took me home, The next morning he came over
to my house around eleven thirty,
*Mr, Sbarbaro. " Was that the day that you
disposed of the other articles, like the Underwood?
"A No, this was the next day after the orime.

The next day Leopold came over to my house at

about eleven thirty, and I dressed and svlsoted
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a2 black overcoat and hat of my father's, #a

wear for the afternoon. I left them homs and
went out with Leopold, dressed as I usually do,
We went to the Cooper-Carlton for lunch, where we

had lunoch with Richard Rubel, the three of us

together, Immedietely after lunch we went
over to my house, I changed my overcoat and cap
for the black overcoat and cap or hat of
my father's, We went over to Leopold's, and
there I changed overcoats again, seleoting an
overcoat that was less consplchous, that happened
to be lying around the hallway there, We then took
the rented ocar, the Willys-Enight, which had been
parked all night at that same place, and drove it
around to the garage, where we attempted to wash
out the blood stains with soep and water,

"Q Was that Leopold's garage?

"A Yes, Leopold!'s ochauffeur came out, and
we told him that we were washing out marks of wine
from the oar.

"o You had reference to the red blood stains,
then didn't you?
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A Yes, ﬁpon leaving Leopold's, we prooceeded
downtown in both the Willys~Knights, I driving the
Rent A Car Willye-Knight. We stopped at the commer
of Oakwood and Vinoennea; we both of us got out
of the car and went to the corner of Pershing
Road and Vincennes, where there 1s a Keep the City
Cledn box. We left a note in this Keep the City
Clean box, reading to this effect, that Mr,

Franks was to oome =-- was to go immediately to
the Bogert de-Rosa or something drug stors at
the ocorner of 63rd and Blackstone, and wait
there in a speocified phone booth for a phone
call,

However, the letter did not stiok to the
Keep the City Clean box, with the stickers we had
provided for it; and fearing that it might blow
away or somebody might open the box and have it
blow away, we deolded that the best thing to do
was to entirely omit this letter from our
oaloulations; and when we phoned MY, Franks,
instead of telling himeg go to the Keep the City

Clean box where e would Teoceive a note telling
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him what further to do, to phone his house,
telling him to immedlately go to the Bogert de
Ross drug etore on 683rd Street.

After having placed the letter in the
Help Keep the City Clean box, we proceeded
down town in both ocars, We parked Leopold's Willye-
Knight on Wabagh avenue, near 16th street, and
proceeded to the Illinols Central station in the
Rent=A-Car Willys-Knight,

We stopped there, and I went out and
purchased a ticket to Michigan City, and a birth,
Wwearing glasses, in order to disguise myself,
as also the black hat and overooat, At two=~
thirty, the three o'clock train whioh runs on the
Hichigan Central se far aes Boston is made uoe
Therefore, at two thirty, I went down to the train,
got on the train and left a note which we had
prepared, in the box provided for telggraph
blanks.

This note instruoted MI'; Franks to go
immediately to the baok platform of the train,

to watoh the east side of the track, and to walt
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until he had entirely passed the first large red
brick factory with a water tower on top of 1t, with
the word "Champion" written on the water tower.
After he had completely passed thiw water tower
or this factory, he was to oount five quiokly,
and throw the package as far east as he oould.
At the same time, while I was placing the
letter on the train, Leopold was phoning the
Yellow Cab Company to send & cab to Franks and alao
telling MT. Franks to go to the Bogert De Ross
drug store.

"Mr, Loeb: That was at two thirty.

"My, Ettelson: Two thirty Central time, tlhree
thirty our time.

"M¥r, Loeb. Yes, it was then two thirty three

standard time,

"Mr, Ettelson: Three thirty Chicago time,

"Continuing reading) We jumped in our

car immediately, It was then about two thirty three,
We drove quiokly to 67th 8treet and Stony Island,

parking the car on the southwest corner of 87th and

Stony Island,
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We got out of the ocar and noticed a news
atand that was there where papers wsere on sale,
_showlng that an unidentified nude boy had been
found out around 131lst and Railroad avenue at the
Pennsylvania traocks, We had intended phoning Mr,
Franks from the Walgreen drug store at the
southeast corner of 67th and Stony Island. We
had intended phoning him to the Bogert de
Ross drug store, telling him to get on this train,
to purchase & tioket to Michigan Clty, and to look
in Car 507 for the communiocation which w-uld tell
him or which would give him further instructicuni.
We debated then what we should do, in view of
the boy's body having been discovered, I was not
very anxious to go on with the matter; but Léonzd
persuaded me to go ahead with the thing.
So he phoned Mr, Franks at the Bogert de
Ross drug store, and finding out that Mr, Franks
waa not there, we went to another drug store
further south on Stony Igland, where We again
phoned the Bojert de Ross drug store, again finding

out that Mr. Franks was not there, We then
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10 .realized that the body had been identified aa that
of Robert Frankes, and that any further attempt to
get the money would only result in failurse,

We therefore immediadly went down town
to the Rent A Car plaoce, and Leopold took the car,
I stayed outside, in the Willys-Knight, -~ in the
red Willyx-Knight whioch had been pmrked there.

I then returned home, got home about
five, and was told of the Franks murder by our
chauffeur, who showed me one of the newWwspapers.
Nothing else transpired of importance until
Saturday night.

Late Saturday night, around two o'clock,
I met Leopold at & restaurant next to the garage,
the Fashion garage at the corner of 518t and Cottage.
Mo had this ocar, and we took his car in which he
had placed his typewriter, the Underﬁood portable
typewriter, upon which the letters had bee
written, and we took the typewriter out of the
back trunk, brought it into the front seat, and
I took a pair of pliers and pried off the keys,
juet the very tips of the keys where the imprint
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We then took these keys in a little bundle,
and threw them off the bridge in Jackson Park,
situated near tho golden siatute of Liberty,

Then we fook the typewriter intact with oase, and

threw 1t off the bridge laadlng to tho ouder

harbor, In other werda, tho bridge, tho big stone

bridge with the pyramid effoot at all four
gorners of the hridgéj It 1y the bridge leading
to the outer harbor, Tho typewrlter was thrown
on the ecet side of the briuge,

The robe wae thon taken from its hidiag
plasa, We wanu over to Lespold'e garage and got soms
gasoline, took the robe out on Houth Shore Drive,
on 4 littlo slde street conneoting with the South
Shore Drive, and suturated the robe with gasoline
end set rire %o 1it,

That is all I have to tell about tyo
murder of Robert Franks,

*Q@ 4nd this statement that you have juet made
hz9 beon nade of your own free will?

A Yes, I just want to say that I offer mo

ezouse, but that I am fully convinced that neither
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the idea nor the aot would have ooourred to me,
had it not been for the suggestion and atimulus
of Leopold, RFuethermore, I do not believe

that I would have been capable of having killed

Franks,
This statonent is made of my own volition,

"Captaln Sghoemaker: Is that truse?

"¥r, Loeb: Ys3.

¥*Captain Schoemsker: Everything that he zead
there is true, 1is 1t?

"Mr, Lioceb: Yos,slr,

‘Taptain Sghoe 8&r: That is in your statement?
*Mr, Loeb: Yes, sir.,
>, Leopolds I have some gorrections,

In the firat place, the date as given
by M¥, Locb 1s about & month or two at the most
vefors the orime Yook plags. As I remember it
quite diséinetly, we started planning this thing
as early as Novembsr, 1933.

In the second plave, the suggestion

was his, not mine,

In the third plase, the Reat A Car is at
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14th and not 16th Streoed, The little
restaurant to whioch he refers is also at 13th, not
15658 Webesh, The hardware store to whiech he
refers 18 not at 47th, but between 55th and
58th, on Cottage Grove Avenus,
I did not bind the chisel with tape; he
did. The hip boots were not my brother's, but
mine, The place that he mentioned getting
the car was at 14th and not 18%h Strest,
A% the time the Franks boy entered our car,
1 was driving, not M¥, Loeb and MTr, Loeb was in the
bask meat, It was Mr, Loeb struck him with the
ohisel, and not I,
The phone call to my father's I think was
nade at nine forty five,
*Mr., Savage: Where'did you phone from?
"ir, Leopeld: At 1D4th and Ewing Avenue, Nz,
Loeb I think went home at one o'clook, instead
of at ten thirty as he seems to think.

"Mr, Loeb: K0, I never said that} I said I went

to your house at ten thirty,
Wir, Leopold: Then I misunderstood. And as far as
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14 that suggestion is ooncerned, again, I am sure
14 was Mr, Loeb that made 1%, and 1% waa hiws
plan, and it was he who did the act,

"Mr, Orowe; Outside of that, the statemsnt ia
correct?

RlMr, Leopold: Correot,

MR. CROWE: Now, if your Honor please, I have
one witness that I desirs to call before the State
oloses their case, and the witness that I desire fo
call is an employe of our office who worked all night,
and I understand went homs about noon to get a little
sleep.

THE COURT: How lang will he take?

MR, OROWE: H® won't take over five minutes at ¢he

‘ontside, probably omly two or three, 80 i? 4t might
go until ten o'olock tomozrow, I will close the State's
case at five minutes after ten.

THE COURT: Will you be prepared to proosed then?

MR, DARROW: We¢ will be prepazed, your Hemor.

THE COURT: Well, with that understanding we will
suspend, The State will olose its case five minutes

after opening or %en minutes, the State Will oclose
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Wednesday, July 30th, 1924,

10:00 o'clook A.M,

Court convened at 10:00 ofclock A,M. Hednesday,
July 30th, 1824, pursuant to adjourament

heretofore taken.

[

Present:  Same as before.

THE COURT: You may proceed, gentlsmen.
MR, CROWE: Mr. Sheeder, will you take the etand please,

FRANK A SHET IR,
& witness called on behalf of the prosecution, being
first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, CROWE.

Q what is your name, please?

A Frank A, Chesder,

Q Where do you live, Mgf Sheederf A 7038 Woodlawn
Avenue,

Q You are a shorthand reporter?

A Yes sir.
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Q A court reporter?

A Yesdr,
. @ And have been for how many years?

‘A About twenty-three.

Q Do you take testimony correcetly in shorthand?

A Yes sir,

Q@ And correctliy transcribe it on the typewriter?

A Yes sir,

. 'Q Did you take the statement that was read yesterday
by MrjAllen of Leopold's?

A ves sir, I did,

Q And you know the statement that I réféfitaf

A Yes sir,
Q You have % thers in front of you?

A Yes sir.
Q And you correctly transcribed that, did you?

A T did.

Q Andthe transcript thatwas read by Mr. Allen is a

correct transcript?

A It is,

MR, CROWE: That is ail.
MR? BAchRACH: No croes examinstion,

THE COURT: That ie all, you may step aside.
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(witness excussd snd no cro’s examination)

— ad e ew e

MR, CROWE: The State of Illinois rests.

THE COURT: The State resps.

T s e mwm Sy e am we

2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 974 1924



1t

Hei nOnli ne --

-8 75~

YR« BAchrach: I didn't quite understsnd what your
Honor had in mind when the motion was made to0 continue
the matter of the kidnapping cass. Isn't this the
proper time t0 take that matter up, so.that when we
introduce our proof, we can introduce it in opposition
to both cases?

THE COUBT: I am afraid if you mix up the two cases
1t might not be proper. In other words, if the
State —-

MR, CROWE: If they withdraw thelir plea of guilty
in the kidnapping case, I will nolle it,

MR, BACHRACH: ©No, we wont do that. We hav; pleaded
gullty 1p the kildnapping case,.

MR. CROWE: I insist that we finish the muder
case before we go into anythlng else, unless you
withdraw your plea in the kidnaping case, and I will
nolle the case and thus dlspose of it.

MR. DARROW: Well, we will have to meet that then
when we g2t to it., The plea is hers.

THE COURT: You see, the State is making arecérd
in the case of the People vs., Leopold and Loeb in

a certain number?
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MR, BACHRACH Yes,

THE COURT: The one charging murdsr,

MR, BACHRACH: Yes,

THE COURT: WNow, if there is tsstimony taken in
the other case at this time iv might cause some con-
fusion., The Statel!s Attorney, I unierstood to
say, at the opening of this case, that after this
cas8 was disposed of he could dispose of the other
case in lese than half an hour.

MR+ CROWE: I can dispose of it in a very few
minutes now if they withdraw their plea,

MR, BACHRACH: No, we don't intend to withdraw
the plea of guilty. We stick by the plza of guil{y.

THE COURT: well, after this case is disposed of,
as the State's Attorney says, he can dispose of
the other casa very shortly.

MR, BACHRACH: Your Honor assured us that judgment
would not be given until}giidence was introduced
in both cases, your Honor assured us of that in
the beginning.

THE COURT: Well, because the Statsl's Attorney

sald it wouldn't take more than a half hour to hear
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is on trial it would cause confusion to go into
testimony in the other case at this time, After
both sides have rested in this case I will take the
other ca3e up.

MB., BACHRACH: Before decision?

THE COURT: Yes, &nd Mr. Crowe says that he can

dispose of it in half an hour, Even if 1t takes

a2 half day, it doesn't maks any differencs.

MR, BACHRACH: Very well,
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WHEREUPON THE DEFENDANTS, 10 MAINTAIN
THE ISSUES ON THEIR PART, INTRODUCED

THE FOLLOWING EVIDENCE, to-wit:

WILLIANM A,  WHITE, ‘

‘a witness called on behalf of the Defendants, was first

duly sworn, and téstified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. WALTER BACHRACH,

Q Will you pleass state your name?

A Dr, William A, thize.

Q@ And your place of residénce?

AWésﬁington, D. C,

Q What is your profession?

A Physician,

Q What is your age, Doctor?

A FPifty-four.

Q@ Will you p;gaee state your professional connec-
tions, both pfesent and past.

MR, CROWE: Just a moment. I object to that, if
yaur Honor please.

THE COURT: WhY?
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terial,
THE ICOURTR Why?

MR, CROWE: The only purpose of it would bs to
lay a foundation for him to testify as an expert on
the Question of the sanity or insanity of the defend~
ante. On a plea of guilty your Honor has no right
to g0 intothat question. £#8 socon as it appears in the
trial, 1t 18 your Honor's duty to call a jury.

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: W8 do not propose, if your
Honor please —-—

THE COURT: Overruled, you may proceed,

MR, CROWE: I want to be heard on that, your Henor,
because if thers is anytestimony introduced in this
xxakX trial as to the mental condition of these boys,
anyact or any order'thax your Honor enters in the
case is a nullity. In other worde, 1f your Honor
at the oonclusion of this trial, after having gone
into the sanity proposition, should sentence these
boys to hang, your judgment would not be worth the
paper that it wae written on, the Supieme Court

would eet 1t aside. If you entered a judgment here
that 18 gatisfactory to the defendants, they wouldn't
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have to appeal, and the State has no right to appesl,
In other words, the State cannot appeal from any
order your Honor enters, The defendants have a right
to appeal from a2ll orders, I would have toconfess
error in the Supreme Court if your HOnor hung these
men after heariang evidence of insanity, If you
gave them life, or if you gave them & term of years
that was satisfactory to the defendants and their
lawyers, I couldn't appeal, and they wouldn't appeal,
I insist that the Questionqbf sanity or insanity
is a matter, under the law, for a jury, I would
l1ike to read your Honor the law on thie matter:
reading from Smith and Hurds 1Illinois Revised
Statutes of 1923, Chapter 38, Page 730, Section 588,
Whereupon Mr, Crowe here read from
the above authorlty in the words and

figures as follows:
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MR, CROWE: Can language be more explicit, more
mandatory and more direct than the language that
I have just read? You sze, the Supreme Court
in the Geary case passed on that. Geary vefore his
Honor Judge McDonnell, by hls attorneys, agreed that
the Court could inquire into his sanity —-

THE COURT: After conviction, wasn't it?

‘MR, CROWE: Regerdless of when, and the Court

_ appointed a commission, and the Supreﬁe Court saild

that is a master for a Jury to inQuire into and the
Court has no power to do it.

Insanity, 1f your Honor please, is a
defenese, just the same a3 an alibi, Would yo@f
Honor tolerate or permit these defendants to
enter a plea of gullty in this case, and then put
witnesses on the stand to show that when the
crime was committed they were in California?

Have we got to a point in the law here
where we can enter a plea of gullty before the coﬁrt
‘in order to avoid a jury, and then try that plaa

a8 a plea of not guildy and put in a defense?
What 18 the purpose of entering a plea of

guilty and then maintaining that you have a defense and
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youhavs a right to hear it, when the law says that
'thaet defense has got to be decided by twelve ment?

What 18 the defense trying to do here?
Are they zpx attempting to avoid a trial upon a ples
of not gullty with the defendants before twelve men
that would hang theam, and trying to produce a situa-
tion where they can get a trial befors one man that

» they think wount heng them?

I ineist if your Honor please, if we
procesd to hear evidence tending to show that these
men &re insane, anything you do from now on is
of no effsct in law, From the moment you hear evi-
dence of insanity this becomes a mock trial, and
any judgment your Honor enters the State's Attorney
will have to oonfess error in the Supreme Court,

I insist that the language --

THE COURT: Have you got any authorities sustaining
your position?

MR, CROWE: I have got the Geary case,your Honor.

THE COURT: The Geary case ien'!s in point. Any
other cases?

MR, CROWE: Yes, you Honor, we havg plenty of

casee,
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MR. MARSHALL: The authorities have held the propo-

sition, if your Honorplease -~
THE COWRT: Will you anewer this question --

MR, MARSHALL? -- that insanity is a defense.

THE COURT: Oh, tkere is no doubt about it. Now
listen to me, please’  Suppose these two young men
were here without cognsel, the court appointed
counsel, andthe defendant,whoever he was, pled
guilty to murder; the Court was of the opinion,
from his general appearance, that there was g mething
wrong with bim, that he was not competent to plead,
how wovld the Court determine whether or not he
was competent to plead guilty or not guilty?

MR, CROWE: That is for a jury,

THE COURT: Oh no., The Court could, and would
anddid, appoint allienists t0 examine him, and when
they told me that he was not insane, that he was

responslble for his acts, I permitted the plea of

_ guilty to stand, and sentenced him to 1ife impri-

Hei nOnli ne --

sonment in the penitentiary, only recently,

Now then, how do I know whether those
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boys are now competent to plead guilty or not guilty?
Take the case that you clte %o me,
the Geary cass. The Court said there that their
counsel couldn't waive any of the rights of
the defendant, Jense Geary, didn't they?
MR, CROWE: Yes, your Honor,
THE COURT: These counsel here cannot waive any
of the rights of these boys, and I have a right' -
. MR, CROWE: They are entitled to a trial by jury.
THE COURT: I have a right t0 know whether those
boys are competent to plead guilty or not guiltyf

When the defense arrives at such a point that this

. bourt, if this court wae gatisfied that .these

boys were 1nsane, the court could, and very likely.
would, direct the plea of guilty to be withdrawn
and a plea of not guilty entered and let the
defendants plead their insanity as a defense, There
are different forms of insanity.

MR, MARSHALL: In medicine,

THECOURT: In medicine, not in law, Is there any
mitigation in a murder case at all?

MR, MARSHALL: As to insanity, no.
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THE COURT: We don't talk about insusaity.

MR, MARSHALL: Therels mitigation of course, but
insanity is not of a mitigating nature. It 18 a con-
dition that existe, or 1t doesnot exiast,

MR, CROWL: There are no degrees, if your Honox
please in responsibility.

THE COURT: Oh yes theres are,

MR. CROWE: ©No, your Honor, We haven't got a
étatute which says that a man twenty percent normal
who commits a certaln act will get one punishment,
that & man who ig thirty percent normal who commite
the eame act will get ancother punishment, that another
man WRo 1s seventy percent normal who commits the
same act will be punished more severely, or that
& mwan one hundred percent normal who commits the
samg act will get a more severe penalty., Th;rsis

not any such statute here, You are either respon-

Bible for your acts under the law, or you are not

,responsible, and the responsibility ie complete, In-

sanity 1s a defense just the same as self-defense,
Juzt the same as an alibi,

Would your Honor listen to evidence of

: an alibl in this case?
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THE COURT: That i1s not the Question,

MR, CROWE: If it 1ls a defense, can you ligten to
any defense on a plea of gullty?

THE COURT: The Gefense hasn't said they are golng
to put on alienists to show that these men are ineane,
and I don™t think that thsey are going to attempt
to show that they are insans,

MR, CROVE: Well then What ie the evidence for,
what are they golng to show?

'

THE COURT: wvou will have to lietzn to it. Thsy
nave gai d that they are going to pubt evideance on
Ain mitigation of the corias, Our statute fixes
three or four different penalties, one 1g death,
the other is 1ife imprisonment, and the third is
a penitentiary sentence for a numberof yearse not
less than fourteen. Now there certainly must be
degress of murder,

" MR, CROWE: Yes your Honor.

THE COURT: That is, degrees of punishment, and the
punighment that the Court metes out must be guided
oy the evidence introduced,

MR, CRORWE: If your Honor pleass, when a defendant

Pleads guilty to murder, the only plzce your
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Honor can find evidence of mitigation is In the things
surrounding the commission of the crime. You do
not take the microscope and look inte hie head to
see what etats of mind he was in, because if he is
insene he is nut responsible, and if he is sane he
is responsgible, then you look, not to hie mental
condition, but you look to the factes surrounding the
ceée, did he ki1ll the man because the man had
debauchad his wife?t If that 18 so then there 18’
mitigation here, Did he kill the man because the
man had epread slanderous a3turles about him? Then
there is mi?ig;tion. Did he kill the man in the
heat of passion during a drunken fig:'ht? That 18
mitigation.
| But here is a cold-blooded murder,

without a defense in fact, and they attempt, on a
plea of guilty, to introducs an insanity defense
before your Honor, and the stdtute says that ie a
matter that must be tried by a jury.

THE COURT: Has anybody said that they are going
tc introduce en ims anity defense?

MR, CROVWE: Well, what is the purposz of putting

an expert on the stand?
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THE COURT: They have a right to, in my opinion.

MR, CRORE: Aren't they going into hils menteal
cendition?

THE COURT: well, swppoze they do?

¥R, WALTER BACHRACH: We have a right te do that,
under the authoritiles,

THE COWRT: The state of mind of one who is in
pessession of his ordinary faculties, without any
mental disezse, I havse a right to know that, and that
dossn't excuse him from the offense he has committed;
but they have a right to show me that wae the con- -
dition of his aind at that time , and insanity, st
law, cofers nothing mcere than the relstion of the

'pezéon to tﬁa particular act which is the swject
of judlciel investigation —— the particuler act
which is the subject of judicizl investigation.

Now this is the act which is subject to judicisal

' investigation, and I think I have a right to go

* into 1% to know the state of one vho ie in possession

i

. of his ordinary faculties and is not affected by

any mental disease, Now, if he is affected by mental
disezese, then he is ineane., If that be true, then

this Court might, and probably would, insist that the
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acfendants withdraw thelr plea of gullty and enter
& plea of not guilty, so that a jury could pase on
the question of his sanity or not. . This Court

is not going into the Qusstion of sanity, 1t hesn't
any right to. I agres with you absolutely, this
court hasn't any right to. But if during the pro-
grees of this hearing the court ies of ths opinion
that these men ars insane, then it 1s the duty of

tre court t¢ bzve them withdraw their plea of

'gullty and enter a plea of not gullty, and theee

couneel here have no right to walve the constitu-
tional rights of those men.

| If this oourt st any tine is of the
opiniovn they are insane, then he has got his duty
to perform; but they h%ve ; right, in my opinion,
t¢ show the condition of mind of those boyes, 1if

they are in possessicn of their ordinary faculties,

rand 1f they are not affected by mental disease,

the court has a right to know if.

MR. WALTER BACHRACH: May I make this statement,
if the cowrt please, We are not interested in this
inquiry, in the legal question of insanity. That

is a question which relates golely to the knowledge
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of the acoused as to right and wrong and the abiiity
t0 choose between the two. But what we propose %o
show here, ie a medical condition, a patholeglcal
condition, which has abeolutely no relation to the
legal question precented on an insanity issue, and
I have the authorities here.
THE COURT: We are not going to try any 1nsah1ty
'issue here, gentlemen. |
MR, MARSHALL: If your Honor please, 1t makes no
difference by what name they call it, if it is &
watter thst hae to do with the condition cof the ming,
1t approaches that question of senity or insanity
80 closely that you cannot draw the line, and our
Supreme Court has said that questions of this naturs
are particularly within the province of the jury.
Now then your Honor has said that thece
counsel for theese men may not walve their constitu-
tional rights, And that is the law, they cannot.
And if they go on with this induiry and show certain
things of this type, and the ‘State acqutesces and
permits a record here showing & condition of the

mind, not as your Hoaor has indicated, satisfaotory

to you that they are insane, but even the s8liighteet
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evidence of the sxistence of insanity, the tendency
of evidence to show insanlty, if you pleaee, the

rule is so ancient, i1t was held in Blackstone's

tiwe, when he said thst questions of non-compue mentis
were to be tried by the jury, and so here, not having
a right anywhere to waive constitutional rights,

there is only one body, in the law, to try the question,
and that ies a jury, ana the mere offer of a witness

to show questione of sanity or insani%y as to thi?
plea, zfter they have pleaded guilty under the presump-
tion of esanity that goes with them throughout the

trial down to the point where insanity 1s suggested,
the mere offer of such a witness suggests to your
Honor's mind a condition of thiags that may violate
their constitutional rights, that their ocounsel may
not waive, that the Btate cannot reach , and that the
Court may not disregard, and 8o that condition exist-
ing, if your HoOnor please¢ it distinctly, as I con-
ceive it, beoomes thes duty of the Court to act upon‘
that suggestion and call a jury.

Now, the autnorities are full to the

[}

proposition that insanity is a defense,

THE COURT: Let me see some of them, Where is
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your authority,yany Illinols authority?

¥R, CROWE: Yes, & maes of then,

THE COURT: (et the latest, I don't care about the
Geary case,

MR, MARSHALL: Your Henor wants to kﬁow is insanity
a deiense?

MR, B, C, BACHRACH: No, he doesnot, 7You keep 63
repeating that, You know what our position is he;gf'

MR, CROWE: If your HOnor please —--—

MR, DARROW: Just a moment.

MR, CROWE: Just let me agk a Quesfion.

MR, DARROVW: You are talking all the time,

MR, CROWE: Just a nomentv, Mr. Darrof. I inéist when
the Court indleoates that he is with you and ageinst
the State, that the State ought to be permitted to argue
in ax an attempt to change the Cowt's mind, Let
me a8k the Court a question,

If it is conceded that insanity ie a
defense, have they got a right to inbroduce any |
evidence of a defense in this case, with a plea of
guilty? Any evigence of a defenee?

MR, B, €., BACHRACH: VYo,

ORO& mhen haveuyy T”m wamght t0 introduce
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any evidence as t¢ the mental condition of these meh?

MR, B. C. BACHRACH: Certainly.,

MR, CROWE: Tending to show that they sre not
responsible, or only to be held to that degree of res-
ponsibility that other people would be held to?

MR, B. C. BACHRACH: Certainly.

MR, CROWE:  Well that 1s insanity, called by
another name. | Y

MR. B. O, BAchrach: Well, you can ®x call it
green cheesg, if you like -~ ”

THE COURT: wait = minute, don't get excited. You
have got your authorities here on both esides?

MR, CROWE: Yes,

MR, WALTER BACHRACE: Yes, your Honoz.

THE COURT: Give me the latest cases in Illino;sl
Have you the 2396, have you that case?

MR, MARSHALL: Yes, if your Honor please,

MR, CROWE: While Ur, Marshall is getting the
authorities let me put ancther proposition to:
your Honor. |

THE COURT: Yes,

MR, CROWE: After the defense puts on their testi-

mony which shows the mental condition of thess boys
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of these murderers, what rebuttal could the State
put on, except to put on witnesses to testify that
they were sanse? Haven't you got & Questicn of
insanity there?

THE COURT: You folks have gone off on that tangent
that they are going t5 put up here a defense thatthe
defendant s are insane, I don't know thzt they
‘have 'any such intention. Only the State hae said’
i,

MR, CROWE: T8 this doctor golng to testify bo
‘anything-—

THE COUBT: Supposing they put on a policewzn from

" the, corner and he éot on the stand and said "why,
" theee two fellows are insene,n do youthink the
Court would give it any welght?

MR, CROWE: I insist that youwr Honor should give
it weight. |

THE COURT: What a policeman on the cornmer should
say about them? |

MR, CROWE: The policeman on the corner may
know more about that boy's meﬂtal conditiorn

than an alienist. Your Honor and I can tell if

we have been in the company of a person for many
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years, we can tell vwhether he ie sane or inséne,
we don't need an expert to tell us that.

THE COURT: Well I am talking now about bringing
& poiiceman from the corner who don'tinow anything
about 1+v. I am no; gaying anything about an |
alienist or someone who has assoclated with them.
Have you the 3937 Get we the 293, Have you got
it there? Have you got the Vitti case? GO eshead
with your authority,-anything sustaining your pogi-
tion., Now not, mind you, that they are going to
put in a defense of insanity, They are not going
t0o be permitted to put in a'defense of insanity.

MR, MARSHALL: How dan it be distinguished, if
insanlty ie a defeuse, and insanity is a defense,
and they come in here on a plea of guilty and pro-
ceed tc show, after a plea of gullty, that these
men are insane?

THE COURT: Why, they baven't done 1t,:dy
dear sir, the} haventt attempted to.

MR, MARSHALL: That is the tendency of the evidence,

THE CGRRT: OF I don't know whet the tendency 13,‘

we Will have to hear it., I can't tell what is in

HeinOnline -- 2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 996 1924



23y

Hei nOnli ne --

-~ 997

thie wman's mind,

MR, DARROW: You will be able to if we are given
a chance, -

THE COURT: You have = right to objeft to any
particular question, tha is all.

MR, MARSHALL: 1f the tendency &f éha evidsnce in
a case of this kind, because of the rule of lawas
to sanity --

TIE COWRT: Gosghead with your authorities. Now show
me by some exprecsion of the Supreme Court, not on
the question of insanity, but that the Court has no
right to listen to a witness who will testify to
some condition, | '

MR, CROWE: And that doesn't go to theduestion of
sanity or insanity?

THE COURT: Let us see what the Supreme Court says.,
Vie will never get together if you and I continue
arguing about it, but let me see what the Supreme
Court has sald on the subjeot, l&sten to the language
of the Supreme Court, 1ts latest expression on this
question, and we will try and be guided by what the

Supreme Court says.
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MR, MARSHALL: Blackstone lays down -—

* THE COURT: No, I am talking about the Supreme
Court of Illinois,

MR, MARSHALL: Allright. The Supreme Court of Illinois
ie founded, if yow Honor please, upon Blacketone,
because of the nature --

THE COURT: Have you any authority in Illincis
orr this subject?

MR, MARSHALL: This queetion of mitigation is
one that ie not found on every page of the books,

THE COURT: I asked you if you had any Illinoils
declieions and you sald you had anumber of them?

MR, MARSHALL: We have our authorities to our
view of this sltuation. I wanted to quote Blackstohe,
I vwanted to get the rule in your Hoanor's mind.  "But
if there be any doubt about whether the party B; compas
or not, this ghall be firied by a Jjury". Blacketone
Book 4, Chapter 3," If there be any doubt about
whether the party be compos or not, this shall be
“trled by & jury."”

THE COURT: Any doubt by whom? .

MR, MARSHALL: By the Court.

THE COURT: How 40 you know that there is any doubt
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in the Court's mind?

MR. MARSHALL: No, f sald by the Court. I withdraw
that, But if there be' any doubt -- not by the court,
by anybody. Generally speaking, any doubt, Black-
8tone e4ys, whether the party be compos or not,
this shall be tried by a jury.

Now, thet is the law in Illinois now,
ff there is any room for the question of sanity or
insanity in this case now, then thers 1s & doubt ,
because the whole question of insanity was disposed
of by the plea, {

THE COURT: You are going back again to the insanity
Question.

MR, MARSHALL : You camnot escape it

THE COURT: wpell, we will try to. Let ug see what
the Suprems Court hasg said, the Supreme Court of
Illinois?

MR. MARSHALL: People vs, Geary, 297 Illinois ,

THE COURT: I know the Geary case, That was one
where after conviction Judge MoDonald appointed a

commission, where counsel on both sides agreed that

could be done, and the Supreme Court said that counsel
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had no right to walve the constitutional righte of
the defendant, but they must be tried by a jury; and
the jury found that gsary wae ineane at that tine,
It had already found him sane when he committed the
deed, and he 1s now in Chester, weiting to bs restored'
t0 reason; and if at any time from now on he is
restored to reason, there is nothing left but for
sowe Judge of the Criminal Court to fix a date

for his execution, All his appeals have been
cxecuted; every remedy has been exhausted. The
Supreme Court has passed on the matter, and he is
held there now because you cannot hang a person

even after judgment, who is insane, The finding
in the Geary case was that he wa&s sane when he com-
mitted the deed, that he became insane between that
time and the date of hie execution, and therefore

he hae gone to Chester, to remain until he is
restored to reason, and then some court must fix

the date for his execution. But that is not on all
fours with this case. That was a trial for insanity,
in which counsel waiwed the constitutional rights

of the defendant to a trial by jury, and the
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Supreme Court said, "you must go back and try
the insanity case with & jury". There was no question
about that, If there is a question of insanity to
try here, it is going to be tried by a jury.

MR. MIRSHALL: Now, if thers is a tendency tc¢ show
inganity --

THE COURT: Not a tendency.

MR, MARBHALL: If there 18 evidence indicating in-
sanlty --

THE COURT: Have you any authority from the Supreme
Court smstaining your position?

MR, MARSHALL: Blackstone, And I have authority
thet insanity connot be heard in mitigation.

MR, DAFROW: &nd we have authority that it an, —-
not insanity, but mental condition,

THE COURT: Not insanity. "he Court is not going
to hear a question of insanity here.

¥R, MARSHALL: Lest us distinguish, and draw the
lines whsre they properly belong. Insanity is not
a legal term at all; it is a medical term, |

THE COURT: Relating to the condition of a man's

mind,

]

MR. MARSHALL: Precisely, It might more properly be
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termed responsibility or irresponsibility in the law,
May we in mitigation hear all of the different branches
of medical insanity, when insanity is within the

lzw a defenee? There are onehundred and fifty kinds

of medical insanity.

THE COURT: What 18 the definition of insanity?

MR, MARSHALL: Unsoundness of mind, and that 1e a
defense, | ”

MR. BACHRACH; Oh, no.

MR, DARROW: The courtehave passed on that so meny
timee you must know that. They may be found gullty
aven if the mind is unsound. But the statute in
thig State provides that the Cowrt may listen to
anything, either in migigation of the penalty or in
aggravation, of course, it doee not follow that
a man has to be hanged, eimply because he has commltted
murder, The legielature has given a wide latitude
to elither court or jury. Now, the condition of mind
way mitigate, If it 1le legel insanity, of course it
18 a defense, and we could not plead it, but anything
showing weakness of mind or discase that doee not

approach legal insanlty, the Court may, if he wishes,
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if he thinke it 1s right, just and humane, conseider
a8 onz thing that mitigates the penalty in tthe case,

MR, MARSHALL: Your HCnor asked me what insanity
ie, The Supreame Court in Hoch vs. the People said:

"It is now generaly conceded that

Insanity is a diseese of the brain."
Under that definition of insanity, any evidence of
partial intellectual mania, or moral menia, whether
general or partial, is insanity.

MR, DARROW: There is no 3Jefenze on the ground of
insanity unlese it shall bes euch insanity as will not
permit them to distingulsh between right and wrong,
or to be able to resist the wrong and do the right,

MR. B, C, BACHRACH: Ang svery case holds that,

¥R. DARROW: The statute says that the Court may
hear evidence on the Question of mitigationor eggra-
vation. Is not the cmdition of one's mind a question
that amay properly be considered by the Court in
mitigetion, where it does not rise to a defense?

MR, MARSHALL: That le answered in the language of

the rule laid down in Corpus Juris:

"The law doef not recognize the division

of insanity into the numerous branches
2 Illinois. Criminal Court. Cook County. Trial Transcript Leopold and Loeb 1003 1924
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mao convenient for purposes of
description,”
I would cite your Honor 109 Illinois, 169,

THE COURT: This is a case where the jury hxxkam had
already passed upon it, and in thie case they went
the verdict set aside, and the Court says, using your
languege, no, "Questions of this kind are pecullarly
for & jury, end the jury having determined it,
this Court 18 not going to set 1% aside.”

he point I am trying to get at is this:
as to the state of mind of one who is under judielal
inquiry while in posseesion of his ordinary faculties
and unaffected by mental disease. When affected by
mental disease, that ie insanity. I am not going
into that, I am not going to permit 1t. But as
to a case where they are unaffected by mental disease,

one Who is in the stzte of mind of one who ie in

s

posgeseion of hia ordinary faculties, unaffected

by mental disease, but who gives way to passionms,

what they call emotional or impulsive insanity,

the term that doctors use for thelr own convenilencs

to dimtinguish this, that and theother for treatment:
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have I a right to listen to evidence along that line
or have I not?

MR. MARSHALL: Absnlutely not,

THE COURT: Then you must show me some authorities,
'he Geary casé 1s not in point and nelther le the

109 Illinois, Let ue see whetk the 2023 Illinois says,

.pege 33,

"In a case of partial immanity, the
afflicted person, to be regsponsible
for a crime, must aot only be capable
of distinguishing between right and
wrong but he must also be mentally
capable of chooslng elther to do or not
to do the act constituting the

crime, ana of govemrmng his conduct ac-
cording with such cholice.,"

MR, MARSHALL: I am trying to make it plain to you;
Honor that partial insanity is one of the branches of
& diseased mind, a diseased mind belng neczecary to
unsouddness ¢f mind in law, I have authority after

authority as to the operation of mental insmnity,

THE COURY: There is no use clting them because the
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Court agrees with you. If there 1s any mental disease,
it is insanity.

MR, MARSHALL: And if there is n¢mental discase it
isnot in this caee,

THE COURT: Well, we cannoct say thsat.

MR, DARROW: Do you mean to eay the Court will not
consider mental cordition on a question of mitigation,
where that mental cindition does not rise to a defencse?

MR. MARSHALL: I mean to say that if we have a mental
condition of that kind, it wes your duty to take full
advantage of it before a jury, becauese it is only
necessary to ralee a rzasonable doubt in the minde of
the jury, to acquit,

MR, DARROW: We might not have anybody who would
tectlfy or who believed that they did not know the

difference between right and wrong and were not

~ to some extent capable of choosing., But if they

have & mental diffioculty, if they have a low degree
of rssponsibility, that is one of ths things contemw
plated by the statutes, I aa quite csrtaln that |
they can nsver find a case otherwise, and we have one

dirsotly in point,
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MR, WALTER BACHRACH: Tracey vs. State, 64 North-
western, Page 1069, In that oase the Supreme Court
of Nebraska has occasion to discusse the character
of inquiry t0 b¢ made by the trial judge upon
arraignment for sentence, Here we contend we have
a right to show th: xedical mental condition of thees
*defendants, the medical, psycho-pathological condition
which falls short of a legal defense which we could
waintain on an issue of insanity, as bearling upon
the question of the amount of punishment whlch the
Court should iapose.

MR, MARSHALL: I think we are completely invading
the field of law as to mental responesibility., I
want to oite the ocase of Parsons vs, State, 8th Ala~
bame, 577. But before that, in the Stats of Colerado,
their statuts upon aggravation and mitigation of

sentence ig almost a parallal of ours word for word.
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1 BUt you wil™ notice the analysis ¢f those
Harvey

rels. things that are mitigating doesn't include a single
Ingder

11!152AM cne thoat amounts to a defense. Now, what do they
7-30-34

guy? The character of the defendant, his habits,

his social standing, his intelligence, his -otives

for the commission of the dffense, but if they have

& defense i1t is not mitigation, Hltigating circum™

stances are such as do not constiiute & justifica;ion

or an excuse of the defense in qu stion Just as

morphine does not include anything that goes to the
structure of the crime, within the elements thet make up the
charge in the indicument, !

And so in mitigation, we are out ﬂefe'beyoﬁd
the limits of the legal side of the case. We are in
that fleld where me%cy applies. Why should they not
hang? VWhat 1is there‘i? fact that appeals to the
rercy of the court outeide of the begal lines of 'the

. case] itself, bedause the 1egal‘lines of the case,
" the elements of the case, all came to a conolusfpn'
'in the law, with a plea of guilty.

There is in Colorado a statute and consititution

paerallel with curs.
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JR, TARROVW: Whet has thit got to do with our case?

IR, /RSHALL: Everything.

1 R, TARROW: 0f covrse we claim, our claim here is
we ccnld not use this as & defeﬁse.

R, MARSHALL: Insanity can be pleaded as adefense
to a charge of crime, but not in witigation of the
degree of guilt. Commonwealth v, Hollingsr, 190
Pa. 155, I want to read that to your Honor,

THE COURT: That is insanity again. You are coaing
Lack to insanity. The Gourt is with ycu on that
rropesition. The Court is with yeu on that propositior.

¥R, MARSHALL: . Now, because the doctor calls
déﬁravity one fyﬁe Bf 1éga1 insaﬂity -

THE C7URT: How do yveu know or how do I know what
this doctor on the stand is going to say?

MR, MARSHALL: I follow Judge Crowe's objection. I
em assuming he does not kﬁow a thing about the crime,

THE COURT: Assuming what this man is going to te=tify
to, the Court is of the épinion un’ess‘you show me

. authorities to the contrary, just as I say --
‘ /r’-‘

MR, MARSHALL: I regard Suith against the People

the case I just rsad —
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THE COURT: Thst is Colorado?

YR, MARSHALL: Yes.

THE COURE: The C lorado cese, if at all, it helps
the other side, in ny opinion, because it saysg there
you can put evidence in in ritigation.

siR. MARSHALL: Of coursé, you can hear evidence in
mitigation,

THE COURT: I am nct going to hear evidence on in-
sanity. = I have told you thet.

IR, HARSHALL: Well, ncw, in mitiga*: n we will as-
gumeg that the evidence shows --

THE COURT: I don't care dout insanity, that is not

the questlon.

MR, UARSHALL: Dees ycur Honor want to hear the

authorities and the propositions of what is woral

Inganity and as to its place in the law,

THE COURT: If it ig a mental disease I am not going

to hear it,.

MR. MARSHALL: I don't know at eny time what you have
been talking about, Mr, Darrow, because you have
Cconfused o mental condition that is nct insanity, as yoﬁ

say, with an ineanity, with a plea that brings you in
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in here as sane men.

*R. DARROW: Insanith w-uld not be evilence in this
case unless 1t was such insanity as preventéd theu Ifrom
knowing the difference between right and wrong or
prevented them from exerclsing -- HNow, supposing the
mental condition does not arlse to that but sericusly
interferes with their Zree will and their under-
st@ﬁding, don't you think the Court has a right t. listen
éo that in mitigation? K

. B, BACHRACH: TIsn't 1t his dufy to hear it} and

could he refuse to hear it.

¥R, CROWE: Let me answer that, The Court has
not tﬁé power to determine,'the attorneys kuaxr for the
defendants have nct the power to determine whether the

mental disease or the mental ir egularities of the

defendants arise 1o a polnt where it wonuld constitute

' & defense. The law says that guestionmust be deocided

by a jury. You can't, Hr, Darréw, or ¥r, Bachrach,
say that we have evidence from a docotor which in our
judgment doesn't amount to a legal defense, but the
evidence is that their mind is diseased in some

manner, that they have not complete control over their
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actions, and we wunt ycur Honor to hewr 1t, and your
Honcr has no right to say, either in the beginning or
at the end, I ar of the oplnion that th.t evidence
Joesn't corstitute legal nseanity, and that is what
yeu are attemnting to do here, you are a*terpting to
sy shether or not after having heard thié;evidencg
the be s are insane or sane., Once the gquestion of their
mental céndition‘is'brought in you have g0t to call
a Jury,

a point of

. TARRO™: There is noplaW on ~arth for that,

THE C37RT: Will ,ou cite one authority?

o~

Pv—

I3, CROVE: I have cited, your Honor, and I believe

they are in point;
N

THE COURT: The Geayy case?

.IR, CROWF: The Geary cése and the statute 1tself,
your Honar,

IHE COURT: If you are relying on the Geiry case ycu
might as well end the argument, the Gou?t will overrule
you. Have you got any other casel l

MR, OROWE: I suggest Mr, Harshall go ahead.

THE COURT: The Cclorado case is not 1in point in my

opinion, and the other case certainly is not.
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Now, ysu sall scmething about the “mith case,
LRy T, TACTRACH: That was the & ith ¢ ve, the
Celoruuwo case,

THE COUTT: Oh, in that czse they s&y ¢n a -lew of
guilty the court has 2 right tc hear evidence in
mitigatim, It don't say enything about the mental
condition, 1% says all evidence --

MR, MARSHALL: \'If 1t amounts fo or suééés%s insanity --

THE COURT: I don't care what they suggest.

IR, CROWE: Your Honor has no right to decide 'i%,

TR, GARSHILG: Counsel for the defensc can not pass
cn 1%, you can not pass on it, we can not pass on it,
there is but one body that can, and that is a jury,
because of the nature of that defenss, it being insan-
ity.

THE COURT: Now, you are going back to insanity
again, The Courtlhas told you he is not going to hear
and vass on the question of insanity at all, If the
Coutt after hearing the evidence comes to the cenciusion
that theSe men are insane in his opinion and that they
had no fight to plead guilty, it is the duty of the Court,
Tegardless of their plea of insanity, to insist on their
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7 MR. CROWE: Your Honor misses the real point. You
have not the power vo Jeterrine shether the svidence
that has been introduced censtitutes insanity or not.
Just as soon as evidence of a mentual ocndition is
brought inlthe case, that is & questicn, as the Ccurts
havé‘stated peculiarly for a Jury.

THE COURT: They never said it,

MR. CROWE: We\just read it fo you.

THE COURT: The presumption 1s those men are sane,
They have pleaded puilty. The State has nut in its
evidence; the Court must determine the punishment;
,Fhe defense here say they have & right to bring in
certain evidence in mitigation of the cffense.’Aéﬁér
hearing what the defense has got to say then the Court,
in his judgment, may fix the penalty of these bo&s
at death, the Court may fix thelr punishment at

_imprisonment for life, for & term of years not less
than fourteen, That is my duty, to fix the punishment
after I have heard all of the evidence with reference
to this case.

If:something came up which led the Court

to belleve that those boys were not cowpetent to plead
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guilty -— and in the Geur—~ case the Supreme Court
3.y8 that the counsel cennct w.ive their constitutional
rights, -~ I could insist that they withdraw thelr
Oled of guilty wnd enter & piew ¢f net gullty, and put
on this uefense ¢f insanity or sut on the insanity
ws w Jdeflense, But the lovrt is of the oplnion that
I' have a right tc Iisten tc any evidence in mitigation
gf this criﬁe; touching the responsibality of those
to,9 at the ti.e that they committed the deod, and alter
I ave he.rd 1%, whetror I zive it 'elght, what welght
I .ive it nebody weuld .now but  ysell, and after it
is 21l in, then let-m ine what punishrent should be
igflictéd.

I don't wnow vhat they are g~ing to introduce
here, I have ot the least llea except they put a
medical man con the stand --

1R, MARSHALL: If there is the in*roducticn of the

élightest evidence --

THE COURT: Show me an authority.The Court is sustairing
your positicn on that,

MR. CROWE: We have,read those authorities] but the

Court said they are not authorities in opposition of

to the plain words of the de.ision and the statutes,
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which says the watters are peculiarly matters for &
Jury,

THT CI7FT: The Ge.ry cuse wse-not mitigation of enything,
" The Court hos long gone threcugh and found him suilty and
sent nced him to de.th. Hie case ..g aflirmcd by the
Su reme Ccurt and then they cet up that between the time
thet he comnitted the crire &nd the day set for the
eiacption, that he becunme ;hgang;l Jﬁdgeﬁﬁc@onald
appeinted this Cou .1spicn and if Wgs there théy said
cv ns 1 haa no right to wailve the constitutional right,
an. there they impeneled thedury for what purpose?
To detormine whether or not Geary became in;ane between
the date cf the‘briai oﬁ which the Jury fouﬂd'be Wu s
gune, and the date cf the executicn, and they found he had.
4R, CROWE: And the sole ques‘ion vwas whether or not
the (ourt could rass on the sanity of a man or whether
it wae necessary to ¢8l1l o Jury, That is the only
gquestion,
THE, GQﬁRT: Thet is where there was a clear case
of a petition to try a men for in-wnity ., There ig no

petition of that kind here,

MR, B, BACHRACH: The State's Attorney should file one
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1f he wunts a jury.

L CR7E: How con your Lunor say nod or at the
conclugion of this casc that the evidenoce of the mentsl
condition of these men uon't amount to lezal insanity?
Yor have 10 Tight to say after having heard evidence,
that T am convinced th..t this evilience does nct amount
to iegul insanity, I an convinced that these men ars
sa@eland I have a right to gentence them on thei;,plea.
You ave no right to <o that,

THT COUTT: Oh, vyes.

B, CROWI': Bec.use hen the gusstion of sunity
comes up s8o1:€ person else, some other rerson nay
think --

THE COURT: If what yuu suy is true -

MR, CROWE: Let me finish, Judge, -~ Some other person
way sy that the evidence which you have heard, which you
say does not convince you thut they ars legally insane,
some other person may say it convinces me that they are
legally insane, and the Supreme Court will say, there
having been evidence in’'roduced that might reaise a dcubt
in somebody's mind, & reasconable doubt, that matter

had to be submitied to a Jury, the Jud.e had no
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11 right to hear it and to deterwine it himself.

THF CUPT: I wiat ycu say then is true there never
could be a cuse ¢f a glea of zul 1y, ~ecause you even
s.y there may be evidence in mitigation,

R, CROVE: But not as to the mentul condition,

‘IR, TARROV: It is done every .uy.

THE COURT: Walt . winute, pleuse, There alght be
evidence as to nitigation --

R, CRF: But not to the .ental condition.

THE CPURT: Weit a minute, gentlemern., Suprosing
yeu admit therec can be evidence put in in mitigation
and supposing while introducing that evidence in
mitigation that somebody takes the stand and sai.
the wan was iansane, --

MR, CROWE: It would be ycur duty to call a Jury.

THE COURT: That is ridiculecus. On mitigation somebody
takes the stand solely for the purpese -— probably
because theyfear the penalty which is tbout to bve
meted out, and he takes the stand and says that man

is insane, and I have to stop whether I believe, him

or not, whether I give his testimony any weight or not
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and say I must insist on thut wan withdrawing .1s
rlea?
7. CROWE: Aren't you acting as & Jury then?
THE CCTPT: If the matter is submitted to (e I
will hear 211 the evidence introduced -~
"R, CROVWE: fren't you deciding s question of fuck
when you say ycu don't believe he is insanel
THE CORT: I heve w right to decide all questions of
T et. | | | |
R, CROWE: Not on the guestion of insanity.
THE COURT: They asked me fo put cn -- there is a men
comee in and he wante to put on & ﬁitness in mitigation,
dnd he piuté on a man and then a‘dodﬁbr; waybe the Family
physiclan and during the course of his testimony he
says the man 1s insane, put on there for that purpose,
because he fears the Court is going to sentence hinm
to death, and in ordér toyprevent that he sticks on a
~Lellow who says that man is insane; You sa§ I have
to believe what he  gays?
MR, CROWE: No, but you have to say that ie a quesbion
for'a Jury to pass on,

THE COURT: There is no authority in the world on 1%,
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Show me eny authority.

PEL. CPWME:r T huve read authority aft . authority o

cyour lonor anl y.our enor insists on stoting thet the

pluln wor.s of the gtatute anl these authcrities don't
meen Wh+t they s.y.

THT COJLT: Anything furither?

VP, CRO'T: Any judement entered by yecur ‘loncr in this
cage W vld be absolutely void if you hear this evidencs,
wné sentence them +c life end Mr, Darrow will take 1t
to the Supreme Court, I will confes- error,

THE CUTC: I cannot help what you gentlewen do after I

Y

get'throuéh'w;th it,

MRL Bl BAC&PAGH: I udnf foxsafAtﬁié, 1% the Court plcagé,
that in thie matter it appears 1t is not for the

attorneys for the de ense to decide whsther your HOPnor
ghall hear evidence of mental irresponsibility short of
insanity. It is not in your Honor's mind, but it is to

be deciied entirely by our State's Attorney who can't
think of anything in this case buﬁ henging these boys.

New, the?e is no argument in spite of anything he says

about the statute, about your Honor's duty, about the

guthorities here, There is not in Illinois, there is
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noct in the stutute one werd which says ycur “cnor moy
nct he r in ritigi’ion just %x such things as heve
¢p..gere. fren the Nebrusxa case, the ient:l condition,
in*ellicence enl (ctive, «-. the things that are
brcught v, that uight have influenced him in the
covissicn of the cri e, P11 those thirgs are to be
heurd, We have _ited "ore .n hour 2nd ¢ half, and it
seews t0 we 1T yorr Honor 4l not hear this evidence
it woulc bhe absclusiily certain’your Honor did not hear
wh .t the statute .ekes it wunilatory for you to hear,
witnesses testifying in witigation. That is &ll I have
to say ascut it.

THE COTRT:  Wwgting an hcur end 2 half don't make
any Jdifference. The lives c¢f two men are at stake, and
an acur and a helf or ¢ 1.y and 2 hall wonld not make
any uiffercnce, if the Court can be enlightened,

R. JARSHALL: Moral insunity --

THE COURT: There you are on insanlty agein. I will
nct enter a judgment on insanity, The question 1s here,
cen the defense in mitigation show a mental condition
of those young men at the time they committed the deed?
fupposing the wers under the inlluence of -rrhins,

czulw .ot they g ow 17
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R. CROWE: They could not show it, and 1t w 14 not
te nitipzti n eny wore than if vhey volintarily got
drunk, and the lavw ~oys 1t would not mitig:te the crime
and weuld not excuse them in any m.nner,

THF GO T: What t*ess gentlemen are gecing to
introduce may nct mitigate the cri.e cne icta. I aon't
xncw what they arc geoing fto intrcduce.

1 P, MARSHALL: me.e is cne on witigaticn bhefore
the Celifornis court, Pec.le, Respouruents, vs. w«rshull
J. iller, 114 Cel, Re_. » 10,

TEL o1 T: Whot 18 the ¢ sel

JR, WARCHALL: 114 Cal, -~e.. b. 10,

THE COU:T: A1l righ'.

(Whereupen ..rs .elshall r-ad frc  the
ebove authcrity referred tc in the w T .8

anl figures «s Follows:)

~
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18 T30 CUUnT: & will tuke cur usual ten minute

I ce88 ncw.,

(Whereupdh a short recess wes tuken.)
(Vhersupon, pursucnt toc a shcrt recess

heretofore taken, the feollowing procsedings were

had.)

1R, CROWE: The Grand Jury .ants to ccre in.

THE CUURT: A1l right, have them ccme 1n,
(Grand Jury enters.)
(After the Gr.nl Jury retired, the follcwing

rroceedings were had:)

(Whereupon Nr, Marshall continued reading

the same authority.)

JR, [ARSHALL: State v. MWaioni, 78 N,d. La., 338,

THE COURT: What 1s that?
IR, ."ARSHALL: 78 I, J, Law, 33¢,

(Whereupon Mr., Marshall read from the sbove

authorlyy referrsd to in the weords and figures as

follovs, to-witt)
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17 ‘n. ARSHALL: In Co .cnwezlth v. Barner, 18¢ Pa,
335.
* THE CO7RT: 1287
R, Anf ALL: 15% Pe. 335,
{("horsuvon :r. . .rshall read frow the

chove attlerity referred to in the werds «nd

figur.s s follows, to-wit:)
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18 (R, MARSHALL: 1In Sayers v, Ccumenweolth, Pa. =%9€,
the ¢ rt ch.rgew the Jury thus:
‘Thaer w on '"r. ‘arshell resd froe the
above wut ority referred to in the werds nd

figures g fLllcws, to-wit:)
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1630
1R, ARSHALL: Andnow I w.ont {2 road Gowwenwaalth v,
Hellinger, a very interesting cese. Clnzcnvealth v,
Hellinzer, 190 —-- this is gquite on extensive case, and
Ju. e Crowe suggpests we rewa it wuring the .djcurn ent
hour, Perhars 've better o vntil tuc cleloek wna your
Henor can read 14,

THE ¢2U T: We willi : w suswend until two o'clock,
(Wherew;cn wn . 'icurament was tuken until

Vednesd.y, July o Jth, 4, 7, 1¢%4, .t the "our

of twe ¢'clock ©, 7,
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Wsdnesday, July 30,1934.
2:00 o'clock P.M,
Court convenzd at two ol'clock P.M, Wednesday,
July 30th, 1924, pursuant to adjournment

herstofore taken.

Pregent: Same a8 before,
(It wae agreed betwssn Court and Couneel that
heresafter the hours of the trial would be
from ten thirty to twelve thirty and from

two o'clook to four o'clock in the afternoon).

THE COURT: Gentlemen, I have soms to this conclusion:
I have listened to whzt you have had to say and I have
read some of the authorities., Here is what I think I
will do. I am still of bthe opinion that if I should
shut out this evidence it would e reversibdls error,
However, I am willing to be shown. I am going to hear
the evidence, and rule on its competency at the conclu-
silon of the taking of the testimony, and before imposing

sentence. I want a brief from the State, and a brief

‘from the defense, by Monday morning.
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MR, CROWE: If your Honor please, befors you enter
that order: We fesl that if ths evidence has been heard,
your Honor cannct then strike 1t outb. |

THE COURT: Why not?

MR. WALTER BACHRACH: There is no jury here.

THE COURT: If there was a jury it would be different,

MR, CROWE: Our proposition is -- and we may not have
mads 1t as clear as we intended to —— if it comes to
your Honor's notice that there 1s any question zbout the
mental capacity of these defendants, then the duty becomes

absclute upon your honor te call a jury, We would like,
before your honus rulss on such s vital and lmportant
matter, to give you all that we have got on it.

THE COURT: All right., UNow, supposing we 4id as I
guggssted, and the evidences was admitted, and we would
hear the evidence, Then ws might strike it all out,

For instance, we might put on the doctor here, Dr. Vhite,
or whatever his name is, and at the conclusion of his
teztimony you might move to strike out all of his evidence.
Supposiﬁg it goes that far, and you move to etrike it

out, At the conclusion of the testimony I may strike

out Dr. White's testimony, or Dr. Brown's, or Dr. Jones',

and leave tne evidenes of one man in the record, say,
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Or I may strike it all out, all of the evidence of all these

witnesses, end they may put on somebody else Whom I
do not know anything about, and I may strike that all
out too, but T am inclined to think, under the Wording
of the statute, that I must hear evidence in mitlgation
and evidence of aggravation., Supposing the State hexre
wante t; show an aggravabtsd murder.

MR, WALTER BACHRACH:- Didn't they?

THE COURT: They did, and I hevs allowed you to do it.
I did not shut the State off because thsre was a plea of
suilty. I did aot say that there was ngheed of this
or that, but I permitted the state to put on svidence
of every detall. I did not care how long 1t took.
Counsel for the defense thought 1t wes not nzcessary,
gows parts of it, but I 1lst it all go in, becauss time
cuts no figure in a case of such importence as this,
be it an hour, a day, a Week or a month. I let you
go into every detall, even under a plea of guilty.
I permitted the State to put on 81l witnesses, even
after a plea of guilty. What for? ToO show an
aggravated murdar, Now, then, under the wording of

the statute, the statute says, "in mitigation". Give
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me Smith and Hurd's there,
Seotion 733, Pags 730, of Smith & Hurd's

statutes, Chapter 38, under the Criminal Code, reads:
"In case whers a party pleads guilty such
plea shall not be entersd until the Couwrt
shall have fully sxplained to the accused
the consequences of any auch plea," --

which the Court has done very fully here in this cas:z --

| "After which if the party persists in plead-

Ing guilty" --

which thay both did
"such plsa shall be received and recorded
anid the Court shall proceed to rendsr judg-
zent and z2xecution thereon as if found guilty
by a jury. In all cases where the Court
possesses any discretlion" --

and the Court hes defined the punishment imprisonment

not less than fourteen ysars or life or death —--
"It shall bs the duty of the Court to examine
wltnesses as to the aggravation or mitigation
of the offense,"

MR, CROVWE: No doubt --

THE COURT: Now, then, under that wording of the
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statute and where the Cuury permitted the State even
over objections, although counsel withdrew hlzs objec-
tions later -— that thers was no necessity for putting
on g0 many witnessss after a ples of guilty, the
Court permitted 2ighty witnesses 1o teztify 1o every
detaill to show an aggravated murder; and after the
State is through the Jdefendante come 1ln and they

say that they are not going-- they den't claim

their men are insane, that the defendente are insane,
but they wish to put on certain evidence to show a miti-
gation of the crime. Now then, supposing I were

to eay no, and then should impose ths extreme penalty.
Vould not the Supreme Court say that everybody who

is found gullty of murder ie not exscuted or should

be executed end 1f the Court hed listensd to mitlge-
ting circumstancsas then he would not have imposed the
dezth penslty if he had listened to anymitigating oir-
cumstances that witneeses teetified to; but if T 4aiad
not admit that would cot the Supreme Court éay that

I ghould have listened to what the Gefendants had to
gay ravher than have mace an arbltrary ruling and
gentenced thew to whatever it might be?

o MR, CROWE: There is no difference in your Honor's
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mind and curs on that polnt, Your Honor has said
that it 1is necessexry for you to liesten to evidence
\in mitigation. We contend that this szvidence is not
in mitigetion but is a matter of defense,

THE COURT: How can I tell before the questions
are put and before the yitnece testifles? You have
not a jury hesre.

MR, CROWE: Counsel have stated what they expeot
tc prove, They are going to show by doctors that
thelr ninde are in such & etate that they ere not
to be held to full accountability, Now, befors
your Honor makes your decision here — this matter
ig s0 vital —— we would like to fully present the
law,

THE COURT: I think that you sre getting mixed
bs tween th&AIEEpDnEibjlity -- they =re not going to
getate that their clients are not responsible,

MR, BACHRACH: May we state our own position rathér
than have the Statelv Attorney etate it for we?

THE COURT: Staete it, and I will let you go onm,

if yoy want to have it your own way I have no objection,

MR. BACHRACH: It 1s our position here, if the Court

plezse, that the question of insanity which 1s a3sserted
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or attempted to be asserted as a defense ordinarily is
& legal matter which deegle with the questlon of the
capecity of ths defendant to distinguish between right
and wrong or choote between right and wrong. We do not
intend to offzr any avidence which bedrs cn the
capacity of these two dsfendants to dletingulsh betwesn
right and wrong or to choose between right and Wroag
e8 of the time of the commission of the offense en the
3let day of May, 1824,

Our plea of guilty in this case admits that
on that date they wers legally sans. Therefore, we
do not propose to offer any evlidence to shew that
on that date they were legally insane, Ve do
propose to offer evidence, however, to shoW a wmental
condition, a mental dlsease functional in character,
not an organic braln disorder like paresis or something
of that kind that would affeoct the capacity of the

defendants to chocese between right and wrong, but that

" there was a functicnal awental disease which would have

been insufficient for the defense to have acserted
here cn an issus bvefore the jury on the question

of guilt, that these defcadants Weres ineane. But we
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still say that that evidence, falling short of a
coppetent legal defenee, is s ciroumetancs which thie
court way take into coneilderetion, znd should, in
Qetermining the punishment to be meted out to these
defendants in the exercise of fho discoretion conferred
upon the court by the statute. That is our position.
MR, CROWE: OQur interpretation of that is, your
Honor, that they eare attempting to show degrees of
reeponglibility, There iz nothing in lew known ae
degrees of responsibility. You are either sntirely
responsible for all the conssquences of your sct, or
yeu are not responsible at all, Whether they
term tha legal insanity, or whether they term that
moral insanity, or whethsr they call 1t some other
name and leave insanity out, it etill precents to the
court, in our judgment, & defense of insanity; and
I insist thet in a murder case where counsel cannot
walve any of the rights guaranteed the defendants
by the conetitut on, where even the dsfendants them—
selves cannot walve them, - the deferndants could not
glgn a jury walver in this case; they cannot agree

to this or that; the law places those safeguards
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around them, VWhile counsel may say that this pecu-
liar mental disease doss not ameunt, in our judgment,
to a legal defense of ingenity, your Honor mey think
or I may think that it does, There may be a wide
difference of opinion =28 t¢c the exaot legal effect of
that. We wmight all be in accord. Your Honor might
think, I might think, and counssl for defense might
think that this evidsnce of a menteal disease did not
amount to legal inmeanity; Tut the supreme court
reading ths record later on may come to a different con-
clusion end say, "That is the defense of insenlty and
it ought to e submitted to a jury."

If your Homor will permit us, we have made a
very thorough and exhaustive search of the authorities,
end before you decide this I think you ought to hear our
authoritises,

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: Your Honor, mey I make one
suggestion in connsction with this situation. The
State's Attorney keeps ¢n referring to the duty of the
court to call a jury to pass upon the question of sanity
or ineanity. Now, there are several kinde of insanity
to begin with.

In the first place, the lunacy statute of the
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state of Illincis provides for an investigation in the
County Court where a person becomes dangeious to
goclety, or is incapable of managing his propsrty or
his children, That does not depend l1a any way upon
thequestion of his abllity to distinguish betwsen
right and wrong. That hae nothing to do with 1%,

The covrt under that lungey statute says he 1l& insane
when he ig dangeroue to socizty end puts him in an
agylun,

The criminel code has saversl provisions relat-
ing to criminal insanity and one of them ie Section 12
'of Division 8, Which provides that insanity at the
time of the commiseion of the‘offenee ghall constitute
a defense to a criminal prosecution, That relates to the
time of the commission of the offense,

Section 15 of the =ame division is a provieiodn
relating to a situation where the defendant beocomes in-
sane after the commiseion of the crime, and provides
that the defendant shall not be tried if efter the
conmigsion of the crime he then Hr the first time
becomes insane.

Seoction 14 provides that if after & verdiot the
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defendant shall appear $0 be insane, he shall not be
sentenced. |

Section 15 provides if after judgment it shall
sppear the defendant is insane, he shall not be
exscuteq,

But those are three steps in the determination
¢f thie question of ineanity which all relate to
insanity following after commiseion of the crimg, and
a totally different etandard ts applied in detemrmining
sanity in a hearing of that kind before s jury.

Undexr Section 12, which is the provision relat-
ing t¢0 insanity at the time of the offense, the test

"ie‘tha right or wrong test.

Under Sections 13, 4 and 15 of the statute
the duestion is no longer the questlon of right or wrong
or incapacity on the part of the defendant to dlstin-
gulsh between right or wrong; but the question of
nis capaclty to understand that he is being tried,
sentenced, or executed, The supreme cowrt says that
in the Geary case.

THE COURT: That 148 under Seoction 157
MR. WALTER BACHRACH: That is under Section 15 after

judgment, and the rules of 2 clvil case apply In that
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kind cf & hearing. In other words, the defendant in
that kind of & bearing has to go still further; he must
ghow notonly that he was incapable of distinguishing
between right and wrong, but he must show that he is

incapable of understanding that he i1s golng to Dbe

gxecuted. There ie a greater burden upon him in
that kind of a case.

Now who determines that? Nobt She State's
Attorney. A petition must e filed by the defense or
some ons must file a sworn petition in court setting
up that the accused or the defendant is incapable of
understanding that he ie about t0 bz exécuted, as wae
done in the Geary case; and upon guch a pstifion being
fikd and swWoxn to, 1t is then the duty of the court to
lupanel & jury to paes on that question, not of general
inssnity, bubt upon the capacity of the defendant %o
understand that he is being tried at all.

The statute contains these words that in all
of these cases, which was the language read by Mr., Crowe

~  thils morning, —= that in all of these cases where insanity
cccurs after the commission of the crime, not at the time

of the commission of the crime, but after the commission
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of the crime, the statute says when the defendant is
g0 insane —— that isg what the etatute has been con-
gtrued to mean in the Geary case —— that he cannot
understand the nature of the cass, +then the court
shall impanel a jury.

The situation provided for by the statute is
not ons Where it appears to the State!s Attcrney thet
the defendants are insane or oneg Where he does not
vant the court to hear mitigating cirocumstances, that
then 1t shall be the duty of the court to impansl a jury,
but the statute provides a sifuation where it eppears
to whom? ¥ny, to the court, and it is made to ap-
pear to the court upon a properly sworn petition as
%0 which there can bs issue joined and tried.

there hae been no petition filed hera, sWorn
to by the State's Atvoraey that these defendants are
80 insane they cannot wnderstand they are being tried,
He claims they are sane and yet he is invoking the
provieions of a statute intended for the protection
Oof these defendants as a meane of hanging them.

Now we get back to the original proposition we

have here, We are not attempting to go into the
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question of insanity in = legal sense gt all by the
evidence we propese to offer. We will offer evidénce
and propoce to offer evidence solely a8 btc the question
of the mental condition, as t0 the disease, functicnal,
not organic, but the diseased functional mental condi-
tionof these defendante on the 21st day of May, a2t
the time of the commission of the offense, and to i«
show how thet diseased functional mental condition
eptered into the commission of thie crims, so
that this court may then determine whether those facts
entitle them to leniency and wercy at the hands af
this court. Just the esame, if your Honor please, as
in proceedings that had been taken 1n the criminal
court of Cook County time and time again. It has
been a recognized practice in this court, snd this is
the first time 1t has ever been Questioned as to whe~
ther or not the court could take into consideration as
a\mitigating clrcumetance the mental condition of the
defendant who has pleaded guilty and is about to be
gentenced.

MR. CROWE: I still insist, if your Honcr prleacge,

that any evidence of any kind of insanity presents a
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defense, and the law ig extremely clear upon the
proposition that that is a matter for a jury, and nob
the Court. It is not necessary that a petition
be filed, That is one way of bringing it to the
notice of the Court, that there is a question ae 10
the mental capacity of the defendant. But you cen
bring it to the Court'sattention & nuwber of ways,
and it does not have to be brought to the Court's
attention by anybody. The Court can observe from the
demeanor of the defendant himself that there ls some-
thing wrong with him, and the dsfendant has s right on
his ¢wn motion to have the qu-stion of his mental con-
dition inquired into by & jury. Ag to the statement
of counsel juet made, that there 1ls a mental diesease
that they intend to show, in both of these defendants,
that caused them to commit this crime: how can he
or you or I say that that mental disease does not amount
to a legal defense?

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: VWe can listen and hear,

MR, CROWE: He can listen ana hear, and then the
law says, as soon as.it is brought to your attention --
and it has bsen brought to yow attention now by the

statement of counsel, that there is a quection as to
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the legal capaclty of these men, it becomes thz duty
of the court immediately to ilumpanel a jury.

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: There is no such question here,

MR, CROWE: If your Honor will permit us to finish
with our authorifiee, I think we Will convince your
Honor of the soundness of our position.

THE COURT: I will give you all the time you went, If
you can enlighten the Court in any way I will give
you all the time you want.

(Assistant State's Attorney Marshell then con-
tinusd bls argumsnt).

MR. MARSHALL: Continuing with the disocussion of
sc-called medical insanity, sometimes called moral
insanity, and d2fined in the books as depravity, a zkmkmx
vicious sourse of life, profligacy, - one type of insan-
ity, not in a lzgal senee but in a medical sense: the
answer made by the Supreme Court of Permsylvania in
the case that was read this morning and in the cuce
of Coummonwsalth ve. Hollinger, 190 Pennsylvania, 155,
seeme to be very complete, You will remember the
language of one case, "The slant of perversion is no

more & defense than a slant of vision,"
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In Commenwealth ve. Hollinger 1t ie said:
Insanity can be pleaded a8 a defense to a charge in
crime, but not in mitigation ofthe degree of gullt.

The courts Ughot ask the jury to undertake the lmpos—
8ible task of discriminating bzitween degress of insanity,
And what there the court would not ask the
jury to do, that impoesible task, by thle msneuver, the

defence attempte to have your Honor wmdzrtake,

THE COURT:  That weae not a plea of guilty, was it?

MR, MARSHALL: It was a jury trial, but the legal
¢ffzet ig the came,

THE COURT: Oh no. Will the State sand for the
Pennsylvenias etatutee, A plea for guilty for murder
in Penneylvania, as I understand it, makce it only
gecond-degree murder, and you have got to show other
evidence before you can convict --

MR, MARSHALL: Premeditation.

MR. DARROW: Was there any statute like ours in
refsrence to considering facts in mitigation and
aggravation at that time?

MR. MARSHALL: Section 8183 of the Pennsylvania
statutes, plea of guilty statutes, says:

"Whenever hereafter any person is charged
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"with the commission of eny crime, and is
willing to enter a piea of guilty, no till
of indictment shall ve gent to thz Crand

Jury, but the District Attorney shall prspare

a bill in the usual form, and the plea of

guilty shall be entered thereon, and the Court

shall thereupon forthwith impose sentence;

provided that nothing in this =ct chall be con-

strued to relate to or change the proce dings

in homicide cases in this Comwonwealth;

and, further, that the defendant mey withdraw

his plea at any tim before sentence, by leavs

of Court."

there are states where a plea of guilty

1s filed, &and a jury ie called to determine
the punishment. So thet what the practics is in
Penneylvania will reqQuire a little further inquiry in
that regard.

Your Honor suggested that you thought there
was a difference here because that was a jury trial,
and 1t 1s clear enough that whatever might go to a

jury under these circumstances would go to a court

or what might not go to a jury might not go to the court.
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THE COURT: Yée, well, practically so, yes.
MR, MARSHALL: That is why I e2id thsre was no
di fference. This was bzfore a jury on mitigastion,
The court goee on and says, "If he was in
the condition of mind that would excuse the man becauee
he was not conscious of the nature of the act it would
then be your duty to acquit him on that ground and it
would be your duty to say that you did acquit hiaon
that ground because if his mind vas in the condition
that he was not responeible for wh.t he wes doing he
would rot be rssponeible for manslaughter any more
than he would be for murder, and the important thing
for you to determine ie whethsr this prisoner at the
time he committed this offsnse did i+ wilfully, delib-
erately and preméditatively, If he did, he wes guilty
of murder in the first degres; unless you found that
the state of his mind wae such that at the time hs was
not consoicus of the nature of the act and therefore
lrrezponsible there muet bs a verdict of guilty of
mirder in the firest degree,"
Your Honor will note the word "responsible’
running through all of these cases from the legal

viewpoint,
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The tesvimony in that case showed conduct
go brutal, the act was such, was of the kind sas indgcgd
our predecescors in the adminietrsation of the criminel
Jan to charge in the Indictment thet the accused wee
"ingtigated by the devil," (Still reading from the
case)!
"We have not been zble to find any case in
Pennsylvanle which defines that there 18 a
grade of insanlty that while not suffioianf
to lead to the acquittal of the prisoner
charged with murder is sufficlent to lowsr
the degres of the crime™ * *
(Counsel continues resading from thé
Hollingsr case).
MR, MARSHALL: Now, I wish to cites to your Honor
the case of Canon vs. the State, 74 Texas, Criminal
Reports, page 467, and I will read you the syllabi:
"General reputation of insanity cannot be
proven,"

Syllabus 25 says:
"On a trial for murder where the only defense
18 insanlty manslaughter cannot be an issus.

There is no grade of insanity that mitigates
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"erims., It never operates as a mitigation
of homicide és i1t goes only to the punisghment
and not t0 the character of the act itself,
In such & case it is not srrof to fail or
refuse to chargs upon menslsughter.”
And again:
"If the defsndant has an irresistible impulse
to commit crime and does not know the nature
and the quality of the act he is insanse,
If he does know the nature and quallty of the
act and doss know right from wrong, and knows
the act to bz wrong, he is not insane."
Quoting again,
"If the defendant at the time was laboring undcr a
delusion and such dslusion deprived him of the
capacity t0 know right fron wrong, hs was insane,
There 18 no grade of delusion %hat mitigates
crime. In other words, a party cannot be
half insanse, He ig either sane or inzane.
Insanity never operates as witigation of &
homicide ag it only goee¢ to the punishment ang

/
not to the character ¢f the act itself anag
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"its only sffect i3 to exeﬁpt the criminal
from tﬁa punishment preecribsd for homlclds
witnout exonsrating hiw from the charge of
comumitbing it * * * Ths praysr reste upon
*he ide=a that thire is a grads of insanlty
not sufficient to acquit a party of the
crime of manelsughter and yet t0 acquit him
of the criwms of murusr. The law does not

recognize any such distinction ag that,"

"The rule of law is very plain thet In oxcer
that the plea of insanity shall prevall, thare
must have bzen that mental condition whica
disabled nim frow dlstinguisbing right and

wrong in respset to the act committed."

Thet is t0 say, in another way, that a persom
cannot be half insane. Now, that is unreasonable, if your
Honor please. Thie ie a grezt temple of justice, whers
we are dsaling with the law, Ths alisnists and the
doctors dzal with 1% frow the standpoint of the
individual, the psychopathic hospital, whers they have

one or two or thres hundred gradations and variations,
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gach with a name, but they cannot bring thie array

of wedical literature into court for our purposss
under the laW, when the only test with us 1s, respon-
sible or not responsible? Ag you have sesn, thess
delusions do not mitlgate crime. They have no opera-

bioa, save the one that they exsmpt the priscomer if he bs

- inseng, Judge Crowe suggeste, and I have rsad it

also, that the allenlst ie concernzd only with the wel-
fars of the individual as a patient, where as we, ae
representatives of the Pecople, are concerned with the
enforcenmant of the law and the szfety of the State.
Remeuber, 1f your Honor please, that mitlgation and
aggravation, undsr the languagz of the Smith case in
Colorado, are provided for by statute, so that socisty
mey be protectad. Thet is one of ths ocardinal eleuments
of aggravation, as over agalinst aanything that may

appsar 1n mitigation,
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Thén conegider this, thsat mental 1nsanit§ -
this moral mania, this moral insanity, resting on and
" being bhe medical definition, if your ponor pleass,
for depravity, for & vile course of 1life, for proflig-
acy, meane what when presented in witigation?
Only this, that they bring in here thelr vile
conduct as mitigation for a great crime,

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: Mr, Marehzll,. may I agk you
a question?‘

MR, MARSHALL: Yes,

MR, WALTER BACHRACH: Do you draw any distinction
betwesn the wltlgation of the crime and the mitigetion
of the punishment? - h

MR. MARSHALL: TYes,

MR. WALTER BACHRACH: Wheat is the difference?

MR, MARSHALL:! 7You answer it when it ie your twurnm,

¥R, WALTER BACHRACH: Those cases that you aTe read-
ing all deal with t he mitigation of the crime, and
not with the mitigetion of the punishment,

MR, MARSHALL: You think so?

MR, DARROV: You said he could ask you & Question.

VR, MARSHALL: I didn't say that I would divert my

argument tc answer you,
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So that Witty ve. The State, concludes, 9
this proposition, that is to say, Iin another way,
that & person cannot be half ineane. That means
of course now, half insane in a legel sense, not in

a medicel sense &t all, because we are not dealing

with medicine here,

Now I will take the case of Feree vs., Common-

wealth, 193, Kentucky, 3947:
WVhereupon Mr. Marghall here read from the

above authority in the wordes and

figurses following:
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. e, ¢f the

1

R, PSS LLY o, exo i YUiL Tano
S0 rewe Cuntt in p-seing upon o howlcide wheie the
gentence s Jde .tk.
("Mersuen 7. orsh 17 re.d 'r w the aicvs
gutherit - r fer.e . f¢ in the werds an  fliures

28 fu1lo.8:)
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v

T ACER LU h pothilegiced conultion of the 'in.

Ne ~ays, existe, th t vermifts hin to brin, n ali.nists
in 2i*i _tirn of the punishwent, when they * ve clusse
the .cor, They luwre se*tl~ $h § (uestion by their
lea of gui™ty in <he ¢ se. I continue= re. ing.

(Wher won v, arsh.ll continued reauing *rom

therwhcve Jterity referred to, in the wer's

ané fi.ures .8 fcliowe, to-wit:)
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R, "+ROTIILL: ' intaresting ca.e is "t.te v,

¢ wncer, 8 N, J, Law, 21, ¥, J. Law, 186, secss to

e a repcrter's nute, wut [re the i pcrt.nce of the

lang .ge used + o intertq. in the repcris at page
.6, They .y

(Vhereuper r. orshell re . fro the teve

outhority rcflerred te in the wer's and flgures wue

follows:)
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THE C7UPT: We will hcve « five winute r-cess,
centle, ep, MMlv flve winutes te Lv te use .- ure

going ¢ sus enl ot £ovr teleck.,
("heteurnn o short recess wos teken,

(W or w«an rursuant tc o sh.rt recess herete-

furz t ven t e fullo.ing proceecings wers hul.,

TEL C°"717: Prrceec,
=, TAREHALT In the case of FToberts v, “tute of
Ce.rgia, 3 Ga, 310 —--

T, CRYEr Vait . inmte, the .efen unts ore ot

(Defern nta enter c.ort T, )

THE 7777 Repe t th.t, the beys are hers now.

R, I MRBUALT: In the c. & I Roberts v. Jtute ¢
Gecrgle, 3 Ga, 310, the lourt susteine” an instruction
whie t 11 the Jury thaf 1f the defenlent he . memcry
.nl intelligence evena glimmering of reeson sufficient
to ensble him to distinguish between right and wrong
in regard to the partictlar act abtout to be committed,
the Jury were to find him guilty. At the time he

ccr itted the asgault and previously he was violent,
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in rie c¢.nv reation. Ye seerg tc have been on' th.ut
3.y the very person to whom Ir. Frskine lenies the
wretockion of in cnity~ * *
(Whereupon ir, Jarsghull r-~. & {rc:. the sbove
ant’crity r3errel ftc in the w rls an. figures

gs f.llows, to-wit:)
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R. ATCHILLY T yuehe thet cuse, 1f your Tenor
PL: .ee 20 thet yru shall have the beneilt of that
ot lawyer, Tir, Trskine's view upcn what are the
1i ituti.ns ¢f this rule,
Buluwin v. State, 12 "o, 228, at ,.ge 734,
(Wh. reupcn “ir, “"arshall reed “rom the whove
authcerity roferred to iIn the wrris und figures as

follows:)
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TR, LPEFenT Green v, Ccr onw~ol*», vyeour Heonor,

"R, ¥V, DLCFRACH: What is the cituticon] of Green v.
Coun. ealth?

MR, ZREIALL: T will withdraw th.t.

.7, BITURPICH: Gilve ue the cituticn just the scoe.

AR, ARSHATT: Yes, S4 Uass, 12 Allen 158, But it
has to Jdo more iirsctly with the plew of guilty than

it has to do with this c]ass'of cases,

Flannigan v. People, 58 N Y 467,

(Whereuvon 727 Marehall read from the above
guthority referred to, in the werls wnd figue ., a3

Tl ows~to,wite)
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7 UR, MARSHALL: Then how can it be used in mitigation
when they had closell the docr upon the issue, they having
11l the opportunity th t the law gives to every man
before their plea; and they came in here and sall upon
thie we ar= sane, Their plea weans they are ganse,
(Whar-upen . T, &rshall continued reading
fro. the .wcve wrthority referrsu to, In the

wor 5 .ni fi ures .s fellows:)
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"ﬁ. TARCTMT: Few, Hogue ves., The “ta*s, 85 Texas
Triw. Rep. 538. This ocurt hat never rsoc.nized the
ceesrire that o person with & «ind Yelo. the nor.al
should ce punished for w lower grade c¢f offense if
Zounl guilty, th.n o rersen o7 normal aind, The _nly
relief == mark th-se wirls — the only relief o“fered
any perscn of unscun. ind un'er our gtatute and
pr.ctice ig that if such Lerson is incapable of knowing
zn 1 understanding the act when com itted to be wrong,he
iz not gu-ceptible tc any gunish ent, It would be a
str nge ;rinciple in'eed if the Courts wer~ permlt'ed

tc sreculate we t¢ the wegree of intellilgence exlsting

¢
' t

in the minls c¢¥f _erscns chargs. with crime, ﬁnless some
limitation or gecirt s readhed whers culpggility
ceus=C, .nd when th.t point w.a reuched he wos not
culpable,
People v, Scott, 59 Cal., 341,
THE CO'RT: What number?
R, "IREHALL: 59 Cal, 341, The defsadent ‘as prosecutsd -
by information for the crime ¢f incest and upon his
grraionment 1l .ded guilty tc the churgs. Tunsequently

z>7ore gen*tence it s su;-2-*el to Ve Trurt that
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the .efen ..nt «.3 insune. Thereypen the Cou?t ordercd
th. 4 the guestion of insinity be trisl by a jury. The
tri.l oo urred on. the Jury proncunce . the defenJant
insone, snd he was sent to an insine asylum ani &fter~
Weris dischuz_ed cn the certific.te of the pghysicli.n in
ths aslum thot me wee then s.n2, «rereupon the (Lurtd
Lslow gente ced hid to ten vezrs ilamprisonment in the

Ytate's priscn. Paral’eling somewhat to the Cezry

CWSG .

(W =27 w.en "r, ‘wrshell T .o frow the Jove
authority r "erred to in the w-r s an’ flgures

as follows:)
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F ARETIATT . The rule is well szttled —-

oY N wda

10
T, W, BACHRACY: VWhat is the citation?

YELLARSHSLY s 16 Corpus Juris 79,

(whereupen T, rshell read frew the

above authority r>ferred to in the dords .nd

Tigures, o8 fcllc a:)
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11 R, AREIAL: Cuniiughom ve The State, 58 MMiss.,
that ig the 36%th Am. Reps. 360. I regr t I “iave not
the 1iscissgippl pocc.nuaber,

R, W, DACT™ACT: f.erlcan Peports ¢cr A erican State
Reports?
R, AREFLTTr P aricen rerciis.,
VR, W, BIFTTIOFD 38707
MR. "ARSH/LL: 360,
R, W, BEC7TLLT: Sunninghew v State?

R, ARSF:L: Cunninphon v, Stote (Rec.ing)

(Vhessugon T, .orshuil reodt from the . ove
authority referred to, in the werus and

figures, we follows:)
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13 " 7, ARSHATT: In re Fstate ¢f Fors.un, 54 Barbsr,

EIQY. 274: at’ laeuge 291!

(Wheroupon Mr, Marshall r-.i fro . the .hove
authority r:ferred to, in the wor s ani figures as

follovis:)
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K, GARFHATLL: Rex v, Offord, English Co .acn Law

Feporte 5 C & P , 188,

2 1llinois.

(Whersupon *fr. Marshall rsa. from the rove

autherity in the wer g8 wnd fiures «s follows:)
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14 "o . TARTOW:  To you thin» thet ie the law here?
‘P, ARSHALL: Not in those words, but =zs tc his
kn:wlsige of the conseguence of his «ct, 2enerally
spe-king, yes.

Spencer v, "-.te, 89 ‘uryland, 28, at vage 41:

*,

("hersup.n ‘r, arshall r:ad from the
above authority in the wor s and figures as

follous, to-wit:)
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15 "R, ARG Thoet is Vhrylan i Corngel re..

« C.8e fro. Jebrast. tlis sorning, ni I nt to
T:.1cne “rouw Fibraske, Boethwell v, Et.te,
7L Web., 747.

"R, U, BAOTTATI T s th ot on & plow of guilty?

R, ARSH!MLT: I .cn't kncw the facts, T have roted
only «+hat they e 10 “rut serel insanity. I wiil
check that u, thou h wn. «'vi.e you, I %hink it

s n.t. M Lage 750,

(Vher upen .r, wrsh.l” r oac from the ubove
anthority in the wer s wnd Zigures .s follows,

to-Wit:)
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18 R, TIRRY ¢ Y u weul’® not olaim thot wovld be the

law in Tllinois wonld you?

IR, AFSHALL: Very clese to it.

‘R, '"ARROW: Vhot?

@R, CARFHALL: vite clos:ly.

IR, TARROW: Well gquite .iF ~rently,

A, CARSHALL: Taylor v, Jw onwealth, 108 Pa, €tate
Reports, 263, T meant to ro.d this case this norning

with the Pennsylv.nia occoses. Paye 370,

(Whereupen . .arshell re & ro - the
above avthority in the wor.s «nd figures s

follows, to-wit:
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Ar- R

17 D, JARCHALL: Bobard v, State, 30 Miss.‘SOO.
™, LARROV:  Thut wes before the war, wasn't 147
R, CR'T:  Yeur lener, I "ave the Penns&lvania statutes
here, To you want tuem?
MR. CARTHALT: There is sc1e good law even in
Migsissinni,
THE COTRT: Yes, thamk veu. '
' Beginning touorr§ﬁ;thefe will be two
Sesgicneg of court, each seSBioﬂ two hLours. The first
segsicn will begin at 10:30 and run from 10:30 until
12:30; +the second session from 2:00 untll 4:00, The
lawyers on both siues heve requested it and thet is
"what we will do from new cn, We willsuspend now:

until fowmorrow ot ten t irty.
(Whereupon an adjournment waus ta' en until

Thursdey, July 3lst, A, T. 1824, at the hour

of 10:30 o'clock A. M,)

—
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